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In this years
Annual Report

The importance

of people

Read abeut the importance
we place on our people and
how that fits into our sirategy

@ To read more go to
pages 22 10 23

-

| b

Our portfolio
Read more ahout cur £14 6 hillion
property por tiolio and how it has
periormed this year

@ To read more go to
pages 36to 47

Major trends impacting
our markets

Read about the long term trends
in our fmarkets and how we

are responding

To read more go to

pages 121017




@ Our strategy

.,i Under stand our approach
¥ and how it drives value for

¢ our shareholders

' Torea¢ mare go to
-

pages 1810 25

&

AN, Qur busmess model

Learn about what we do and
why that sets us apart

To read more go to
pages 1016 11

For more information

EE You will find Links throughout this
Report to guide you ta further reading

or relevant infor mation

For more tnformation visit our website
www britishland com

Feedback

We value your feedback Please contact us at
Our corporate website
www britishland com/contacts

Follow us on Twitter
@BnitishlLandPLC

We are placemakcrs
Understand how our praperties
enhance the lives of those who
work shop and live in them

&, | f-f;-,- 1o

LA

To read more go to
pages 2610 35

Integrated reporting

We integrate social and environmentat
information in tiis Report in line with
the Internatranal Integrated Reporting
framawark [tus reflects how
sustainability 15 integrated into our
placemaking strategy governance
and business operations Qur industry-
leading sustainability strategy s a
powerful tool to detiver lasting value
for all our stakeholders

For more information visit
www britishland com/sustainability




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Partfolie valuatson [proportionaily consoldated)
£14.6bn

EPRA NAV per share'

Dwvidend per share
28.36p

Undertying Profitt

«363m
341,

Carbon intensity {index scorel

since
-409%

2009
~ Strong full year results

Teal properyretur
11.3%
T
{£9,619m
SERT—
14.2%

2 pro beforetax
£l,331m
Fesess
131.2,

Customer satisfaction

79/10

- Valuation performance driven by improving ERV growth and lettings

- Placemaking skiils delivering teasing success, portfolio nearly fully let

- Allocating capttal into our London campuses and multi-let Retail assets

- Modest committed development, but a significant pipeline with optionality

- Robust financtal position with continued access to low cost finance

Presentaton of financial iformation

The Group inancial siatements are prepared under IFRS where the Group sinteresls injoint ventures
and funds are shown as a single bne item on the income statement and balance sheet and all subsidianes

are consolidated at 100%

Management considers the busimess principally ona proportionally consobdated bases when setiing

the strategy determerung annual prionties making imvestment anc financing decisions and reviewing
performance This includes the Group s share of joimnt ventures and funds on a Ling-by-line basis and
excludes non-controlting interests in the Group s subsidiaries The financrat key performance indwcators
are also presented on this basis Refer to the Financial review for a discussion of the IFRS results

' See glossary for dehimtions
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European Public Real

Estate Association (EPRA)

Performance measures’

As at 31 March [£m] 2016 2015 2014

LPRA earnings 365 313 295

LPRA NAV 10,074 9035 7027

EPRA NNNAV 9,640 8359 6700

As at 31 March [%] 2016 2005 2014

EPRA netinmitiat yield 41 43 48

EPRA Topped-up

net inimial yield 45 48 23

LPRAvacancy rate 20 29 37

EPRA Cosi Ratio

including direct

vacancy costs} 164 164 142

{exctuding direct

vacancy costs) 149 146 139
British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 1




Strategic Report

GROUP AT AGLANCE

We create outstanding places which
make a positive difference to people’s :
everyday lives: Places People Prefer

Total Portfolio

We create and operate attractive places for
people towork shop and live in Qur propertes
are well connected and well designed and we
use our placemaking skills to enhance and
ealiven them providing environments which
meet the growing expectations of out occupiers
and customers

s674m

Contracted rent

098.8%

Geccupancy rate

905

Weighted average
lease length

£20.0bn:

Assets under management

s14.6bn:

British Land owned

29m sq ft’

Of floor space

Highlights

- Totat accaunting return of 14 2% for the year

- Strong ERV growth of 5 3% 130 bps ahead
of the market benchmark

- Compteled £1 3 billion of gross investment
activity with acquision and development/
capnat spend broadly batanang disposals

- Proportionately consolidated weighted
average interest rate reduced by 50 bps
to 3 3%

- Roger Madelin appomnted to head up
Canada Water development

~Winner of the 2016 Queen s Award for
Enter prise for Sustainable Development

To 1ead more information about our
perlormance go to pages 36 to 47

Retail & Leisure

Our Retail and Leisure portfolioss focused on
regronal and tocal mutti-let assets We grovide
high quality retail alongside a growing leisure
offerandbest in class services to deliver
outstanding places which are in tune wath
modern consumet lifestyles places where
people goto shop eat and be enter tained

47

multi-let asseats

152

other retailand
teisure assels

£9.8bn’

Assets under management

$4.3bn’

British Land owned

20m sq ft'

Of floor space

Highlights
- Portfobio valuation up 2 4% to £7 3 bilion

- Over 903 000 sq fi of Retail lethings and
renewals 8% ahead of ERV

- Accelerating ERY trend broadiy hatanced
across regional and local sub sectars
leading to IPD outperformance of 100 bps
demonstrating the guality of eur portiolio

- £420 mullion of disposals further reducing
exposure to rmdture or non-core assels
multi-let now represents over 70%
of retarl portfolio

@ To read mare information about our Retal
and Leisure go to pages 4010 43

' Includes 100% of the assets owned by the Group s joint ventures and funds
2 |nciudes the Group share of joint ventures and funds and excludes non-controlling

interasts in the Group s subsidiaries
¥ Includes Canada Water property of £0 3 bitlion

2 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Offices & Residential

Qur Mfices and Residential portiolio is focused
on London We provide a range of working ‘
and living space across our campuses and

distinctive standalone propertres which

casmbine a broad mix of retail and teisure

to ¢t eate atlractive well-located and well-

managed envirgnments

f99pn 3

Assets under management Mixed use campuses

£4.0bn: 57

British Land owned Stand-alone ofhices

Om sq ft' rd

Of floor space Dffice and residential
developments

Highhights
~ Pori tfolio valuztion uplift of 11 8% to £7 0 billion

- 296 000 sq ft of Othice tettings and renewals
5 8% ahead of ERY

- Leadenhall Building 8% let or under offer
with just one floor lett to let

- Net investment of £280 miltion inte our
London cainpuses including acquisition
of 1 Sheldon Square at Paddington

- 739000 sq ft of developments completed
1n the period with 3 Broadgate accounting
for 710 000 sq ft

- Planning consent received for a 823,000 sq ft
redevelopment at our Broadgate campus
(100 Lverpool Street and 1 Finsbury Avenue)

. To read more informatien about our Officas
and Residential go Lo pages 44 to 47




The Leadenhall Building

P J

Y

Cur properties are home to over 1 200 different 603,000 Sq &

otgarusations ranging from inter nationat Cifice and Retail space
brands 1o local start-ups More than 64 00
people work across our Office portiolio and our

Retal sites recerve 330 rullion visits per year 98%

let/funder offer

Our portfolio is focused on
retail locations around the
UK and London offices

Prominently located tn the City of London
The Leadenhal! Buitding 5 distinctive shape
was developed as a response to planning
reguirements which protect the viewing
corndors of 5t Paul s Cathedral Officially
opened by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince
L ondon Harryn 2015 1t has attracied some high

w profile accupiers including jomnt owners
Meadowhail o OGMERS and the building s architects

Rogers Stirk Harbour + Partners
www theleadenhallbuilding com

1.5m sq ft o

Retmland leisure space

X ®
98 8e %N °

Occupancy ®C
®

Yorkshwre s premier shopping o 5 5
destination and home te nearly 300 Py ® . m Sq ft
shops and restaurants The centre first ®

L Ades:gnated London Qpportunity Area
openad in 1990 and 1s undergoing a [ 2 i PP ¥
substantial refurbishment on its 25tn @ © this 44-acre site was assembled in four
anniversary It has attracted 560 million -] transactions over five years We are
visitors in its 25 years A PwC report e working with the London Borough of
published this year revealed that it @ @ Southwark Lo create an exciting new
supports 1 jobn every 100 the place for Lendon which connects with
regien and ipwnevery £1 generated the locat community 2nd is integrated
by the regional econcmy e with the surrounding area Ttus1sa
www meadowhall.co uk 3 major long term project which will

.»‘!ﬂp key be delivered in a number of phases

To read the PwC report go o

and s one of the larges: mixed use
www britishland com/Meadowhall2s @ Oifices & Residential

@ Retall & Leisure fegeneralian projects mLondon
www canadawatermasterplan com

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014 R}




Stratedic Report

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

We have had another busy
and successful year

Key laghhghts of the year

Total accounting returnt

14.2%

Reflecting the increase in our net assei value
per share andincome yield from the dvidend

EPRA net asset value per share!

919,

Up 105%

Dividend per share

28.36p

Up25%

" Ptease see the glossary for delimtion

Welcome to our 2016 Annual Report We have
had a stiong year reftecting the work we have
done repasitioning our por tfolio o mirror the
changing way people live thei lives

Buildings are most successtul when they
reflect the needs of thase who occupy and

use them Getting closer to our customers
continues ta e a key theme for usand an
understanting of how modern lifestyles
ncreasingly merge work and leisure time
tnforms not only how we manage and develop
our assets but also the altocation of ous capital

Our delivery of Places People Prefer s
evidenced once agaim by our near fully tet
pastfolio and the growth we have generated
across our business

Underlymng Profil for the year was £363 mithon
up 16% The valuation of our po: tfolio also
increased by 6 7% to £14 & billion and NAV was
up 10 9% to 919 pence per share The Boardhas
recommended a fourth quarter dividend of 709
pence per share making a total of 28 34 pence
for the year We have proposed a first quarter
dwidend of 7 30 pence per share for 2017 an
increase of 3 0% The total accounting return
was 14 2%

4 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2016

Across the global markets equities have had
adithcull year the FTSE 100was down 11 6%
over the last 12 rnonths [year to 16 May 2014]
reflecung heightened concerns about
macro-economic and politicat nisks Closer 1o
home our shares along with the REIT sector
have underperformed the FTSE principally
reflecting concerns ahout the impact anexil
from Europe would have on the property sector
particularly in London While we are mindful
of this uncertainty we are confident that our
business is both resilient and well placed for
the long term

A highlight for me this year was the official
opening of The Leadenhall Buillding

last October 1 was delighted to welcome

the Duke of Cambr idge and Prince Harry as
guests of honour as the building ofiicially
opened for business The Cheesegrater as

ihis affectionately known 1s a gr eat example

of what Briish Land does best - financing
developing and managing exceptional buldings

From its innaovalive constr uclion technique and
distinctive design to its immediate recognition
on the London skyline The Leadenhall Building
has been an oulstanding success stary Yoted
The City of Londen Building of the Year in 2015
ithas attracted the highest rents ever achieved
inthe City of London It s no surpnise that itis
now 98% let/under offer

During the year we were once again also
recognised as sustamabiliy leaders in global
indices and awards Since launching our 2020
sustainability strategy in 2015 we have rmade
strong progress embedding sustainability
across our business We are achieving results
by setting high standards delivering trarning
providing support and sharing best practice
working closely with our development partners
and property management subsidary
Broadgate Estates Ltd 1am pleased that we
support RE100 - committed to purchasing
electricity from renewable power We alsginvest
inrenewable energy sowr ces at our assets with
photoveitaic panels mstalled at St Stephens m
Hull during the year By promoting wellbeing
suppor ting communities operating efficient




buitdings developing people s skilts and growing
economies we are creating places that atiract
occupiers workers shoppers and residents and
50 gain value over ime - Places People Prefer

Our high quality por tfolio the aptionality within
our development programme and our strong
finances positions us well for the future

Hedrees?-

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

@ Full year results 2016
www briishland com/results

Far more information on sustainabibity
www britishland com/sustamability

. Chief Executive s review go to pages
6taB

Chairman s governance review go {0
pages 7T0to 71

e6

Our delivery of Places People Prefer is evidenced once
again by ouwr near fully let portfolio and the growth we
have generated across our business.”

@ 2016 Queen’s Award for Enterprise

In Aprit this year British | and was one of only seven compantes
ta recesve the 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustainable
Oevelopment as part of Her Majesty The Gueen s 90th
birthday honours

THE QUETNM § AWARDS

et The Award 15 the UX s hughest accolade for business success

and 15 given 1¢ companies which bring rmajor econome
social and environmental benefits through theirr own business
success Ithas beenawarded to British Land for continuous
achievernentin alt these areas over the last five years
According to Business Secretary Sapd Javid winners are
leading the way in a broad range of industiies and show
they are involved in aclvity that ensures a betler quality of
life for everyone naw and in the future

We were obviously thrilted 1o receive the award Understanding
what reatty matters to our customers 1s helping us drive canbinued
improvernents throughout our business As people s attitudes
and expectatiens change good businesses respond Our purpase
of creating Places People Prefer and the huge amount of work
we have done on placermaking 1s making a material positive
ditference to the custormer experience at ourassets

This award recogmises the contrihuiion of everyone at British
Land We also appreciate that the help and commitment of our
customers partners suppliers and many other stakeholders
has played a partin this achievement Integrating social and
environmental activihes (nto every area of a business 1s not
something you can do on ihe side or inisolation We would tike
to extend our thanks to everyone whao has worked with us over
the years and like us believes that adopting a responsible
approach to business s a powerful tool which helps drive
customer preference and deliver lasting value

John Gildersleeve Chnis Grigg
MNon-Executive Chairman Chief Executive

Far more information on The Queen s Awards for Enterprise
http //queensawardsmagazine com/

For maore tnformation on our awards
www britishland com/awards

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014 3




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

by good performances across

the business

6

Key highlights of the year
Total accounting returns’

14.2%

Reflecting the ingi ease in our net asset value
pet share and income yield from the dindend

Underlying Profit growth’

16.0v%

Orrven by nancing activity devetopment
completions and like-for-like aet rental
income growth

Planmng granted on

1.5m sq ft

of development space

' Please see the glossary for definition

ina fast changing market we are focusing

our business to benefit from long term trends
notably the transforming impact technology

1s having on the way we work shop and bive the
impact of population growth and urbanisation
particularly in Lendon and the South East and
INcreasing consumer expectations In areas
such as health wellbeing and sustamnability
We are focusing our portfolie on places where
we can conlrol the envirenment exploiiing

our placemaking expertise 1o manage more
complex mixed use environments delivering

on our core purpose of creating Places People
Prefer We see increasing overlap between our
offrce campuses and our mult let regionat and
local retail centres as they combine a greater
mix of uses and eveolve to reflect our customers
changing lifestyles

We have had another good year both in terms
of our underlying financial performance and
our debivery against our strategic objectives
Performance in the year was underpinned by
strengthening 1 ental growth reflecting the
Investments we have made across our portfolio
Inrecentyears alongside good occupational
markets We made good progress with our
committed developments and are 10 a strong
position to be able to move for ward with our
near term development pipetine when the

British Land | Annual Repart and Accounts 2014

Our strong results are underpinned

ume s right We continued fo sell mature and
non-core assets redeploying capstal principally
into our existing pertfolio - inour campuses
and regional and locat retail centres Overall
our investment activity was broadiy balanced

EPRA net asset value was 10 9% ahead at

919 pence per share at the year end (932 pence
excluding the impact of the recent ingrease in
stamp duty] Valuation was up 6 /% with Offices
up 11 8% and Retail up 2 4% principally due to

5 3% ERYV growth across the portfolio which
was 130 bps ahead of IPD We generated total
property returns of 11 3% for the yean

Underlying Profit was 16 0% ahead at

£363 mullion driven hath by our successful
leasing activity and our lower financing casls
Diluted Underlying EPS was up 11 4% at

34 1 pence per share [n tine with previous
announcements the final quarierly dwvidend
15 709 pence per share bringing the full year
dividend 1o 28 36 pence per share anincrease
of 2 5% delivering a totat accounting return of
14 2% Our proportionately consolidated LTV
reduced ta 32% in line with our sti ategy of not
gearing up en yietd shift with our investment
activity broadly balanced Asaresult of our
1efinancing actwities including the £350 milbion
zero coupon convertible bend our average
financing cost 1s down 50 bps to 3 3%
Rellecting our conlidence in the coming year
the Board s proposing a quarter iy dividend of
730 pence per share or 29 20 pence per share
fot the fullyear anincrease of 3 0%

Our portfolio 1s virtually full with occupancy

0i 99% In good occupational markets in hoth
Retait and Offices we saw strong levels of
demand for ourtemaining space Thisis
reflected in our leasing transactions with

1 3 million sq ft of lettings and renewals agreed
on average 6 8% ahead of ERV

In Qtices we made good progress enhancing
and enlivening environments strengthening
long term demand fer our space and appealing
to a broader range of occupiers We let or
renewed 296 000 sq [t of space on average

3 4% ahead of ERY and added £3 8 million

of rent through rent reviews settled onterms




17% ahead of previous rents The Leadenhall
Building 1s now 8% let oz undes offer with just
one of the tap floors to let We are making good
progress on our campus visions At Broadgate
we completed 5 Broadgate and we are
progressmg our development opportunities
across the campus Elsewhere our focus on

c1 eating Places People Prefers driving public
1ealm improvements at Paddington Central
and will influence cur plans at Regent s Place
where we see further near term refurbishment
oppoartunities Our campuses remain
affordable and the investmentwe are
undertaking leaves us well positioned to
capture rental growth going forward

In Retail we let or renewed 903 000 sq ft of
space on average 8 0% ahead of ERV reflecting
the strength of our markets as well as the
quahity of our assets and the work we have heen
doing to improve them We now manage our
rmulti-let portfolio atong regional and local lines
reflecting how we see consumers spend their
time and money We continued to invest in our
multi-tet portfolio through large scale tersure
extensions but also through smaller asset
management imtiatives improving the
amenilies at our assets to drive feotfall

dwell and spend through improved customer
satsfaction Footfall across cur multi-let
portfolio was up 3 0% outperforming the
market benchmark by 440 bps with retaiters
In-store sales also ahead of the market up

2 4% We saw strong dernand for our pipeline
of leisure extensions and at those assetswhere
we have completed extensions or improvement
works we have already seen good ERV growth
and operational improvements Supersiores
performance was mot e subdued as expecled
but we have been active in selling down our
hotding to £0 8 billien from £1 3 billion two
years ago With deals under offer this falts

to £0 7 bithon

As expected our investment activity was
broadly balanced over the year including

our share of capital spend We continued

to allocate mot e capital inte our Landon
campuses mnvesting a net £280 mullion through
developments al Broadgate Regent s Place
and Paddington Central where we also
acquired Gne Sheldon Square In Retaill we
made £420 million of disposals as we increase
our focus on the multi-let portiolio where we
can put our placemaking skitls to work to drive
rertal growih

In April British Land was one of only seven
cornpanies to receve the 2016 Queen s Award
for Enterprise Susiainabte Development as
part of Her Majesty The Queen s %0th birthday
honours The Award s the UK s highest
accotade for business success and 1s given

to companies which bring major economic
social and environmental benefils through
thetr business The award reftects our

We create outstanding places which
make a positive difference to people s
everyday lives

Places People Prefer

Thus 1s the core umitying purpose of
our business guiding our strategy
and shaping our actions

Strategic focus
We deliver long term sustainable returns
for our stakehaolders by focusing on

Customer Orientation
Right Places

Capital Efficiency
Expert People

This drives demand {rom our occupiers
susiamnable growth in income and
ultimately capital values

@ More information about our strategy
and progress can be found on pages
181025

Placemaking

Placemaking 1s how we deliver places
people wanl to work shop lve and
spend time

We connect
We design
We enhance
We enliven

@ Find out more about our placemaking
approach on peges 26 to 30

Qur salues
Our values underpin everything we do

Do what is right not
what 1s easy

Work efficiently as one team

Make commercial decisions
that create long term value

Mucke things happen

continuous achievernent in all these areas over
the last five years We made strong progress
embedding our sustainatility strategy
mcluding innavating on wellbeing through
public reatm improvements where we invested
£30 mullion over the year We diverted 98% of
all managed waste from landfill and delivered
a 40% carbon mienstty reduction leading

the Gicbal Real Estate Sustamability
Benchmark for Europe/diversitied for the
second year 1 unning

Development remains a core part of our
business With the delivery of 5 Broadgate

our 2010 pragramme completed n the year
generating profut of £11 billien and an IRR of over !
30% We are currently on site at 629 000 sq ft of ‘
developments a speculative commitment of
£530 million principally 4 Kingdom Street and
Clarges Mayfaw our supet prime residential
scheme fover 50% pre-sold) Locking forwar d
we havea significant future pipeline with buiit

i optionality meantng we can start each project
at the right tme At Broatigate our near term
mpeline includes 100 Liverpool Sireet and

¥ Finsbury Avenue where we teceved planning
during the year and looking to the medium

term we submitted a planning application at

2-3 Finsbury Avenue Other polential near term
oppor tumties in Ofhices inciude 1 Triton Square
at Regent s Place and 5 Kingdom Street at
Paddington Central in Retail our near term
pripeline include s letsure extensians at Drake
Circus Plymouth and New Mersey Speke

Our mediurn term plans include our mied use
redevelopment of the Eden Walk Kingstonand
a stgnificant lessure extension at Meadowhall
leurrently in public censultation] which wilt
enhance Its position as a flagship regional centie

We have an exceplional oppertunity at Canada
Waler to create a wbrant new destination for
London and are delighted Roger Madehin has
joined British Land to head up the project

we are already beneliing fram his expernience
leading the redevelopment of King s Cross
This 1s a long term project bul we are making
progress with a public consullation tak:ng
place in February 2016 ahead of an outline
planning submuission i 2017

British Land | Annual Reportand Accounts 2016 7 !




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Outlook

Lookung forward we remasn confident in the
underlying strength of the business despite
cantinued global macro uncertainty and the
potentially adverse impact of a vote for the UK
to leave the European Union Qur busmesss
resilient our portfolio 1s modern nearty fully
tet to quality occupiers on long teases and our
finances are strong with moderate LTV low
costs and long dated finanaing fiom a wide
range of sources Qur current committed
devetopment pipeline 1s modest but we have
bust optionality into our future pipeline so we
can exploit its potential when the ime 1s right
Qur strategy of ¢realing Places People Prefer
focuses our invesiment and activities on macro
trends ensuring our real estate reflects the
changing way people work shop and live

We have significant oppot tumities across our
existing par tolio snctudmg in our three existing
London campuses and the potential to create
a new London campus at Canada Water
aloengside our regional and tocal multi-let
Retail assels

Chris Grigg

Chref Executive

To read mare information ab:out our
Business model go to pages 10 and 11

@ Full year results 20146
www britishland com/results

Chiet Executive blog
www britishland com/ceoblog

For more information on sustainability
www britishland com/sustainability

Our pnorities for the year ahead

Deliver sustainable returms for stakeholders

Customer Orientation Right Places
- Improve understanding of our cuslomers - Progress develepments alangside material
pre lets

- Use placemaking io deliver impraved

custamer exper ience - Pragress Canada Water visson and plan

Expert People
- hmprove company organisational
effectiveness

Capital Efficiency
- Deliver budget

- Accelerate debvery of muln-let regionat

and tocal Lifestyle retad - Embed placernaking aci oss the business

5 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




The Leadenhall Building

Designed by Rogers Stirk Harbour + Partners
The Leadenhall Building 1s a unique 4603 000 sg
it office tower prominently located in the cenire
of the City of London Its defiming feature is its
disiinctive tapering shape which when viewed
from the West appearsto leanaway from

St Paul s Cathedral Thiswas develapedasa
response 1o the specific planning requirements
which protect the views of St Paul & from a
number of locations in London The Briish Land
and Oxford Propertes butlding won the
Worshipfut Company of Chartered Architects -
Cnty of London s Building of the Year award in
2015 after judges declared (t an “extraordinary
example of contempor aiy architecture” The
building was also recogmsed by the Brnitish
Councl of Off:ces with a Cormmer cial Warkplace
Award foritsiconic structure and intelbgent
arrangements which allow the buitding tayout
1o change as it rises”

www theleadenhalibuilding com
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#Sm Cheesegrater

The winning entry by Tom Mear ns

1o cur #SayCheesegrater [nstagram
competition designed to celebr ate the
ofiicial opening of The Leadenhall Building
by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry
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sStrategiv Report

BUSINESS MODEL

TN

Our business is
focused on creating
Places People Prefer

2
Connect

Design
We focus on attractive and convenient
placeswhich arein tune with modern
Lifestyles, those which connect

with peaple and reflect the best
tn modern design

Connect We create ptaces which
connect physically and dignally

1

Source

&
Invest

Identifying and investing
in assets with the greatest

with those people who use them
mncluding local commumities in
which they are located

Design OQur buldings and
envirenments offer the lighest
quality of design with engaging
architecture and a fully integrated
public reatm

potential to provide value

Source The scale of our business .
the expel tise of our people and our

network of contacts provide access "
to the best investment apportuniiies

[4
‘ |
¢ TT.1¢
Invest We have the skitls experience ]l 11711 i Q 5
and financial flexibilny to execute the ooolil] “ 00D
most value-enhancing Investments coooo N
aac !
either in acquining assels or mvestmg gpoaooo el
in the existing portfotic
9k oo [w] (W] & 0 0 O
Do

]
R

ovavoVe oo 068
oo 1

oo jjaas px%
£
SSQ DDU,ZJEooop

O 0 0 (=
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3
Enhance

&
Enliven

Active asset management to
enhance and enliven our assets
creates vibrant and engaging real
estate, which attracts the strongest
occuplers to our portfokio

Enhance We enhance cur properties
by attracting a stiong dwerse mix of
occupiers and hroadening the offering

Enliven We provide events and
achviies which bring life and a

real sense of cormunily to our
buitdings and best in class services
which improve the experience for
our customers

;;;;;;;;
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1
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4 &
Evaluate

Hold/Sell

Oursector knowledge and expertise
allows us to evaluate the potential
of our assets and assess whether
they can deliver future value for
sharehelders

Evaluate We assessour sectars
and assets for thew potential to
deliver attractive returns over time

Hold or Sell We allocate capital to
sectors and assets with patential
and realise capital from mature
or non-core assets

Find mere mlormation about our
sirategy on pages 18ta 25
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Stratesiv Report

MARKET OVERVIEW

What sets

us apart?

Our approach to doing business puts
the customer at the heart of what we do
This underpins our abiity to deliver
Places People Preter

Customer mnsight

Qur investment in data collection
and analytics brings us closer

to our customers guiding eur
wnvestments and helping us to
create places that meet their
expectations and lifesiyles

Mle focused retail 330111

envVIronmcents

Regional and local mulu-tet

annual footfall at
our retarl assets

refal assets in tune with modern
consumer lifestyles where people
go to shop eat and be entertamned

12 British Land | Annual Repor 1 and Accounts 2016

More than

64,000

people wark across our off:ce poriiolio

Placemaking skills

improving our assets to create a better
overall experience for our custamers
and local communiies Places which
are easy tovisit wibrant pleasant and
engag:ng and with hugh quality on site
services places where peopte want
tawork shop tive and visit

High quality office
campusces

Ofiice-led envirenments focused
around key transport infrastructure
with a growing retail and leisure olfer
enabling people to combune work and
play The diver sity of cur offering
provides oppor tunities and amenities
for local communities helping to
energise the broader campus




Mixed use development

experience

Large scale projects caminning
offices retall residential and
leisure set amidst attractive
public spaces Typically these
developments involve close
colttabaor ation with local plannung
authoreties communities and
partners aswell as active
day-1o-day managemeant

Strong network

of relationships

Our networks span occupiers
planners local authorities
community leaders strategic
partners and investors reflecting
our many years as leading
devetopers and landlords

across the UK

29,500

People benefited directly from our
community pregramme this year
inciuding apprentices jobseekers
and schoolchuidren

Ability to source and
execute complex deals
We have the experhise and
financial {lexibility required to
execute comnplex deals delivering
haghly attractive returnsfor

our sharehotders

Sustamabulity
credentials

We have been sustainablity
leader s for a long tme and

have successfully integrated
sustamability into our placemaking
approach innovating to improve
people swellbeing supporting
local communittes designing for
the future and developing skills
and oppor tunities at our places

Foi more information on sustaiahitity
www britishland com/sustainability

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2(1é
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Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

Major trends impacting

our markets

Globahsation

Qur investment and occupationat markets are
mcreasingly global The UK s political stability
sound tegal and financial framework ttme zone
and the iguidity of its property markets make

1t an attractive home for international capital
London in particular offers some of the best
employment opportunities as welt as great
places ta live and wot kK underpinning the
yrowtng globalrsation of 1ts workforce

Sources of mvestment in UK real estate

' mUK 57%
! HAmencas 17%
/ ”:Rest of World 26%

]

Source JLL 2014

@)

Positive but moderate
cconomic growth

Overall economic fundamentalsin the UK
reman positive Real wages and employment
are forecast to continue {e grow and infiation
and interest1ates are expected to reman low
by historic standai ds However with markets
becoming increasingly giobal there is a gr eater
risk that exter nal factors mcluding a vate for
the UK to leave the Curopean Union witl impact
our markets sowe are mindiul of the needio
manage our business lo mitigate these risks

5 . 100

UK unemployment rate versus Eurc area of 10 3%

Source QOffice for National Statistics April 2016
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Population growth
and urbanisation

The UK papulation 1s expected to grow from

&4 6 rauthon in 2014 to 74 3 million by 2039
Much of the mcrease will be in s largest cities
notably Lendon under pinming demand fer
retaill and office space aswell asinfrastructure
and housing In London investmentin better
transport mctuding new rail inks and
improved slatiens s under way Thisis driving
growth and regenerabion across the capital

8.7m

Greater London population forecast to grow
by 1% per annum

Source Oxlord Economics

1.Sm

extra people within 45 minutes of London
with Crossrail from 2018

Source Crossrail website




:q

Transforming impact
of technology

Technology continues to transior m the way
wework shop and bve The internet has created
a choice of delvery platforms so people can
shop in a manner which suits them People are
atso able to work remotely increasingly they
see theirworking enwvironment as a place o
collaborate and network and thus changes the
type of office space they are looking for

344.000

additional emplayees working for small irms

Source Department for Business Innovation & Skills
Bustness Population Estiimates 2015

66

Our sustainable business model is designed
to benefit from and exploit long term sector
and macro-economic trends.”

©
QO
OO
Increasing consumer
expectations

People s expectations of where they work

shop and bve ace rising They expect attractive
well-managed environments modern facilities
and a hugh standard of service They like places
which are accessible and converment and
Increasingly they expect leisure to be a part

of their everyday lives

24%

increase in UK FAB/leisure spend forecast between
2016 and 2021

Source CACI

Focus on sustainable
and ethical behaviours

oy

I VA i

People expecl companies to have sound
sustainability credentiais o adhere (o atugh
standard of ethical behaviour and to ensure the
weilbeing of thesr employees This s starling

to influence who we want 1o work for the piaces
we shap and live and the kind of developments
{ocal commumties are prepared 1o accept
Reflecting this 15 a growing expectation that
governments should use policy to promeote
sustamnable and ethical practices

80v%

of people believe that companies can play a leading role
i solving sociely s problems whule sull making prolits

Source Edelman 2014 Trust Barometer

195

countries agreed to keep global warming below 2°C
pursuwng efforts o imit it 15°C

Source United Natgas Framework Conventien
on Climate Change COP 21 Paris 2015

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 15




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

How we are
responding

Getting closer to our customers

- Improving our understanding of our
customers preferenceswilh effective
systerns and processes lo capture and
analyse data

- Increasing in-house experiise with dedicoted
analylics and marketing capabilities

- Improving in-house management af our
progerties to deliver conssstent best in
class standards

- investing in the Brittsh Land bi and so people
know what they can expect frem us and the
properties we own and manage

Completed

>150,000

consurner exit surveys completed over the past four
years at our retail assets

- Investing in places which are welt
connected well dessgned and in tune
with moder i bifestyles

- Enhanaing and enlivening eur assets
through our placemaking activibes
atiractive environments bestin class
services and innovative letsure and
entertainment oplions

- Places which are well integrated which
add value to local communittes and where
they choose to spend time

£280m

invested in London campuses over the last year

16 British Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2016

O

Focusing on internet resihent
hfestyle Retal

~Facusing on creating outstanding regionat
and locat multi-let retail assets which are
in tune with moder n cansumer Wfestyles

- Understanding where a wide ranging mixed
use offering will drive footfalt and where
convenient and accessible assets are
more appropriate

- Investing 1o keep pace with changing
consumer preferences

15%

merease it dwell time at the assets where we have
recently completed makeovers toimpreve the
shopping experience




&

Growing in London
and the South East

- ldentitying emerging areas that witl beneht
from growth and regeneration particularly
transport/infrasiructure-led

- Increasing the retal leisure reswential
and other aliernative uses to enhance our
office-led campuses

- lnvesting in relatively afituent 1etarl locations
outside of London with poputation growth
where ther e 1S potential to upscale the ofier

- Identifying compelling residenteat
oppol tunities

65%

of our assets are located
in Lendon or the South East

L

Profitable development

- Near term opportunities which focus on
keeping our campuses and our t etail-led
centres modern

~Longterm iarge scale mixed use projects
where we can put our placemaking skills
to work

- Managing risk through pre-letting and
phasing devetopmeni starts

92m sq ft

of devetopments in our near/medium term pipeline

Embedding sustainability
m placemalang

- Adaptable and efficient buldings

- Promoting wellbeing and productmty for
our occuplel s custemersand cormmunities

- Suppoerting lacal communities weth our
new Local Charter launched this year

- Developing skills and opportunittes to support
local economies

RE100

We support RE100 - commitied to purchasing
electnicity from renewable power in our cwn space
and across service charge space

Fer mare information on sustamability
www britishland com/sustainabibity

To read more about our strategy
golo pages 1810 75

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 17



Stratedie Report

OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Our strategy
Our strategy deterrmunes our focus
for our annual priorives

@ To read more on ouwt prionties
for the year ahead go to

page 8 Customer Orientation

- Leverage our customer Insight services
experience and technology to he recognised
for creating Places People Prefer

- Use consistent and scalable ways of working

- Provide best in class proper ty managament
by developing in-house capabilities
through Broadgate Estates

000
C()D

Expert People

- Maintain high standard of eperational
and investment shill sets and encourage
development :n evolving areas

- Promote a culiure which supports
the recruitment and development
of a diverse tearn

- improve ways of working
acioss the business

<

AVA
Right Places

- Create and operale exciitng and engaging
lifestyle oriented real estate put Places
People Preferat the heart of our approach

- Invest in London - in existing asseis and
emerging locations benetiing from
regeneration and growth

- Focus on regional and local multi-let retad
assets which are m tune with modern
consumers bfestyles

Capital Efficiency
- Allocate capital to maxsmise returns from

our competitive advantages

- Manage both our development exposure and
financial leverage through the cycle while
maintaimng the benefits of scale

- Be the pa: tner of chotce for international
capital and public bodhes

reating Places This generates Together with
Pcople Prefer long term groawwth  an optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structure this
demand for capital value, delivers sustainable

our propertics.

I8 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

long term value.




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all stakeholders

Investors
- Access to hugh quatity liguid 1 eal
estate mvestiment

- Stable secure cash flows

- Superior total returns

Partners
- Access to high quality real estate

- Asset management and
development skills

- Strong retationships

Occupiers and

their customers
~ High quality environments
which promote productivity

and wellbeing
- Affordable and efficient buildings

- Outstanding customer services
and facilities

Emplovees

- Aninclusive environment
with enhanced wellbeing
and productivity

- Potential io develop skills
and opportunities

- Opporturities to make
a pasitive difference

Local communities
- Attraciive local environments

- Facilibes and services which
enhance the overall area

- Ptaces which support local jabs
and skills

- Stronger community networks
and faciliies

@ f-or mare informaiion on sustamabtbiy
=" www britishland com/sustainability

British Land § Annual Report and Accounts 2016 19




Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

How we performed
over the past year

Qur prionities in the year were

What we have achieved

Our long term objective

Deliv ering sustainable
long term value

Customer Orientation

- Getting closer to our accupiers and end users
- Improving our systems and processes

- Leveraging Broadgate Estates

- Innovating to support custemer wellbeing

- Continuing to reposticn the Retai pertiolio

- 13m sg ft of leasing activity across Retal
and Offices

- The Leadenhall Butlding now $8% {et/under
offer up from 84% al the start of the year

- E420m of mature/non-core Retall assets
sald inctuding £122m of superstores
reducing our weighting to 5%

- Over 43 000 people surveyed in Retall with
sales dala on 94% of multi-let assets and
footfall data on 99%

- 4 2/5wisitor score for shopping expertence

-~ 350 occupier surveys now completed
in Offices with footiall counters pilated

at Broadgate

- Broadgate Estates now managing all of
our retall assels covering over 20m sq ft

- Partnered with occupters on iniliatives
al our properties Including wellbeing

and community

- Internal team strengthened, with tmpr oved
systems and processes to analyse dala

Right Places

~ Progressmg our strategy for London

- Progressing committed and near lerm
developments

- Refreshing medium term strategies for
Broadgate Meadowhall and Canada Water

- £280m net nvestment into London campuses

- Progressing the Broadgate vision with
planning achieved on 100 Liverpool Street
and 1 Fishury Avenue and submitted at
2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

- Good progress at our development at

- Circa £80m nvested in improvements and
extensions {0 Retait assets Orawing up plans
for a proposed 330 000 sq fe Leisure Hall

2l Meadowhall

- £60m refurbishment of Meadowholl under

way and progressing well

- Progressing our Canada Water development
held a public consultation in February 2014

- Launch of Locat Charier to support
successiul local communities and develop
locat skills and opportunities

- Community programme equivalent to 0 6%
of pre-tax profits tenehting 2% 500 people

4 Kingdom Street and Paddington Centrat

- Refurbishment of 338 Eusicn Road Regents
Plare completed with over 80% of space
pre-let to Facebook

- Supporting successiul logal communties

Capital Efficiency

- Opuimising size and linancial structure across
the property cycle

- Balancing irade-off between a cost efficient
and higher capality organusation

- Continuing to buitd relationships with direct
and mdirect capital and public bedres

- Delivering futus e proofing imitsatives

- £418m non-care asset/matur e sales in the
year with acquisitions and capital investmeni
of £63%m

- Building our relationship with Seuthwark
Counalt our partner on Canada Water

- Completed over {1bn of financing activity
since 31 March 2015 tncluding a zero coupon
£350m senior unsecured convertible bond
due 2020 and the tender offer and purchase of
£110m of debenture bonds reducing weighted
average mierest rate
by30bpsto3 3%

- 40% carbon intensily reduction versus 2009

lindex score)

Exapert People

- Continuing to impi ove orgausatonal design
and effectiveness

- Build management capabilities for new
aswell as traditional skill sets

- Developing skills and oppartunitres

- Creating an inclusive working environment

- Appainted Roger Madelsn 10 head up Canada
Water development

- Women s Network and Bi. Pride established

- Par ticipation in the Nauonal Equality Standard

- One Star rating sn Best Companies to Work
For Survey

20 British Land | Apnual Report and Accounts 2016

- 87% employee score for our offices

supporing their wellbeing

- 100% of cur employees and 72% supplier
wor kfor ce at owr proper ies paid the Living

Wage Foundation wage

Far defimhions see glossary on
pages 200 to 203




How we measure up'

Risk indicaters and incentive measures

Total accounting return (TAR)

14 2%

2016 14.2%

- Total accounting reiurn 1s our overall measure
of performance It1s the dividend paid plus the
growth in EPRA NAV In the period

- During the year we generated a strong TAR
of 14 2% bringing the 3 year TAR 1o 67 9%

Cuwr dividend was mcreased by 2 5% to 28 36
pence per share and our NAV increased
by 10 9% 10 919 pence per share

Risk indicators we moniter
- forecast GDP

- the margin between progerty yields and
borrowing costs and

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

Management compensation linked to
- total accounting returns relative to peers

Customer satisfaction

7 9outof 10

2016 7.9

= = p— p—
l

o ,

We extensively survey peopte who use our
assets to assess our performance and
identify opporturilies for improvement

o 4

Sustamabihty Performance

- Dow Jones Sustamability Index Wor ld
and Europe 2015 24th percentile

- F1SE4AGood 2015 98th percentile

- Global Real Estate Sustainabitity Benchmark
2015 Sector Leader European/Diver sified

We track cur sustainability impacis on these
indices We are proud to have been awarded the
Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustainable
Development 20146

Risk indicators we monitor

- consumer confidence

- employment forecasts for relevant
seclors and

- rnarket letting sk [vacancies expiries
administrations)

Management compensation linked to
- Company reputation with all stakeholders
and

objectves

Total property returns

13% vs IPD

n line

[ L +130bps
e +60bps

We have performed in ine with the IPD
benchmark an totat property return this
yedr and outperfor med over the last 3 years
by 40 bps per annum

Development commitment
£0 8bn % of standing nvestments
+5 8%
Lo .. +00%
I R 3

Development supports vatue and income
growth but also adds fisk We aim to keep
our commilied development exposure at
less than 15% of our investment por tfolio

- supporting the delivery of sustainability
Risk indicators we monitor ‘
- property capitat and ERV growth forecasts ‘
- total and speculatve development exposure i
and ‘
- progress of developments agamst plan ‘
Management compensation linked to
- total property returns retative to IPD
~execution of largeted acquisiions and
disposals and
- progress on key prejects mcluding
developments

Loan to vatue {(LTV)

- proportionallv consohidated
32%

We manage our leverage such that LTV should
not exceed a maximum threshotd If market
yields were to rise io previous peak levels

Weighted average mterest rate .
- proportionally consohdated! o

33%

2016 3.3%

§~

Our low cost of finance supports performance
and is one of the lawest of listed UK REITs

Risk indicators we monitor

- likelihood of covenant breach

- when refinancing is required and .
- percentage of debt at fixed interest rates

Management compensation Linked to
- executon of debl financings
- progress on strengthening the dividend and

- execulion of largeted acquisilions
and disposals

The Sundav Times Best Compantes
to Work For

One star

2016 One star

- - —- ]

Please see the glassary for defintions

The Sunday Times annual survey 1s one
of the mosl extensive benchmarks of
employer engagement

Long-term Incentive Plan
Annual Incentive award

Risk indicators we monitor
- unplanned executive departures

Management compensation linked to
- quality of people and management
renewal and

- Company reputation with all stakeholders

Managing risk n delwvenng our strategy
see pages 57 to 63

Remuneration repoi t see pages 86 to 110
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The importance
of people

Qur focus on Places People Prefer puts
people at the heart of our strategy

Customer Orentation

We are investing In the resources that bring
us closer to the people who woi k shop and
live across our assets improving both our
custemer insight and our understanding of
local communities and helping to guide how
and where we do business

Inretail our customers have mare choice

than ever before the offering s wader and there
are more debivery platforms We are building
our understanding of how our customers
manage these choices and are working with
our occuplers at our mutti-tet assets to deliver
outstanding places for modern consumer
lifestyles Our undersianding of our customers
1s underpinned by the data we gather from our
schermes we have completed over 150 000
censumer exit surveys over the last four years
we collect turnover dala on 94% of our mutt-tet
assets by value and footfall ¢ata from 98% of
ou multi-tet assets Importantly we have the
systems and processes in place to generate
insights and learnings from this data and this
gurdes our approach 10 placemaking We know
that our leading indicalors including foctfall
dwell ume and spend benefit dramaticatly
from an mcreased leisw e {ood and beverage
provision end betler services sothisiswhere
we are focusing our efforts At ous regional
assets we are focused on wnproving the
breadth and depth of our retail and leisure offer
introducing cinemas and restaurants as well as
maore inpovative leisure concepts At our local
assets we are improving the services we offer
and creating a more attractive envirenment

for our visitors those who want convenience
and access)bility

In Dffices our occuplers increasingly see
proper ty as key te attracting and retaining talent
5o we are working logether to hetp them stay
ahead This year we have surveyed around 350
occuprers or prospective orcupiers to further
devetop our understanding of what Places
People Prefer means to them We understand
that location and 0 particular proximity to

QOur salues
Our values underpin our daily workeng
practices and set us apart Theyare

Do what 1s nght Work efficienth
not what 15 cas a5 one team

=,

Malie tdungs
happen

Make commereril
decisions that create
long term value
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transport infrastructure are priorities so these
at e important considerations for us whenwe
make investment decaisions The qualily and
elfrcrency of the building matters occuplers
want the abiliy to adapl space as their needs
change, and for then workspaces Lo premote
collaboration and positive telaticnships across
ther businesses Employees also expect an
altractive place towork aswell asa range of
facllities and services they can enjoy autside

of the office Thisiswhy ous strategy in Offices
1s locused on our campuses which are more
mixed thuse andnclude retail teisure and
olten ressdential space and other amenities
where we can manage the broader
environment We have developed more
interactive marketing campaigns giving people
the opporturity to par ticipate sn the lfe of our
campuses and we are piloting footfall counters
at Broadgate to prowide accurate data on how
successfully our activities are attracting people
10 the campus We are making a similar effortin
residential wher e over 460 purchasers across
the super prime prime and tap her matkets
were surveyed At Clarges our super prime
residential development iy Mayfair we work
with our customers on an individual basis to
ensure we deliver a psoduct that really reflects
thewr specific lifesiyles




We ensure the highest standards of service
across our office assels by managing them
in-house through Broadgate Estates our
wholly owned subsidiary and one of the UK s
leadtng property managernent companies

Its client portfolio includes some of the most
prestigieus properies in the UK and we

lever age its scale and expertise acrass the
wider market to provide a bestin class service
Having proved highly successiul at managing
our Offives portfolio Broadgate Estates 1emit
now alsa covers cur multi-let Retail por tfolio

@ To read more about Broadgale Estates
go lo www broadgateeslates co uk

The quality of our assets and st ength of our
services enables us to attract a high calibre of
occupier to our portiolio Ttus together with our
high occupancy leveks and long average lease
lengths underpins the quality and secunity of our
rental income We are increasing the diversity

af aur occupler mix and no single occupier
acrounts for more than 5 7% of cur revenues

@ For our major occuplers see the table on
page 188

Expert People

Our 58% employees ar e spht between the
core team at Brittsh Land and our property
management subsidiary Broadgate Estates
The breadth and depth of our knowledge

our skills and our relationships underpin

oul rompetitive advantages and enable us to
dekver on our over-riding pur pose of creating
Places People Prefer

The scale of our operations has enabled us
toatiract and retain a team of exper ts who
know our markets wetl and bring a range of
expertise across a rmix of activities -t etail
leisure offices and residential We have access
Lo & broad network of contacts spanning
occupiers planners government and local
authonties community leaders sirategic
pariners and mvestars sowe see the best
mvestment opportunities and the most
attractive partnering and funding possibilities
enabling us o successfully execute attractive
and often hghly cornplex deals

Our peapte strategy focuses on creating a team
who can deliver Places People Prefer Getting
closer to our customers 1s one of our key
strategic priorities and having a workforce which
reflects the diversity of our customers helps us
achieve this The policy throughout Brinsh Land
15 to employ the best candidates available in
every postiton regardiess of sex race ethnic
ongin nationality colour age religion or
phitosophical belief sexual erientatron
marrage or ciwl partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment or disability

We achieved a key mitestone on our journey
towards crealing a truly inclusive environment

this year with our formaton of BL Pride our
teshian gay bisexual transgender [LGBT]
and ailies network and our Women s network
Both networks have been active In the year
and we ar ¢ pleased that our Chief Executive
Chris Grigg was ranked 11th in the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Atly Executives by
Qutstanding and the Financial Times

We are also pilating a8 mentoring scheme
wnieally for women offering help guidance
advice and support where it 1s needed We
curienily have three fernale Direclors on the
Boaré Lucinda Bell Chief Fingncial Officer
and Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery both
Non-Executive Directors As at 31 March 2016
48% of employees across Bnitish Land and
Broadgate Eslates were fernale including

thr ee out of ten of our Executive Commuttee

Nurturing talent and supporting development
1s animpartant element of our people strategy
We operate a range of online resources (o help
employees develop their skills and work with
Cambridge Universitytorun a Leadershipin
Real Estate programme 24 of our staff have
benefited from this programme since twas
launched in 2014 Other training partners

this year include Happy City who promote
happiness and wellbeing threugh skils
tratming and campaigns and measure the
impact of change on local wellbeing They ran
a workshop for senior managers on embedding
wellbeing principles across gur business Qur
ongaoing volunteering pi ogramme also offers
our staff personal developmenl apporiunities
partcularly through skills-based oppor tunities
such as mentoning 84% ol our staff took part

in volunieening activiies in the year

Our focus on Places Peaple Prefer starts with
our people Both British Land and Broadgate
Estates were recegmised in the Sunday Times
Best Cornpanes to Work For 2016 each
achueving a One Star ratng This reflects staff
satisfaction with aspects such as leadership

wellbetng gving something back personal
growth pay and benefits aswell as with their
manager and team

We believe supporting the worklorce of

tomorrow 1S important for our business and
markets We are invoived in iniiatives which

make young people of ali backgrounds aware
of real estate careers including Pathways to

Property and Budding Brunels 15 000 people
benefitedt fram employment training and
education initiatives across our assets during

the year We are also working towards 3% of
our supplier warkfarce being apprentices by

2020 As detaited in our Supply Chain Charter

we (ry to use local suppliers and we pariner
with occupiers and suppliers on kar working

practices including the Living Wage
Foundation wage

@

To read more about our Expert People
go lo www britishland com/blogs

and to read more about skills go to
www britishland com/skills

Report of the Nomination Committee
see pages 84 0 85

Board of Directors see pages
bb1o &9
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Strategdic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Managing our
portfolio

From sourcing and investing in the Right
Places, to enhancing and enlivening our
assets, we are focused on allocating capital
efficiently to maximise returns

Right Places

Our investment decisions are heavily influenced
by the long term trends we see griving our
commercial proper ty markeis sowe can
position our selves well for Lhe tonger term

Our focus on London and the South East
reflects the population growth and increasing
urbamsation we are seeing In the capital
alongside its attracton as a leading global aty
Mot e specifically our investment in L.endonin
particular has focused on those areas where
infrastructure 1s impreving driving regeneration
and growth This 1s where we see the sirongest
returns gver the (onger term

Dur portfolio 1s appr oximately evenly sphit
between Retal and Leisure and Offices and
Reswdenbal but more and more we are
Increasing the mx of uses on our existing sites
as well as investing directly in mixed use assets
This reflects the fact that people s work and
personal Lives increasingly overlap they expect
more of the ptaces they work shop crvisit They
want lo wor k in offices which have places to eal,
shop and retax and retait destinabions with awide
leisure and service offening This understanding
underpins our focus on placemalang

Placemaking 1s ahout owning assets wiich
connect with the people who use them and
which are designed with thew needs in mmnd
We are investing in our assels o enhance
the offer 1o enliven them wath events and

services and to provide a broader more
engagtng expenence This approach s
shaping our portlobio

Qur Offices and Residential portiolio s focused
on our three mixed use campuses in London
and also mncludes distinctive London propertes
such as The Leadenhali Building alongside
smalier clusiers of properties Qur campuses
benefii from excelient transport infrastructure
and two Broadgate and Paddington Central
will have their own Crossrail stations when
Crossrail opensin 2018 They all have great
potential Breadyate also benefits trom its
proxumity to Shoreditch and the emerging tech
hubs to the north and east of the City which
are Increasing the diversity of the accupier

mix Regent s Place and Paddington Centrat
are on the fringes of the West End offering high
quality flexible and affordable space Regents
Place has benefited from regene; ation and we
are now seeing this at Paddington We are
using our placemaking principles lo evolve and
grow our campuses with new developments
which reflect the changing ways people work
with more [lexible floor plates break-outareas
and outside space We are also adding retail
and lessure and investing in public realm
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improvemments so our campuses are vibr ant
and attractive places in which towork and

to spend time outside of work In Residential
we have been highly selective about the ptaces
we invest m Looking forward it will become o
more significant part of ouz portfolto as part
of our mix-use offer particularly as we make
progress at Canada Water where we are
creating one of the largest mixed use
regeneration projects in London

In Retal where technolegy 1s changing the
way people shep Right Places 1s about fecusing
on asseks which are in tune with modern
consumer lfestyles where people can shop
ealand be entertained The core portfolio
comprises regional and local multi-let assets
where we are able to manage and improve

the broader emvironment We focus on assets
which are prime in thewr catchment and capture
a broad range of consumer spend Our larges
regional assels have a wide-ranging retas

and letsure offering attracting visitors from

a broad catchment Qur srnaller locat assets
are convenient and accessible aligned to the
daily life of local commumities Our focus on
Customer Drientation ensures a consistent
approach to placemaking across these




formats although our actions are carefully
considered 10 improve and optinise each
indwidually Acress our portfolio we are adding
leisure extensions where we see demand for
cinernas and restaurants with smaller scale
improvements where appropriate such as mote
cales or improved car parking helping to
deliver our broader placemakmg sirategy of
creatng Places People Prefer

For detail on our portiotio performance see
~/ pages 34 lod/

Development 1s an important part of whatwe do
and s a key diwver of returns H keeps our assets
moder n ensuring demand for them endures

We have a significant pipeline of development
opportunities focused on our campuses and our
multi-let retail assets We have built optionality
into our pipeline sowe can progress
opgportunities when the time 15 right

. For detail on our development performance
see pages 37 10 39

For detail on qur development pipeline
see tables en pages 194 to 195

Across our portfolio we are conscious of the
impact our ptaces have on local communities
We are working te improve hiew local people
can influence decisians relating to our assels
so we deliver places they prefer to tive and wark
around aswell as shops restauranis cinemas
and public places where they choose to spend
ume Relationships with local gavernment and
communiy leaders are important to our
business We build trust by supporting their
endeavours and work with them to undersiand
and meet local challenges and aspirations

We make 1t easy for locat people to influence
decistons relating to our assets so we deliver
nlaces they a1 e pleased to live and work
around aswell as shaps restaurants cinemas
and public spaces where they choose to spend
time At Regent s Place the launch of a new
Community Fund 1s empowel Ing our occupiers
to support local projects and 1s strengthening
community links

For more infarmation on communiiies
www britishland com/cemmunity

Capital Efficiency

Our capital is broadly balanced between

our Retall and our Qifice assets Investment
decisions are made across seclors based

on the prospective returns of individuat assets
We assess our capital allocation by sector
geography and asset level based on our
estimates of future internal rates of return
This helps todentify where our greatest
potential bies and where our caprtal is best
altocated Over the last five years we have sold
£3 & bullion of non-core asset/mature assets
and reirwested the proceeds in high quality
income nenerating assets and developments

Development s animpertant part of our
business but ¢t 1s also higher 1isk than our
income producing assets due to the uime delay
between commitment 1o a project and fully
letting the completed butlding so we manage
our exposure carefully Development s iimiled
te 15% of the total portfclio {by valuel with a
rmaximurn of 10% to be developed speculatvely
[ e without a pre-tet or residential pre-satel

at any one time

’ For further details on our acquisitions and
disposals see the table on page 186

We manage our mix of equity and debt finarcing
to achieve the right balance between enhancing
returns for shareholders and the nisk of higher
leverage Our primary measure of leverage s
loan to vaiue [ILTY) an a propor tonally
consolitated basis fwhich includes the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds and excludes
non-controiling mterests in the Group s
subsidianies] We airm to manage our LTV
through the property cycle such that our
financiat pasition would remasn robust in the
event of a significant falt in property values This
means we will not ncrease our leverage solely
on the hasis of an improvement in market yields

We access a broad range of debt finance on
attractive terms reflecuing the scale of our

i
e

] .
- i
we

m
v

£350m

raised through a 0% coupon
convertible bond i June 2015

business combined with the quahity of our
assets and rental income stream We raise

debt from a variety of sour ces across a spread
of maturities to ensure the Group and its joint
ventures and funds ar e appropriately financed
We also mantain significant undrawn loan
facilities to provide flexibility and support current
and future requirements of the business

We use sirategic partnerships to teverage our
investments achieve benefits of scale and
spread nsk Around one third of our owned
assets by value are in Joint veniures including
Broadgate and Meadowhall This approach
has enabled us to under take more ambntious
development projects including The
Leadenhall Building where we worked with
Oxford Proper ies Within these structures
we typicaily provide asset management
development corporate and finance ser vices
for which we earn management and
performance fees enhancing cur overall
returnsand strengthening our retationships
with partners key customers and supphers

We proactively manage our assets (o promote
therr long term sustainability Our resource
efficsency programrme continues to improve
opet ational effictency reduce occupier costs
and support welt-managed environments

We took a positive approach to the Government s
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme auditing
energy use and iImplementing addittonal
efficiency opportunities We are aiso innovative
inour use of matertals to lower costs and secure
supply and consider on stle energy generation

at all our developments Thisyearwe retrofitted
photovoitaic panels at StStephens Hull as part
of our plans to Increase energy generation

and enhance revenues at our assets and we
continue our efforts o mimimise flood risk

Finzncial review see pages 49 to 53
Financiat policies and pnnciples see pages
D410 hé

Delasls on our carben reduction
programme see page 48
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Placemaking 1s how we create attractive
and engaging real estate which is in tune with
maodern lifestyles and are Places People Prefer

Actively managing our assets 1s a core part of
ourbusiness We put our customers first and
tnwvestin the skills and resources which help us
understand them better This understanding
guides our tnvestment actvbies from nvesling
and developing the right assets toenhancing
and enlwvening them with a range of amenibes
events and activiies This creates preference
for our properties helping to drive cccupler
demand growthnremts and capital values

Connect

Design

Enhanc

= We —
Enliven

e
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Stratedic Report

PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We —

Connect

Places which connect physically and digitally
with the people who use them, including

local communities

Connecting 1s about providing assets which
complement peopie s Lifestyles enabling them
Lo nteg: ate their work and thenr leisure time

It means places which are easy to access

so we focus on assets with great transport £4o 3bIl

of pur assets are within close proximity
access points or parking facililes We often of a Crossrail station fopening 2018}

infrastructure and those with convenient

invest to iImprove connections for pedestiians
and cyclists and we build local relationships
connecting with local communities to better
understand their needs We also think about
how digitally enabled we are and how we

can use these capabilities to create a

closer community

Building our exposure to Crossrail
When Crossrail opens in 2018 it will transform
ralt transport in London and the South East
mereasing central London rail capacity by 10%
and bringing an estimated 1 5 mitiion mare people
towithin 45 munutes of central Londan Already
Croessratl 1s driving regenet ation and econonsc
development Aiound E£4 billion of our assets
are located near Crossrail and two of our
L.ondon campuses Broadgate and Paddington
will have their own Crossrail statiens Canada
Water our 46-acre scheme in South London
1svery close to Canary Wharfand from 2018
will be just minutes from the West End
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Masterplanming a

destination for London

We have shared our sutial tdeas for the Canada
Water Masterplan with the local community
These nclude a3 5 acre park two new public
sguares cycting and pedestian friendly spaces
and dockside impr overnents so people can enjoy
and interact with the water and wildlife We are
atso praposing a pedestrianised open-ai hugh
street with nationzl and independent retaiters
atongside new restaurants and cafes and a new
culture and entertainment hub at the heart of
the town centre Qur plans are 4t an early stage
and will evolve but creating a wibrant and
angaging environment witl be aur key focus




S60m

shopper wisits to Meadowhall
over 22 years

Reviving historic hinks

m ntew developments

At Aldgate Place designed by Allies and
Mornison we are remnstating an oniginat
pedesirian street ink which sits above an old
Vietorsan service tunnet cannecting Aldgate and
Aldgate East statons This public thoreughtare
witl be reinvigorated with shops and cafes,
bringing a new sense of community to the area

Engaging wiath local commumties
QOur fourth annual Communiiy Day brought
together 200 Briush Land volunieers as well as
520 local jobseekers schoolchildren students,
elderly residents and people with learning
disabilities across 20 community partnerships
Our parlners commented on the commitrment
of those inwolved reflecting how the event helps
us strengthen locat relationships around our
London assets For ourvolunteers it s a great
ieam bulding opportunity which enables them
to interact with people of different ages and
backgrounds as well as learning new skills

Celebrating local heritage

Etk Mt in Oldham s one of several assels
where we are using public art to celebrate tocal
hernage and connect with local communiies
Protessional scutptor Emma Hunter worked
with local people to create artworks illustrating
Elk Mill s cotion-spinning heritage and poems
inspired by laocal people s stories feature ona
trio of sculptures in the style of spinning cotten
bobbins Bronze footprints are set into paving
stones around the Park recalling a ime when
mull workers went harefoot to avoid slipping

on the oity floor

THOUGHT s
HEEPIECER W

To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Design

Buildings and environments which offer
the highest quality of design in both form
and function with engaging architecture
and a fully integrated public realm

We look beyond indviduat buildings to think
about the spaces around them We focus on
assets where we are able to control the broader
environment and can therefore under take
broader and bolder design We also ploneer
new building technologies and the most
sustainable praclices

L.J.: \/AB [\‘-

Sk

5 *-..‘1.
~Ig) LD
mug £ CEGICN 201

Making our developments distinctive
Yalding House our most recenily completed
office developmentin the West End was home
to Radie t untit 2012 Owr refurbishment retained
much of the oriqinal character of the building
the reception fealures an adjoining meeting

and waiting room complete with turntable

angd extensive record collechon We believe

the distinctive nature of the building wilt appeal
to creative and technology locused sectors
which have been a key area of growth across

the captlal in recentyears

Great design IS core Lo creating L

Places People Prefer Todemonsirate ¢ it
our comrmitment to innovation in o -
design British Land s proud to M

spansar the London Design Festival

]

ros
I
a
[m]

3.1m sq ft

|
; - _7m pol|oo|, ofdevelopmentson track to achieve
| -

T
4,
%)
a
a
a
a

BREEAM Excellent for offices retail
- T - — - i andlersure
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Drawmg imspiration

from local heritage

At Clarges Mayfair we are creating a new

and elegant landmar k lt1s entirely rooted

In the history of the surrounding area

taking inspiration from logal heritage and
crafismanship This s reflected in the fiuted
destgn of the columns which are made fram
Portland stone the delicate aluminium bronze
balustrades that are inspired by the branches
of the plane trees lining Green Park and the
bread lace collars that were fastuonable in
16th century Maytair

Improsving the public realin

at Paddington Central

We know from our recent survey of 1000

office workers across the UK that outdoor
areas and gardens are a key parl of the 1deal
office We ve recenily embarked on our second
phase of upgrades at Paddington Centrat
whichwill transform the campus for the people
who work and live there by creating a greener
more pedestrian friendly environment Cur
plans include s Woodland Gar den an outdoor
Games Room providing activities where people
can socialise a Library where peopte canrelax
and a Kitchen Garden with communal seating
in the surmimer months All enhancements are
bemg carefully phased and managed to
minrmise disruption io retailers residents
building occupants and visitors

2.5m

number of visitors to
Broadgate Circle since
its re-design in 2015

Desigming for a low carbon future
At 5t Stephen s in Hull we haveinstalled 1100
photovoltaic panels generaung encugh clean
power ta fulfid a third of all electr icity desnand
in the common areas The panels build on the
Centre s award-winming efftciency programime
which has reduced landlord energy by 40%
since 201) saving occupiers £383 100 and
cutting carbon emissions by 2 470 tonnes
Other innovations include a ramnwaler
harvesting systemwhich provides over

one millian Lires of water each year and

a food-to-water treatment glant which
recycles 15 tonnes of food waste annually

¢13m

of energysavings for us and our
occupters through efficiency
reductians over the past four years

Delivering innovative design

At Glasgow Forl we at e building & mulli-slarey
car park with four restaurants on its ground
floor The building witl be naturally venulated
with a sustainable wooxlen slated rear fagade
A corten steet fagade with a punctured tree
design will cover the front of the bullding and
a green lving canopy will overhang the four
resiaurantunits The new car park1s setin

a wild forest themed buffer to the surface

car park incerporating natural play elements
for young chuldren

@ To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
Enhance

Quality occupiers alongside a broad food, beverage
and leisure offering, reflecting the growing expectations
of our occupiers and customers

We enhance our assets by improving the
breadth depth and nux of occuper s and the
physical space at our properties Relatively
simple improvements such as cafes and
atiracuve places to rest or have lunch oulside
the office or while you re shopping ran make
a g difference to the pleces people work

or shop

Incorporating open spaces

At Aldgate Place over 50% of the footprintis
dedicated to new public realm spaces including
two landscaped gardens pedestrian streets
wetl thought-out play spaces and water features

66%

of people who used Click &
Coltect across our portfolio
went on to spend at our assels

Investing in assets

with great potential

New Mersey Speke is the third largest
shopping park in the UK with annuat footfail of
89 million and a third of visitors using click and
collect Since the year end we have increased
our hotding in New Mersey Speke 1o just over
66% We have approval foran 11-screen cinema
lwhich 1s pre-let} and six new restaurants
totalling 29 000 sq ft as well as plans for a
camprehensive 1 efurbishment introducing
double height glazed shop fronts and a new
customer services pod

The develepment includes a four-star hotel
cafes restaurants and shops The landscaping
designed by Townshend Landscape At chulects
reftects the contemporary style of the City but
maintains the industriat and historical legacy
of the East End

330,000 sq ft

of new space planned at Meadowhall s proposed
new Leisure Hail
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Enhancing the environment

for our own team

Our focus on enhancing cur assets includes our
own head office at York House and Broadgate
Estates office at Paddington Central both of
which we recently refurbished with Broadgate

Estates achieving the world s ftirst BREEAM

Outstanding Fit-Out Surveys show that people %S 99(y

feel happier healthter and more productive in /M\ o

the new space which has mere natural hight of staff ind our newly

better views and greenery as well as improved refurbished offices an
lanning to encourage active tiving and e enjayable place o work,

space ptanning g 9 5% ﬁ up from 6$%

social interaction This sets the tone to promote \7"'

welibeing and productivity across our portfolio

Listening to our customers

The data we collect from aci oss our 1etail
portfolio gives us a cleardea of what matter s
to our customers nresponse to customer
feedback we have been upgrading assets

in the porifolio to improve shopper satisfaction
Enbancements include additional fcod and
beverage options better car parking and
impeoved public realm such as new customer
walkways cycle routes seating and attractive
tandscaping as well as children s play areas
and tailet faciliies All ightbulbs installed are
energy efficient taps and tailets are designed
to use as liitle water as possidle and trmber
comes from guaranteed sustainable sources

Leveraging Broadgate Estates

We have brought the management of our

retait assets in-house through our subsidary
Breoadgate Estates aleading property
management company We are working to
enhance the offer for customers standardising
oper ational excellence and rolling out
value-added services mcluding technology and
consumer services Broadgate Estates already
delivers hest in class service across our office
assets and for third parties including many
leading commercial and retau landlords

We have extended its remit to coverretail

as we work together to ensure all our assets
are recogresably Places Pecple Prefer

To readt more case studres ga to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

= We

Enliven

Events and activities and best n class services
bring Life and a real sense of community to
our buildings

We enliven our praperties by holding events
and activities whach henefil our custorners
and the local communites whuch surtound
them We also prowvide best in class services
which improve the overall experience for
cur customers

Encouraging health and wellbeing
Last sumrmer we celebrated health and
weilbeing week at Paddington Centrat to
encourage campus residents wor kers and
visitors to achieve a healthy work/lie halance
The schedule featured free health-themed
pop-ups treatments events classes and
give-aways armed to relax energise or activate
the mind We are now pitoting wetlbeing and
productivity innovations with our occupiers
here who see promoting wellbeing as an
important pari of their strategy to attract

and retain the best tatent

Promoting public art

Across our portfolio we have used public art
1o bring our assets o life In January this year
we sponsored an instatlation called Platoruc
Spin by Nathaniel Rackowe at Regent s Place
as partof Lumiere London airee outdoor light
festival Over four evermings in January the city
was transformed with an exti aordinary arr ay
of mstattations turning the capitat into a
winter playground

More than

800

people World Host customer
service trained at our places

'
]
.
'
[l
"
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Cclebrating the summer
Last summer our recently developed Old Market

Evolving tradittonal retml space shopping destination in Hereford launched

At Meadowhall we are planning a £360 milbion Herefest aumgue month-long summer
Lessure Hall to respond te our customers programme of music street theatre aris and
changing bfestytes where shopping 1s cratts and food and drink Aniconic Routermnaster
increasingly seen as a leisure activity bus was parked at the centre and inside visitors
Comprising 330 000 sq ft of space the enjoyed workshops makeovers cake sampling
propesed Leisure Hall will add a range sessions and cookery demonsts ations

of dining and entertainment experiences
not currently available at the centre
Housed under an elegant glazed roof the
Lessure Hatl will integr ate with the existing
centre to create a new multi-levelled
landscaped mall with lugh guality imternai
and exterpal spaces for promotional and
community uses

More than

600

people at our assets are
Dementia Frendly irained

Attracting all ages to our assets
As part of our comprehensive programme

of assel upgrades we have designed and built
play areas for our youngerwisitors at Tollgate
Colchester Wheatley Doncaster Orbrtal
Swinden and Elk Mitl Oldham All the play
areas are hernitage-themed and reflect
feedback frem shoppers and lacal henitage
experts At Swindon a Spithire art sculpture
and play area reference local industrial links
to the manufacture of the Supermarine Spithire
and designs at Oldham reftect the old cotton
milt which for merly occupted the site with old
cotton cans adapted to form play equipment
and seating areas

5.5m sq ft

of net space at Canada Water
which we planio develop

@ To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and continue to see
the benefits of recent investment

Overview

2013/16 was another strong peried for the

UK properiy market overall despite the more
challenging macro environsment Londen
continued to outperfarm the rest of the UK
Performance was driven by rental growth

as opposed to the yield compression seen in
recent years with prime yields supported by
rents which continued to rise in both the West
End and the City The cccupational market
overall remains favourable although more
recently there is evidence that scme large
occupiers are delaying decisions 1o take space
untl after the upcorming EU referendum
inretal demand remains for prime assets
but wider uncertainty has impacted investment
market volumes 1o recent months The retail
occupational market strengthened overali
reflecting impr oving consurner confidence
and nising real wages However since the turn
of the year there have been some signs that
consumer confidence and spending have
started to weaken

QOur por tfolio performed well overall
benefiting from our strategy to incr ease our
focus on London and balance our portfolio
between Offices and Retail Lendon and the
South Cast now represents 65% of the portfolio
compat ed 1o 56% six years ago The porttelio
ts also broadly balanced between Offices
[49% on a pro-forma basig] and Relal This
compares with six years ago when Offices
accounted for 33% of the partfotio Our Offices
and Relail businesses are increasmgly
campltementary reflecting our fecus on
campuses in Offices and mutti-let centres

Portfolio Performance

£14.6bn

UK portiohe valuation

11.3%

Total proper ty return

5.3%

ERV grawth

6.8%

Capital return

6.8%

Lellings/renewals varsus ERV

98.89%

Qccupancy rate

Valuation uplift

Investment Talal

Valuation portfolis Developments pardelia

Year ended 31 March 201§ £m % % %
Retail & Leisure 7 341 24 32 24
Offices & Residential 7024 17 127 18
Canada Water 283 - 17 17
Total 14,648 XA 94 57

' On a proportionately consolidated basis
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in Retail which are hecorning more mixed

use In additon the stable Income generated
by the Retail business has allowed us to Invest
in more cyclical Office develapment projects

Cur portfolio generated a total property

return of 11 3% comprising a capital return

of 6 8% and an income return of 4 2% We
outperformed IPD benchmarks by 50 bps on

a capital returns basts or 200 bps per annum
onadyearview continuing a consistent trend
of outper fermance Yotal portiolio valuation
was up 6 7% to £14 6 trilion This performance
mcludes the impact of a 1% increase m stamp
duty for commercial properly announced by
the Chancellor in March Excluding the stamp
dutyincrease the underlying portfolio valuation
was up 77% The standing invesiment portiolio
was up & 4% and accounted for ¢90% of the
total uplift the contribution frem developments
was lower as the completion of 5 Broadgate in
July 2015 brought our imajor 2618 development
programme to a close

Performance was driven by ERY growth
across lhe business of 5 3% outperforming
the market by 130 bps with a far tower
contribution from yield compression which
was 17 bps compared to 48 bps in 2014/15
Overalt our actions accounted far around 60%
of performance in bath the Retail and Ofhices
portfoliss Offices and Residential delivered a
valuation upbft of 11 8% driven by ERV growih
of ¢ 6% and our Retail and Leisure por tfolio
grew by 2 4% also benehiting from 2 4% of ERY
grawth Within cur Retail & Leisure portfolic
cur multi-let assets were up 2 8% with ERV
growth of 3 4%

We are pleased with the shape of our por tfolio
with our weightings in Retail and Offices
broadly balanced In the past the mcome
generated from the Retait side of the poi tfolwo
allowed us to busld out our significant 2010
development programme while mamtairung
our dividend and going forward as technology
transforms how we live and work we see that
the breadth of our por tfoliowill provide a
competifive advantage




Imvestment Activity

The gross value of our investment activity
since 1 April 2015 as measured by our share
of acquisttions disposals capital spend on
developments and other capital projects was
£1 3 bilion On a net basis our activily was
broadly balanced We maintained our capitat
discipline taking advantage of suppor tive
markets to sell matur e or nan-cos e assels
and resnvesting 1n our existing business and
in selected acquisitions principally adjacent
to existing assets

The most sigmificant acquesitiion was

One Sheldon Square Paddington Central
acquired for £210 million in Aprit last year
This brought our total ownership at the campus
to 806 000 sq fuincluding 4 Kingdem Street
which s under construction with the potentiat
to devetop a further 240 000 sq ft at 5 Kingdaom
Street We also acquired an additional £995
mithon interest {gross assel value! n the
Hercules Unit Trust [ HUT | portfolio bringing
our gross investment over the last two years
to £492 mullion at an effective net initial yield

of 6 0% Qur holding now stands at 75%

In tine with aur strategy we continued to
reshape the Retail portiolio with £420 mallion
of mature or non-core asset disposals in the
period Key transactions mcluded the sale

of Rotherham Parkgate and By statl for

£120 million and £31 mithon respectively
[bath our share] We altso sold nine standalene
foodstores totalling £122 mulion reducing owr
stotal superstore holding ta £0 8 bilkion from
£1 3 billian two years ago We no longer have
any exposure to the European market since

9.0vears

Lease length to first break

£1.3bn

Gross investment activity

£30qm

Capital investrment

£332m

Acquisitians

Disposals

selling the rernaiming £43 mitlon of our
Furopean assets i line with our exit strategy

In Offices we sold 39 Victoria Street m July

last year for £139 million at an attractive yield
of less than 4% crysiallising an attractve

IRR of over 20% We also sold £59 mullion

{our share) of residential properues on average
3% zhead of valuation and conlinued to achieve
completions on exchanged units Two thirds

by value lour share] were at The Hempel
Collection in line with our strategy we will

Reiad Offices Residential Total
From 1 Aprit 2015 tm £m £m Em
Development Spend 17 140 30 187
Capital Spend 29 19 2 120
Purchases 100 232 - 332
Sales (420 3%t (59) [618]
Net Investment (204) 252 127 21
Gross Investment 636 530 kAl 1,257

Qna proporticnately consolidated basis

market no further units at Clarges Mayfair until
practical completion in 2017 This follows our
successtul pre-sales campaign in September
7014 where we pre-sold just over 50% by value

Development

We completed 908 000 sq ft of developments
in the peried with b Broadgate accounting for
710000 s¢q ft The completion of 5 Broadgate
marked the conctusien of the 2 7 mitlion sg ft
development programme star ted in 2010
which gener ated profits of £1 1 billon and an
IRR of over 30% We alsc compleled Yalding
House, a 29 000 sq 1 ofice-led refurbishment
in the heart of Fitzrovia as well as 169 000 sq it
of Retail developments ncluding a retail
extension at Glasgow Fort and a leisure
extension at Whiteley

Our under construction pragramime covers
629000 sq ft representing a speculative capital
commitment of £330 muthion This prinaipatly
includes 192 000 sq it at our super prime
restdential-led development Clarges Mayfan
where we have atready pre-sold aver 50% of
the residential umits by vatue and 147000 sq ft
of office space at 4 Kingdom Street on our
Paddington Central campus

We are making good progress with our near
term development pipetine which increased
from 1 Smillion sg ftin March last year to

2 0 mullion sq [t We have buiit optionality into
our pipeline and are progressing the projects
s0 we can be ready to cornmit when the time
1s right

The three targest schemes in the near

term pipeline reflect office tease expiries
over the next 2 years at Broadgate and
Regent s Place where we expect to deliver
a sigrificant increase in the averall Hoor space
on redevelopment At 100 Liverpool Street
we recently received a resolution to grant
plannuing consent for a revised 520 000 sq ft
redevelopment incorporating a larger retart
compenent and at 1 Finshury Avenue

we received consent on a 303 000 sq ft
redevelopment At 1 Triton Square on our
Regent s Place campus we are progressing
the design for & substantial refurbishment
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Stratedic Repore

PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Qur planning appltcation for 340 000 sq ft of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoreditch
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision to take over the application butstis
unlikely that we will start onsite 1n 2016 At

5 Kmngdom Street on our Paddingion Central
campus we expect to submit a revised
planning application for a larger scheme

by the end of the year

in Retail we will continue to enhance our offer
with a strong nedr term pipeine of leisure
extensions ncluding 162 000 sq ft at Drake
Circus Plymouth and 66 000 sq ft at New

Mer sey Speke We also receved planning
consent at Ealing Broadway for the conversion
of an office block to 34 000 sq {t of private rented
tesidential apartments We also added Crawley
Homewares Pat k to the near term pipeline
where we obtained planning consent to
redevelop the existing Hormebase nto a 52 600
sq {t hamewares park comprising 3 units

Looking ahead to our medium term pipeline
in Retail we submitted a ptanning application
for the £262 mitlion [our share £131 mullion]
mixed use redevelopment of Eden Walk
Kingston The 542 000 sq ft development

wilt include public space leisure retail and
residenttal We are also i public consuitation
for a 330 000 sq f1 leisure scheme at
Meadowhall In Offices we submitted a
planning application for the redevelopment of
?-3 Finsbury Avenue which seeks to Increase
the area {rom 189 000 sq K to 550 000 sqg ft

Comumited Developments & Pipeline

[he most significant project in the medum term
pipeline is at Canada Water At the beginning of
February 2016 we were delighted to welcome
Roger Madelin to the team to head up this
exciting 46-acre redevelopment opporiumty

As Chief Executive/Joint Chief Executive of
Argent Roger was directly responsible for
leading a number of significant developrnents
and from 2000 led the tearn an the 67-acre

King s Cross development Canada Walter s
one of the tar gests egeneration projects in mner
London it has good transpert infr astructure
with access to the City West End and Canary
Whar Fvia the Jubilee line but also to emerging
areas around Shorediich as well as South West
London via the London Overground

Planning policies have now been adopted
within the London Berough of Southwark and
the Greater Landon Authonity which encourage
and are supportive of a significant quantum of
mixed development In February 2016 public
consultation commenced regardimg the current
masterplan proposals Over the coming
rnonths British Land and Southwark Counail
wili review the responses receved from the
loral community

Studies to assess how the proposed quantum
and mix of development might best be
configured and delivered over time are
currently being undertaken alongside detailed
ftnancial modelling Drscussions with 2 number
of prospective occuprers from the retail
leisure workspace and the full residennal
spectrum are assisting us m this process
Theirmplications of the Government s preposed

Houstng Bill and of any emerging policies
from the new London Mayor wall be assessed
and incorporated wher e necessary

We anticipate a programme and resource
schedule to prepare evaluate and consider a
ntanning submission witl have been produced
and agreed with Southwark Council by summet
2016 with the ambition o submit an outline
planning apphication in 2017 As we wor k towards
a planning submission we will continue to collect
rents of £8 million per annum from the shapping
centie and leisure park at Surrey Quays

During the year we continued to support
dwersity and training inittative s that make youny
people of all backgrounds aware of real estate
careers including Pathways to Property and
Budding B:unels aswell as apprenticeships
and local empltoyment prograrmmes such

as Broadgate Connect Together wiih our
suppliers we supparted 120 apprenticeships
atour places in the year Inaddiion a pilot
study on four developments revealed that 60%
of spend went within 25 miles and over 50%
went to small and medium sized enter piises
{uelling regional economues around our assets

@

More details on the portfolio property
performance indmdual developments

and assets acquired duning the year can

be found in the Retai! & Leisure and Offtces
& Residentiat reviews on pages 40 to 47
and in the detasled supplementary tables
on pages 184 to195

Briish Land share
Currant Cost to Pre let Rasidential Pre-sald
Sg it value complete ERV ERV end value residential
Al 31 Marech 2016 Q00 £m £m Em £m £m £m
Completed in Period 08 553 13 237 215 - -
Under Construction 629 605 204 161 02 657 358
Near term Pipeline 2,019 1,450
Medium term Pipeline 7175

' On a proportienately consolidated basis [excepl area which 1s shown at 100%]
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Our development pipeline

On stte and committed

4 Kingdom Street

147,000 sq it

Completing 2017

Cffice development at Paddington Central an 11 acre
mixed use campus 10 London s West End

Clarges Mayfair

192,000 sq ft

Completing 2017

Mixed use develaprment in Mayfair comprising 34 figh
end apartmeants together with retailand office space

Aldgate Place, Phase 1

221,000 1t

Completing 2015
Aresidential development

Near term

5 Kingdom Street

240,000 sq ¢

Onsite 2017
Office development at Paddington Central

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

340,000 sq ¢

On site 2017

Character otfices in a regeneration drea rdeally
suited tothe needs of small and medium s2ed
OCCURIETS

100 Liverpool Street

520,000 sq ft

COnsite 2017

Offrce refurtishment at Broadgate increasing capacity
and improving locat cannections and public spaces

British Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2014

1 Finsbury Avenue

303,000 sq £t

On site 2017

Office refurtushment at Broadgate increasing capacity
and improving locat cannections and public spaces

Plymouth Leisure

102,000 5 i

Onsite 2016
Leisure extznsion icluding a cinema

Speke Leisure

66,000 sq ft

Onsite 2014
Lewsure extension inciuding a cinema
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Strategic Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Our Retail strategy is focused
on creating outstanding places
for modern consumer lifestyles

Key hughlights of the ycar

$4.3bn

Portfolio valuation [British Land share}

14.8%

Total property return

2.49%

ERVgrowth

2.5%

Capital return

8.0v%

Lettings/ranewals versus ERY

99.09%

Cccupancy rate

9.8 years

Lease tengthto first break

; #
E i

Overview

The way people shop and spend their leisiie
timne continues to evolve with technaology tying
atthe heart of this It has become increasingly
clear that while ontine sales continue to grow
physical space remamns at the heart of how
people shop But today successful destinabons
need to be about more than just shopping -
they are more mixed use oftenwith food dnnk
and leisure and are mare embedded in the
communities where they are located Qur
strategy in Retail 15 to focus on creating
outstanding places for modern consumer
lfestyles places for people to shop eat

and be entertained

[ —

We have been progressively reducing our
exposure to srnatler and single-tet assets

and fecusing the business around our targer
multi-let assets where we can control the
environment i which we operate and use our
placemaking expertise to drive vatue Asa
result of these actions our multi-let portiolio
now accounts for over 70% of our Retall
business up trom 60% six years ago We now
manage and repor t our multi-let portfolio along
regional and locat Lines reflecting how we see
cansurmners spend their ime and money The
data we collect tells us that regional and locat
assets tulfil different consumer needs but
well-located and well-conhigured assets can
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Charles
Maudslev
Head of Retail
and Leisure

pe equally successful in today s emni-channel
world Reqicnal assets have a wide retail and
leisure offer a bigger caichment and longer
dwell trne | ocal assets are typically smattes
in scale highly conventent and accessible and
often with more local comrnunity amenities
and actsvities

Over the year the retail occupational market
strengthened reflecting rising employment

and real wages alongside falling ail prices
Occupancy rates improved as retaill and leisure
operator s cantenued to expand trial new for mats
and facus on takmg space in the most attractive
locations Resutlts have been positive over alt
especially for food and beverage operators and
retailers with mature omni-channel stralegies
This has created occupler tensicn driving rents
at those assets offering high levels of footfail
and sales in hugh quatity environments Since
the turn of the year however consumer
confidence has fallen and retail sales have
dipped with some adminisirations in fashion
likely reflecting concet ns ahout the impending
EU referendum and wider global economic

and potitical uncertainty

The catendar year 2(15 was aisc a good

year for the relail nvestment market and a
record breakmng year for shopping parks with
£2 6 illion of deals transacted Since the turn




.
ﬁa
.
s

o
N,i; L
AR PR o g "-‘m‘a;

of the year there has been a lack of benchmark
retail transactions and a slowdown in activity
with the majority of deals carried over from
2015 Demand rematns strong for prime
mutti-tet retait assets andisincreasingly
diverse but theres a irmited amaunt of stock
an the market Investors have become mor e
discerning with increased pelanisation between
prime and secondary assels and demnand for
secondary assels showing signs of softening

Portfolio Performance
Our Retail & Leisure portfolio valuation was up
2 4% over the year to £7 3 billion including the

(Z'(“ T": P

o : 1:*? 1 hﬂ' < ;,g?

wr ?s\, ‘d{a‘"‘ ot fﬂ }'}‘ 'bﬁa-

Retail lethings and renewals
by sector (by rent)

subsectors leading to IPD outperfermance
of 210bps demonstrating the quality of our
portfolio The Retall portfotio continued to
henefit frem yietd movement over the year
with 13 bps of yield compression compared
to 47 bps w the prior year The average NLY
now stands at 5 0%

Asset Management

Ourfocus on the strongest best located
schemes and our consistent approach to
deliver the most appropriate offer and standard
of service centinued Lo drive good demand for
our space so accupancy across the poi tfolio

impact of the recent 1% increase in stamp duly BFashion & Footweat 32% remained high at 99% Footfallwasup 3 0%

for commercial property Excluding the effecis B Food & Leisure 18% outperformeng the market by 440 bps and our

of the stamp duty change valuation uplift was [ Health & Beauty 16% retailers per formed well with therr in-store

broadiy the same in each half at around 18% M General Retail 13% sales up ? 4% outperforming the market by

driven by our actions which contributed 0% =YY % 200bps

of the uplift The portfolio outperformed the B Other P

market by 20 bps on a capital returns basis EElectricat & Mobite Phone 3% We provide a flexible and affordable proposition

and 30 bps on a total returns basis for occupiers with an average rent 10 sales

ratio fexcluding internet sales| of 10% We

ERV across the portfoliowas up 2 4% signed 903 000 sq fi of lettings/renewals on

[compared to 14% for the market as whaote} attractive terms with investiment {ettings and

with growth in the second half of the year renewals on average 8 0% ahead of ERV We

hgher at 1 5% compared with 0 9% 1n the first saw good demand for units of zll sizes including

half ERV growth was strongerin the multi-tet lai ger units with aver 450 000 sq ft of lettings/

portiolio at 3 4% compared to 3 0% in 2014/15 renewals on floor areas over 10 000 sqg ft Using

with the accelerating ERV trend broadly our detailed consumer data we confinued to

batanced 4cross both regtonal and local impr ove the accupier mix at our local and
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Strategic Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW CONTINUED

66

We continue to enjoy strong relationships
with our major occupiers, and work
closely with them to deliver the space

they want.”

regional assets adding quality brands and
troadening our leisure offering to keep pace
with consumer needs We signed 35 new food
and beverage cccuplers and 7 cinernas adding
174 000 sq ft of food beverage and leisure
space 10 our Retail operations through lettings
and extensions We settled 1 6 million sq ft of
rent reviews at 3 8% ahead of previous passing
rent and only 4% ol occupiers decided to leave
on expiry which gives further confidence that
we are creating the right kend of space for
occuplers We saw like-for-like net rental
income growth across the Retait portfolio

of 14%

We continue to enjoy strong relationships

with our major accupiers and work closely
with them o deliver the space they want

‘Fhe investments we are making to improve
our assets centinued to attract new brands
and popular restausant provigers (o ou
regional and local assets Primark recently
opened 68 800 sq ft of space at Broughton
Chester and Fort €innaird Edinbur gh and both
lecations are trading well At Glasgow Fortwe
attracted 7 new occupiers out of town mcluding
Pandora ¥iko Mitano GBK and Foot Asylurn
This has improved the quahiy and range of
accupiers availlable to consumers and driven
rental growth

In o1 der to attract such strong accupiers ta
our multi-let assets we continued to invest
across the portiolio o deliver the highest
quality retail envirenments QOver the course

of the year we spent {88 million on assel
management INitiatives and the positive iImpact
of this1s reflected both in our valuatien and in
our aperationat metrics Activity included the
£14 milbion refurbishrment of Ealing Broadway
which compteted in Novernber 2015 yielding
positrve results including a 5% uphit in retader
sales over the year along with several new
tenants Wasabi EAT and Smiggle This resutted
in 75% ERY growth at Eating Broadway in the
second half of the year At Teesside Stockton
our ongoing refurbishment has led 1o new

out of town entrants including Paperchase
taking space We completed a programme

of upgrades on five assets which included
improved new customer walkways parent

903,000 sq it

of retail and leisure lettings and renewals
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and chitd parking provision cuslomer service
centres high quality landscaping community
ar tworks celebrating local heritage and
children s play areas We are aiready seeing
the positive impact of these works through
wnproved customer satisfaction an increase
inretailer sales and ERV growth

In ine with our aim to provide a consistent

hight tevel of service for our occupiers and
consumers we have taken the property
management of our retalt assetsin-house

lo Broadgate Estales ourwholly owned
subsidiary and one of the UK s leading property
management companies |nthe year we rolled
out WorldHost customer service U aining to
more than 800 people at our places and
Oement:a Friendly training to over 600 peaple
makirg sure that from cleaning and security to
maintenance and management our teams have
the under standing and skills to welcome and
supportvisitors We are debghted by the positive
feedback Irom visitors and we ai e recognising
team member s who ar e going above and
beyond through our Awards for Excellence

Meadowhall had a strong year Salesat the
centre were 2 2% shead with retaiters on

the refurbished premium mall significantly
outper forming We are or site with a E60 miliion
internat refurbishment ahead of which we have
already signed some fugh quality new brands
ncluding iesel Joules Kiko Milano Jack Wills
and lapas Revolution Overall long ter m deals
at Meadowhall wer e signed at an average of

6 3% ahead of ERV and like-for-like income was
up 5 7% over the year Looking forward we are
n public censultation for a 3340 000 sq ft le1sure
scheme which will cement Meadowhalt s
posiian as among the best retail and leisure
destinattans in the UK

We comnmissioned a review by PwC which
identified Meadowhall s socral and ecanomic
centribution to the Shefiield City Region and
the wider UK for the first time, with 1pin
every £ 1 and one job in every 100 n the region
binking back to Meadowhall aswell as 640
apprenticeships over five years The Centre
has also contributed £7 3 bittion gross value
added to the UK economy over 25 years and




£303 million tax over five years Environmental
achievements include 42% less energy use
over six years and 17 080 tonnes of waste
recycled over ten years Looking forward
argund hatf the materiats and labour for our
Meadowhall refurbishment are being sour ced
fromn companies within the Sheffield City
Region bringmg a further £25 mitkon to

the regional economy

Imestment Activity

Gross vesiment activity over the year was
£636 million with total sales of £420 rralfion
{BL share] and total acquisitions of £100 million
IBL sharel

We continued te reshape the portfolio
disposing £420 mithion of mature o non-core
assets Key transactionsincluded the sale of
HUT assets in Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall
for £120 rillion and £31 million 1 espectively
[both our sharel We also disposed of mne
standalone foodstares totalling £122 mithon
This mcluded the £40 million sale of Tesco
Bursledon ata 5 0% net intial yield and the
£32 rmull:on sale of Sansbury s Islington at
anet intbal yretd of 396% This has reduced

our total superstore holding to £0 8 bithon from
E1 3 bilien two years age We have o further
£68 mullion of superstores under offer ot a NIY
of 4 2% whuch will further reduce our holding
to £0 7 bitlion

We acquired an additional £95 mitlion interest in
the HUT portfotio of shopping parks incieasing
our gwnership from 69 2% to 75 3% qver the
year On average these umnts were acquired

at NAV representing an effective net imtial

yield of 4 3% [based on actual acquisition costs)
With the disposals made in the year we have
rebalanced the HUT portfolio and in February
HUT unitholder s resolved to replace Schioders
with Crestbridge as manager

We completed 149 009 sq ft of developmenis
over the year The 57000 sg ft leisure extension
at Whiteley opened in November 2015 and has
traded well with sates growth of 8 2% in the
secand half The 112 000 sq ft Marks and
Spencer anchored retait extensron at Glasgow
Fort opened at the start of the year providing

a strong addrtional anchor to the scherne with
footfall increasing by 6 7% The new 12 000 sq
leisure quarter and 600 space multi-storey car
park are under constructton at Glasgow Fort
and wilt complete later in the year the new
space 15 already exchanged or under offer

at record level rents and includes new out

of town eccupters Thaikhun and GBK

Our 294 000 near term development pipeline
includes 1468 000 sq ft of leisure extensions and
86 000 sq ft of redevelopment At Drake Circus
Plymouth where we have permission tor a

102 QD& sq 1 [eisure scheme including space
for 14 restaurants adjacent to the asset we

£636m

Gross investment activity

169,000 sq ft

of retail and letsure develepments completed
over the yea

expeci to take vacant possession of the bus
station site tater thisyear We have already
pre-let space to Cinewosld for 8 12 screen
cinema as wetl as Byron Wagamama and Z1zz)
At New Mersey Speke we received consent
for a 646 000 sq ft leisure extension with an

1 screen cinena also pre tet to Cinewortd
and s restavrants Already we have exchanged
or are under offer on six restaurant units and
in the main part of the scheme Next has
renewed its lease and will extend 1ts trading
space to 48 000 sg ft

We have also recewed ptanming consent

at Ealing Broadway for the conversion of an
office block to 34 600 sq ft of private rented
residentiat apartments This marks the next
stage i our development plan for this asset
and follows a successful £14 million
refurbishment of the centre completed
November 2015 Planming permission has
also been granted for the redevelopment af &
Homebase at Crawley into a new 52 000 sq ft
homewares park

l.ooking fur ther ahead to the medium term
during the year we submitted a planning
application for a £262 riibon (our shaie

£131 million) mixed use redeveloprment of
EdenWatk Kimgsten toinctude 562 000 sq ft
public space {eisure retail and residential

At Meadowhail public consultation has started
on our 330 000 sg {t leisure extension Across
our near and medium term pipeline we are
on track to achieve BREEAM Exceilent or Yery
Good ratings on 464 000 sq ftof retail and
letsure space reflecting strong performance
onwellbeing efbiciency ecology and other
sustainability criteria
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Strategie Report

OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

We have used our placemaking skills

to drive further improvement at our
London office assets, delivering value

for shareholders

Key highlights of the vear

<'4.0bn

Portiouo valuation [British Land share}

15.4%

Total property return

9.6%

ERV grewth

12.0%

Capital return

5.69%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

98.6%

Qccupancy rate

79 years

Lease length ta first break

Orvervien

London again delivered good abselute

and retative performance over the year
continusng to henefit from trends such as
strong relative economic growth poputation
growth globalisation of labour and capital
and infrastr ucture-led regeneration Dur
Offices & Residential business grew to

E7 G bilbion from £6 0 biltion a year ago
driven by valuation uplft of 11 8%

Our strategy 1s focused on using ou
ptacemaking skills to drive further
improvement at our «ampuses which account
for aver 70% of our Offices portiohia through
development public reatm improvements and
the introduction of a greater range of uses

We are also using these placemaking skills

at our standatone assets which allow us to
expestment with driferent products - such

as Yalding House - and also provide liquidity
to the portfolio - such as the disposal of

3% Victoria Streel Our development capahilities
are a compebitive advaniage enabling us to
improve our campuses and deliver value

to our sharehelders

The occupatianal market in London remamed
strong seeing healtqy demand throughout
the year With Centrat London vacancy at

2 8% compared to the long term average of

5 3% prime rents continued to nse However
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Tin Roberts
Head of Offices
and Residential

inrecent months there have been signs of a
slowdown likely due lo the EU referendum
Take up 15 likely to slow further in the short
tersn but long term we believe that London s
gtabal position will endure

fhe investrment market also remained healthy
reflecting the fundamental attractions of
London growing rents good liqudity and a
scarcity of mcome return around the worid
Demand from global and demestic investors
remained robust despite the historically low
yields and while iInvestrnent volumes have
fallen sice January fust quarter transactions
at £3 5 bulion wer e 8% ahead of the 5 year
average Impaortantly there have been a numbser
of transactions which support current yields

Inresidential the pnime market has been
inpacted by both increased supply and recent
tax changes and transacticn volumes have
slowed In the super prime market thereis
continued emphasis on the guality of stock
and although London continues to be viewed
as attractive volumes have moderated The
mamnstream market in London has remained
relatively robust with steady demand

We continued 1o reduce our residential
commitment through further pre-sales at

The Hempel and Aldgate Ptace and with only
£292 rvulbion of units remaining our 1 esidential



business represents a manageable amount

of out portfolio The majonity of the remaining
units by value are at Clarges Mayfair which we
will not market until completion in tate 20317 and
15 a scherne which we believe will sull generate
sirong mnkeresk

Portfolio Performance

We continued te benefit from our focus on
London The vatue of our Offices and Residential
por tfolto was up 1 8% to £7 0 billion mciuding
the impact of the recent 1% increase in stamp
duty for cornmercial property The drivers of
valualion growth shifted substantatly over the
year witiv our actions accounting for 30% of
growth in the first half and almost all growth
In the second half We saw inward yteld shift

of 21 bps acress the Othce portfolio compared
to 51 bps last year reflecting the stowdown in
the investment market

The West End and City porifolios were up

12 8% and 11 1% respectively with the West
End portfolio showing a particularly strong
per formance in the second hall in part due to
the 15% uplift on the West End developments
The Reswdentiat partfoliowasup 5 7% This
mavement translates into strong overall
capialreturn of 12 0% ahead of the IPD
sector benchmark by ?0 bps

The Qifices and Residential investment portiolio
was up 11 7% driven by 9 6% ERV growth As
our development pipeline completed standing
investments have hecome an increastngly
important contributor te perfor mance
accouniing for almost 4% of the upliftin the
year Developments delivered valuation uptift

of 12 7% with strong performance at 4 Kingdom
Street which saw a valuation uplift of 42%

Office lettings and renewals
by sector (bs rent)

"

M Banks & Financial Services
M Professional & Corporate
LIMT

W Retal

B Manulacturing

B Gove: nment

W Insurance Cos

W Other Business

11.8%

valuatron uplit inoffices

£3.8m

of annualised rent added
through rent reviews

38 3%
195%
15 3%
9 5%
72%
54%
39%
08%

Asset Management

Despite delsvering 2 2 rmillion sq ft of
developments in the last 3 years our portfolio
15 now vir tually fully let reflecting Lhe strength
of occupational demand and the quahity of our
space Asa result overall letting volumes at
294 000 sq ft are below recent years levels
but we coninue to agree deals on terms 5 6%
ahead of ERY

We added £3 8 mdlien of annualised rent
through rent reviews on 687000 sq ft of space
an uplift of 17% compared to previous passing
rent Our campuses are relatively affordable
and with 1 8 million sq ft of rent reviews o
settle nthe next 18 months we are well ptaced
to capture rental growth going forward
Average ERVs at Paddington and Regent s
Place al £44 psiand £57 psf 1espectively are
low relative to core West End and at Broadgate
the average ss £57 psf Overall cur portfaliois
now 10% reversicnary [7% City 11% West End)

In the City The Leadenhall Building 1s now
98% tet or under offer from 84% at the start
of the year with just one of the top floor s tolet
we continued to set new rental ughs in the City
We have been particularly pleased not only by
the occuprer interest but also the critical
acclaim it has receved with the Leadenhall
Bulding named "Building of the Year™ by the
Worshipful Company of Chartered Architects
We were also delighted that The Duke of
Cambridge and Prince Harry formally opened
the building in Octeber 2015

Al Broadgate we ar e progressing our vision 1o
create aworld class campus for London This
reflects the growth and diversity ot its location
not anly as an importani part of the City but
being adjacent Lo the regenerating areas of
Shoreditch and Spitathelds which increasingly
cater totechnology and other creative sectors
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OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

6

Our Offices portfolio is now virtually fully
let reflecting the strength of occupational
demand and the quality of owr space.”

The opeming of the Crossrail station at Liverpoot
Streetin 2018 witl alse be supportive of our
overall vision Redevelopment opportunities will
significantly increase the scale of the campus
and hetter integrate it with the wibrant areas

to the north and east The redevelopment of
B:oadgate Circte has done much to enliven

the campus and our plans will build on this
momentum with a more diverse offerwhich
matches changing working lifestyles Our near
term development pipeline includes 823,000 sg
ft of space with a further 558 000 1n the
mediurn term

At Regent s Place we are progi essing ourvision
to evolve the campus through redevelopment
works We completed the tefurbishment of

79 000 sq ft at 338 Euston Road with Facebook
taking occupatton of the majoiity of the space
LLevels 7 and 7113 000 sq ft] are avalable and we
are seeing good interest hoth from existing and
new occuplers We have made good progress
with rent reviews at 78 Triton Street growsng
rents on aver age from £52 psfto £70 psfon

151 Q00 sq f1 of space and adding £2 5 millien

to annualised rents with a further 600 000 sq ft
to be negotiated in the next 18 months The next
phase of major works s at 1 Triton Square
where we are in the edr ly stages of desigring

a significant refurbishment

At Paddington Central we are making good
progress towards our vision to complete

the carnpus through development and
transforming the public realm We completed
phase 1 of the public reatm enhancement
works and phase 7 which will be focussed
around Kingdorn Street 1s out to tender and
will start this summer We have secured 4
moorings on the canal and we have also
purchased 2 canal boats to he used Lo host
evenls and enbiven the surrounding area

We saw ERV growth of 5% across the campus
in the second half of the year and settled rent
reviews on 75 000 sq ft of space al 2 Kingdom
Street taking rents from £45 psf to £54 psf
and adding £0 6 mitlion to annualised rents

46

Im estment Activity

Gross mvestment activity over the year was
£621 million with total sales of £198 mitlion
[BL sharel and total acquisiions of £232 mitlion
[BL share]

We continued to make progress at our
Residentiat schiemes The Hempel Collection
and Aldgate Place selling £5% million of
apartments at prices on average 3% shead
of valuation At €larges Mayfair having
pre-sold over 50% of the gross development
value of the residentizl element of the scheme
n September 2014 1t remains our iniention
to undertake no further marketing unti the
remaning apar tments have reached
practical comgletion
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In July lastyear we sold an effice building at

39 Victoria Street tor a nel price of £13% muliion
We acquired the building for E4% mullion in 2009
and 1t was let In its enti ety to the Corporate
Officer of The House of Commons in 2013
following a substantial refurbishment The
disposal atayeld of less than 6% crystalhised
an attractive IRR of over 20% per annum

since purchase

At the start of the year we acguired One
Sheldon Square for £210 mullion This s in line
with our strategy of expanding our interests
in and around our core campuses 1 atso
INCreases our expoesure to an up and coming
area of London and Paddington station a
rnajor London transpor tinterchange which




will benefit from the opeming of Crossrailin
2018 The acquisition adds nearly 200 000 sq ft
to our office space bringing the assets we own
it Paddington Central to 806 000 sq

We completed 739 080 sq ft of developments

in the period with 3 Breadyate accounting for
710000 sq ft UBS began futing out 5 Broadgate
in the summer and we expect them {o mave

in later this year We achieved a BREEAM
Excellent rating ai 5 Broadgate and we are

on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent across
a turther 2 7 million sq ft of office space

We also completed Yalding House a 29000 sq ft
offrce-led refurbishment in the hear t of
Fiizrovia The building which was launchedin
February has variable floor plates andis
targeted at small and medium sized businesses
in the creative sectors We are pleased with the
level of enquiries seen to dale

Ctur under construction programme covers

617 000 sq {1 with total speculative commiitment
lincluding land] of £530 mitbion This includes
192 000 sq it at our super prime restdental-led
development Clar ges Maytair where both the
relecation of the Kennel Club and the affordable
housing element were delivered in the pencd
We are on track to comiplete the 48 000 sq ft
office element in the summer with the
residential to complete in late 2017

Al 4 Kingdom Street we are making good
progress We are on track Lo top out later

this month and on target to deliver 147 000 sq ft
of ofhce space in 2017 At 2 Kangdom Street
Broadgate Fstates achieved the world s first
BREEAM Qutstanding Fit Out As well as being
hghly efficient the new environmeni s helping
Broadgate Fstates attract and retain the

best talent

¢330m

of committed specutative development

LSm sq ft

Near term development pipeline focused
an London

There are signs that Increases in construction
costs are moderating reflecting lower raw
material costs However, tender prices still
reflect imuted capacity in the industry with
contraciors seeking to restore margins and
lirmit their risk exposure In centrat London
we are currently forecasting cost inflation

of 5% per annum and for our projects under
constructron atl our costs are fixed

We made good prog: esswith out near term
development pipeline which has increased fram
1 3 million sq ft in March lastyear to 1 8 million
sq ft We recently receved consent for a revised
520 000 sq ft redevelopment of 100 Liverpool
Stteet at Broadgate incarporating a larger retail
compenent than i the previous consent inline
with our ptans to add 408 OGO sq 1L of retai to the
campus n the medium term Subject to UBS
compteting the ht out woi ks at 5 Breadgate we
expecttobe n a position to commence with

100 Liverpoot Street in early 2017

At 1 Finsbury Avenue we received planming
consent for a 303 000 sq ft redevelopment

and at 1 Tritan Square on our Regent s Place
campus we are progressing the design We
wiil make the decision whether to commit to
these schernes at the appropriate ttime but

we at e pleased with the level of interest we are
seeing from occupiers for potentiat pre-lets
despite the fact that the projects are stll at

an early stage

Our planning application for 340 000 sq ft of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoreditch
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayer of Landon The High Court has
since 1gjected a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision take over in the application but s
unlikely that we will start ensite in 2016 as had
heen our intention At 5 Kingdomn Street we
have made good progress on the proposed
design and we expect to submit & planning
application by the end of the year

Looking ahead to our medium term pipetine
we subrmtted a plannuing application fer the
redevelapment of 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue
ncreasing the area irom 189 000 sq fi to
5500005sq ft
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CARBON REPORTING

Our efficiency programme provides well-managed
environments for workers, shoppers and residents,
supports our occupiers’ sustainability goals, cuts
occupancy costs and enhances asset value

CDP
CLIMATE
BISCLMURE
LEABEN 2073

We actively manage greenhouse gas ermissions
across our business We are recegmesed inthe
CDP Dhsclosure Leader ship Index for the fifth
year running with a 100% score for disclosure
We also achieved B fo: per formance

We have reported on all emission sources
required under the Compantes Act 2006
{Strategic Report and Duectors Reporis)
Regulanons 2013 These sources fall within
our consolidated financial statement and
relate to head office activities and controlied
emissions from our managed portfolio All

our scope 1and 2 emussions are included

In this staterment We have used purchased
enet gy consumption data the GHG Protocet
Corporate Accounting and Reporung Standard
[rewised ediion) and ernission factors from the
UK Government s GHG Converston Faciors for
Company Reporting 2013

Scope 1 2nd 2 carbon ermmissions rediced

this year due to seve: al factors notably the
decarborusation of the UK grid improvements
through ocur ongoing efficiency programme and
<hanges i our porticlio affecting energy use

Scope 1 and 2 emussions intensity (tonnes CO,e)

Year ended 31 March 2014 2015 2009
Per m* - Offices [net letable areal 0075 0074 0118
Per m? - Relail - enclosed 0073 0088 0174
Per parking space - Retail - open air 0 063 0063 0106
Per m” - Resiwdential 0081 0085 -
Per £ - gross rental income from managed por tiolio! 79 48 8730 -
Absolute Scope 1 and 2 emivions (tonnes CO,e)

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015 2007
Combustion of fuel Managed portfolio gas use and {uel use

n British Land owned vehicles 7,284 6965 5156
Operation of facitities Managed pertfolio refnigeramt less from

air condiioning b4d 554 -
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and ccoling for our own use

Managed por tfelio electr icity use 38,710 4?2503 41186
Absolute Scope 3 emiswions (tonnes CO,e}

Year ended 31 March 2014 2012
Occupier controlled energy use - Offices Electricity and gas use in our assels 50,291 51839
Occupler controlled energy use = Retail Electricity and gas use in our assels 584,668 748150
Broadgate Estates controlled energy use - Tturd parties Electricity and gas use

in assets owned by others 36,097 -
Development supply chain Censtruction materials site activity design and other

bustness services 78,934 174422

Visitor travel Vehicle use to and from assets

2914903 4970784

Corporate and other Group procurement finance employee travel energy

bie-cycle related water and ressdential energy

137,816 109133

* Gross Rental Income [GRI) from the managed perttolio comprises Group GRI of £451 mallion 2015 £39% rillian]
plus 100% of the GRI generaled by joint ventures and funds of €451 million {2015 £495 milkon} Less GRI
generated by assets outside the managed portiolio of £315 million {2015 £321 millionl
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and associated emssions Combustion of fuel
increased sightly due to occuper fit outs
notably in The Leadenhall Building

We commissioned a review of ou Scope 3
emissions by Arup which revealed that changes
in our portfolio since 2012 have substantially
reduced our carben footprint The shift towards
assets with strong public tiansport inks

has reduced ermissigns {rom visitor travel by

1 3million tonnes More detailed mformation
around visitar numbers and transport use has
atso mnproved accuracy reducing visitor travel
emtssions by 860 000 tonnes In addiion

the reduction in our totat Hoor area and the
decarbonisation of the UK grid have contributed
to reductions in emissions from occuprer
energy use of 164 000 tonnes Theincrease

in Corporate and other emissions was due

to the addihion of Broadgate Estates data and
residential energy use data within our footprint
as well as increased emissions ¢ elated to
property acquisitions and finance

Reducing Scope 3 ennssions
We are working with our development
supply cham to reduce carbon emissions
from canstruction materials At 100
tiverpool Styeet our design team has
developed plans that re-use as much

of the buitding structure as possible
cutting construction costs and reducing
embodied carbon by 7 270 tonnes Design
improvements are also targeting a further
4 360 lonne saving versus the original
congepls at no extra cost by changmng
insulation matenals using cement
replacement increasing ecycled
alumium content and switching to
lightweight engineered beams

We amended our methodology for
carbon intensities ths year and have
restated previous numbers to reflect
this For our full methodology
explanation of changes and PwC s
independent assurance seeour 2016
Sustanability Accounts avanlable at
www britishland com/data



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our strategic focus on placemaking
along with our active debt management
underpinned our strong results

Key mghlights of the yea

14.29%

Total accounting return'

9219,

EPRA net asset vatue per share'

£9.6bn

IFRS net assets

284,

Dividend per share

£363m

Underly:ng Profit*

£1.3bn

IFRS profit before tax

329%

LTV proportionatly cansolidated

3.3%

Weighted average ierest rate
proporitonally consolidated

' See glossary for definitions

L

Overview

The strong pet farmance this year s reflected in
our oper ating results and the total accounimg
return of 14 2%

CGur focus on placemaking and agcelerating
ERV growth have delivered a por tfolio valuation
upliftot 6 7% on a proportionally consotidated
basis and a 10 9% increase in NAVY per share

o 919 pence excluding the impact of the 1%
increase in stamp duty on commercral property
NAV per share would have been 932 pence [an
increase of 12 4%}

We have completed £1 3 billion of investment
activity with acquisition and development
spend broadly batancing disposals We have
sold mature and non-core assets and have
reinvested i our existing business and

in selected acquisitions adjacent to

exisking assets

Our balance sheet metrics remain streng

The proportionally consclidated loan tovalue
ratio has decreased to 32% from 35% due to

a combination of aur actions including the
results of gur placemaking activity and market
movements We have raised £915 million of
new debt including a £350 rmutlion zero coupon
converlble bond Together with the £110 mellion
debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

we have completed over £1 billson of financing

actiity n the year This drove the 50 hps
¢ etduction in the Group s praportionally
consolidaied weighted average interest
rate 103 3% from 3 8%

Underlying Profit increased to £363 million
as aresull of our successful financing activity
leasing of our compteted developments and
1ental income growth in the tnvestrment
portfolie including a number of signilicant
rent reviews in Offrces

Underlyng earnmgs per share increased by
less than profits due to the requirement to
anticipale conversion indo new shares of the
£400 rmulhion 1 5% convertible bond 1ssued in
2012 and maturing in 2017 with a conversion
price of $93 pence

IFRS prefit befare tax for the year of

£1 331 million 15 tower than the prior year
primarily due to a reduced level of property
valuation movement reflecting the slowdown
in yietd compression and the recent increase
in stamp duty on cormnmercial proper ty

Looking forward 1o next year we intend to
increase the dividend by 3% to 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
per share
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Presentation of financial information
The Group financial statements are prepared
under IFRS where the Group s interests in joint
ventures and funds are shown as a single line
1tem on the incorme statement and balance
sheet and all subsidiaries are censol:dated

at 100%

Management considers the business principally
on a proportionalty consolidated basts when
setting ihe sirategy determining annual
priorties making investmens and financing
decisiens and reviewing performance This
inclides the Group s share of joint ventures

ond funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes
aon-controlling interests in the Group s
subsidianies The financial key performance
indicators are alse presented on thus basis

A summary income statermnent and summary
balance sheet which reconcide the Group
financial statements to British Land s
interests an a proportionally consolidated
basts are included in Table Awithin the
supplementary disclosures

Income statement

1 Underlytng Profit

Underlying Profit s the measure that 1s used
internally to assessincome performance No
company adwstments have been made in the
current or priol year and therefore thisis the
same as the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure
which includes a number of adjusiments to
the IFRS reported profit before tax Thisis
presented above on a propor tionally
consolidated basis

11 Net rental income (Chart 1]

[he £35 miltion increase in net rental ncome
during the year was the result of strong
letling actriy

The successful leting of our development
progtamme provided £23 millton of this
increase primarily due to the start of the lease
at 5 Broadgate and the lettings we have made
at the L eadenhall Building which 1s now atmost
full with recent ieasing deals setting new
records for City rents

Like-for-like rental income growth was 3 4%
Offices and Residential growth was almost 7%
just over half of this was due ta the letting up of
completed developrnents that are now inthe
like-for-like portfolio with the remainder beaing
attributable to strong rent review activity
particularty at Regent s Place and Paddington
Retail and Leisure growth was 1 4% {1 8%
excluding the impact of surrender prermial

Qur near term development pipeline could add
a further £48 rmittion of net rental income over
the next Syears The three largesi schemes n
the near term pipeline are income producing
investments with a current passing rent of

50

U nderlang Profit

2016 2035

Section £m £m
Gross rental income 654 418
Property operating expenses [34) (331
Net rental income 1 420 585
Nel fees and other income 17 17
Adminsstrative expenses 13 [94) {88}
Net financing costs 12 180] {201
Undertying Profit 343 313
Non-controlling interest in Underlying Proft 14 16
EPRA adjustments? §94 1460
IFRS profit before tax 2 1331 1789
Underlying earmings per share 14 341p 30ép
IFRS bastc earnings per share 2 1312p 1683p
Dividend per share 3 2836p 2768p

! Fees and other income and administrative expenses have been restated to reflect the change in presentatien
of the results of Broadgate Estates a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group This restaternent has had no
impact on Underiying Profit Refer to note 1 of the financial staterments for further details

? EPRA adjustments consist of investment and development property revalualions gains/losses on investment
and trading property disposals changes in the fawr value ef iInanaial instrumenis and associated close out
costs These items are presented in the capital ang other column of the consolidated income statement

Net rental meome (£m) (char 1)

40

Fprt 1 "
B
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Poalry

[ Teal
Developments Like-tor-tke Atuisitens Drsposals
rental incoms growth
Net financing costs (Sm) (Chan 21
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Financing Acqurstions Disposals Completian of 206
acimty developments
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£24 millson which 1s expected to run off in the
last quartes of 2014/17

12 Net financing costs (Chart 2]

We completed over £1 bitlion of financing
activity in the current year including the

£350 million zero coupon convertible hond and
the £110 mullion debenture honds tender offer
and purchase We have 1msed and refinanced
a total of £915 nullion of debt at lower rargins
and in a lower interesi rate environment
Together with the impact of last year s inancing
activity this resulted in a £27 rmillion decrease
In financing casts this year

Qur approach to interest rate management was
alse important in reducing interest casts At the
year end we had reduced the proportion of our
debt held at fixed rates to 6% on average over
the next five years [64% at 31 March 2015)

Overall our actions durtng the year drove the
reduction in our proportionally consolidated
weighted average interest rate to 3 3% at

31 March 2016 from 3 8% at 31 March 2015

Lower capitatised interest in the current
year reflected our reduced development
commitment This resulted in an additionat
£5 millien of interest cost i the year

1 3 Administrative expenses

During the year we brought the property
management of our retail assats in-house 10
Broadyate Estates awhally owned subsiciary
in line with our strategic focus on customer
arientation and placemaking In recognrition

of the core role Broadgate Estates now plays
in how we run the business we have changed
the way Its results are presented in the Group
income statement This hasresulted ina

£5 rmution incr ease in admirvistrative expenses
and an equal and offsetting mcrease in netfees
and other income mportantly this change has
nowmpact on Undertying Profit The prioryear
comparatves for net fees and other income
and adimnistrative expenses have also been
restated to reflect this change in presentation

Development team costs of £4 meltion were
capitalised for the first ime this year as we
progress our development pipeline

Overall admivsirative expenses increased
by £6 mitlion this year in line with our planned
investment in pecple and technology i order
io enhance the capability of the business,
which includes a £2 million increase retated
lo Broadgate Estates The Group s operating
cosl ratie remams sector leading at 16 6%
(2014/15 16 4%

14 Underlying EPS

Underlying EPS for 2015/16 was 34 1 pence
[2614/15 30 & pence] based on Undertying
Profit after tax of £365 mitlion (2014/15 £313

2014 2015

Balance sheet Section £m £m
Properties at valuation 14 648 13,677
Other non-current assets 138 256

14,786 13,933
Other net current liabilities (257 (307)
Adjusted net debt & 14765) 14918)
Other non-current ktabilities {20 [73]
EPRA net assets lundiluted] 9674 8,435
Diiution impact of convertible bend 400 400

EPRA net assets fdiluted) 10,074 9,035

EPRA NAV per share 4 919p 829
MNon-controlling interest 27 333
EPRA adjustments’ (722)  (803]
IFRS net assets 5 9,619 B,545

EPRA net assets exclude the mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedgas and related debt adjustments the
mark-to-markel on Lhe converlibte bonds as well as deferred taxation on property and dervative revaluations
They include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive impact of share options
and the £400 million convertible band matuning in 2017 No adjustment 1s made for the £350 rmillion zera coupon
converiible bond because this 1s not currently dilutive Details of the EPRA adpustments are included in Table A
within the supplementary disclosures

EPRA NAV per share (p) [Chan 3]

Stamp duty
i
{26! [E]]
2015 Cihces and Retail Underbpng Draderds Finance 2018
Residential ard Leisure proft transacticn
valuation valuation costs
uplfl

Adjusted net debt (£m)? (chan 2)

e : (310
1 1
| |
1332)
[4,718) {4,745)
2i5 Amuistions Osposals Net cash Dvdends Onher .01
and capex frem
operations

' Adjusied net debt s a propartignaily consolidated measure 1t represents the Group net debt as disclosed in
Note 17 and the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt excluding the mark-ta-market on effective
cash flow hedges and related debil ad,ustments and non-controlling interests A reconcilialion between the
Group nei debt and adjusted net debt 1s included in Table A within the supplememtary disclosures
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mulion} adjusted to add back interest on the
£400 mullion 1 5% convertble bond of £6 rmitlion
{2014/15 Enit} and the weighted average diluted
number of shares of 1089 mithion 12014/15
1022 miltion]

The increase in Underlying EPS of 11 4% s less
than the increase n Underlying Profit because
we are now required ta anticipate convel sion
into shares of the £400 million 1 5% convertible
bend which matures in 2037 wn our reported
Underlying EPS

2 IFRS profit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profit before
lax and Under lying Profit1s that it includes
the valuation movernent on investment and
development properties and the far value
mevements of financial instruments [n
addition the Group s investments i jornt
ventures and funds are equity accounted

in the IFRS income statement bul are
included on a proportionatly consol:dated
basis within Underlying Profit

The 1IFRS profit betere tax for the yea: was

£1 331 multion a decrease of £458 million
primarily due to the stowdown in yield
compression and the 1% stamp duty increase
on commergtal property in the current year
resulting in tower levels of property valuation
movement Thisimpacts IFRS profit before tax
thi cugh the valuation movement on the Group s
properties which was £268 million less than
last year and the valuation ravernent on the
properties held in joint ventures and funds
which was £344 rullien less than lust year

. Further inforratton on portfolio valuation
performance 1s provided on page 36

The £77 milion decrease In net financing costs
1o £75 mutlion was principally due to revatuation
gans recorded in respect of the Group s
convertible honds

The £50 mallion increase in net rental income
to £423 millten was primanly the result of

the purchase ot a controlling interest in New
Mer sey Speke in March 2015 the puichase

of controfling interests in two mixed portiolios
of singte and mulu-let assets [the Tesco
transaction ] also completed in Maich 2015
and tike-for-like rental income growth in

the standing porticlio

Basic earrungs per shar e decreased by 22%

to 131 2 pence per share The weighted average
number of shares i 1ssue duting the period
was 1025 million [2014/15 1016 milionl

wn
o

3 Dwmdends

The quarterly dvidend was increased to 709
pence per share tn the year bringing the total
dwidend declared for the current knancial year
to 28 34 pence per share [2014/15 27 68 pence
pershare] anincrease of 2 5% over the prior
year The dwadend paid in the financial year was
78 02 pence per shaie [20i4/15 27 34 pence
per share)

It s the Beard sintention to inciease the
dwidend by 3 0% 1n 2014/17 to 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
pershare

Balance Sheet

4 EPRANAVY per share (Chart 3)

The EPRA NAV per share of 919 pence includes
the 13 pence adverse impact from the 1% rise
in Stamp Duty Land Tax on commer cial
property announced in the budget this year

The 10 9% increase in EPRA NAV per share
reflects a strong valization performance across
the portfolio of 6 7% Our portfolios broadly
sptit egually between Offices and Retail The
valuaton uplit in the year 1s primarily due 10
LRV growth of 5 3% with an accelerated trend
compared to last year reftecting our focus on
ptacemaking and the strength of the markets
we investin Yield compressian was 17 bps and
contributed significantly {ess to the valuation
uplift compared to the pioryear

Returns were drven by our standing
nvestments up & 4% hoosted byan
increase of 9 4% 0 our developments

Offices and Residential valuatons wer e up

11 8% with strong ERY growth of 9 6% the
West End performed shightly more strongly
than the City 1n part due to the valuation

uplift on cur developrnents Retail and Leisure
valuations were up 2 4% under pinned by strong
performance in our multi-tet por tfolio which
saw ERV growth of 3 4%

The hinance transaction costs primar ily retate

to the debentur e bond tender offer and
purchase completed i the year and are

Financing statisties

compensated for by lower interest costs over
the remarning period of the finance

5 IFRS net assets

IFRS net assets at 31 March 2016 were £9 619
millior an increase of £1 094 mithion This was
primarity due to pi operty revaluahon gains in
the current year, which were £614 mullion for
the Group and £245 million for the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds

in August 2015 the loan provided by the Group
10 the Broadgate joint venture was repaid
This was funded by additional shareholder
contribuiions to the joint venture and resulted
ina £137 mithien decrease i net debt and

a £137 million increase in the Group s
Investments in jont ventur es and funds

Cash Flow, Net Debt and Financing
6 Adjusted net debt (Chan 2

The impact of our investinent activity in the year
was broadly batanced

Sigrificant acqusitions completed m the year
inclueded One Sheldon Square and the pui chase
of an addwienal 6 1% of the units in Hercules Unit
Tiust bringing the Group s ownership to 75 3%
at the year end

Devetopment expenditure of £190 millien
related to the spend on our commutted
development progi amme and capital
expentiiure of £120 million related to asset
management on the standing portfolio
Forecast development spend of £204 mulion
15 anticipated aver the next three year s on the
Group s committed devetopment programme
and £720 millton on the Group s neat lerm
development pipeline This compares to
£358 million of conts acted residential sales
along wath a fur ther £292 miilion of residential
units yet to be contracted for sale on existing
commitied projecis

Significant disposals in the year included

39 Victoria Street at an attractive yield which
generaled an IRR of aver 20% Rotherham
Parkgate and Leeds Birstall Inaddition
disposals of standalone superstores totalling

Group Proporitonally consolidated

2014 2015 2016 2015

Net debt/adjusted net debt’ £3,617m  £3828m F4765m  £4918m
Principal amount of gross debt £3552m  £3777m £5089m  £5202m
Loan tovalue 25% 28% 32% 35%
Weighted average interest rate 26% 33% 33% 38%
Interest caver 33 29 g 26
Weighted average debt maturity 72years 7 3years 8iyears  87years

The Group figures represent net debt as presented sy nota 17 of the financsal statemments the proportionally
consolidated figures include {he Group s share of joint venture 2nd funds net debt and exclude the mark-to-
market on effectve cash fiow hedges and related debt adjustments and non-controlling interests
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£122 mitlion were completed including the
sale of Tesco Burstedon for £60 mullion and
Sanshury s Islington for £32 mdlion reducing
the Group s total superstare exposure to under
£0 8 billion We currently have a turther

£100 million of mature or non-core retal
assets under offer

7 Financng

Balance sheel metrics remam stiong LTV

and the weighted average interest rate on
drawn debt were reduced and inte1est cover
wnproved The decrease in both our Group and
proportiondlly consolidated LTV measuresis
due toa combinauen of our actions and market
movernents Note 17 of the financial statements
sets out the caiculation of the Group and
proportionatly consolidated LTV

Our proporticnatly consolidated LTV was 32%
at March 2016 down from 40% two years ago
Pro-forma fer the full conversion of the £400
miltion ¥ 5% convertbte bond maturing in 2037
proporuanalely consolidated LTV s 29%

The strength of the Group s balance sheetis
reflected in Briish Land s senior unsecured
credit rating which continues o be rated by
Fitch at A-

Financing activity duning the year amounted

to over £1 bilion We continue to achieve
aliractive financings which improve earnings
and ligudity inctudimg £915 milbion of new debt
finance stnce 31 March 2015

Taking advantage of faveurable market
conditions we rarsed a £350 million zero
coupon sentor unsecur ed convertible bond
due 2070 which includes flexible settlement
options and provides further diversification
of our sources of hnance

Following a tender offer in respect of Botish
Land 5 6 75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds
due 2020 we purchased £110 million of bonds
The purchase was funded by existing comrmutied
facibties and the bonds were cancelled

Financing activity In our jont venture and
funds in the year consisied of the repayment
of £1080 mitlion of a Hercules Unit Trust term
loan, reducing the facility to €250 mittion and
Its subsequent refinancing at pricing less than
hatf the previous facdity The Gibraliar Limited
Partnership £148 rullion loan facility was

also refinanced in the year at signuficantly
tower pricing

Overall financing actvity we completed in the
year was the principal factor in the reduction
of the proportionatly consolidated weighted
average interest rote from 3 8% to 3 3%

We have also agreed one year exlensions to
both our bank syndicated unsecured revelving
creditfactlittes in total £1 245 mullion

British Land has £1 8 billion of commutted
unsecur ed revolving banking faciliies and
£83 million of cash and shoi 1 term deposits
Of these facilibies £1 6 billien have maturites
of more than two years and £1 2 billion was
undrawn at 31 March 2016 Based on our
current commitments and these facilities
the Group has no requirement to rehinance
for four years

. Furthes information on our approach to
financing i1s prowided sn the finsncial policies
and principles secuon on pages 54 to 56
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Tax

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 January
2007 paying a £308m conversion charge to
HMRC in the same year As a consequence

of the Group s REIT status taxis lewied on the
distribution of income from our qualifying
property rental business rather than at the
corporate tevel Anyincome wiich does not
qualtiy as property income within the REIT
rules s subject to tax in the normat way Thts
inctudes profits on properties developed and
sold within three years as well a5 fees and
nterest The tax credit for the year1s £2m
{excluding deferred tax]

Our 2014 Total Tax Contribution was more than
E240rm mainty arising from texes collected
from others which we administered together
with taxes and levies paid directly

HMRC continue to award British Land a low
risk taxrating which 1s in part a reflection of cur
REIT status iogether with the open and regular
dralogue we maintarn with thern We contiaue

to comfor tably pass ait RE!T tests to ensure

our REIT status 1s maintatned

UMl

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financral Officer
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Stratedic Report

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding which
enables us to deliver our property strategy

Leverage

Our mix of equity and debt financing 1s managed
to achreve the appropriate balance between
enhancing returns for shareholders and the
risk of higher leverage We use a loan tovalue
ratio [debt as a percentage of the gross value

of our assets LTV} to measure cur leverage
primarity on a proportionaily consolidated basis
including cur share of joint ventures and funds
and excluding non-cantrelling interesis

We seek to manage our leverage such that

our LTV should not exceed a maxtmum
threshold f mar ket yelds wete to nise to
previous peak levels Tius means we will not
increase our LTV if asset values increase only
as aresult of market yield improvement
Conseguently o maximumn LTV may be tugher
in the tow point in the cycle and wiil trend
downwards as market yieids tighten

We lever age our equity and achieve benefits of
scale while spreading risk through joint ventures
and funds which are typically partly financed
with debt without recourse to British Land

Our current proportronally consolidated LTV
of 32% includes our share of the debt In joint
ventures and funds and is higher than the
Group measure of 25%

Debt hinance

The scale of cur business combined with

the quabity of our assets and rental income
means that we are attractwe to a broad range
of debt providers and able to arrange finance
an favcurable terms Good access to the capital
and debl markets s a campetitive advantage
allowing us to take opportuniies when

they arise

The Group s approach to debt financing for
British Land 1s to raise funds predorminantly on
an unsecured basis with our standard financral
covenants [set cut on page 56} This provides
the greatest flexiitity and low operational cost
Cur Jointventures and funds are each financed
in ring-fenced structures without recourse to
Briish Land for repayment and are secured on
the relevant assels

Presented opposile are the five guiding
principles that govern the way we structure
and manage our debt

Debt financing involves risk frem adverse
changes in the praperty and financing
markets In arranging and monitoring our
hinancing we nclude important nsk disciplines
ensuring that relevant risks are fully evaluated
and managed

@ Managing risk in delivering our strategy see
pages 57 to 63

Momtoring and controlling our debt
We monitar our projected LTV and our debt
requirement using sever al key intet nally
generated reports locused principally on
borrowing tevels debt maturiy available
facilities and snterest rate exposure We also
undertake sensitivity analysis ta assess the
impact of proposed transactions fmovements
Ininterest rates and changes i pr operly vatues
on the key balance sheet liguidity and
profitability ratios

In assessing cur ongoing debt regurements
including for eur devetopment programme

we constder potential downside scenarios such
as a fallin valuations and the eftect that nught
have on our covenants

Based on owr current commitments and
availahle facilities the Gioup bas no
requirement to refinance for fouryears
{irrespectwe of whether the seitlement of the
2012 convertitle hond is with equity or debit}

British Land s current committed undrawn
bank facilitses are E£1 2 billion

Managing interest rate exposure

We manage our interest rate profile
independently from our debt The Board
considers the appropnate maximum level of
sensitvity of under lying earnings to movements
n mavket rates of interest over a live-year
period and the appropr ate ranges of fixed

rate debt over relevant time periods
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Our debt finance ts raised at both fixed and
variable rates Derivatives [priranily interest
rate swapsl are used to achreve the desired
interest rate prohle across proportuonally
censolidated net debt Currently 60% on
average of projected net debt s fixed over the
next five years with a decreasing piofile over
the period The use of derivatives s managed
by a Dervatives Commuttee The inlerest rate
management of joint ventures and funds s
addressed by each enuty for 1ts business

Counterparties

We monitor the credit standing of our
counterparties to minimise our risk exposur e
in respect of placing cash deposits and
derivatives Regular reviews are made of the
external credit ratings of the counterparties

Forcign currency

Our policy ts to have no material unhedged
net assels or liahitities denominated in
foreign currencies

When attractive terms are available the
Group may choose to bartow In freely available
currencies ether than sterling and will fully
hedge the foreign currency exposure




Our five guiding prineiples

Dwversify
our sources
of finance

We monitor finance markets and seek 10 access different types of finance when 1he relevant market conditions are favourable
10 inzet the needs of our business and where appropriate those of our jont ventures and funds The scale and quality of our
business enables us to access a broad range of unsecured and secured recoul se and ron recourse debt

We enjoy and encourage long term relationships with banks and debtinvestors We aimn to avoid reliance on particutar sources
of funds and borrow from a targe number of lenders from dhfferent sectors i the market and a range of geographical areas
with a total of 33 debt providers of bank facilities and private placements atone We also aim fo ensure that debt prowders
under stand our business we adopt a transparentapproach to provide suthicient disclosures so that lenders can evaluate their
expostr e within the overall context of the Group These factors increase our attractiveness to debt provides s andinthe last
five years we have arranged over £6 billion [British Land share over £5 billien) of new finance in unsecured and secured bank
toan facibities US Private Placements and convertible bonds

£6.2bn

Total debt portfotio [proportionaliy consolidated)

Phase maturity
of debt portfolio

The maturity profide of our debt 1s managed with a spread of repayment dates We monitor the various debt markels so that we
have the ability to act guickly to arrange new finance as oppoi tunities arise Maturites of different types of drawn debt are weil
spread reducing currefinancing risk in respect of irming and market conditrons As a result of our financing activity we are
comfortably ahead of our preferred refinancing date horizon of not less than two years

The current range of debt maturities 1s one to 20 years In accordance with our usual practice we expect to refinance facilities
ahead of their maturities

8.1 years

Average debt matunity [propertionally consolidated)

Maintain In addition to our drawn debt we aim always to have a good tevel of undrawn committed unsecured revolving bank facilities
Liguscity tn British Land These facilities prowide financiat liquidity reduce the need to hold resources in cash and deposits and mimimise
costs ansing from the difference between borrowing and deposu rates white reducing credit exposure
We arrange these revolving credit facilities in excess of our comnutted and expected requirements to ensure we have adequate
financing availabstity to support business requirements and oppartunities
£1.2bn
Undrawn commuited factities
Mantain Qur facilies are structured to provide valuable flexibibity for investment deal execution whether sales or purchases
flexsbitity developments ar asset management Qur bank revalving credit facilities in British Land provide full flexibility of drawing and

repayment fand cancellation sf we requirel at short notice without additional cost These are arranged with standard terms and
financial covenants and generally have iaturites aof five years Flexibility 1s maintained with our cominnation of this unsecus ed
revolving debt and secured term debt in debentures with good substitution righis where we have the ability 1o move assets n
and out of the secunty

£1.8bn

Revolving credit facilities

Mamtain strong
balance sheet
metrics

We actively manage our mitx of equnty and debt financing to achieve a balance between our abibity to generate an attractive return
far shareholders with the ti1sks of having more deb1

Qur capitat strategy 1S responsive to the need to manage our exposur e such that we aim not o exceed 8 maximum propor tionally
consolidated LTV threshotd in an economic downturn if market yrelds rise to previous peak levels

32 A- 30

LTV [proporticnally consolidated]  Creditrating Interest cover [praportionalty
ronsokicated)
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Strategic Report

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Group borrowings

Unsecured hinancing for the Group 1s raised
through bilater al and syndicated unsecured

i evolving bank facilities wath initiat ter s of
five year s [often extendable] US Private
Placements with maturities up to 2027 and the
convertible bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020

Secured debtis pravided by debentures with
longer maturities up to 2035 at fixed rates of
interest and a bank term loan

Unsecured borrowings
The same financial covenants apply across
each of the Group s unsecured facilites These
covenants which have bean consistently agreed
with all unsecured lenders since 2003 are
- net Borrowings nat to exceed 175%

of Adjusted Capital ang Reserves and
- net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed

70% of Unencumbered Assels

Covenant ratio

No income/interest cover ratios apply to these
facihties and there are ne other unsecured
debt financial covenants in the Group

The Unencumbered Assets of the Group naot
subject to any secunity stood at £4 5 hillion
as at 31 March 2016

Although secured assets are excluded trom
Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
calrulations unsecured lenders benefl from
the surplus value of these assets abave the
related debt and the fr ee cash fiow from them
During the year ended 31 March 2016 these
assets generated £63 mitlion of surplus cash
after payment of interest {n addiion while
investiments i joint ventures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assels our share of prafits
generated by these ventures are reqularly
passed up to the Group

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse to Briish Land 1s
provided by debentures at fixed interest rates
with tong maturities and no amartisation
These are secured against a single combined
pool of assets with common covenants the
value of those assets s required to cover the
amount of these debentures by a minimum of
15 times and net rental income must cover the
interest at least once We use our rights under
the debenlui es lo withdraw, substitute o1 add
proper ties lor cash collateral] in the security
pool n order lo manage these cover ratios
effectively and deal with any asset sales

Secured debl without recourse 10 British Land

comprises the following each of whichis

secured on a speafic portiolio of properties

- a fixed rate debenture of £30 millions for BLD
Property Holdings Ltd to 2020 and

- a bank loan of £295 miltion for TBL Preperties
Limited land ns subsidiaries) to 2019

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debt for our jomt ventures and
funds has been arranged through long dated
securiisations or bank debt according to the
requirements of the business of each venture

Her cules Unit Trust has terin loan faalities
maturing in 2019 and 2020 arranged for

Is business and secured onits property
portfolios without recourse to Brittsh Land
These loans include value and income
based covenants

2012 2013 2014 2013 2016
At 31 March % % % % %
Net borrowings to adjusted capital and reserves' 44 31 40 38 34
Nel unsecured bor rowings to unencumbered assets’ 34 23 31 28 29

Hignest guring the year to 31 March 2016
' 42% and
? 33%
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The secunitisations of Broadgate [£1 667 miltion)
Meadowhall {£696 mithon] and the Sainsbury s
Superstores portfolio [€463 muthon] have
weighted average maturities of 12 1 years

10 4years and 6 Syears respectivety The only
financial covenant applicable 15 1o meet interest
and scheduled amortisatron [equivatent to

1 umes cover] there are ng LTV covenants
These securiusations provide for quarterly
principat t epayments with the batance
outstanding reducing to approximately

20% to 30% of the original amount raised

by expected final maturity thus mitigating
refinancing risk

Other debt arrangements with banks include
LTV ratio covenants with maximur levels
ranging from 40% to 63% and most have
rental Income to interest or debt service
cover reguirements

There ts no obligation on Brinsh Land to
remedy any breach of these covenants and
any remedy needed would be conside: ed by
the par hies on a case-by-case basis




MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING QUR STRATEGY

Risk management is integral to our
strategy of delivering long term
sustainable returns

For British Land effective risk managernent 1s
a cornerstone of our strategy and fundamental
to the achievernent of ous strategic objectives

in delivery of long term sustamable returns We
focus on the management of the pringipal risks
facing our business including those risks that
could threaten the Group s solvency and liquidity
aswell as dentifying emerging risks whilst at
the same ime making the most of our
opportunitres

Our Rish Management Framew ork
Ourintegrated approach cembines a top-down
strategic view with 3 complementary bottom-
up operational process autlined s the diagram
an page 58

The Board takes overall responsihility for

risk management with a particular focus on
determining the nature and extent of principal
risks i 1s willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives This s set in the context of the
external environment in which we operate - this
15 our risk appetite The Audit Committee takes
responsibility for overseeing the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control
systerns [as outlined on page 81 on behalf of
the Board and also advises the Board on the
principal nsks facing the Group including those
that woutd threaten tts salvency or liguidity

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the
Risk Committee

The Executive Directors are responsible
for delivering the Company s strategy and
managng nsk The Risk Commuttee lwhich
15 Chaired by the Chief Finanuial Officer
and consists of alt Executive Directors] i1s
responsible for managing strategic and
operational risk in achteving the Group s
performance goals

Whilst responsibulity for oversight of 1isk
management rests with the Board the effective
day-to-day managernent of risk 1s embedded in
all areas of our business and for ms an integral
part of our core values and how we work This
bottom-up approach enstes potentral risks
are wentified at an early stage escalated as
appropriate and mitigations are putin place

to manage such risks Each business unit
maintains a cornprehenswve risk register which
is reviewed guar terly by the Risk Commuttee
with significant and emergqing risks escatated
to the Audit Commuttee for consideratton

as apprapriate

British Land Core Strengths

- High quality commer cial property
focused on regional and local multi-let
refailassets arcund the UK and London
office campuses

- Placemaking strategy of creating
Ptaces People Prefer

- Customer orientation enables us to
develop a deep understanding of the
peaple who use our places

- Strong and diverse occupier base

- High occupancy and long lease lengths
provides stable secure cash flows

- Mixed use development expertise

- Ability to source and execute
attractive investment deals

- Efficient capitat structure with good
access to capital and debt markets

- Sustainabitity credentials

Qur Risk Appetite

The Group s risk appetite 1s reviewad annually
lin the context of the core sirengths of our
business model] and approved by the Board
This evaluation guides the actions we take n
execubng our strategy The most significant
judgements affecting our risk appetite nclude
aur assessment of prospective property
returns our asset selection and investment
strategy the level of development exposure
and our knanctal leverage

We have identified a suite of Key Risk Indicators
[KRIs) to monitor our principal risks which

are reviewed quarterly by the Risk Committee
to ensure that the activities of the business
remam withun our nisk appetite and that our
risk exposure is well maiched to changes in

the business and operating environment
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The Board has considered the Group s nisk Our Risk Management Framework

appetite and 11 ts considered appr opriate 10

achieve our straiegic objectves OQur business Top-Down Bottom-Up
15 both resihent and well placed for the long Strategic nisk management Operational risk management

term Our po1tiolio 1s modern and nearly fully

let ta quality occuprers on long leases We Raview externat enaronment /\
have mawntamned our capital discipline with Robust assessment of principal nks Assess etiactiveness of risk
investment and development being broadly _ BOARD/ management systems
balanced by asset disposals and reduced Set sk appetite and pararneters AUDIT COMMITTEE —
our proportionally consolidated LTV to 32% -
Development continues to remain a core part
of our business and whilst our cuerent
commitment has reduced as our 2610

programme has recently completed we are Ident fy principal risks //\

pregressing an altractive future pipeline

Report on pnincipal nsks

Determne strategic action points and unceriasnties

of development opportunities with the Direct delvery of strateg.c aclions RISKCOMMITTEES  Consider completeness of identdied risks
EXECUTIVE
flexibility 10 move forward when the time in line w:trinsk apgelite Al and adequacy nfimlgaung agtions

15 right Moritor key risk indicaters Consider aggregation of risk exposures

\/// across the business

Report current and emerging risks

Execute strategic actions
- BUSINESS UNITS

Repecrt on key risk indicators ldentify evatuate and mitigate aperational

nsks recorded i nisk register

Assessment of Prospects The assumptions under pinning these forecast - Downturn in economig outlook Key
The Group s annusl corporate planning cash flows and covenant compliance forecasts assumptions including occupancy veid
process mncludes the completion of 2 were sensitised 1o explore the resiience of the periods rental growth and yields were
strategic review reassessing the Groupsnisk  Group to the potentat impact of the Group s sensttised to rellect reasonably likely levels
appebte and updating the Group s forecasts sigiuficant risks or a combination of those risks associated with an economic downturn
- r vallabibity of finance Based

The Group s strategy provides the focus The principal risks table which fottows on Restricted availabitity -

on the Group s current commitments and
for our annual prionites and 1s formally pages 60to 63 summartses those matlers

avaitable facilities there 1s no requireinent
reviewed annually This process s led that could prevent the Group from delwering

to tefinance for four years Inthe normat
by the Chief Executive through the on its strategy A number of these principal

course of business financing 1s arranged in
Executive Comimittee and includes the risks because of their nature or potential

advance of expected 1 equirements and the
active engagement of the Board Part of impact could alse threaten the Group s ability

Directors have reasonabte confidence that
the Board s role 1s 1o consider whether 10 continue in husiness in 1ts current formif

additional or replacement debt facilstres
the str alegy takes appropriate account of they were 1o occur

the Group s principal risks The latest updates will be putin place

to the sirateqic plan and Group risk appetite  The Directors paid par ticular attention Lo the
were appr oved by the Board i March 2016 risk of a deteroration in economic outlook which
would smpact property fundamenials, including

Viabihty Statement
Having considered the forecast cash Hows
and covenant compliance and the impact of

The strategy and risk appetite diive the investor and occupier demand which would have

the sensitivities in combination the Directors
Group s forecasts These cover a fve year anegative impacton valuations and give rse confn e that they have a reasonabie
period and consist of 3 base case forecast to 3 reduction in the availabity of finance expectation thalylh; Groun will be able 10
which includes commutted transactions The remarning principal nisks whilst having an P P

. continue in operation and meet 1ts Liabtlities

only and a forecast which also includes impact en the Group s business model are not

as they fall due over the pered ending
non-commitied transactions the Board considered by the Directors to have a reasonable

31 March 2021
expects the Group 1o make i {ine with liketthood of Impacting the Group s viabitity over
the Group s strategy the five year period to 31 March 2021 Gomg Concern
Assessment of Viability The sensrtivities perfor med were designed 1o The D ectors also t.0[15|dered tappiopriale

- to prepare the financial staternents on the

The period over which the Directors consider  be severe but ptausible and to 1ake full account oinG concern basis, as explamned in the
it feasible and appropriate to report on the of the availabtlity of mitrgating actions that going : P

Governance Review
Group s viability 1s the five year period 1o could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact
3t March 2021 This period has been sefected  or occurrence of the underlying risks To read more information on gaing
because 1t 1s the perod that s used for the concern goto page 7/

Group s medium term business plans ard
individualt asset performance ferecasts
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Risk Foeus in the Year

The Board has undertaken a robust assessment
of the principal 11sks facing British Land and
our principal risks have evolved as a result

of the uncertainiy as to the outcomne of the
pending referendum on the UK s membership
of the EU increased geopolitical instabihity and
cyber security External factors such as the
Macro-economic environment continue o
dominate the risk landscape Whilst we cannot
control the external environment we continue
to actively monitor leading indicators on the
econamic and property cycle

Our risk assessment

Principal Risks Key Strategic  Change in

Priorities affected year

External nisks
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We contrnue to drive impr ovements wn our risk
management process and the quality of risk
mformation generated whilst at the same tume
mdintaining & practical approach During the
year we iniroduced an enhanced Informatian
Security Policy with the aim of providing greater
protection of Brtish Land s electronic data by
mandating increasingly secure processes
appropniate conts ols and oper ations and
promoting awareness of cyber security We
have also reviewed and refreshed our Ani-
Bribery and Corruption policies and controts

The principal risks facing Bitish Land are
summarised across the following pages
including an assessment of polential impact
and likelihood together with how they relate
to our sirateqic priorties

N
Impact
Note The above illustrates princepal risks wh ch by their nature are those which have the potential
to signuficantly impact the Group s strategic objectives krancial position or reputation
Key
Strategic prionties Change year-on-year
a8
@ Cuslomer KD Unchanged
COrientation
= Right Places @ Increased
&b
@ Capal @ Reduced
Efficiency
&8s Expert Pegple
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Extcernal Risks

Risks and
impacts

How we momtor
and manage the nsk

Change m the perrod

Economic
outloock

The economic climate and
projections for interestrates
present rsks and opportunities in
property and financing markets and
the businesses of our occupiers

The Risk Commuttee reviews the economic
envirgnmeni inwhich we operate quarterly to
assess whether any changes to the economic
outlook Justily a re- assessment of the strategy
ar risk appetite of the business

Indicators such as forecast GDP growth
empioyment rales busmess and consumer
confidence rnlerest rates and inflation/deflation
areconsidered as well as central bank gudance
and government policy updates

We forus an prime assets and sectors which
we believe will deliver outpei lormance over
the medium term benefiting from continuing
occupler dernand and investar appetite

The UK economy has remained robust
however there 1s continued economic
and polibcat uncertainty and cancerns
over the lorthcorming EU referendum
Uncertainty remains over when interest
rates will rise albeit consensus has
pushed back therr expeciations for
Interest rate rises and expects the
increase witl not be steep

Political
outlook

Sigmficant political events
(including the pending EU
referendum) and policies bring
risks both in terms of uncertainty
until the outcome 1s known and the
wmpact of policies introduced
principally in two areas

- reluctance of investors and
husinesses to make investment
decisions whilst the culcome
remains uncertain and

- on deter mination of the outcome
the impact en the case for
investment inthe UK and on
specific policies and regulation
intreduced particularly those
which directly impact reai estate

Whilst we are not able to mfluence the outcome
of sigruficant politicat events we do take the
uncer tatnty related to such events and the range
of possible ouicomes into account when making
strategic mvesiment and iinanung decisions

We engage public alfairs consultants to ensure that
we are properly briefed on the potential pelicy and
regulator y unplications of polilical events Where
appropnale we actwith other indusiry participants
1o influence the debate on these policies

@ Uncertainty remains as to the ouicome

of the pending referendum onthe UK s
membership of the £U We maintain
support for remaining in the EU

There is uncertainly over the new
Mayor of Lendon s approach to planning
and housing

The geopolitical environrnent remains
unstable with immigration issues
resulting from the ongomg unrest iy
the Middle East puthing pressure on
state resources in Eurape

Commercial
property
investor
demand

Reduction in investor demand for

UK real estate may resultn fallsin

asset valuations and could anse

from vanationsin

- the health of the UX economy

- the atiractiveness of imvestment
nthe UK

- availability of finance

- relatve attractiveness of other
asset classes

The Risk Committee reviews the property market
quar terly to assess whether any changesto the
market outlook present risks and opportunitios
which should be reflected n the execution of our

sirategy The Committee consrders indicators such
as margin between property yields and borrowing
costs and property capitat growth farecasts which
are considered alongside the Cornmitiee mernbers

knowledge and experience of market actvity and
trends

We focus on prime assets and sectors which we
believe will deliver oulpertormance averthe
medium term benefiting from continuing occupier
demand and investor appetite

Strong relationships with agents and direct
nvestors actve In the market

@ There has centinued 1o be a lugh level
of investor demand for UK commercial
ptoperty bath fromdomeshc and
international mvestor s during the year

However since the turn of the year
there has been a siowdownin
transactons 1n part due to heightened
global uncertainty and investors
concerns over the pending EU
referendurn The market lor the most
attractive assets remaimed highly iquid
however investors are becorning
increasingly discerming with some
softening in demand for more secondary
assets particularly in retail

Development
cost inflation

Costinflation presents arisk to the
profitability of our development
projects and has the potential to
adversely affect our cash position
and overall return oninvestment

For each project we make a judgement about
appor ionment of construction risk Where we
retain this 1isk we aimto 11 costs eatly inthe
process subject to other market factors with key
contr actors subject 1o financial covenant review

We factor in construction cost inilanen for our
projects as part of the investment appraisal

proress to assess the viability of each development

We are working with our supply cham onimtatives
to address skills shortages and to understand how
resource constraints could impact development
costs inthe long term

There are signs that constiuction cost
inflatron 1s moderating reflecting lower
taw material costs However tender
prices still ceflect the limited capacity
in the industry with contractors seeking
to rebuild margins and limit then nisk
exposure We factor cost inflation into
our development appraisals and for
our projects under construction
substantially all our costs are fixed
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Rishs and

How we momtor Change m the perod

unpacts and marnage the nsk .
Occupier Underlying income, rental growth - The Risk Cornimuttee reviews indicators of cccupler @ The Landon accugational market has
demand and and capital pertormance could be demand quarterly including consumer confidence remained strong through the period with
tenantdefault adversely affected by weakening surveys, employment and ERV growth forecasts healthy take-up and record low vacancy
occupter demand and occupler alongside the Commitiee rnembers knowledge rates occupiers are increasingly
failures resutting from variations and experience of occupier ptans trading thinking about requirements several .
inthe health of the UK economy performance and leasing actnaty in guiding years madvance The market has
and corresponding weakening executlion of our strategy however slowed since the turn of the
of consumer conhidence, - We have a dwersified occupier base and monitar year as occupiers delay decisions untit
business activity and investment concentrasion of exposur e to individual occupiers after the pending EU referendum
Changing consumer and business orseclors We perform ngorous occupler Looking forward the development
practices [including the growth covenant checks on an ongosng basis so that pipeline ndicates that ofitce supply will
of internet retailing {lexible we can be proactive In ranaging exposure ta remain constrained in the near term
working practices and dermand weaker oceupiers and potentially longer 1f proposed
forenergy elﬂlt:lenl b“‘l‘lhngsl' - Ongoing engagement wath our accuplers Through developments continue ta be delayed
new technologies new legislation
and altrate ocations may Fogehar wih o oceupers 0 i ways 1o bost Inrelai the occupational rmar ket
result n earter than anticipated meet their evalving requirements rernains robust with ncreasing
obsolescence of our buitdings if requirernents from new entrants and
evolving cecuprer and regulatory - Qur sustainabtlity str ategy links action on eccupier for new stoze formats particutarly at
requirements are nol met health and wellbelng eHlmency comrnunltyand the most attractive locations Retailers
sustainable design to our business strategy Our are continuing to focus their portiotios
social and envirenmental 1argets help us cornply on fewer better storeswhich susts then
with new tegislation and respond to custemer amni-channel strategies Challenges to
demands forexample we expect all office retailer protitability include the living
developrnents to be BREEAM Excelient wage business rates revaluation and
the increasing cost of omni-channel
platforms including drstribution
Availabiity and  Reduced availabilty of property - Market borrewing rates and real estate credit There continues to be good overall

cost of finance

finance may adversely impact
abibity to refinance debt and drive
up cost This may also resultin
weaker investor demand for

real estate

- Increasing finance costs would
reduce Underlying Profrs

market appetite for 1 eal estate finance
depending on quality of the berrower
project and specific tender
requirernents Overall while there |
has been market volatility financing
costs remained relatively tow However
macr o-econeinic uncertainties could
adversely impact future liguidity

and pricing

availability and actity are rronitored by the Risk
Committee quat terly and reviewed regularly in
order to guide our hinancing acliens in executing
our strategy

~ We maintain good relationships with our key
financing partners and advisors

- We maintain 2 diverse range of sources of finance
to provide access o funding as required We aim
always 1o have a good levet of undrawn commitled
unsecured revalving facilities to ensure we have ,
adequate financing availability to support business
requirements and gpportunities

- We work with industry bodies and other retevant
organisations o participate in any debate of
emerging banking requlations whese our interests
are aftected

Catastrophic
business event

An external event such as a civil
emergency including 2 large-scale
terrorist attack, cyber crime,
extreme weather occurrence or
environmental disaster could
severely disrupt global markets
(including propesty and finance}
and cause significant damage

and disruption to British Land’s
portfolio and operations

The Home Office threat tevel from
international terronsm remains
severe (urbusiness continuily plans
and asset emergency procedures have
been reviewed and enhanced where
appropriale

We maintain a comprehensive crisis response plan
across alt business units as well as a head office
business continusty plan

- The Risk Cormmuttee monitors the Home Office
terrorssm threat levels and we have accessto
secur ity thi eat mformatton services

- Asset emergency procedures are regularly
reviewed and scenario tested Physical security
measures are In place at properties and
devetopment sites

- Asset risk assessments are carnedout (e g
security flood environmental health and safety

~ Our cyber securty systems are backed up by
incident managermen: disaster recovery and
business continuily plans all of which are regularly
reviewed to be able 1o respond to changes in the
Lthreat iandscape and orgarnisational equirements

- We also have appropnate insurance in place across
the portfolio

During the year we it oduced an
enhanced Information Securnity Policy
wath the airn of providing greater
protection of BriishLand s etectionic
data by mandating increasingly secure
pracesses appropriate controls and
operations and promoling awareness
of cyber security

KEY

Change from last year

@ Risk exposure has increased @ No significant change i risk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced

Qur principal Key Risk Indicators are highlghted wathin How we moniter and manage the risk.
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Strategic Report

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal Risks

Risks and How we monitor Change in the perod

mpacts and manage the nsk

Investment fn order to meet our strategic Curirvestrant strategy s deterrmined to be We are focusing the business around
Strategy objectives we mustinvestin and consistent with gur larget nsk appetite and 15 based long term trends and continue 1o see

Responsible

exit fromthe right properties
at the nght time Significant

the benefits of the investments we
made 1n recent years In line with our
prionties set out last year we have

on the evaluation ol {he external environment

- Progress against the strategy and continuing

execulives underperformance coutd
Chris Grigg result from inappropriate 21'922‘;9&“ “:'Eh Snur rt'fk apﬁ;m?' 1 d1scussehd focused our snvestment on London
Charles Maudsley determination and execution each Risk Lommitiee with reterence (o the and the South East and investing
Tim Roberts of our property investment property markets and the external economic around Lransport infrasiructure
strategy, including envirenment we ve achieved some key development
- sector selection and weighting - Indwvidual investment decisions ar e subyject to milestones and ase also getting closer
robusk risk evatuation overseen by our livestineni to our customers InRetall we made
- timing of investment and Commitiee lncludmg consideration of returns €420 mutlion ot d[sposals as we Increase
dvestment decisions, relatve to risk adjusted hurdle rates our facus on the multi-iet portiolio
- exposure to developments - Review of prospective performance of individual where we can put our placemaking
- seclor assel lenant region assets and their business plans skills to work to drve rental growth
concentration -~ We foster collaborative refationships with our Qur investment strategy
- co-Investment arrangements co-Investors and enterinto ownership agreements outlined on pages 24 {0 25
which balance the nterests of the parties
Development  pevelopment providesan We maintain our levels of total and speculative Development 1s an important part
exposure opportunity for outperformance development exposure as a proportion of the of our business and a key driver of

Responsible
executives

Chris Grigg
Charles Maudsley
Tim Rokerts

but this brings with it elevated risk
The care with which we make our
decisions around which schemes
to develop when, as well as our
execution of these projects,

must reflect this

fevelopment risks could adversely
impact underlying income and
capital performance including

- development letting expasure
- construction timing and costs
- major contractor faillure

- adver se planning judgements

returns We have assembled an
attractive pipelng of development
oppor tunities which gives us growth
into the future and where we are able
to make tmely decisions to reflect
changes i market conditions These
include exciing opporiunties across
ourthree existing London campuses
the potential to create a new London
camnpus at Canada Water alongside

investment portfolio value within a target range
taking inte account assocated nisks and the impact
on key financial metrics Thisis monitored quarterly
by the Risk Comrmittee along with progress of
develepments against plan

-~ Prior to commuiting {¢ a development the Group
undertakes adetailed appraisal overseen by our
Investment Committee including consideration
of returns relative 1o nisk adjusted hurdle rates

- Pre-let targets are used to reduce development significant investment apportunities
{etting risk where considered appropriate 0 our existing Retail assets

- We actrvely engage with the commumities in which For more on our developmen[
we operate as detaled in our Locat Charter to pragramme see pages 37 to 39
ensure thal our development activities consider
the interests of all stakeholders

- We manage environmental and social risks acr oss
our development supply chamn by engaging with cur
suppliers including through our Sustamability Brief
{or Developments and Health and Safety Policy

People

Responsible
executive
Chns Grigy

A number of critical business
processes and decisions lie
in the hands of a few peaple

Faiture to recruit develop and
retain stalf and Director s with

the right skills and experience
rnay result in signsfscant
underperformance or impact the
effectiveness of operations and
decisien rnaking in turnimpacting
business performance

Our HR strategy 1s designed to minimuse nisk thraugh Having expert pecple 1s one of the four
- informed and skiled recruitment processes core fecus areas of our business model

salem erd L and We pravide a strong corporate cutture
- talent performance management and succession committed to our people a great
planning for key toles

working enviconment compelitive
- hughly cormpetitive compensation and benefits beneiits and career development
- people development and traiming opportunities We empower our people
to make the most of then potential with
us Our hugh level of staff engagement
was recognisad by maintaining a One

Star rating in the Sunday Times Best

We monitor this through the number of unplanned Companies to Work For survey
executive departures in addition to conducting exit For more on our expert peaple
nterviews see page 23

We engage with 6ur outsourced suppliers to make

clear our reguirenents 1n managing key risks

including health and safety fraud and bribery and

other sociat and enwvitonmental 11sks as detailed

n our Supply Chain Charter

The nisk 1s measured through employee engagement
surveys employee turnaver and retention metrics
and regular peopte review aclivities
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Risks and

Hown we monitor Change in the period

impacts and manage the rish

Capital We maintain a capital struciure - We manage our rix of equity and debt Balance sheet metrrcs in the year
Structure which recogmises the balance hinancing to achieve the right batance between remaed sirong We have maintained
- leverage between performance, risk enhancing returns for shareholders and the our capital discipline with invesiment

Responsible
executive
l.ucinda Bell

and flexibility

- Leverage magnifies refurns
both positive and negative

- Anincrease i leverage mereases
the risk ol a breach of covenants
on borrawing faciies and may
increase finance costs

and development being broadty
balanced by asset disposals and
reduced our propor tionally consolidated
LTV 10 32% 10 line with our strategy to
not increase [everage solely on the basis
of animprovement in market yields

rick of higher teverage
- We monitor our LTV to ranage leverage levels
over the property cycle and seek io ensur e that
LTV should not exceed a maximum threshold if
market yields were to rise to previous peak levels
This means we will not increase our LTV f asset
values increase only as a result of market @ For more on our finanual
yietd improverment policies see pages 54 to 54
- We manage our invesiment activity the size
and tirming of which can be uneven aswellas
our development commitments to ensure that
our LTV level remains appropriate

- We leverage aur equity and achieve benetits of
scale while spreading risk through jeint ventures
and funds whech are typically partly inanced with
debt without recourse to British Land

Finance
strategy
execution

Responsible

Our strategy addresses risks both
to continuing solvency and the
stability of our profits

Failure to manage the refinancing
requirement may result n a

We continue to athieve attractive
financings which improve earnings
and hquidity We have completed over
£1 billton of financing activity during
the year inctuding a zero coupon £ 350
mitlion senior unsecured convertible

We have five key principles guiding our financing
which tegether are employed to manage the risks
mthis area dversify our sources of finance phase
raturity of debt portiolio masmtain iquidity matntain
flexhility, and maintain strong halance sheet metrics
See page 55 for further details

executive shortage of funds 10 sustain
bond due 2020 winch provides {urthe
Lucinda Bell the operations of the business - We monitor the period until refinancing 1s dwersz;:canon of c:'ursporurces of r
or repay facilities as they fall due required which 1s a key determinant of financing tinance and sncludes floxible
This and a breach of inancol actvity a;r;d reg:larly evaluate the likelihood of settlernent options Based on current
covenant limits are considered to covenani breac cemritrment s and our current available
be stgnificant risks to the continuing ~ We are corninitted to maintaining and enhancing facilities the Group has no requirernent
operatien of Brivsh Land as a retationships with our key financing partners to relinance for Jour years
going concern - We are mindful of relevant emer ging regutation . For rmore on our financial policies
which has the potential to impact the way that
see pages 4 o 56
we finance the Group
Income We must be mindfulof mamntaiming - We undertake comprehensive profit and cash @ The guality of our portfolio and
sustainability  sustainable income streamsin flow forecasting mcorporating scenario analysis envirgnments enables us 1o attract

Responsible

arder to continue to generate
returns for our shareholders

to rodel the impact of proposed transactions
- Pro-actwe asset management approach lo

some of the sirongest occuplers to
our praperties this togetherwith cur

executives and provide the platform from maintain strong occupier ine-up We monitar high occupancy levels and long lease
tLucinda Bell which to grow the business our market letting expasure ncluding vacencies lengths provides security of income
Charles Maudsley through development and upcorning expit les and breaks and tenants m We are increasing the diversity of our
Tim Roberts capitat appreciation administration as well as our weighted average eccupier mix and no single occupser
We consider sustamabiliy lease length accounts f?'" S"?re than 5 7% of I X
of Qur (ncome streams in _ revenues In delivering our investmen
l ; 1 2 1 We have aldwer;jlhed occu;:ler l:jasg anld maonior strategy we are mindfut of the impact
- exectttion of investmen concentration of exposure to indwidual eccuprers on our ncome security
strategy and capital recycling or sectors
notably tirning of reinvestment - We are proactive in addressing key lease breaks
of sate proceeds and expiries to minimuse pertods of vacancy
- nalure and structure - We actively engage with the commurlies in
ofleasing actmity which we operate asdetaited in our Local Charier
- nature and timing of to ensure we provide buildings that meet the needs
asset management and of all retevant stakeholders
development acivity
KEY

Change from lastyear

@ Risk exposure has increased @ No signihicant change in sk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced

Cur principat Key Risk Indicators are mghlighted wathin Howwe manitar and manage the risk
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Governanee and remuaneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy
and leads British Land to

achieve long term success

Ind

66

Chns Grigg
Chief Executive

Appainted in January 2009

f.ord Turnbull
Senior Independent Director

Appointed Non-Executive Director
in April 2006 became Senior
ependent Director in January 2013

Lyvnn Gladden
Non-Executive Director

Appainted in March 2015

Charles Maudslev
Head of Retail and Leisure

Appointed in February 2010 ;;.4

Smmon Borrows
Non-Executive Director

William Jachson
Non-Executive Diractor

Appointed in April 2011

Appomnted in March 2011 @
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Tim Score
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2014

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed i March 2011 became
Chief Financiat Officer in May 2011

Aubves Adams
Non-Executive Director

Appointed n September 2008

Tim Roberts
Head of Gffices and Residential

Appointed in July 2006

Laurm Wade-Gery
Non-Executive Directoer

Appotnted in May 2015

John Gialdersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Apponted Non-Executive Director in
Septernber 2608 and Chairman in
January 2013
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Governanee and remuneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BIOGRAPHIES

About the Board

Board composiaon

9 Board of Directors
A Ed

Men /

Wamen

& Non-Executive Chairman
@ independent Non-Executive Directors
© Executive Directors

Directors’ core areas of expertisel

Property
Finance I : Ty
Retall and consumer  wgiddiihy.

Academrc

Public sector

! Some Directors are represented in more than one category

Exccutine Dhrectors’ appoimtiments

50% 509%

Appointed internally Appe nted externally

Length of Non-Executn e Directors” tenures

Under 3years 8%
3to byears RE
Over § years
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Non-Executive Chairman

John Gildersleeve

Skills and experience John 1s deputy chairman and sentor iIndependent
director of Spire Healthcare Gioup pic and deputy chairman of TatkTatk
Telecom Group PLC John was the chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group untl December 2015 and a non-executive du ector of Pick n Pay SA
until March 2016 He was formerty chairman of New Look Retail Group
EMI Group and Ballaher Group a non-executive director of Dixons
Carphone plc Lloyds TSB Bank PLC and Vadaione Group and an
executive director of Tescoplc[B 3 1)@

Committee membership
- Nomunation [Charman)

Fxecutive Dircctors

Chns Grigg

Chief Executive

Skills and experience Chriswas chief executive of Barclays Commerciat
Bank untit November 2008 having joined the bank 1n 2005 Priorio
Barclays he was a parwner of Goldman Sachs where his career spanned
20 years

Externat appotntments

- Nan-executive director of BAE Systerns plc

- Member of the executive board of the European Public
Real Estate Association

- Member of the board of the British Property Federation

Lucinda Bell

Chief Financial Ofticer

Skills and experience 1ucinda i1s a chartered accountant with
over 20 year s of sndustry experience In 2006 she was a member
of the HM Treasury appomtted working party which designed the
implementation of the REIT regime

External appomtments
- Non-executive director of Rotork pic
- Member of the Accounting for Sustainabstity CFO Leadership Network

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure

Skills and experience Charles Jamned British Land in 2010 from LaSaite
nvestment Managernent He had previousty been with AXA Real Estate
Investment Managers for seven years

Tim Roberts
Head of Othices and Residential

Skills and experience Before joining British Land in 1997 Tinrwas
a par ther at Drivers Jonas in the Investment Agency team He was
formerly a non-executive director of Songbird Estates untit 2009

External appointments
- Trustee of the property industry chanity LandAed
and Chair of the Grants Commutiee




Non-Execunve Directors

Aubrey Adams

Skills and experience Aubrey)s group chawof L&Q the housing
assocration and residential developer He was formerly head of property
within RBS s Restruciunng Division a non-executive director of Pinnacle
Regeneration Group Limited semor Independent dis ector of Assocrated
British Ports PLC non-executive chairman of Unitech Corporate Paiks
PLC non-executive chaiman of Air Partner PLC cluef executive of
Savills PLC and non-executive chairman of Max Property Group PLC
Aubrey 1s chairman of the board of trustees of Wigmore Hait

Committee membership
- Audit

Simon Borrows

Skills and experience Simon is the chief executive of 31 Group plcand 2
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV the Dutch holding
campany for %1 s mvestment i Action the non-food discount retailer

He worked for 28 years in the banking and finance mdustry most
recently as chairman of Greenhill & Co International LLP He was also
chief executive officer of Baring Brother s International Limited the
corporate ftnance division of ING Barings and was a non-executive
director of inchcape plc untl May 2015

Committee membership
- Audit

Lynn Gladden

Skills and experience Lynnis a non-executive director of IP Group ple
She s Pratessor of Chemical Engineering at the Univer sity of Cambridge,
commmissioner of the Royal Commission for the Exhubition of 1851 and

a fellow of the Royal Society and Royal Academy of Engineering She

was formerly a member of the Councit of the Engineering and Physical
Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-wvice-chancellor
for research at the University of Cambridge until 31 December 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration

Wiham Jachson

Skills and experience Willlam 1s Managing Par tner of Bridgepomt cne
of Europe s leading private equity geoups which he has led since 2002
He also serves as chawrman of the board of Pret A Manger and prestdent
of Corna Sports SL the rights holder to the MotoGP wor ld rmatorcycling
championships He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has extensive aperational and transaction experience

Committee membership
- Remuneration
- Nomination

Laura Wade-Geny

Skills and experience Lauiaisan executive diector Mults Channet of
Marks and Spencer Group ple [M&S) Prior to joining M&S in July 2011
she had servedin a var ety of senior roles at Tesco PLC Lauwrawasa
non-executive director of Trinity Mirror ple untd 2012 Laurais a trustee
of the Royal Opera House and Aldebui gh Music

Committee membership
- Remuneration

Tim Score

Skills and expenence Tim % a nen-executive di eclor of Pear son pic
and HM Treasury He was formerly chief financial officer of ARM
Holdings PLC and hetd semior financial posiions at Rebus Group Limited
Willam Baird pie LucasVarity plc and BTR plu From 2005 to 2034

he was a non-execuive threcior of Natonal Express Group PLC

Committee membership
- Audit {Chairman}

Lord Turnbull

Senior Independent Director

Skills and experience Andrew entered the House of Lords in 2005
as a Crosshench Lfe Peer He retired as Secretary of the Cabmet and
Head of the Home Cwvil Service i July 2605 Andrew previausly held
the positrans of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and Permanent
Secretary at the Deportment of the Environment He was formerly a
non-executive director of Arup Group chairman of BH Globat Limited
and a non-executive of Prudentsat PLC [rom 2006 until May 2015 He
was a non executive directar of Frontier Econornics Lid from 2006
until November 2015

Committee membership
- Remunerauon {Chairman}
- Nomination

Companv Secretary

Flane Williams

Elaine was appointed Company Secretary and General Counsel in
Novernber 2015 She was formerly Deputy Group Company Secretary
at HSBC Holdings plcand prioe tothat a partner at Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer
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Governanee and remuneration

CHAIRMAN S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate Governance
and Remuneration sections of our

Annual Report

John Gildersleeve
Chairman

Directors’ attendance during the year ended
31 March 2016

John Gildersteeve 8/8
Chris Grigg 8/8
Lord Turnbull 8/8
Aubrey Adams 8/8
Lucinda Bell 8/8
Simon Borrows 8/8
Lynn Gladden 8/8
Willtam Jackson 7/8
Charles Maudsley 8/8
Tim Roberts 8/8
Tim Score’ 7/8
Laura Wade-Gery? 416

' Willam Jackson and Trm Score were unable to attend an unscheduled Board
meeting called on short natice and held by telephone, due to pre existing
business cormmimeanis

* { aura Wade-Gery was appointed on 13 May 2015 LauraWade-Gery was
unable to attend cne Board meeting due to a pre-existing business
comrmitment and one due taitiness
a12@
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Our robust governance structure is an integral part of the way Briush Land
designs and delivers its strategy supporting effective deciston-making
and enabling the nght people te have access to the right mformation at the
right ime As reported in the Chief Executive s review we have delivered
another strong set of results as we progress inimplementing cur strategy
of creating Places People Prefer The Board continues to make a valuable
contribution in overseeing the delivery of our strategy providing
constructive chatlenge to management and ensuring key risks

are identified and properly managed

More information on our sirategy and
progress can be found on pages 18 to 25

Briish Land has a highly effective Board as conhirmed by thisyear s
internatly conducted Board evaluation exercise renforcing the positive
results of tast year s externally facinated evaluation We have not made
any changes to the Board or Commatiee membership this year other
than the appomniment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May 2015 which we
reported on last year We are not proposing any changes to the Board
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting |AGM)

@ Read our Board iographies on pages 66 to 69

We value rontinuity and experience of Briush Land s business and are
deltghted to endarse the Namination Committee s recommendation
that Lord Turnbull be re-appainted as Semor independent Director
Lord Turnbull will step down as Chairman of the Remuneration
Commuttee following this year s Annual General Meeting although he
will remaina member of thal committee Williarm Jackson has agreed
to take on the position of Chairman of the Remuner ation Committee

The Remuneration Commeltee has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Matching Share Plan
expires this year Amendiments 1o our Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)
are proposed to deliver o simplified remuneration structure with one
long termincentive arrangement No other material changes to the
existing policy are preposed

@ The Rermuneration Reportis sel out on
pages 86 to 110




We beheve that goed governance requires open engagement with
stakeholders and have sought and responded to feedback about our
governance structures and the way our business s run We have
consulted widely, and 1aken into account invesiarviews in relation to
the proposed changes ta our LTIP and hope 10 receve your continued
support of our Remuneration Policy 1o enable us to offer compelitive
remuner ation structures 1o attract and retain the hest people i look
forward to recening your feedback on this and other matters st and
in advance of our AGM on 19 July 2016

LA

John Gildersleese
Non-Executive Chairman

Chairtnan s staiement go to pages 4 o 5

Comphance with the Code

The Board has continued to apply good gover nance practices during
the year operating in comphance with ths tJK Corporate Governance
Code fthe Code ) For ease of reference this 1s howwe demonstrate
our comphiance throughout the Governance and remuneration section
of the Annual Repo: { and Accounts 2016

@ A Leadership

v B Effectiveness

v/ C Accountability

@ D Remuneration

@ E Relations with shareholders

Eating Broadway
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Governanee and remuncration

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our governance structure ensures
that the right people have access
to the right information

Board

- Develops strategy and leads British Land
to achieve long term success

- Deterrmnes nature and extent
of sigreficant risks

- Maintains dialegue with shareholders

Comnuttees of the Board
- Report on their activities to the Board
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Management Commnuttees
- Report on their activities to the Board
and its Comrmittees as appiopriate

Risk Committee

- Manages strategrc and opergtional nisk in
achieving the Cempany s performance geals

- Recommends appropriate rsk appetite levels

- Momitars the Company s nisk exposure

- Reviews opet ation of risk management
processes

- Meels four imes a year

- Reporis to the Audd Commuttee

- Chaired by Chief Financial Officer

- Membership Executive Directors

Operations Committee

- Provides cotlaborative leadershup across
the Company, opet alionalises business skralegy
champions vision placemaking and valuas
and leads changa in the busmess

- Meets regularly throughthe year

- Membership serior ndividuals across
business functions
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Executive Comtruttes

- Considers day-10-day operationat matters
for running the business

- Reviews perforrance of the Group s assets
and development programme

- Generatly meets twice monlbly

- Reports to the Board

~ Chait ed by Chief Executive

- Membership Executive Directors and six
senior executives

Health and Safety Committee

- Reviews performance against targets and drives
forward actions in purstit of the Company s
health and safety goals

- Meets four times a year
Reports to the Risk Commitlee

- Chaired by Chuef Financiat Dfficer

- Membership staft with relevant 1esponsibilities
from across the business

- Three subcommittees Construction Managed
Porttolio and Head Oifice {stalf commitieel
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Matters resen ed for Board approval

- Transactions and financing arrangements over £100 million

- Issue of secuntes

- Employee share and option schemes

- Documnents for disinbution to shareholders and the Annual Report
and Accounts

- Divdends

- Establishing authonty levels below those of the Board
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Remuneration Committee
- Sets remuneration of the Chairman
Chuef Executive, Executive Direclors
and Company Secretary
Remuneration report see pages B4 te 110
investment Commuttee
- Reviews approves of recommends
capial lransactions
Recommends major transactions
for Board approval
- Meets as required
Chaired by Chief E xecuive
- Membership Executive Directors
investment sticking to aur strategy
see page 77
Chanty and Community Committee Sustamability Commuittee
- Approves all spend under the charity - Custodian for sustamabikity strategy
and communty budget - Reparts to the Board
- Reports to the Executive Cormmitiee - Chaired by Chief Financial Officer
- Charred by a Semar Retail Asset Manager - Membership executives with delined areas

of responsibtlity
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Governance and remunertion

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our robust governance structure is an
integral part of the way we design and

deliver our strategy

The Board has continued to apply geod gover nance practices during

the year and considers that the Company has fully complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Code [the Code] This section of the Annuat Report
and Accounts 2016 outlines how we have applied the Code s principles
and prowvisions throughout the year We are reporiing against the Code
which applies to companies with repor ting periods beginmng on or aller

1 October 2014 A copy of the Cade 15 avartable al www fre org uk

Leadership

The Board s cor e respons:bilities include setiing British Land s st ategic
anns and leading the Company as it works to achieve these aims and
attain long term success The Board focuses on strategy throughout

the year and the annual Sirategy Days provide a key oppertunity to
dothus as explained in the box to the right Progress agamst and the
appropriateness of the agreed strategy are considered at Board
meetings during the year m light of Company performance and
changes to the external environment

There s a writien division of responsibilites between the Chairman
fresponsible for running the Board} and the Chiel Executive [respansible
for running the Company s busmess} which has been approved by the
Board A2 1@

The Executive Diectors led by the Chief Executive are respensible

for ensuring that the business 1s run in accordance with the Beard s
strategy The retatively small number of employees at British Land
means lhat the Executive Directors are involved in or aware of all major
activities of the Group - hence they are extremely well placed to ensure
that actions are atigned with the Board s strategy Thus s exemplified by
the process by which investment oppor lunities are appraised More
informatron on the involvement of the Executive Directors in the
mvestment process can be found on page 77

The Boar d sets the parameters and contrals within which the Company s
management may operate when undertaking the day-lo-day running of
the business These controls ensure that dectsions are taken by people
with the correct authority {o do so

The major decisions reserved for Boar d approval and other decisions
delegated to the Executive Dinectors are formatly documented (A 111@
The Executive Directors make decisions within these predefined
parameters Decisions that would noi matly fall within these parameters
may sull be taken to the {ull Board for approval wher e such decisions
relate to activilies outside the ordinary course of business or wheire

the Executive Directors consider tt appropriate to do so Management
Committees deal with their specific areas of responsibibity before making
deaisions [where they have authonity 1o do sol or recommending actions
for Board-tevel approval of this 1s required A key consideration when
making each decision s on whether the proposed action s aligned with
the strategy the Board has developed
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The Chairman meets with individual Directors outside formal Board
meetings as partof each Director s cantining contribution to the
delivery of the Company s strategy This process also allows for open
two-way discussion about the effectiveness of the Board tts Committees
and indwidual Directors, both Executive and Non-Executive By these
means the Chairman 1s conlinually informed of the views of indiidual
Dhrectors and can act as necessary lo deal with any issues relating to
Board efiectiveness before they becormne a risk to the Company

The Strategy Davs
The annual Strategy Bays held m February are attended by the full
Board and the Executive Committee

The Executive Director s senior executives and externat guests deliver
a number of preseniations to the Board prowiding an in-depth analysis
on all aspects of the business and the external environment The
Strategy Days are a key opporturity to discuss challenge and develop
the Company s slralegy

As well as cansidening the Group as a whole and the overall corporate
strategy consideration 1s given to each par tof the Group s current and
prospective portfolio and to Group financing

The days are carefully structured 10 achieve a halance beiween
presentations and ime for debate and discussion

Areas focused on at the 2016 Strategy Days included
- Corporate Strategy

- Feedback from Investor Perception Audit

- Office Strategy

- Retail Strategy

- Canada Water

Cultuz¢ and composition of the Board

The composition of the Board s a fundamental driver of its success as

it provides strong and effective leadership the breadth of knowledge

skills and expertence of our Non-Executive Directors s detailed in their
biggraphies on pages 68 and 6% The Nermination Committee 1s responsible
for reviewing the composition of the Board and Board-level Committees
and assessing whether the batance of skills expertence knowledge and
independence I1s eppropriate to enable them to operate effectively {B 2 2) @

The procedure for the appaintment of new Directors 1s rigorous and
transparent Other than the appointment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May
2015 no changes to the composttion of the Board occurred during the year




Non-Executive [irectors are appointed for specified terms and all
Directors offer themseives for election or 1e-election by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting [AGM)] each year i the Board on the
recommendation of the Normination Comruttee deemsit appropriate
that they remamn in offriece (B 71 @

Lord Turnbull has been a Non-Executive Director since April 2006

He has now compteted ten yearsin office Whilst taking into account the
need to pragressively refresh its members through new appointments
the Board recognises the impor tance of conunuity and the value

that Directors whao serve for many years are able to bring When a
Non-Executive Director s tenure goes further than nine years their
independence s carefully reviewed and monitored The Nomination
Comamittee has agawn ngerousty reviewed Lord Turnbull s contribution
and independence over the years and recommended to the Board that
tt ts appropriate for hum to remain in office and the Board is satished
that he remains ndependent (B 2 3} @

We continue to have a strong mix of experienced indivduals on the Board
wilh the majos ity being Non-Executive Directors who are independent
and can offer an external perspeciive on the business and constr uctively
challenge the Executive Directors particularly when developing the
Company s sirategy (B 1 11@1(8 1 21@ The Non-Executive Birectors
scrutinise the performance of management 1n meeting ther agreed
goals and objectives and monitor the reporung of performonce They
sabisfy themselves of the integnity of financial information and that
mnternal controls and systems of risk ranagement are effective

The Boai d culture 1s one of openness ard constructive debate the
Directors voice their opiniens 1n a relaxed and respectful environment
allowing coherent discusston The Chairman 1s responsible for mantaring
this culture He does so by ensuring information of an appropriate guatty
1s provided i a imely manner before Board meetings the cpportunity to
properly consider such information in advance leads to focused discussion
in the boardroorn When running Board imeetings the Chairman maintains
a collaborative atrnosphere and ensures that ali Directors contribute

ta debates The Chawrman arranges informal meetings and events
throughout the year to help build construcive relationships between

the Board members

The high calibre of debate and the partcipation of ali Directors Executive
and Mon-Executive allow the Board to utilise the experignce and skills
of the tndividual Directors to thewr maximum potential and make
weli-considered decisions that are in the best interest of the Cempany

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams Stmon Borrows Lynn Gladden
William Jackson Tun Score Losd Turnbult and Laura Wade-Gery are
independent In making thts detei mination the Board has considered
whethes each Director s ndependent in character and judgement and
whether there are relabienships or circumstances which are hikely to
affect or could appear to affect the Diwector s judgement [B 1 11@

The Board betieves that the Non-Executive Directors biographies
demonstrate that they are of the stature and experience required to
praperly performn their roles as independent Nan-Executive Directors
Following this year s Board evaluation the Board believes each Non-
Executive Director standing for re-election at the next AGM contimues to
effectively fulfit and remains commusted to thew role wathin Briish Land
The terms and canditions of appaintiment of Nan-Executive Directors are
available for nspection at the Company s registered office and at the AGM
(B3219

Eftectiveness

Regular Board and Commutiee meetings are scheduled throughout

the year and the Directors ensure that they aliocate sufficient tme (o
dischar ge their duties effectively Occasionally Board meetings may be
held at short notice when Board-level decisions of a ime-critical nature
need to he made Non-Executive Orectors letter s of appaintment set out
the time commitments expected and each Director s aitendance record
fshown on page 70] 1s considered when assessing whether they should
stand for reappointment by sharcholders

The Chairman considers that all the Du ectors continue to devate
sufficient tme 1o dischar ging thew duties to the requi ed high standard
Britssh Land s policy 1s to altow Executive Directors to take one non-
executive dit ectorship at another FTSE company subject to British Land
Board appraval External appointments of the Directors are disclosed in
their hographies and fees earned by Executive Directors are disclosed
on page 101 o the Remuneration Report [D121@

The Directors are required to notify the Company of any potential
conflicts of tnterest that may affect them in their roles as Duectors of
Brish Land All potential conflicts of interest are recorded and reviewed
by the full Board at least annually

The Non-Executive Director s are kept well informed ol the key
developments in the bustness by bath the Executive Directors and other
senior executives through 1 eqular reporis and presentations Reperts
include a Manageiment Repert delivered by the Chief Executive at each
Board meeting and updates on the activities of the Risk and Sustamability
Commitiees

Throughout the year presentations and reports on specfic aspects of
the business and individual assets are also delivered along with updates
on ihe reguiatory and external envi onment

Care |5 taken to ensure thal tnformation 1s arcutated in good tme

before Board and Commuttee meetings whenever possible and ihat
reports are presented clearly and constamn the appropriate level of detail
to enable the Board to trscharge s duties 1tis the Company Secretary s
role to facthitate effective information flows between the Board and

its Commuttees and between semor management and Non-Executive
Directors The Company Secretary is responsible far adwising the

Board on governance malters through the Charman(B 5 2@

fhe Non-Executive Director s are therefore able to monitor the
management of the business and the implementation of the strategic
aims effectively and are able 10 assess the suitability of the current
strategy and the performance of the Chairman and Executive Direclors
B51E

Board evaluation

The eflectiveness of the Board and its Commuttees 15 reviewed annually
wath an independent externally facititated review besng conducted at
leastonce every threeyears The last external review was conducted
n2015(B42 @

An internal review of the Board and 1ts Committees was conducied in
2016 by the Company Secretary by way of questionnaire and covered

the following areas {i} role organisat:on and a campositien of the Board
and its Commitiees [ agenda () corpor ate governance [ivl guality

of mfarmation (vl monitoring Cormpany performance and fw) Board
teadership and rutture The review concluded that overat! the Board
operated very effecoively with a continuous high standard of performance
throughout the year (B 611 @
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

During the year the Chairman met each Non-Executive Director
individually to discuss their contrsbution to the Board and the Senior
independent Director met with the other Non-Executive Directors lwith
Executive D ectors present} to discuss the performance of the Chairman
[A 4 2@ (B 6 31 The Remuneratron Committee was provided with

an appraisal of the Chief Executive s performance by the Charman

and an appraisal of the performance of the Executive Directars by

the Chief Executive

Board training and development

Briush Land provides for all Directors & tarlored and thorough nduction
including the opportumity to meet with senior execulives to be given

an overview of their spectfic areas of responsibility within the business
and the opportunity to visit the Campany s key properties and
developments (B 4 1@

The Company also offers Directors opportunities to update and refresh
their knowledge on an ongoing basis te enable them te continue fullilling
their roles as Board members and Committee members effectively

This includes traiming epporiunities and lurther visils to the Company s
properties as requiced In2015/16 the Board held meeungs at the
Company s properties Broadgate Estale and Paddingten Central

in add:tion to the Company s head ofiice Updates on the extarnal
enviroment and regulatory matters are delivered to the Board

and relevant commiitees by external speakers including corpor ate
governance updates [B 4 2i@

Kev areas discussed and reviewed bv the Board
in 2016

- outcarnes of the Board Strategy Days and approval of strategy

- approval of risk appetite

- principat nisks faced hy the Company

- reports of the actvities of the Audit iincluding skl Remuneration
and Norminatton Comnuttees

- Chief Executive s Management Reports gquarterly updates on
the business and external enwronment

- updates on the portfolio including developments acquisitions
and disposals

- updates on financing

- results of the Board performance evaluation

- reappointment of Drectors at the AGM

- conflicts of iterest

- approval of year end results the Annual Reporl and Accounts
the AGM Circular and dvidends

- people development and succession planning

~ health & safety

- sustainability

- investor relations reporis

- Remuneration poltcy

- cybersecurity and

- infermiation technology
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Accountability

The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual Repert and Accounts
and as contirmed in the Directors responsibility statement the Board
believes that this Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole s fair
balanced and understandable and prowides the enfor mation necessary
to assess Biush Land s position performance business model and
strategy [C 11) £ The basis on which the Company creates and
preserves value over the long term ts described in the strategic
report(C12] %

The Directors Responsibility Staterment is set out on page 113

Strategic report see pages 110 63

The Annual Reportand Accounts 1s compiled by the relevant responsible
tndividuals au oss the Company Specific sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Comnmutlee members as appropriate
ensuring that all key stakeholders across the business are involved

The Executive Directo s are closely involved in di afting and reviewing
then 1 elevant sections of the Report before formally sigrung them off
Finance Investor Retations and Company Secretaniat cenduct a robust
due diligence process verifying key statements made within the Annuat
Report and Accounts The full Annual Report and Accounts s then
1eviewed thorcughly by the Audit Commutiee hefareit s presented

to the Boar d for approval

The procedure undertaken to enable the Board to provide the fair
balanced and understandable confirmaticn to shareholders has been
1eviewed by the Audit Commuttee The processis enhanced by a specific
meeting between the Chief Financial Officer Head of Sirategy and
Investor Relatons and the Group Financial Controller and their relevant
leam member s o 1eview and docurment the key consider ations
undertaken to ensure that information presented is fair balanced and
understandable Areport detailing those considerations was reviewed
by the Audit Commutlee alongside a sumimary of the detailed proceduses
undertaken and the fult Annual Repart and Accounts

Risk management and internal control
The Board delermnes the nature and extent of the significant risks
1t 1swilling 1o take in achieving the Company s sirategic objectives

The mamntenance of the Company s rssk managerment and inter nal
control systems Is the respansibility ef the Board Oversight of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal conts ol systern

has been delegated 10 the Audit Commitiee Atop-down risk review

15 combined with a complerentary bottom-up approach to ensui e that
risks are fully considered Aswell as complying with the Code the best
practice recommendat:onsin Guidance for Risk Management Internal
Control and Related Financiat and Business Reporting have been
adopted and the Company s internal control frarnework has been
assessed against the internationstly recognised COS0 Internal Cantrol
Integrated Framework The latter assessment showed that all key
control elements are in place Approprrate internal control and risk
management processes apply to all entities which Briush Land
admimisters includmg all matenal jont ventures and funds (C 2 3) 59

Briush Land s approach to risk including the roles of the Board the
Audit Committee and the Fisk Commitiee in setting risk appetite and
monttoning risk exposure is described i the Managing nisk i delivering
our strateqy section of the report on pages 57to 43(C 2119

Formal and transparent arrangements exist for considersg how
corperate reparting risk management and internal coptrol principles
are applied and for maintaining an appi op tate relationship with the
Company s auditer




I estment sticking to our strategv

Executive Directors are involved throughout the investment process
and ahignment with the Board s strategy 1s considered from the
initial discussion of a transaction, rrght through to final approval

1 All new investment apportunities are discussed at weekly
deal sourcing meetings attended by invesiment executives
Patentially atiractive deals that are in lne with strategy
are selected 1o be investigated and analysed in detail by
project teams

2 Project teams assess whether investment opportunities
should be pursued conducting detailed property and
corporate due dligence ongoing dialogue with the relevant
Executive Committee members takes place throughout
the process

3 Investment oppor tuniies with patential are presented for
Investment Committee approval Depending on the size
and nature of a transaction the Investment Committee
can approve the proposed iransaction outnght or
recormmend i for approval by the full Board

4 Investment oppor tunilies are presented to the full Board
for approval when required

The Group s internal control system 1s built on the following fundamentat

principles and s subject to review by Internaf Audit

- Adelined schedule of matters reserved for approval by the full Boand

- A detasled authorisation process no matenal commitments are entered
inte without tharough review and approval by more than one
authorised person

- Formal documentation of all stgnsficant transactions

- A rabust systern of business and inancial planning includes cash flow
and prafitabitity forecasting and scenario analysis performed on major
corporate property and financing proposals

- A robust process for property investment appraisals

- Monitoi ing of key outcomes particutarly expenditure and per for mance
of significant investments against budget and forecast

- Clearty defined policies and review of actuat performance against policies

- Benchmarlung of proper ty performance agamnst external sources such
as Investment Property Databank,

- Key controls testing

- A comprehensive property ond corporate insurance programme and

- A formal whistle-blovang policy

The Audil Commitiee reviews the effectiveness of the Group s system

of internal control over inancral reporting annually including the
systemns of contiof for material joint ventures and funds During the
course of its review of the risk management and internat control systems
over financial reporting the Audit Commattee has not identifred nor

been advised of a failing or weakness which 11 has determmed to be
significant [C23) &

Anumber of policies are in place to ensure that the Company not cnly
meetsits legal obligations but also behaves ethically acts with integrity
and protects its assets from the unlawful activities of others These
include an Ant-Bribery and Corvuption Policy a Competbon Policy

and a Fraud Awareness Policy All employees are made aware of the
policies and pracedures in place with understanding enhanced by staff
communications and {ralnmg

Viability and going concern
To read our viability statement see page 58 [C 2 21 &

The Group has considerable undrawn debt facilites and cash deposits
in excess of current drawn banking faciliies There 1s substanuat
headr oom against the covenants for its unsecured banking facilittes

It also benefits from a diverse and secure income siream [rom leases
with long average lease terms

Having assessed the principal nisks and other matters discussed in
connechion with the wiability statement the Directors believe that the
Group s well placed to manage its financing and other busimess rnsks
satisfacterly and have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adeguate resources to continue # operation for atieast
12 months from the date of the Annual Report They therefore consider it
appropriate to adopl the going concern basis of accounting

in prepanng the financial statements {C 13} &

Taxation

Our principles af good governance extend o cur responsible approach

to tax It remains important to our stakeholders thal the Company s
approach to taxs aligned to the long term values and strateqgy of the
Group The Group s tax strategy is the responsibtlity of the Chief Financial
Officer with close involvernent of Cxecutwe Direciors and senior
management in all activty The Audit Computtee 15 presentad with

an annual lax update

Employees

Having expert people at British Lend 1s one of the four core elements
of our business model This applies bot 1o the indmiduals on the Board
who have responsibility fer leading the Company and to the employees
who work throughout British Land

We encourage a high degree of employee involvement in the Company
and provide regular information en busimess actwvities and explanations
of strategy through Company meetings traiming sessions internal
communications and an annual Company conference Employee
feedback Is alse strongly encouraged

The Operatians Commuttee [OpCo) which 1s comprised of sentos
individuals across British Land s business functions assisls the
Executive Commuttee with operational matters anising in the day-to-day
management of the business The OpCo forms a link between the
Executive Commiitee and wider teams of employees eshancing the flow
of infermatron around the Company both upwards and downwards to
imptove the strategic and tactical decisions that are made The aim of
the OpCois to strengthen coltaboration across the Company in driving
imtiatives that heip us achieve our objectives The OpCo also plays an
increasingly impaor tant 1ote i the development of the operationat
teadership areas of our business such as technology

British Land continues toimplement 2 number of imitiatives to help
develop gur employees and grow mternat talent, rewnforcing the
Company cullure of excellence and embedding vatues and behaviours
As a relatively small company in terms of number of employees we are
proud o be able to investin our people on an individual basts taking
time 1o understand specific requiremenis to progress careers

We have well-established all-emptoyee share schemes to incentivise
employees at all tevels in the Company and align thewr interests with
those of shareholders by buillding a holding of Briish Land shares
Separate penston fund reports are made available to members
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Staff turnover

2016 2015 2014
Head office 44 [19%) 3t{12%l 32115%l
froadgate Estates 53{15%]} 28 [11%) 42 (20%)
Tolat faverage) 98 (17%]) 59 [12%) 74 {17%]

The benefit of diversity both en the Board and throughout the Company
conttnues to be a key consideratton when searching for candidates for
Board and other appointments In addiion the Company centinves to
support the Pathways to Property prograrmme which aims lo increase
diversity within the property industry as a whole by attr acting students
from a vartety of backgrounds into the property sector

Funding to charity and good causes

Our Local Charter sets out how we buitd trust by supperting successiul
lecal communitias and develop skilts and opportunities to help local
people and businesses grow Our Chastable and Communsty Funding
Guidelines set out how we allocate funding with a particular focus on
imtialives close to our assets that have & positive iImpaclt on young peaple
education employment and traming Both documents can be found on
our website at www britishland com/policies

The Chanty and Community Committee which approves all spend under
the Chanty and Community Budget 1s chaired by a Semor Retail Asset
Manager and repor s to the Executive Cornmuttee on an annual basis

Donations during the year totalled £1 371 044 compared with £1 287 500
in the previous year British Land does not make any denations to
political erganisations

Health and Safety

We have 1 etained for mal recogmition of our focus an health and safety
through a successtul audii of cur OHSAS 18001 accreditation We
continue to improve our approach to heatth and safety management to
ensure that we consistently achieve best practice across allactivitiesin
the business [construction managed portiolio and head officel io deliver
Places People Prefer to our empioyees and our custamers

RIDDOR* Year ended 31 March

Total RIDDOR
Accidents Accident Frequency Rate
014 2015 2016 2015

Construction 3 8 014 019  per100000
hour s worked
Retadl 23 19 am 001 per 100000
footfatl
Offices 6 P4 18 85 750  per 100000
workers
Head Otiice 0 0 0 D per100000
full tme

equivalents

*Reporiing of Injuries Diseases and Dangerous Jccurrences Regulations 2013
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Remuneration

The Remuneration Comimttes has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Matching Share Plan
expu es this year We are notintending to 1enew the Matching Share Plan
Amendments to our Long-Term Incentive Plan are proposed to deliver

a simptrfied remuneration structure with one long term incentive
arrangement The new Rernuneration Policy 1s set out on pates 97 to 98

Relations with shareholders

The Board rernains commuited to rnaintaiming open channels

of communication with shareholders |ti1s:mpertant to us that
sharehotders understand the Cornpany s sirategy and objectives
these must be explained clearly and shareholders feedback must
be heard and the 1ssues and questions raised properly considered

Briush Land has a dedicated Investor Retations team which reports to
the Chief Financial Gificer Communication with investors and analysis
1s an angomng ptocess throughout the year This includes regular
scheduled Investor Retalions events summarised in the box on the page
opposite one-io-one and group meetings with Executive Directors and
tours of our properties aswell as regular contact with the Investor
Relations team During the year the Chief Executive Chief Financial
Officer and sur Invesior Relations team met with representatives from
over 180 institutwns We periodically commmission an independent
nvestor perception siudy which 1s presented o the Board

The full Board plans to attend the AGM which provides an opportunity
for all shareholders to question the Directors tn person

Significant emphasis 1s placed on the importance of feeding shareholder
views hoth positive and negative back to the Board A writien investor
relations report which includes direct market feedback on actwity during
the period is presented 1o the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

at each scheduled Board meeting for discussion Shareholder opinrons
are atso given due consideration throughout the annal St ategy Days
[EN@EI2NS




Key i estor relations activities darimg the yvear meluded

May 2015 - Full-year results preseatation
- Full-year roadshow London

June 2015 - Investor praperty conferences London
and Netherlands
Investor roadshow Edinburgh

July 2015 - (31 mtersm management statement and call
- AGM
- Retail capital markets day London

September 2015 - Investor roadshow US
- Private Client roadshew London
- Investor property conference London
- Investor property tous The Leadenhall Butlding

Novemnber 2015 - Hall-year resulis presentation
- Half-year resulis roadshow London
- Investor property conference London’

Oecember 2015 - Investor property conference London

- Analyst and investor tour Broadgate
January 2018 - Investor property conlerence London

- Trading statement investorwvideo and call
February 2616 - Investor roadshow Nethertands
March 2014 - Investor conference US

- Private Client roadshow London

Broush Land aims to be informative and accessible 1o all shareholders
For results and other key anncuncernents we provide information on
a timely basis to both retail and institutional shareholders Anumber
of case studies covering topics that range from profiles of gur key
assets lo sustainability activities are also available to view anline
Shareholders can ask questions at any time via our contacts page on
the corporate website

Contact Briush Land
www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the levet of engagement with sharehalder s actieved
during the year and the Board alsa recagnises the inportant contribution
of provider s of capital other than sharehotders namely our lenders and
hond holders We maintain a regular and open dialogue with our lenders
to help us understand their investment appetite and cniteria

Lord Turabult Semor Independent Director 1s avaslable to address
any concerns shareholders may wish to raise other than via the usual
channels of the Charrman Chei Executive or other Executive Directors

A41)@
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Governanee and remuneration

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are committed to monitoring
the Group’s control environment
and financial reporting processes

Tim Score
Chatrman of the Audit Committee

Audit Commuttec members attendance danng
the vear ended 31 March 2016!

Tim Score 5/5
Aubrey Adams 5/5
Simon Borrows 5/5

During 2016 sen:or executives were Invited to attend and/or present at
meetngs of the Committee including the Chief Financial Officer the Head of
Sirategy and Investor Relations the Financial Comroller the Head of Tox the
Head of Financial Reporiing and the Head of Financial Planning and Analysis
and Risk Comnmittee Secretary

(A121@

Terms of Reference

The Commutiee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
wehsite al www britishtand com/commuttees
iC321=IC3313

80 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2014

Welcome to the report of the Audit Commiitee

The key areas of focus for the Committee this year have been reviewing
and advising the Board on the viaibity statement inctuded ir the Annual
Report and Accounts scrutinising the process for valuation of
investment and development properties by the Group s external valuers
and overseeing the internal Audit tender

Composition
The Committee comprises Aubrey Adams Simon Borrows and myself
as Commitiee Chairman {C 31 2

Each of the Commitlee members 1s considered to he approprately
quatified and experienced to fulfil therr 1ole For the purposes of the
Code |am the member of the Committee nominated as having
significant recent and relevant financial experience

Activities

Duriag the year the Comtmittee has undertaken each of sts princapal
responsibilities receving relevant reperts from the external valuers

the tnter nal and external auditors the Risk Commiitee and management
and challenging the validity of accounting assumptions and judgements
The table on page 81 details the principal responsibilities of the
Cornmittee and key areas of focus througliout the year

The Committee peifarms a detailed review of the content and tone of

the annual and half-year ly press releases and the Annual Reportand
Accounts aswellas lrading updates The Commitiee has sausfied itself
that controls over the accuracy and consistency of mformation presemted
in the Annual Repor t and Accounts are robust and has confirmed to the
Board that it believes tis Annual Report and Accounts s fair balanced
and understandable {C 3 4) % An assurance opinion 1s oblained for

the Campany from PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP {PwCl over selected
sustainability data and a verificatron exer cise 1s per formed by management
lo ensure consislency and accuracy of infor mation presented

In addition to regular committee meetings additional tme 1S spent by
members of the Audit Cornmittee meeting with executive managerment
ta understand keyissues The Comemittee regularly meets with PwC
and Internal Audit without management present and the Committee
Chairman meets privately with the externaivaluers




Principal responsibibities Key arcas discussed and 1eviened by the

of the Comnuttee Committee during 2016
Reporting - Monitoring the integrity of the Company s linancial statements - Results commentary and announcemenis
and External and all for mal announcements relating to the Comparny s - Key accounting judgements including valuations
Audit financial perfarmance reviewing significant financial reporting ch | : )
1ssues judgermnents and estimates including the consistency - Lhanges 1o accountiiig pollcies
quality and appropriateness of accounting policies and the qualily - Going concern and the wabitity siatement
and completeness of disclosures - Farr balanced and understandable assessment in relation
~ Making recommendations to the Board regarding the totheannual report (C 3 4) 2
1eappamntrent of the external auditer and approving the external - External auditer effecliveness
auditor s rermuneration and terms of engagement (€ 37) ¥ - External auditor reports on planming the half yearty review
- Momitoring and reviewing the external auditor s mndependence and the full-year audit ncluding the final opinion

objectivily and effectiveness

- Reviewing the content of the Annual Repart and Accounts
to ensure it is far batanced and understandable

- Develoming and implementing policy on the engagement
ol the external audstor to supply non-audit services, taking
Into account relevant guidance

- The externat auditor s rernuneration

Valuations - Memtering and reviewing the valustion process - Effectiveness of the external valuers
- Reviewing assumptions and methodology - The quality of the valuation process and judgements at half year
- Menitoring the external valuers competence and year end
and effectiveness - Yaluer presentations to the Committee
Risk and - Overseeing the internal contrel environment and risk - Risk register weluding dentiheation of the Group s principal
\nternal management systems on bahalf of the Board risks and movement in exposures
control ~ Menitoring the Company s risk expasure and recommending - Status of key risk indicaters inctuding any breaches of
the Company s risk appetite to the Board for approval thresholds
- Overseeing the assessrent of the principal nsks and - Activities of the Risk Committee including review of its minules
miligating aciions - Effectwveness of internal control systems
- Reviewing the sk managerment disclosures on the Group s - Responses to audit indings and recommendations for contr ot
approach to nskan the half yearty and annuat reports improvements in¢luding reviewiny the Externat Audi
- Reviewing the whisile-blowing policy and its implementation management lelter
b3
fC35l™ - Anannual fraud risk assessment

- Cybersecurity

- The insurance programme for property developinent and
corporate risks

Internal Audit - Approval of arrangements far the provision of inter nal audit - Annualinternat audit plan including consideration of sis

services and any terrination of such arrangernenis alignment 1o the principal nisks censider ation of emerging

- Monitoring and reviewmng the effectiveness of the Company s areas of nsk coverage across the Group and its joint ventures
Internat Audit funclion including its plans level of resources and review of the Group s processes and controls
and budget - KPMG s execution of the internal audit plan and reviewing

- Reviewing internal audit repos ts recommendations and piogress the resultant audit reports and indings
nimplementation of those recommendations - Internat Audit effectiveness

- Coordination between Internal Audit and External Audit - Internal Audit reports payroll tax complance 17

The Leadenhatl Butding and Broadgate joint ventu: es
procurernent {phase 2] Broadgate Estates leasing process
ant bribery and corruption key hnancial controls treasury

- Annualinternal controls gverview
- Internal Audit charter defining its role and responsibilities
- Imernal Audit tender process

Other - Reviewing the Audit Committee s effectiveness and its Terms - The Compnittee s Terms of Reference
of Reference - Effectiveness of the Commiliee
- Considering compliance with legal requirements accounting - Maintenance of the Group s REIT status

standards and the Listing Rules - Annual tax update

- Review of PwC s Sustainability Assurance Repory
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REPCORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Significant issucs in relatnon to financial statenents
The Cominitiee pays par ticutar attention to matiers it considers to

be important by virtue of their size complexity level of judgement
required and potential impact on the financial staternents and wider
business mode!l |dentification of the issues deemed to be sigmificant
takes place fotllowing epen frank and challenging disqussion between
the Commmuttee members with input from the Chiet Financial Dificer
PwC and Internal Audit and other relevant Briish Land employees

A particular area of focus for the Committee has been the viability
staternent which 1s included within the strategic report for the first
ume this year on page 58 The Committee has discussed the form

and content of the statement and the analysis carried out {0 support st
with rnanagement and PwC throughout the year The Committee has
confirmed to the Board that it believes the viability staternent adequately
constders the Group s principal risks covers an appropriate periad 1s
suppor ted by the assessment prepared by management and includes
disclosur e of all retevant materiat assumptions made

The sigrificant 1ssues consider ed by the Committee during the year
ended 337 March 2014 are detailed below alangside the actions taken
by the Committee 1o address these 1ssues (C 3 8] ~

Significant issues m relation to financial statements
considered by the Commuttee during the vear

Internal Audit

The Company s Internal Audit function during the year was outsourced
to KPMG who reported regularly to the Commitiee The Committee
monstored the per formance of Inter nal Audit threughout the year as
welk as performing an annual review of its eflectiveness The Commtiee
believes KPMG dischar ged 1ts duues effectively [C 3 6} %

KPMG has performed the Inter nal Audit function since It was outsourced
in 2012 liwas decided that the [nternal Audit function should be put out
to tender in March 2016 1o tacillate evaluation of different internal audit
approaches Fotlowing a competitive process Ernst & Young LLP [EY]
was appointed EYwill report regutariy to the Cormmmuttee and it s
envisaged that sts perfor mance will be memitored in a sinmilar way

Policy on PwC providing non-audit services (C3 8) <
With respect to nen-audit services provided by PwC the following
framework was in place during the year

- Auditrelated services audit related services include for mal reporting
relating 1o borrowings  shareholder and other circulars and various wark
in respect of acquisitons and disposals Where the external auditor must
carry out the work because of therr office the external auditor 1s selected
In other circurnstances the selection depends on which firm is best suited

How these ssues were addressed by the Committee

Valuation of The valuation of rwestment and development

imvestment and properties whichis conducted by externat
development valuers 1sinherantly subjective as it 1s made
properties an the basis of assumptions made by the

valuers which may not prove to be accurate
The outceme of the valualion 1s significant

to the Group 1n terrns of investment decisions
results and 1 emuneration

The external valuers presented their reports to the Cormmittee and were
asked to ughlight any significant judgements or disagreementis with
management Valuation certificates and outcomes were reviewed and
assumptions challenged with par ticutarly rigorous scrutiny this year
given the lower volumes of evidence sething transactions, compared

1o recent periods

Risk 1s encountered through property and
financing transactions as tkarge and non-standard
accounting entries can be required

Accounting for
transactions

The Commiliee reviewed management papers on key udgernents
including those tor signdicant transactions as well as the external
auditor 5 report presented otlowing the conciusion of the audit

The appropriateness of preparing the Group

Going concern
financial statements on a going concern basis

statement

The Committee reviewed management s analysis supporting the going
concern basis of preparation This included consideration of lorecast

cash flows avalabiity of committed debt facilities and expected covenant
headroom PwC reported 1o the Commuittee the results of 1esting performed
on management s analysis

Whethe! the statement appropriately reflects the
prospects of the Group and covers an appsopriate
perted of tirme

Viability statement

The Commuttee considered whether the assessment performed by
management adequately reflects the Group s principal risks as disclosed on
pages 59 to 63 whether the period covered by the statement 1s reasonable in
light of the mdustrythe Group operates in and is a fair reflection of the
forecast penod typicatly considered by management and whether the
assumptions made and sensitwities identified represent severe but plausible
scenartos 1n the context of solvency or higuidity

Maintenance of the Group s REIT status through
comphance with certain conditions has a
sigrificant impaci on the Group s results

REIT status

The Comrmittee reviews compliance with the REIT tests annuatly
Managemenit presented the methodelogy and results of the REIT tests
fghlighting any change i long term trends and the current level of
headroom

For certatn transactions judgement 1s applied
by management as to whether and to what
extent they should be treated as revenue for
the financial year

Judgements affecting
revenue recognition

The Committee and PwC consider ed the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation te revenue recognition The
Cornmuttee and PwC also considered the scope of the accounting standard
and the reasonableness of the judgerment made
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- Sustamability assurance the selection depends on which firm s best
suited and 1s reviewed on a five yearly basis Cuirently the externat
audwor provides an assurance opinion over selected sustainability data

- Tax adwisory the selection depends on which firm 1s best suited 1n the
circumstances

- General consulting the external auditor 13 not setected to provide general
consullancy services except in certamn limited aircumstances and then
only after consideration that they are best placed to prowvide the service
and that their ndependence and abjectraty wilt not be comprormused

The followtng commitment piotocol oper ated throughout the year and
applied to any engagement for conducting other work lexcluding audit
and half-yearly reportingl performed by PwC
- The total non-audit fees are hmited (o 70% of the audit lees in any
one year The audit and non-audit fees for the three-year average
are calculated in line with the methodology set oul in the 2014
EU Regulations and inctude fees for joint ventures and funds
- Audit Commuttee approval i1s required where there were any doubts
as to whether the external auditor had a conflict ot interest and
- Appraval by the Audit Committee Chatrman 1s required for each
additional project over £0 1m in value where the cumulative fees for
non-audit work are projected Lo exceed 50% of the audit fee inany
financial year Duning the year no project approvals by the Audu
Commuttee Chairman were required

Effectis eness of the External Audit process

The Commuttee places great importance on ensuring o tugh quality
effective External Audit process Following best practice and tn
accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee annually reviews
the audit requirements of the Group for the business and in the coatext of
the external environment The Carnmuttee also conducts an annual review
of the performance of the external auditor and considers 11$ mdependence
comphance with relevant statutory regulatery and ethical standards and
objectmty [C3 8] €

Fellowing its appointment in 2014 PwC successfully completed its first
audit last year The Committee reviewed PwC s per formance this year and
was content with the quabty of the audit it had delivered The Committee
reviewed PwC s proposals for the audit and 1s conhident that appr opriate
plans were put In place to carry out an effective and high guality audit
Ne significant 1ssues wer & 1aised during the course of the audit PwC
confirmed 1o the Cornrittee that it maintained appi opriate internal
saleguat ds 1o ensure s independence and abjectvity The Commitiee
consider ed and approved PwC s assessment of its independence and
has:ecommended its reappomiment to the Board approval of which
will be sought from shareholders at the 2016 AGM

The Commuttee has agreed to consider the need for a competitive tender
for the role of external auditor every frve year s with a competitive tender
taking place at least every ten years Te the extent that the auditor did
not rotate earlier through this process the Company will rotate audi
par tner as required by legislation There are no contractuat obligations
which would restrict the selection of a difierent auditor

The Company has complied with the relevant parts of the Competition
and Markets Authority Final Order on the statutory audit market for the
year ended 31 March 2016

Vahwutions

The external valuation of British Land s por tiolio 1s a key detes minant

of the Group s balance sheet performance and serior management s
remuneratien In accordance with ks Terms of Reference the Commuttee
adopts a nigorous approach to monitoring and f eviewing the valuation
process and the effectiveness of the Group svatuers Knight Frank and
CBRE The Coemmitlee reviews the effectiveness of the external vatuers
biannualty focusing on a qualitative analysis of capnat values yeld
benchmarking availability of comparabte market evidence and major
outhiers to subsector movements

The valuers present direcily to the Comrnittee at the hali-yearly

and annual reviews of results ctuding providing confirmation of the
valuation process market conditions and significant judgements made
PwC reviews the valuations and valuation process haveng full access
to the valuer s te deter mine that due pi oeess has been followed and
appropriate nformation used I reporis its hndings to the Cornmittee
The valuation process s also subject to regular review by Internal Audit
the most recent being undertaken in 2013 with another one planned for
later this calendar year In addmion | as the Committee Chairman meet
privately with the valuers

For the valuation of the Group s wholly-owned assets the Company

has fixed fee arrangements with Knight Frank and CBRE in line with
the recemmendations of the Carsberg Cormmittee Report Copes of
the valuation certficates of Knight Frank and CBRE can be found on

the corporate website at www briishtand com/reports

Identification and evaluation of cominercial rsks and
related contiol objectives

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for overseeing the effectiveness

of sound risk management and inter nal controt systems It fulhils this
role by overseeing the actvities of and receving reports irom the Risk
Committee and monitoring the rsk management processes in place and
the activities of the Internal Audit function ncluding s reperting on the
effectiveness of controls The Risk Committee minutes are circutated to
the Commuittee for review with any sigruficant matters hightighted for
discussion Twice year ly the prinapdl 11sks which are denived from an
assessment of the nisk register are presented to the Committee along
with commentary on changes in the exposure to these risks m the perod
Annually a report on the effectiveness of internal cantrols and the risk
management system is prepared by Internat Audit for presentation to the
Committee Internal Audit and the Risk Committee work closely together
to ensure that identified risk areas are incorporated in the Internat Audnt
programme and similarly findings of Inter nal Audil reviews ai e taken
into account In 1dentifying and evaluating risks within the business
Brittsh Land imaintains a framework of controls retated to key finanaal
processes and management of the associated nsks The elfectiveness
of such controls is reviewed annually either by Internal Auditor as part
of the year-end external audi

Tim Score
Chawman of the Audit Commutlee
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Govermanee and remuneration

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee
leads the process for
Board appointments

John Gilderslecve
Charman of the Nomination Commuittee

Nomination Committee members attendance during
the vear ended 31 March 206

John Gildersteeve 2{2
William Jacksan 2/2
Lord Turnbull 2/2
(a12)@

Composition of the Board

BNon-Execuiive Chagiman
H Independent Non-Executive Directors
C Executve Directors

Ihrectors’ core areas of expertise’

property

DR

Retait and consumer
Academic
Public sector

' Sorme Directors arerepresented in more than one category
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The Board and its Comnuttecs

Threughout the year the membership of each Cornmitiee has comprised
tndependent Non-Executive Directors to the extent required by the Code
{8 2 11®@ We value continuity and expertence of British | and s business
and were delighted to recommend that | ard Turnbull be 1e-appointed
as Semtor Independent Directar Lord Tur nbutl will however step down
as Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee following this year s AGM
although he will remain a member of that Committee Willlam Jackson
has agreed 1o take on the position of Chairman of the Remuneration
Comnutize (B 24D

As reported lastyear following a ngorous selection process Laura
Wade-Gery was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Briush Land
on 13 May 2015 Laura s biography demonstrates her huge retail and
consumer experience No further changes to the Board occurred during
the year

Composition of the Board

The Commutiee considers that the Board consists of ndividuals with
the right balance of skills experience and knowledge to provide strong
and effective leadership of the Company The majority of the Board

are independent Non-Executive Directors and the Board s collective
experience covers a range of relevant sectors as iflustrated in the left
hand column Aswell as a breadth of property and financial experience
many Board members have persenal experience of working in the retail
and corpor ate environmenls that are typical of many of our occupilers

All of Bnittsh Land s Directors witl retire and submit themselves for
re-election by shareholders at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

The Commuttee believes that all the Dueclor s continue to demonstrate
commitrnent io their r gtes as Board and Committee members continue
to dischar ge thetr duties effectively and that each makes a valuable
contripution Lo the leadership of the Company

Diversity

British Land pays full regard to the beneiits of diversity imncluding gender
diversity both when the Nornination Committee s searching for
candidates for Board appemtments and when the Company is searching
for candidates for other appointments

The Board agrees with the conclusions of the Women on Boards report
by Lord Davies of Abes soch that greater efforts should be made in
improving the gender balance of corporate boards and that quotas

for fernate boar d representation are not the preferred approach The
Company currently has three female Directo: s Lynn Gladdenand Laura
Wade-Gery, who were appointed as Non-Executive Directarsin 2015
and Lucinda Beli who was appointed Chief Financial Officer in May 2011
This currently represents 25% female Board membership




Principal responsibilides of the Comnuitee

Kev areas discussed and reviewed
by the Committee 11 2016

Regular review of the structure size and composttion of the Board

Review of the structure size compasition of the Board along with
the skills knowledge and expenence of its mernbers o ensure that
fhrectors remain able 1o discharge their duties and respansibiliies
effectively and to the required high standard

Recommendations to the Board with regard to Board changes
and Committee membership changes

Selechion and appaintment of Laura Wade Geryas a Non-Executive
Director Appointment of Wilkiam Jackson as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

Successian ptanning for Directors and other senior executives

Succession planning including identification of potential internal
candidates for sentor vacancies which may arise on a cnsis short
medum ar long term basis

Reviewing time commutments required from Non-Executive Directors

Time cemmutments regquired from Nor-Executive Direclors were
reviewed as part of the year end process

Recammendations for re-election of Non-Executive Director s

Recommendations to the Boar d regarding Directors standing
for re-election by shareholdersat the AGM

Terms of Reference

The Comimuttee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Cornpany s website at www britishland com/commutiees (B 7 1} &

The promaotion of wormen to the Board and other senior positiens
within the Cornpany 1s dependent on the recrustment development
and retention of women in the workforce both within the Company
and more widely throughout the business and professional community

Asof 31 March 2014 British Land s employees including Broadgate
Estates) comprised 283 temales and 306 males [2015 218 and 247
respectivelyl of the employees considered to be executives 141 were
fernale and 257 were mate {2015 115 and 205 respectvely] Sentor
executives comprising the Executive Comimuttee and Operations
Commuttee consssted of 11 fernales and 26 males (2015 8 and 17
respectivelyl Toencourage and help mothers return ta work we offer
enhanced matermty leave payments and support flexible working
patterns currently 27 of our female employees take advantage of this
facility (2815 31} We also offer enhanced patermity leave payments and
support flexible workung patterns for all parents and oiher employees
whose personal circumsiances may make this beneficial Currently 13
men work {lexibly and 5 men took advantage of enhanced paternity leave
{2615 9 and 14 respecuvely] Traming and mentoring programmes are
provided to ensure that all our employees achieve their potential taking
account of thewr diverse development needs Itis pleasing that our Chiel
Financ:al Officer Luainda Bell was aninternal appointment reflecting
the devetoprnent of our own people

The Nommation Committes seeks to increase the percentage of female
Board members as quickly as we are able The speed at which we can
achieve this will be subject to the availabiity of sutable candidates

and compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act the Board

has a fundamentat obligation to ensure that appointments are of the
candidates best able to promote the success of the Company and we

do not consider that it would be to the long term benefit of the Company
if appointments were made on any other basis Subject to these
requiremenis we have an engosng commitment 1o further strengthening
fernate representation at Board and top management Level

Cur people strategy focuses on crealing a teamn who can deliver

Places People Prefer Getting closer to cur customers 1s one of our key
strategic priorives and having a wor kforce which reflects the diversity

of our customers helps us achieve this The policy throughout Britsh Land
ts to employ the best candidates avaitable in every position regardless of
sex race ethnic origin natienality colour age religion or phitosophical
belief sexual onentation marriage or civil partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment or disability Applicatisns for employment
by disabled persons are always fully considered bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicants concerned In the event of members of statf
becorming disabled every effor ts made to ensure that their employment
continues and that appropnate traning 1s arranged The policy provides
that the traiming career development and promotion of disabted people
should as faras possible be identical to that of other empioyees

We achieved a key mulestone on our journey tewards creating a truly
inclusive environment with our formation of BL Pride our lesbian gay
bisexual transgender [LGBT] and alites network and our Womnen s
network this year Both networks have been active in the year and we are
pleased that our Chief Executive Chrig Grigg was ranked 1ith in the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by QUTstanding and the Financial Times

We are also piloting a mentoring scheme for women offering help
guidance advice and supportwhere itis needed

AR

John Gildersleerc
Chairman of the Normnatton Cornmittee
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Goverpance and Kemuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy is
designed to align management
incentives with our strategy

Lord Turnbull
Chairman of the Remuneration Carnmittee

Remuneranon Committee members’ attendance
during the year ended 31 March 2016!

Lord Turnbull 3/3
Lynn Gladden 3/3
Witbam Jacksen 3/3
Laur a Wade-Gery 2/2

* Dther indwviduals aitend Remuneraticn Comruttee meetings by invitation
Atan Judes of Strategic Remunerat on atended Commitiee meetings during
2014 Alan Judes has been appointad by the Cornmitlee as its independent
Adwisor further detail 1s provided on page 110 Durirg the year by the
Commsitee 5 mnvitation the followsng senior execuives attended andfor were
present al Commitlee meetings [other than when their own remuneration was
being discussed} the Company Chairmnan the Chief Executive the Company
Secretary ang General Counsel and the Head of Operations

?{ aura Wade Gerywas appointad as a Director and member of the
Remuneration Committee on 13 May 2015
n121@

Terms of Reference

The Committee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
webshe sl www britishland com/committees (D2 11@1(D 2 21D
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Durtng the year we as the Commultee have continued to focus

on ensuring that our Remuneration Policy app: opt ately reftects

our remuneration philosophy which 1s based on three

fundamental principles

- remuneration should align management incenttives with strategy
and so encourage activibies that support our strategy of creating
Places People Piefer

- remuneration packages should be designed to atiract and retain
experi people throughout British Land s business and

- the level of remuneration should be directly inked tc corporate
and indmduat performance

We were delighted to receive over 97% of shareholder votes in favour of
our exisiing Remuneration Policy at aur 2014 AGM As our Matching
Share Plan [MSP)witl expire n July 2016 we have taken the oppor tunity
to review the current Remuneration Policy this year rather than at its
expiry m 2017 with a particular focus on simplifying our long term
incentive artangements Jaking into account investor sentirment around
malching share plans we have decided not to renew the MSP

As a result wa will have one single long term incentive arrangement
under the proposed new Remuner ation Policy

Yo achreve this we are propesing the following key changes to our
Rermuneration Policy removal of the MSP and amendments to the
Long-Term Incentve Plan [LTIP} which address the remaval of the MSP
and 1espond 1o tnvestor preferences for the intreduction of post-vesting
holding periods and the extenston of e periods aver which awards
should be subject to clawback Praposed amendments are summarisedin
the box on the facing page Gwen the level of shareholder support recewved
for the existing Remunes ation Policy in 2014 we aie not praposing lo make
any other material changes to our Rernuneration Policy

Consultation on preposed changes to Remuneration Policy

We were pleased to be able to engage in meaningful discussion with

key shareholdes s during consultatton on the praposed amendments
to our Rernuneration Policy A number of opinions expressed during

consultation have directly influenced the design of the Remunetation
Paticy that witl be presented for approvel at our AGM In July 2016

Our proposais to move to a single long term eentve arrangement
introduce a two year holding period following LTIP vesting and maintain
the compulsory deferral of a proportion of an Annual Incentive award
into shar es wer e particulat ly well receved by investors and have been
incorporated into the new Remuneration Policy

In response to feedback receved during consultation we are atso this
year providing more information about performance agamst Annual
Incentive measures over the financiat year (inciuded on pages 102 to 103
ol ttus Report) and we are reducing the percentage of LTIP that vests for
achieving medan performance under the new Policy



Design of new Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee 1s satishied thai the design of our new
Remuneration Policy remains aligned with our remuneration philosophy
The elements of our remuneration structure have been chosen so that
they support our bustness model and our four areas of strategic focus
Customer Onentation Right Places Capital Efficiency and Expei t
People Performance measures attached to variable elements of
remuneration are stretching with Annual Incentive starting 10 be

awar ded and LTIP awards star ting 1 vest only once median performance
has been reached maximum levels of remuneration are only paid out
when upper guarble perfor mance 1s achieved Both short term (Annual
Incentive] and long term [LTIP] performance measures have been
carefully selected 1o incentivise activities that support our strategy of
creating Ptaces People Prefer The measures that witt be attached to
awards granted under the amended LTIP and their respective iinks to
our strateqy are summarised in the box on the next page Page 21 af our
Strateqie Report hightights the relatisnship between our strategy and
our Incentive measures

Our new Remuneraticn Palicy will he presented to shareholders for

approval at the AGM in July 2016 Shareholders witi also be asked to

vote on separate resotutions to approve the amendments Lo the LTIP

[0 2 4)@ and to approve the Directors Rermuneraton Report for the year

ended 31 March 2016 If approved our new Remunes ation Pelicy will

apply from the date of the AGM and witl consist of the following key

elements fer Executive Directors

- Basic salanies and benefits wili be set by reference to comparator
companies of a similar position in the FTSE 100 Index

- Annual ncentive awards wiil be tinked to performance aganst
quantitative gualitative and personal measures and one third of
each Annual Incentive award granted wiil be deferred 1o purchase
Bntish Land shares and

- LFIP awards will be linked to both speciic property related perfarmance
measures [TPR and TAR assessing performance at the gross and net
levels respectivelyl and TSR performance measures and wall be subject
to a two year holding period following the three year vesting perod

The Executive Directors are responsible for setting the levels of fees pad
1o the Non-Executive fhirectors tnbine with other FTSE 100 campanies

it 1s proposed that under the new Remuneratton Policy fees payable

ta Non-Executive Directors will be structured as an annual fee plus
additional fees for membership of committees and/or holding certam
positions as outlined in the box to the night This represents a change
from the structure under the current Policy whereby Non-Executive
Direciors receive fees based in part on their attendance at Board and
Committee meetings throughout the year Levels of fees under the new
Policy [outlined on page 100) have been setected so that totat fees for the
year commencing 1 April 2016 will not change materially compared to
the fees that would have been received had the current Policy remaned
in place hased on the antricipated number of meetings that will take
place during the year [D 2 31@

Etement of remuneration

Change in Remuneration Policy

Matching Share Plan
IMSP)

No MSPwill be included in the Policy presented
for shizreholder approval at the AGM in July 2016
Underthe current Policy one iburd of an Executive
Directer s post-tax Annual Incentive award 1s
deferred and used 1o purchase shares [MSP
Bonus Shares) that tust be held for three years
and a conditional award of addrional matching
shares Is granted

Annual Incentive
Deferral

The deferrat of one thsrd of the post 1ax Annual
Incentivé into shares will be retained but no
award of additional matching shares will be
granted Thus will resull in continued alignment
petween Executive Directors and shareholders
miterests and will provide a longer term aspect
to the Annual Incentive award One third of an
Executive Director s posi-tax Annual Incentive
awardwill be deferred and used 1o purchase
Annual Incentive Shares that must be held
forthreeyears regardless of whether or

not the indwidual remams an employee of
British Land throughout this persod Annual
Incentive Shares witl be subject to clawback
during the helding period

Long-Term Incentive
PlaniLTIP)

For Executve Direclars a two year holding period
will be introduced foltowing vesting of an LTIP
award during which awards will be subject

1o clawback The holding period witl apply
regardiess of whether or not the mdividual
remains an employee of Br itish Land throughout
this period The maximum award potential will be
increased from 200% to 300% of basic salary as
Executive Directors will no longer be eligibte to
recewe additonal matching share awards under
the MSP The proportion of award vesting on
achievernent of the median level of performance
will be reduced from 25% ko 20% of the award
The performance condiions attached to LTIP
awards will be amended as detailed i the box

on the next page

Non-Executive
Directors” Fees

Non-Executive Directors witl recewve an asnual
fee with additional fees if they are members of
Board Commutlees or hold the position of Senior
Independent Direclor or Chairman of the Audit
or Remuneration Commuttee This replaces the
current fee structure which 1s based i\ part

on meeting atlendance
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Governanee and Remunceration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016

Briush Land has had another active and successful year demonstrated
in our strong full year results Retative to the prior year underiying profit
has increased by 16% our NAV 1s 11% ahead and the dividend has
increased by 2 5% The results were driven by good performances
across the business with good leasing activity and rental growth key
features The executive management team was strengthened through
a number of key appointments including Roger Madelin who has been
htred to tead our impor tant Canada Water project The receipt of the
ptestigious 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprice 15 a great endorsement
of our econenuc social and environmental achigvernents

Perforsnance durning the year was in line with ar exceeded expectations
on all but one of the Annual Incentive measures However overall
performance was less strong than performance in the previous financial
year Consequently Annual Incentives awarded to Executive Directors in
1espect of the year ended 31 March 2016 are lower than those awarded in
respect of performance over the prior financial year The Remuneration
Commatiee s assessment of Annual tncentive performance over the yeat
15 set out on pages 102 to 103 of this Report

LTIP performance measures

Kev activroes of the Committee during the vear
ended 31 March 2016-
- Approval of the Remuneration Report presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 21 July 2015
- Development of Remuneration Policy to be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM an 19 July 2016 and preparation for consullations
with key shareholder s
- Review of corporate and indwmidual periormances over the year ended
31 March 2015
- Approvat of performance measures for the year ended 31 March 2016
- Review of
- Chairman s annual fee
- Chief Executive s remuneration
- Executive Direciars remuneration and
- Employees salaries and Annual Incentves
- Approval of discretionary share scherne grants and vestings
- Approval of all-emplayee share scheme granis

The following performance measures will apply to LTIP awards granted under the new Remuneration Policy

Measure Link to strategy

Measured relative to

Total Property Return (TPRI

The change in capital value, less any capital
expenditure meurted plus net income TPRs
expressed as a percentage of capial employed
over the LTIP performance period and 1s calculated
by Investment Property Databank IPD)

The TPR measure is designed to link reward to ~ TPR performance will be assessed against
strong performance at the gross preperty tevel  the performance of an IPD benchmark

Total Accounting Return {TAR]
The growth in Briush Land s EPRA NAV per
share plus dividends per share paid over the
LTiP performance period

1o shareholders

The TAR measure 1s designed to ink reward TAR will be measured relative to a comparator
to performance at the net property level that group consisting of the 17 largest I'TSE property
1akes account of gearing and our distributions  companies that use EPRA accounting {includemg

Brinsh Land}

Total Shareholder Return (TSR}

The growth in value of a British Land
shareholding overthe LTIP performance
period assurming dividends are reinvested
to purchase addiional shares

to sharghelders

The TSR measure s dessgned o directly
correlate reward with the return delivered

50% of the TSR measure wilt be measured
relative to the performance of the ' TSE 100

and 50% of the TSR measure wsll e measured
relative to the per formance of a comparator
group consisting of the 17 largest F TSE property
companies that use EPRA accounting fincluding
Briush Land]

Performance agams! the LTIP measut es will be assessed over a period of thiee years For each measure 100% of the part of the award attached

to that measure will vest f British Land s pertforinance 1s at the upper quat tile levei i perfor mance against a measure is equal to the medan 20% of the
part of the award attached 10 that measure will vest and if performance is below median the part of the award atiached to that measure wilt lapse There
will be straight-bne vesting between median and upper quartile performance for each measure
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Vesting of the MSP and LTIP awar ds granted to Executive Dinectors tn
2013 s dependent on Brioish Land s performance over the three year
pertod ended 31 March 2016 Vesting of these awards 1s scheduled to
lake place in August 2016 and estimated vesting values are mncluded in
the Executwve Directors single total figur es of remuneration on page 101
Performance measures attached to the M5P award measure growth in
gross income and total shareholder return TSR} Half of the MSP awar d
1s expected to vest, as the gross income growih target has been fully
achieved however the remaining halt of the MSP award will lapse as
Briosh Land s TSR over the penod was below the median TSR of the
compat ater group of companies

The two performance measures attached to the vesting LTIP award
measure lotal property return [TPR) and Lotal accounting return [TAR}
The TPR part of the awar d 1s expected to vest at 69% reflecting partial
achievernent of tus condition and the TAR part s estimaled to vest at
44% again showing that the performance condition has been met in part
but upper quartite performance [requized for the full award to vest] has
not been achieved

Executive Directors single total figures of remuner ation for the year
to 31 March 2014 have decreased relative to the figures far the previous
fimancial year reflecting the partial vesting of long term incentive awards
and reduced Annual Incentive awards compared to the prior year The
Commitiee believes this demanstrates that our Remuneration Policy
15 designed so that the third st and of our remuneration philosophy

the level of remuneration receved should be directly linked to cor porate
and indwidual performance s praperly reflected in the Policy

Remuneratron in respect of the year commencing 1 April 2014

The Cammuttee 1s sauished that the Executive Directors salartes and
the Chairman s annual fee rermain correctly positioned in relation to
our carmparatol group iheing FTSE 100 companies of a similar market
capitalisation to Briiash Land] and these witl nat be increased for the
year cormmencing 1 April 2016

As explamned earlier in this letter a new Remuneration Palicy and
amended LTIP rules will be presented lor shareholder approval at the
AGMin July 2016 The Committee intends to grant the final LTIP awa: d
under the current Remuneration Policy and rules before the AGM
therefare the first LTIP award under the new Policy and amended
rutes witl not be g anted until the year commencing 1 Aprit 2017

Thus 1s my tast report as Chairman of the Remuneration Committiee as
tintend to stand down foliowing British Land s Annual General Meeting

in Juty 2016 {will remain a member of the Committee and loak forward

to centinuing to work with William Jackson who will take over the
Comrmittee Chasrmanship aswell as Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery
who were both appointed Comrmitiee members in 2015

Fhe Cammittee very much valued your support of our Remuneration
Poltcy when it was introduced in 2014 We hope that you will be
supportive of the proposed changes ta our long term incentive

ai rangements set cut 1n our new Remuner ation Policy and suppor tive

of our Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2016
at the AGM n july 2016

WT@M

Lotd Turnbull

Chairman of the Remumeration Committee
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Governanee sind Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT OQVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Hawving experi people 1s one of the four core focus areas of our business
model Qur Remuneration Policy 1s intended 1o help retain the expert
people we have recrwiied and developed and mitigate the r1sk of losing
themn Ous Remuneration Policy 1s also designed to foster employee share
ownership and align Executive Directors interests with those of investors
The Remuneration Policy outlined on pages 92 o 98 will take effect irom
19 July 2016 subject to shareholder approvat at Briish Land s Annuat
General Meeting on that day The bar charts below illusirate the levels of
remuneration recevable by the Executive Directors under this proposed
Remuneration Policy for varying levels of performance

Withi the 1emunerdtion package variable etements ithe Annual
Incentive and Long-Term Incentive Ptan [LFIP]] are designed to reward
per formance that supports cur strategy and creates sustamable long
term value for shareholders If anly the mimimum level of perlormance 1
achieved only fixed rernuner ation elements will be pard Lo the Directors
In the ilustrative bar charls this minimum rermuneration censists of
basic salary benefits pension or penston allowance and shares awarded
by Brihish Land under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan’

For performance that 1s in Line with expectations up ta hatf of the
maximurn Annual Incentive awar d possible will be g1 anted lequivalent
to 75% of bastc salaryl and the praportion of the LTIP award expected
to vest s equivalent 1o 140% of basic salary One third of the Annual
Incentive award granted will be deferred into shares which must be
held by the Executive Director for three years [Annual Incentive Shares)

Hlustration of application of Remuneragon Policy

Chris Grigg
Chief Executive £000

For the maximum level of perfarmance the Annual Incentive award

will be granted at a level equivalent to 150% of basic salary and the LTIP
award s expecied o vest in full lequivalent to 300% of basic salary} One
third of the Annual Incentive award granted will be deferred into Annual
Incentive Shares Remuneration payable in respect of this maximum levet
of performance has not changed materially compared to that payabte
under the current Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders in 2014

The itlustr ative bar charts below do not take into account any share
price appreciation between grant and vesting of LTIP awards or between
deferrat and release of Annual Incentive Shares Share price growth wall
result in the values of LTIP awar ds and Annual Incentive Shares mcreasing
1 the period between grant and vesting/release to the Direcior

As explained on page 89 the first LTIP award grant under the new Pobicy
[with maximurm level equivalent to 300% basic salaryl will not take place
until the year ending 31 March 2018 as it isintended ihat an LTiP award
will be granted under the existing Palicy [with maximum level equivalent
10 200% bastc salary} m advance of the 2016 AGM

! Calcutated using salaries for the year ending 31 March 2017 assurming that
benetit values forthe year ending 31 March 2017 will remain the same as the
values for the year ended 31 March 2014 and that the maximum value of shares
that can be awarded by the Company under the Share Incenine Plan s granted
Pension values are based onthe Remuneration Policy and estimates supplied
by the scheme acluary for defined benefit scheme members

Charles Maudslev

Head of Retail and Letsure £000

Miumum £1,187
AV 40% 2% 3% £2.993

Maximum 2% 25% 51% £4,967
Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer E000

Mimimum | 100% | £553
oxpoctanons IR WAL £1512

Maximum 22% 26% 52% £2,561
Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential £000

Minimum £609
In iine with o "
expectations 37% 2% 1% £1.669

Maximum 22%  26% 52% £2828

B Fixed remuneration B Annual Incentive M| cng Term incentive
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Minimum £572
PPN 375 22% 1% €151

Maximum 22%  26% 52% £2,580




Exccutive Directors

gI'i'l Fixed Remuneration

@ Long-Term lncentive Plan {LTIP]

The components of fixed remuner ation are intended to provide a base
package at a leve! that will attract tugh-cabibre individuals with the
appropt 1ate degree of expertise and experience to cars y out therroles

to the hugh standards we require Executive Directors salaries are
positioned around the medtan of our comparator greup (FTSEIRO
companies with broadly similar market capitalisations to British Land]
and 1n addition to salary the fixed remuneration package includes the
provision of benefits a pension or pension allowance and the oppor tunity
to take part in all-employee share schemes

@ Annual Incentive

[he Annual Incentive forms part of the variable proportion of an
Executrve Director s remuneration package The tevel of Annual Incentive
award rereved 15 directly inked to corpor ate and individual performance
agamsi annually tallored measures

A proportion of each Executive Director s Annual Incentive award 1s used
1o purchase shat es that must be held for three years adding a longer
term aspect to the Annual Incentive award

Magnitude of Annual Incentive sward s dependent on performance
aganst Annual Incentive measures gver one year

Ore third [net of tax] 1s used
ta purchase shares wheh must
be held lor three years
{Annual Incentve Shares)

Two thirds 15 paid as
cash on award

The LTIP 15 the second elernent of vaniable remuneration The proportion
of an LTIP award that 1s actually released to an Executive Director is
dependent on British Land s performance against specified performance
measures gver a three year period

LTIP award consists of performance shares
or market value options ar a combinatian of the two
with performanze measures altached

Perfarmancs s measured “
over three years J‘L

The number of performance shat es vesting and the number of options
becoming exercisable are both dependent on the degree
te which the performance measures have been met

Atwo year hold ng period applies to LTiP awards following vesting

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Faes paid to the Company Chatrman and Non-Executive Directors are
positioned arcund the median of our comparator group of companies
[FTSE100 compantes with broadly similar market capitabisations to
Briush Land} with the aim of attracting imdividuals with the approprate
degree of expertise and experience to wor k with and challenge the
Executive Dreciors
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY

Eaecutive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Camponent and Purpose

QOperation

?@ Fixed Remuneration

Basic salary

To attract and retain expert peeple
with the appropriate degree of
experuse and experience

The tevel of basic salary 15 posittoned around the median of eur comparator group of FTSE 100
companies with broadly simlar market capitalisations  Executive Directors responsibilities
aie taken into account when basic salaiies are set

Basic salanes are rewiewed annually by the Remuneration Committee with increases usually
taking effecton t Aprit for the subseauent year Employment conditions and salaryincreases
throughout the Group are taken into account when basic salaries are set

In additson to basic salary Executive Directors may be eligible to r ecewve fees for sitting on the
boar ds of certain subsidiary compantes

Benefits and all-employee
share schemes

To attract and retamn
expert people and to
foster share awnership

A car allowance s paid to Executive Directors iy bieu of the provision of a company cat

Executive Directors are eligible to recewe other taxable and non-taxable benefits which
may include
- prvate medical insurance [covening the Direcior spouse and any children under the age of 253
- lfe assurance cover under which a lump sum of four himes basic salary witl be paid out in
the event of death In service
- permanent health nsurance under which 75% of basic salary will be patd in the event
of long term absence due to certain medical reasons
- access to independent actuariel financial and legal advice when necessary
- gym membership substdised by the Company
- annual medicat checks
- relevant professional subscniption fees
- other benefits on substantiatly the same basws as other employeas

Execubve Directors are eligible ta participate n Briush Land s Share Incentive Plan {SIP}
and Sharesave Scheme on the same basis as other eligible employees

The Company prowvides Directors and Officers Liabihity Insurance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullest extent pet mitted by the Companies Act

Pension or pension allowance

1o attract and retain expert people
and to provide an appropniate level
of pension on retirement

Executve Directors may recewve pension benefits through a defined contribution
arrangement may recerve a cash allowance in Ligu of pension contributions or [prowided the
Director joined British Land befare its defined benefit scheme closed to new membersin
2006) may receive benefits through a defined benefit arrangement as deemed appropriate
by the Commitige

Accrual rates for Directers recewing benefits through the defined benefit scheme are
detetmened by the 1 ules of the scheme and are dependent an the age at which the Director
joined the Company Benefits up Lo the imit permitted by the tax legislation are provided

in a registered plan Benehts over that lmit are currently provided m an employer financed
resirernent benefit scherme [EFRBSE EFRBS participants are currently offered a choice
annually as to whether they wish to acerue benehits in the EFRBS or to receve a cash
payment in lieu

Directars participating in a defined contrbution arrangement may choose whether
contributions are made into British Land s defined contribution scheme o1 into then
own personal pension ptan Cash allowances in lieu of pension contributions would
typically be paid at the sarne level of salary as Company contributions under the delined
contribution arrangement
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

The maximum level of basic salary will not be greater than the upper
quartile of the comparator group

Increases witt typically be in line wathinflation and general salary
Increases throughout the Group I an indwvidual 1s appointed at a
salary posittoned below the level aligned with our comparator group
a larger ncrease may be awarded In order (o position the salary
around the median of our comparator group

Executive Directors fees for sitting on subsidiary company boar ds
are capped at a maximum of £1 500 per annum 1n aggregate for all
qualifying appointments

Not applicable

The maximum car attowance s £20 800 per annum

The maximum cost of other taxabie and non-taxable benefits
permitted under the Policy i1s the amount required 1o continue
providing benefits at a similar levet year-on-yedr

The maxirnum opportunitics under the SIP and Sharesave Scheme
are set by the ruies of the schemes and determined by statutory imits

Not applicable

Under the defined henefit scheme the target benetit 1s the pensian
that can be provided by the 31 March 2012 lfetrne altowance (€1 8
rmillion) uplifted by RPI from that date The maxemum accrual rate

{or a defined benefit scheme member is that which will give the target

heneitt at age 60 subject to the accrual rate being no greater than
one thurtieth and no tess than one sixtieth of selary

Employer pension contributions to Executive Directors undes

the defined cantribution arrangement and cash allowancesin heu
of pension are made at a hixed percesntage of salary between

15% and 35%

Not applicable
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REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Component and Purpose

OCpaeration

=
o RS el

To reward Company and individual
periormance that supports the
strategic priorities of the business
and to promuote activities that help
the business successfully
imptement its strategy

To foster share ownership and align

participants interests with those of
shareholders

Py
&3 Long-Term Incenbive Plan {LTIP]

Annual Incentive awards ray be granted to Executive Directors each year with the level of
award rellecting Company and indwvidual performance agamnst measures set by the
Remuneration Comsriitee Awar ds are granted foltowing the financial year end when actual
performance over that year has been measured

Two thirds of an Executive Director s Annual Incentive award 1s paid in cash when the award

1s granted The remaiming thid of the Annuat Incentive award net of tax) i1s used to purchase

British Land shares on behalf of the Executive Director [Annual Incentive Sharest Annual

Incentive Shares musl be held for three years fi om {he date of grant of the Annuat Incentive

award befer e they may be transferred or sold regardless of whether or not the mdwidual

remains an employee of Bribish Land throughout itss pertod Executive Directors are entitled \
to the dwidends paid i respect of the Annual Incentive Shares during the holding period

The Annual incentive Shares may be clawed back during the three year period following 1ssue
if it1s discovered that the refevant Annual Incentive award was granted on the basis of
materally misstated accounts or other data

To link the tevel of reward to
Company performance agamnst
specifted long term measures,
promoting and rewarding activities
that support our strategy and create
sustainable long term value for
shareholders

To foster share ownership and align
participants interests with those of
shareholders

L1tP awards may be granted annually by the Remuneration Committee to Executive Directors
Awards may consist of performance shares {conditional rights 1o recewve shares or market
value options or a carnbination of the twe Executive Directors may indicate a prefesence asto
the proportions of their award recetved as performance shares and/or market value options

LTIP awards vest alter three years The number of perforimance shares and/or options vesting
1s dependent on the degree to which performance conditions attached to the LTIP award have
been met over this three year performance period A payment equivalent to the dividends
accrued on vesting performance shares and the interest thereon is paud at the pomnt of vesting

Onvesting sufficient performance shares may be sold to cover any Liatntity to iIncome tax and
Natianal Insurance Contributions The remaining performance shares must be held for two
year s following vesting before they are permitied o be transferred or sold regardless of
whether or not the mdividual remains an employee of British Land throughout this periad

LTI# options may be exercised at any point during the seven years fellowing vesting If LTIP
options are exercised within two years of the vesting date, sufficient of the shares acquired
may be seld to cover the cost of exercise and any Liability to income tax and National Insurance
Contnibutions but the remaining shares must be held untl the point two years fram the
vesting date befor e they are permitted to be transfterced or sold regardless of whether or not
the individual remains an employee of British Land throughout this period

il 1t1s discovered that an LTIP award was granted or vested on the basis of matenially

misstated accounts or other data

- the Commitiee may reguire some or all of the performance shares to be forferted or clawed
back during the five year peniod following the grant date

- the Cornrmittee may require some or atl unexercised options io be forfeited at any paint and

- where an oplion 1s exercised withen five years of #s grant date the Commuiltee may require
some or all of the shares acguired to be ctawed back dunng the five year pencd following the
option grant date
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Maximum Oppertumty

Performance Conditions

The maximum level of Annual Incentive which may be granted
1s equivalent to 150% of basic salary

The Annual Incentive performance measures refate to British Land s
sirategic focus areas and the Executive Director s mdwidual areas of
responsibility The measures are set by the Remuneration Commuttee
at the beginmng of the financiat year over which pal formance witi be
assessed and are not sirictly weighted When detesrmining the level of
an Executve Director s Annual incentive award the Commitiee takes
into account performance against all measures and makes an
assessment in the round

if actual performance averaged over all measures s equal to the
median levet of performance the Annual Incentive award granted
will be one guarter of the maxtmum potential award [equivalent to
37 5% of basic salary] Up to half of the maximum potentiat award
lequivalent ta 75% of basic salaryl 1s payabte for performance that
1510 Line with expectations i average performance is below the
median {eve! of performance ne Annual Incentive award will

be granted

No further performance conditions are attached to the Apnual
Incentive Shares during the holding period

The maximum vaiue of an LTIP award which may be granted 1s
equivatent to 300% of basic salary The value for this purpose
1s the aggregate fair value of the shares and/or options granted
at the date of award

The fair value of a share 15 the average market value of British Land
shares ovei the three deaiing days preceding grant The fair vaiue of
a market value option s such fraction of the fair value of a share asis
sei hy the Commuttee Thes fraction ss currently one guarter but may
be varied by the Commuttee to reflect the economic madels used by
the Company for the vatuation of aptions

The LTiP per formance conditions have been chosen to rewar d

per farmance that 1s aigned with Briush Land s strategy

- total property return [TPR] performance 1s assessed refative
te an Investment Proper ty Databank [IPD) benchmark rewarding
strong returns at the property tevet

- total accounting return [TAR} petformance 1s assessed relalve
lo a camparator group consisting of the 17 largest property
companies withan the FTSE thal use EPRA accounting fnctuding
Briuish Land and

- total shareholder return [TSRI performance is assessed against both
the FTSE100 and & comparator group consisting of the 17 largest
property companies within Lhe FTSE that use EPRA accounting
lincluding British Land]

The relative weighting of the performance conditions may be vaned
by the Comrruttee 10 ensure the L1HP best supports Briush Land s
strategy and to meet investor preferences The Carnmittee currently
intends to apply the performance conditions with the fotlowing
weightings 40% of the award will be Linked to the TPR conditron
40% wrill be inked to the TAR condition and 20% will be linked to

the TSR conditron

TPR performance 1s curi ently assessed against the IPD UK Annual
Proper ty Index The Committee may amend the comparator groups
of companies during the performance period if there 1 a corporate
event affecting any member of the group and may amend the [PD
benchmark if a different benchmark 1s deemed more appi opriate

Pes formance condittons are challenging requiring sigrificant
autperformance for 100% of the LTIP award tovest 20% of the
award will vest i the minimum performance threshold i1s achieved
pet formance below the minimum threshold for a pes formance
condition will result in the LTIP award in respect of that condition
lapsing Upper quat ule performance must be achieved against
each perfarmance measure for the entre award to vest
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Non-Executne Directors' Remumeration Poliey

Component and Purpose

Operation

Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

Chawrman s fee

To attract and retan an individual
with the appropriate degree

of expertise and experience

The Chairman s annual fae

15 set by the Remuneration Commutee
and reviewed annually The level of the
Chairman s annual fee 1s positioned
around the median of our chosen
comparator group which consists

of FTSE 100 compames with bioadly
surular market capitalisations

The maximum annual fee
will not be greates than the
upper guartite of the chosen
comparater group Typically
increases 1f requn ed

will be in line with inflatson

Not applicable

Chairman s benefits

To facilitate the Chairman s
travelin the futfitment ef his
or her duties

The Eharman 1s provided with a car
and chauffeur together with any taxes
thereon

The maximum opporiuntty
15 the cost to the Comparry
of providing this gressed-up
taxabke benefit at 3 saimular
level eachyear

Not applicable

Non-Executive Directors fees
To attract and retain expert
people with the appropriate
degree of expe: tise and
experience

Remuneration of the Non-Executive
Directorsis a matter for the Cxecutive
Dwrectors and fees are reviewed
annually

Nen-Executive Directors receive an
annual fee plus additional fees if they
are member s of a Committee orif
they hold the position of Senor
Independent Director or Chaisman
of the Rermuneration or Audit
Commitiee

The Company s Policy 1s to deliver a
total {ee at a levelwn line wath similar
posiions at our chosen comparator
group wihich consists of FTSE 100
comparues wiih broadly similar
market capitalisations

The maximum aggregale
amount of basic fees payable
to alt Non-Executive Directors
shall not exceed the £600 000
timit set in the Company s

Ar tictes of Association

Mot applicable

QOther arrangements for
the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors
To suppart the Duectorsin
the fulfilment of their duties

The Company rmay reimburse
expenses reasonably incurred by

the Chawrman and the Non-Executive
Directors in fulfitment of the
Company s business together

with any laxes thereon

The Company provides the Chairman
and the Non-Executive Director s with
Duectors and Officers Liability

Insu: ance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Act

The maxiroum remmbursement
IS expenses reasonably
meurred togetherwiith any
taxes thereon

The maximum vatue of the
Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance and the Company s
indemnity is the cost at the
relevant ime

Not applicabte

90
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Notes to the Remuneratien Policy table

Remuneration Policy for other employees

Salary reviews across the Group are carried gut an the same basis

as salary reviews for the Executive Directors consideration 1s given

to the individual s role duties, experience and performance along

with cansideration of typical salary levels of employees in sumilar

roles in compar able companies where the data s available Employees
are entitted to taxable and non-taxable benefits with executives being
entitted to substanttally the same benefits as the Executive Directors

All ernployees are eligible ta recewve an Annual Incenbive the level of
which will be dependent onindsvidual departmental and Company
performance A proportion of a senor executive s Annual Incentive
award may be deferred 1o purchase Annual Incentive Shares Executives
may be granted L ong-Term Incentive Plan awards Some executives

Inot including Executive Directors] are eligible to receive shares under
the Fund Managers Pes formance Plan [FMPP)] The final FMPP award
was gianted in 2013 and the final YMPP vesting will take place :in 2015
Emplayees joiing the company after 2006 are eligible totake part ina
defined contribution pension arrangement The Company s alt-employee
share schemes (the Shat e Incentive Plan and the Sharesave Scheme]
are also open to elhigible employees

Pre-existing obligatiens and commitments

It 15 a provision of this Policy that the Company can honour all
pre-existing obligations and commitrnents thatwe: ¢ entered into prior to
this Remuneration Policy taking effect The terms of those pre-existing
obligations and cornrmtments may differ fram the terms of the Remuneration
Policy and may include [without limitation} obligations and comnutments
under service contracts long term incentive schemes (Including previous
Long-Term Incentive Plans and the Matching Share Plan] pension and
benefit ptans

Considerations when setting Remuneration Policy

In drawing up the Remuneration Policy the Commitiee took inta
account views expressed by shareholders during meetings and
communicated to the Company The Company engaged with its
shareholders via consultation meetings with investar bodies

and by writing 1o «is largest shareholders offering each a meeting
to discuss remuneration proposails

Each year the Remuneration Commuttee takes into account the pay and
employment conditions of emptoyees in the Group noting the general
Increase In salary proposed for atl employees and levels of iIncentive
payments and per formance before setting the remuneration of the
Directors The Commuiiee did not consutt with the Company s employees
ar use remuneralion comparisan reasurements when drawing up the
Directors Remuneration Policy

Approach to recruitment remuneration

Executive Directors

Basic satary s set at a level appropriate to recrunt a surtabte candidate
taking into account exter nal market competitiveness and mternal equuy
The level of basic salary may mitially be positioned betow the median

of the chosen comparator group with the intention of increasing it to
around the median of the comparator group aiter an initiat period of
satisfactory service

Where a recruit s forfeiing incentive awards granted by his or her exisung
employer compensation in the form of a Restricted Share Plan [RSP
award may be made [in accordance with Listing Rule 7 4 2} the maximum
value of which will be that which the Commutiee in its reasonable opinion
considers Lo be equal to the vatue of the awards which have lapsed

The value of dvidends paid on the RSP shar es during the vesting period
1s paid directly 1o the Director Vesting of the shares granted under the
RSP award will be subject to the Dis ector completing a minimum period
of qualifying service so the award will not be released until this condition
has been satisfied The vesting of the RSP award may be subject lo
additional performance measures being met over the same period

the Cornmittee will deterrmine the most relevant measures to use at

the ime of award bearing in mind the responsibilities of the individual
being appainted and the Company s strateqic priorsties at the bime

The Commiitee may chosse to offer a Co-Investment Share Plan [CIP]
award to a new Executive [hrector on recruitment bin accordance with
Listing Rule 9 4 2) toassist the Director ¢ building a helding of British
Land shares with the aim of further aligning the Director s personal
interests with those of British Land s shareholders

Under the CIP a director may invest a maximurn of 150% satary

|225% salary fora Chief Executive] to purchase British Land shdres
these imits being determined by the Director s munimum shareholding
guideline The Campanywill maich the purchased CIP sharesona

11 basis [before allowing for tax liabihities that will anise on vesting of
the matching shares] Allthe CIP shares are then deferr ed for three
years subject to the Drectar remaining employed by the Group and
hokding the shares for this ume Showuld the Direcior leave the Group
before the qualifying period i1s completed all of the matching shares
wilt tapse and the purchased shares will be released to the Director
Dividends paid on the purchased CIP shares during the vesting period
are paud directiy to the Director a dwdend equivalent payment 1s made
on vesting to compensate for dividends accrued on matching C1P shares
The Committee will impaose performance rmeasures an CIP awards
which must be achieved over the three-year hotding period for the
matching shares to vest The Commiitee will determine the most
relevant measures to use at the time of award bearing in mind the
responstbitities of the individuat beg appointed and the Company s
strategic priarities at the trme

The Company s Policy 1s to give notice periods of no longer than

12 months However when recruiting an exter nal candidate t may
be necessary te give ansmtial notice peried of up to 24 months this
reduces at the end of 12 months work to 12 months The remainder
of the package olfered to a new Executive Director would be m ine
with the Company s angoing Remuneration Policy

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

On recruniment the Chairman will be offered an annual fee and benefits
in accordance with the Policy The level of the annual fee may imtiatly

be positioned below the median of the chesen comparator group with
the itention of increasing it to around the median of the comparator
group alter an initiat period of sasfactory service Non-Executive
Dhrectors will be offered Non-Executive Directers fees sn accordance
with the Policy

Apporntment of internal candidates

If an existing employee of the Group 1s appointed as an Executive Director
Chairman or Non-Executive Director any cbligation or cormrmitment
entered into with that indmidual prior to hus er her appointment ¢an

be honoured i accordance with the terms of those obligations or
commiiments even where they differ from the terms of the Policy
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Policy on loss of office

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors service contracts can be tawfully terminated by
either par ty giving 12 months notice &1 by the Company making a lump
surn payment i ligu of nobice [PILON) equal to the Executive Director s
base satar y for the notice period Additionally when the Company makes
a PILON 1t may etther pay a lump sum equal to the value of any heneiits
for the nource peri1od o continue to provide benefits until the notice penad
expires or the Executive Director starts new employment [whichever

1s the earlier] These lawful termination mechantsms do not prevent

the Company i appropriale circurastances from termunatsng an
Executive Director s emplgyment in breach of bus or her service

contract and secking to apply miugation v determining the damages
payable Where this s achievable in hegotiation with the ouigoing
Director settlement arrangements are structured so that the
termination paymentis paid in instalments and the instalments

are reduced by an amount equat 1o any earrungs recesved from the
outgoing Director s new employment consultancy or other pard work

For depar ting Executive Direclors and Executive Directors that have left
British Land the Commuiitee may agree to cash commutation of pension
benefits under the defined benehit scheme linctuding EFRBS benehis}
and other pension arrangements entered into prior to the adaption of the
2014 Remuneration Policy Any commutation would take into account
valuations provided by independent actuanial advisors so as to be
undertaken on a basis considered by the Committee o be cost neuiral
to the Company

The cir cumstances of the loss of ofiice dictate whether the individual 1s
treated as a good leaver or otherwise in accordance with the Company s
Policy The Remuneratiocn Commuttee uses its discretion to form a view
taking inte account the circumstances Good leaver s typically receive
pro-raia Annual Incentive and long term incentive awards subject to
performance measurement and ather leavers fot feit their entitlements
In the event of a change of control the rules of the share plans generally
provide for acceler ated vesting of awar ds sutyject lwhere applicable]

to ime apporlionment and achtevement of performance targets All of
the Company s Executive Direclors have contracts that pre-date 27 June
2012 but these do not contain contraciual prowvisions that could impact
on the amount of any payment for loss of office and which fall cutside
the Policy Details of the Executive Director s service contracts and
notice periods are given in the table below (D1 5]@

Normal Normal

ngtice notice

Length Date of pened o period {o

aof service service begmenby  begvenby

Director contract contract Company Director
Chris Grigg 1?7mths 1?7208  12mths 2 mths
Lucinda Bell 12 mhs 10031 12 mths 12 mths
Charles Maudsley 12 mths 031107 12 inths 12 mths

Tirn Raberts 12 mths 41106 12 mths 12 mths

The Company may lermminate a Direclor s appointment withimmediate
affect without notice or payment in lieu of notice under certain
circurmstances prescribed within the Director s service contract
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The letters of appointment of Mon-Executive Directors are subject

to renewal on a triennial basis In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directors stand io1 election or re-election by

the Company s shareholders on an annual basis The Directors service
contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection durng
normal business hours at the Company s register ed office and at the
Annual General Meeting The unexpired terms of the Chairman s and
Non-Executive Directors letters of appointiment are shown below

Unexpired term of
Dhate of current appointment at

Director appointment 31 March 2014
John Gildersleeve ICharman) 01/01/2016 33 months
Aubiey Adams 01/0%9/2014 17 months
Simen Borrows 17/03/2014 11 months
Lynn Gladden 20/03/2015 23 months
William Jackson 1/04/2014 12 months
Tun Score 20/03/2014 1t months
Lord Turnbut! 01/04/2015 24 months
taura Wade-Gery 13/05/2015 25 months

Although the Charman s and Non-Executive Directors appointments
are for fixed terms ther appointments may be termunated immediately
without notice If they are not reappointed by shar eholders or if they are
removed from the Boar d under the Campany s Ariicles of Association
orif they resiyn and do nat offer themselves for re-election In addition
therr appointments may be termimated by either the intividual or the
Company giving three rmonths written notice of termination [or for

the Charrman six months written notice of termination) Despite these
terms of appointment nesther the Chairman nor the Non-Executive
Directors are entitled to any compensation [other than accrued and
unpaid fees and expenses for the period up to the termination) for loss
of ofiice for any reason




REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2016

Pages 99 to 10i} detail how the Remunear ation Commitiee istends to apply
the Remuneration Poticy during the coming year

Executrve Directors’ Remuneration

% Basic salaries

Basic salaries have been set at Lhe followtng levels for the year
commenaing 1 April 2016 Sataries have not been changed refative
to the prior year

Drrector Basic salary €
Chrnis Grigg 840 000
Lucinda Bell 493000
Charles Maudsley 446250
Tim Rober ts 446 2350

I+ Annual Incenive awards

During the year Annual Incentive performance will be assessed against
a range of quantitative and qualitative measures

Quantitative measures

- Property returns Unlevered property capital returns relative to IPD
and iotal property retu n relative to 1PD

- Acceunting returns Total sccounting return relative to property majors

- Rental growth ERV growth relative to tPD and

- Underlying profit performance Prohit performance relative to budget

Qualitatve measures supporting the four areas of our business model
- Right Places progress on key projects including developments and
execution of targeted acquisitions and disposals
- Custormer Onentation company reputation with all stakeholders
and supporting the delivery of sustainability abjectives,
- Capital Efficiency execution of debt financings and progress
on strengthen:ing the divideng and
- Expert Peopie guality of people and management enewal

The Executive Directors indwidual performance will also be assessed
aganst measures relating to their specific areas of respensibility that
support the corporate measures above Further information regarding
the measures and the assessment of performance used te determine
Exacutive Directors Annual incentive awards for the year ending

31 March 2017 will be disclosed in the 2017 Remwuneration Report

@‘% Long term incentive awards

Matching Share Plan [MSP)

Under the Rernuneration Policy appr oved by sharehalder s at the Annuat
General Meeting in 2014 {available on pages 84 to 91 of Briish Land s
2014 Annual Report} one third of each Executive Diectors Annual
Incentive award must be deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus
Shares Therefore the Annuat Incentive awards that are due to be paid to
Executive Directors in June 2016 1n respect of per formance during the
year ended 31 March 2016 will be subject to such s deferraland an
asscaiated award of MSP Matching Shares will be granted Thiswill be
the finat MS5P awar d granted o Executive Directors as the Remuneration
Policy that will be presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM 1n
July 2016 [detailed on pages 90 to 98 of this Repor t} does not include a
matching share plan

Two equally werghted performance measures will be applied to MSP
Matching Share awards eath measure 1elates to half of the total MSP
award meaning no more than half of the total award can vestif one of the
performance measures does not meet 1ts mimimum vesting threshold

The total sharehotder return (TSR] part

The comparator group against which TSR perfermance will be
assessed aver the three-year performance period consists of

Great Portland Estates plc Hammersen ple Intu Properties plg
Land Securities Group PLC SEGRO plc Big Yellow Group PLC
Capital & Counties PLC Derwent London ple Grainger ple
Hansteen Holdings plc Helical Bar ple LondonMetric Praperty ple
5t Modwen Proper ties PLC Shaftesbury PLC The UNITE Group ple
UK Commercial Praperty Trust Ltd and Britsh Land The percentage
of the part of the MSP Matching Award linked 1o TSR performance
witt be determined as follows

British Land s TSR relative to the comparator group
at the end of the performance peried

Percentage of TSR part
of award vesting %

Below medhan Iy
Median 25

Further vesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median ‘
lte a maximurs of 100% of TSR par t of award) 1875 |
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The gross incorme growth (GIG] part

Brivsh Land s gross income growttrwill be assessed relative to the
Investment Property Databank (IPD] Quarter ly Umver se (the IPD
Universel Inorder for the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to GIG
performance to vest Biitish Land s GIG over the three-year perlormance
period must be equal to that of the IPD Universe [the Growth
Regurement | The percentage of the GIG part ot the MGP Matching
Award vesting will be deter mined as follows

Brtish Land s G1G relative to the {PD Universe
at the end of the performance perod

Percentage of GIG part
of award vesting %

Below Growth Requirement 0

Equal to Growth Requirement 23

Further vesting per each 0 5% per annum GIG
exceeds the Growth Requirement {lo a maximum
of 100% of BI5 patt of award] 25

Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP]

it 1s intended that the final LTIP grant under the Remuneration Policy
approved by sharehotders at the AGM in 2014 [available on pages 84 ta 91
of British Land s 2014 Annuat Report) will take place in June 2016 Asthe
mientian 1s to grant an LT!P award it advance of the new Remuneration
Policy and amended LTIP rutes being presented fer shareholder approval
at the AGM in July 2016 no further LTIP award will be granted to
Executive Directors during the year to 31 March 2017 Therefore the fiest
LTIP award to Executive Directors under the new Policy 1f approved 1s
not intended 16 be granied until the financial year ending 31 March 2018
Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied to LTIP
awards granted m the year ending 31 March 2017 each measure relates
to half of the tatat LTIP award meamng no more than half of the total
award can vest if one of the pet formance measui es does not meel its
minsmum vesting threshold

The total property return (TPR] part

Beitish Land s TPR over the the ee-year performance period will be
assessed relative to the IPD UK Annual Property index [the PD
Benchmark | The percentage of the TPR part of the LTIP award vesting

Total Accounting Return (TAR]

Bntish Land s TAR over the three-year perfermance period wilt be
assessed relative lo the same comparator group ef companies that
performance will be assessed agamst under the MSP TSR measure
The percentage of the TAR part of the LTiP award vesting will be
determined as follows

British Land s TAR relative to the comparator group
at the end of the performance period

Percentage of TAR part
of award vesting %

Below median 0

Median 25
100

Upper guartile

Thes e will be straght-line vesting belwean median and upper quartile
pet formance

The per formance measures thal will apply to LTIP awards granied under
the new Remuneraton Policy that will be presented far shareholder
approval at the AGM in July 2016 fthe first grant of which 1s notintended
1o take place until the inancial year ending 31 March 2018} are described
on page 88

Non-Exccutne Directors’ remuneration

The following fee st uctu e will apply for the Chairman s and Non-
Execuuve Directors fees subject o shareholder approval of our new
Remuneration Policy al the AGM in July 2016 This represents a change
from the current structure under which Non-Executive Directors receve
fees based in part on iherr attendance at Board and Cormittee meetings

The Chairman s annual fee has not been changed relative to the prior
year 1115 intended that fees patd 1o the other Non-Executive Directors
in respect of service between 1 April 2814 and the 2016 AGM [pasd i
accordance with the current Remuneration Policy approved by
shareholders 1n 2004} will be deducted from the annual fees set out
befow so that fees recewed in respect of the full year to 31 March 2017
are in kne with the structure set out below

will be determined as follows Chairman s armnual fee £349 340
British Land s TPR relatve to the IPD Benchmark Percentage of TPR part Non-Executive D ector s annual fee £61 000
at the end of the performance period ofawardvesing% | gonor independent Dit ectar s annual fee £10 000
d 0

Below median Audit Comimittee or Rernuneration Commitiee Chairman s
Medan 25 | annual fee £20 000
Upper quarule 100 | Remuneration Committee or Audit Cormmittee member s

= annuat feg 8009

Norminztign Committee member s annual fee £4000
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How we applied our Remuneration
Policy during the year ended
31 March 2016

Single total figure of remuneration (audited information)
The following tabies detal! all elements of remuneration receivable by British Land s Directors in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 and show
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Other stems in Pension er

Taxable Annual Long term the nature of pensien
Salaryffees benefits' ncentve incentives  remuneration? allowance Total
2016 2016 2015 2014 2014 2018 2016
Executwve Directors £000 £900 €000 €060 £000 £000 €000
Chris Grigg 840 21 840 1,681 33 294 3709
t.ucinda Bell 493 21 410 819 28 82 1853
Charles Maudsley 4hb 22 410 351 17 &7 1823
Twn Roberts 448 21 400 861 19 106 1855
2015 2015 2015 015 2015 2015 015
Executrve Directors €000 E000 €006 €000 €000 £000 €000
Chris &rigg 8no 21 1152 4 759 39 280 6551
l.ucinda Belt 465 21 500 1863 17 48 2934
Charles Maudsley 425 22 540 14670 16 bh 2737
Tem Roberts 427 22 570 1696 21 76 2812

Taxable benefils include car allowance, private medical nsurance and subsidised gym membership The Company provides the tax gross Up on subs dised gym
membership and the figures included above are the grossed up values An adjustment has been made to the prioryear 5 correspending amount to reflect the fact
that gym membership benefits were not disclosed on a grossed up basis in that year

* Other items inthe nature of remuneration include Ufe assurance permanent health insurance annual medical check-ups professional subscription fees the value
of shares awarded underthe all-employee Share Incentrve Flan and the notional gain on exercise for any Sharesave Scheme optians that mature during the year

Fees Taxable benefits’ Total

0m6 2018 2014 2015 2046 2015
Charrman and Non-Executive Directors £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 €000
John Gildersleeve [Chairman) 369 332 60 40 429 412
Aubrey Adams 68 &9 - - 68 69
Simon Borrows 48 &7 - - 68 &7
Lynn Gladden 67 1 1 - 68 ]
ido Harding* nfa 34 nfa - nfa 34
Witham Jackson 70 b6 - - 70 66
Tim Score 88 73 1 - 89 73
Lard Turmbull 97 7% - - 97 79
Laura Wade-Gery® 44 nfa - n/a 44 nfa

* Taxable benefits include the Chairman s chauffeur cost and expenses incurred by other Non-Executive Directors The Company prowides the tax gress up on these
benelits and the figures shown above are the grossed up values Anadjustment has been made 1o the prior year s corresponding amount to reflect the fact that chauffeur
costs were not disclosed on a grossed up basis in that year

T DidoHarding resigned as a Director on 10 Becember 2014

¥ Laura Wade-Gerywas appoinied as a Director e 13 May 2013
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Notes to the single total figure of remuneranon table

gt

EEEl Annual Ircentive

The level of Annual Incentive award is deterrmed by the Remuneration Commuttee based on British Land s performance and each individual
Executive Director s contribution during the year Annual Incentive measures ar e not strictly weighied and the Committee assesses performance
it the round The Committee s assessment for the year ended 31 March 2016 1s set out below undertaken with reference te per for mance agamst

the following quanutative and gualitative measures using data available at the year end

Quantitative Measures

Range of Range of
performance perfarmance
between Between
median and I ling with
1n Line with axpectatians

expactations and maxmum pay oul

50" pay-out

25%' pay-out [performance
[ng pay-out below in line with
this median pointl  expectatrons)

100%' pay out
{ne increased
pay-out above
this maximum
pay out point}

Narrative description of performance against measures

Property
returns

Accounting
returns

Rental
growth

Underlying
profit
performance

Unlevered property
capiial returnvs IPD

Total property returns
vs IPD

Total accounting return
Vs property majors

Leasing actwity vs CRY

ERV growthvs IPD

Prohit growth vs budgel
and properly majors

¢

- Capital growth of 4 8% outperformung IPD by 50 bps bath
Retail and Othices outperformed their sector indices

- Total property veturn of 11 3% performing in ling with tPD
although both Retail and Oif.ces outperformed their secter
ind ces

- Total sccounting return above the estimated medan of the
property majors at 19 8% when adjusted lo reflect changes
to UK Commercial Stamp Duty fas described opposite)

- Lettings and renewals 6 8% ahead of ERV
- ERV growth of 5 3% outperforming IPD by 130 bps
hoth Retail and Offies outperfor med ther sector indices

- Proint growth of 16 0% ahead of budget and above the
estimated median of the property majors

Qualitative Measures

Right
Places

Customer
Orentation

Capntal
Efficiency

Expert
People

Progress on key
projects including
developments and
Execution of targeted
acquisiions and
disposals

Cornpany reputation
with ali siakeholders
and

Supporting delivery
of susteinability
objectives

Progress on
strengthering
the dividend and
Executton of
debt financings

Quality of people and
management renewal

T

- In Offwces cempleted 5 Broadgate planning ach eved at
100 Liverpow] Street 1 Finsbury Avenue and Blossom Streat
ptanming application subrmitied for 2 and 3 Finshury Avenue

« |n Retail completed Whiteley Phase 2 planmng consent
receved at Speke, planming application subrmitted for
Eden Walk

- Public consultation for developrnent of 46-acre site at
Canada Water

- Conbinued repositioning of the portfoliowith £i 3bilhon of
gross actmity acquisiions and investments balanced with
disposals in line with plan

- Awarded the Queen s Award for Enterprise the UK s highest
accolade for business success for our continued econamic
social and environmental achuevements over five years

- Strong progress on developing Places People Prefer

- Cuslomner satsfaction score maintained at 7 9/10

- Maintained inclusion in the four target ESG Indices Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices World and Europe FTSE4AGOOD and
GRESE [Europe Sector Leader}

- Fullyear dividend increased by 7 5% to 28 3& pence per share

- £715 miflion refinancings executed :nctud ng £350 million zero
coupon converitble bond

- Finance cosls reduced further weighted average interest rate
reduced 50 bps to 3 1%
- Retained One Star rating for employee satisiaction

- Further strengthening of senior team with two externat
Executive Commutlee appointments

25% of the maximum level 37 5% of basic salary 50% of the maximum level = 75 0% of basic salary 100% of the maximurrtlevel = 150% of basic salary
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The increase In UK Caommercial Stamp Duty which ook effect on 17 March 2016 wnpacied the total accounting return [TAR] and IFRS profits of
campanies with a inancial year end of 31 March 2015 but did not impact those with a financial year end of 31 December 2015 The under lying profut
figure used to assess Annual Incentive performance was nol affected by the change to UK Commercial Stamp Duty So that the TAR performance
of British Land for 2015/16 can be campared on a like-for-like hasis with the other property majors an adjusted and audited higure for Briush Land s
TAR which excludes the impact of the UK Commercsal Stamp Duty change has been used to assess performance In assessing the performance
of the comparator group for TAR and profit performance relative to propel ty majors analysts consensus {before the impact of the UK Commeraial
Stamp Duty change] has been used for one company with a March year end and reported data has been used for the December year end companies

Over the year each Executive Direclor sindividual performance was measured against objectives supporting the key areas of our busmness model
Right Places, Customer Onentauon Captal Efficiency and Expert Pegpte The Group does not disclose prospective and retrospective performance
measures for iIndividual performance beyond that disclosed above as the Directors consider this 1o be commercrally sensitive this information will
nat be disclosed at futur e dates for the same reason

Taking into accouni corporate performance agamst the quantitative and qualitative measures aver the year to 31 March 2016 aswell as each
Executive Director s individual pet formance the Remuneration Comimittee set the Annual Incentive awar ds received by the Executive Directors
at the following levels

Proportion of maximum
potential award granted

Executve Director [
Chris Grigg 67
Lucinda Bell 55
Charles Maudsley 61
Tim Raberts 40

The maximum Annual Incentive award achievable 1s equivalent to 150% base salary The Remuneration Lommittee set the aggregate Annual
Incentive recewved by the Executive Dir ectors for the year ended 31 March 2016 at 62% of the maxunum {93% of base salary) as cornpared with
87% of the maximum {130% of base salaryl for the year ended 31 March 2015

One third of each Executive Director s Annuat Incentive award will be deferred and used to purchase MSP Henus Shares subjectto @ three-year

hatding 1 equiremnent under British Land s Matching Share Plan [MSP}in accordance with the curreat Remuneration Falicy No further performance
measures apply to these deterr ed shares the MSP s described on pages 99 to 100

@S Long term mcentves {audited information}

Figures in the "Long term incentives™ column are comprised of awards vesting under the Long-Term incentive Plan {LTIP] and Matching Share Plan
{MSP| including where applicable dividend equivalent payments on those vesting awards and interest accrued on those dividend equivalents The
LTIP awards and MSP Matching awards granted to Executive Directors in 2013 are included in the 2016 Long ter mincentives column Vesting of these
awards 1s subject to performance over the three year period to 31 Mar ch 2016 against the relevant performance conditions which are detailed en
pages 99 to 100 The estunaled vestmg values of these awards have been calculated using the average market value for 3 Briish Land share for the
periad from 1 January 20106 10 31 March 2016 762 6 pence! as the vesting share price

LTIP

Two equally weighled pet for mance conditions are atlached to the LTIP awards granted in 2013 measuting Briish Land s total property return [TPR)
relative to the funds In the December IPD UK Annual Property Index {the Index} and total accounting return {TAR) retateve (o a comparator group of
Briuish Land and 16 other properly companies These awards are due to vest on 5 August 2016 The mcrease in UK Commercaiat Stamp Duty which
took effect on 17 March 2016 impacted British Land s TPR at 31 March 2016 but did not smpact the Index So that the performance of the Company
and the Index can be compar ed on the same basis an adjusted and audited figure for Briush Land s TPR excluding the impact of the UK Commerciat
Stamp Duty change has been used to assess LTIP TPR performance This adjiustment will not be required in future years because when determnung
LTIP vesting levels the impact of this UK Commercial Stamp Duty change will (al already have been reflected in the TPR of the Company and

the comparator group for awards gi anted in 2014 and 20153 and {b] be reflected in the start peint for awards granted in 2016 and future years

The TPR part s expected to vest at 69% based on British Land s adjusted TPR of 14 9% compared ta the Index median of 139% Itis esimated that
the TAR partwill vest at 44% the actuat vesting rate of the TAR part wilt be calculaled once results have been published by alf of the cempanies
within the comparator group This praduces the estimated values an vesting set out in the table on the fellowing page The actual vesting will be
confirmed by the Commutiee and provided in the 2017 Remuneration Report
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Estimated Estumated dmdend

Awand price Number of percentage of  Estimated vatue of equvalent and

lexeraise prica] performance Number of award vesting award on vesting interest

Executive Director LTiP award date p shares awarded eptions awarded % £000 £000
Chris Grigg 05/08/2013 401 266 222 - 57 1057 125
Lucinda Bell §5/08/2013 601 116 096 154 742 57 549 55
Charles Maudsley 05/08/2013 401 141 430 - 57 561 67
Tim Reberts 05/08/2013 401 141430 - 37 561 67

The LTIP awards granted to Executive Director s in 2012 lwhich vested on 14 September 2015 and ar e shown i the 2015 Long term incentives column)
were subject e a performance condition assessing the growth in British Land s net asset value relative to the increase in the capitat growth
compenent of the {PD UK Annual Praper ty Ingdex This condition s detailed on page 102 of the 2015 Annual Report Fhe vesting vatues of these awards
have now been catculated using the actual mar ket value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting values included in the prioryear s single
total figure of remuner ation table

MSP

Twao equally weighted per formance condittons are attached io the MSP Matching awards granted in 2013 measuring British Land s total shareholder
relurn [TSR) relauve to a compar ator group of 17 proper ty cempanies (including Britssh Landl and Briish Land s gross income growth {GIG] relative
to the IPD Quarterly Universe [the Universe) These awards are due to vest on 2 August 2016 Aon Hewitt has confirmed that the TSR part of the award
will lapse as British Land s TSR performance over the period was 38 0% compar ed to a median of 53 7% for the comparator gioup The GIG par tis
expected to vest at 100% as British Land s annualised GIG over the period 1s expected to exceed the growth of the Unwerse by mare than the upper
hurdle of ¥ 5% This produces the estimated values on vesting set out below The actual vesting rate will be confirmed by the Commuttee and provided
In the 2017 Remuneration Report

Estimated Esurnated Esturmated

Number of percentage of value of award dmdend

Matching Shares award vesting on vesting equivalent

Executrve Director MSP award date awarded % £000 £000
Chris Giigg 02/08/2013 127095 50 446 53
tucinda Bell 02/08/213 54720 50 162 23
Charles Maudsley 02/08/2013 59 428 50 209 25
Tin: Roberis 02/08/2013 59478 30 209 25

The MSP awards granied to Executive Directors in 2012 fwhich vested on 7 September 2019 and & e shown in the 2015 Long term mcentives column)
were subject to the same performance conditions as the MSP awards granted i 2013 The vesting vatues of these awards have now been calculated
using the actual market value on the day vesting, 1 eplacing the estimated vesting values included in the prior year s single tatal igure of
remuneration table

gﬁl Pension or pension allowance (audited information)

The higures shown in the Pension columa represent the diffening pension arrangaments of the Executive Direclors During the year ended 31 March
2016 Chris Grigy received 35% basic salary as cash in lrieu of pension and Charles Maudsley received 15% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension
l_ucinda Bell and Tim Roberts earned pension benedits in defined benefil schemes sponsored by the Company during the year The inciease invalue
over the year of thew respective pensions 1s shown in the single total higore of remuneration table and further detail 1s provided on page 105

There are no addittonal benefils that will become recevable by a Director tn the event that a Director relires early
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Share scheme interests anwarded during the vear (audited information)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The total fair value of each Executive Directar s LTI award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equivalent to 200% cf basic salary at giant At grant
each Director can indicate a preference as to the proportion of the award that they wish to receve as performance shares and the proportion that
theywish to s ecewve as market value options The share price used io determine the face value of performance shares and the fair value of options

- and therefore the number of performance shares and market value options awarded - 15 the average market value of the Company s shares over
the three deating days immediately prior Lo the day of award The per formance conditions attached to these awai ds are detaled on page 100

Performance shares Number of Percentage vesting on
perfermance End of achievement of mmimum

shares Facevalue  performance performance ihreshotd

Executive Dureclor Grant date granted £000 penod  Vesting date %
Chris Grigy 22/06/2015 154 949 1260 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Lucinda Belt 22/06/2015 121 254 986 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 23
Charles Maudsley 22/06/2035 109754 B¥2 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Tun Rober s 22/06/2015 109756 892 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 2%
Options Percentage vesting on
Number End of achievemnent of minimum

of options Face value Farvalue Exercise pnce  performance performance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granted €000 food' p period  Vestingdate %
Chris Grigg 22/06/2015 206599 1680 420 8245  3N/03/2018  22/06/2018 25

' Opticns are currently vatued at one guarter of the value of a perfermance share therefore the fair value of each optson awarded 15 one quarter of the face vatue
of the option

Matching Share Plan

The total face value of each Executive Diector s MSP Matching Shat e award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equal to twa thirds of ther
Annual Incentive award i respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 equivalant to 91% basic salary at grant for Chris Brigg 68% for Luainda Bell
81% for Charles Maudsley and 85% for Tim Roberts The share price used to determine the nurnber of Matching Shares awarded 15 the market
vatue of the Company s shares on the day the proportion of the Annual Incentive 15 deferred

Matching Shares MNumber of Percentage vesting on

Matching End of achievemnent of mimmum

Shares Facevalue  performance perfarmance threshold

Executve Director Grant date granted £000 penod  Vesting date %

Chris Grigg 29/06/2015 94 348 768 31/03/2018 29/06/2018 25

Lucinda Bell 29/04/2015 40950 333 /03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Chartes Maudsley 29/06/2015 44226 360 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Tim Reberts 29/06/2015 46 682 380  31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Sharesave Scheme

The following options were granted to the Executive Directors during the year under the all-employee Sharesave Scherne The exercise price 15 set
ata 20% discount to the aver age market price of the Company s shar es over the three dealing days immediately preceding snvitation to the Scheme
The cost of exercise 1s met enti ely by the Director and 1s accumulated by deductions from salary over the perind between grant and vesting

Op[ggns Total jo be
daducted from
satary io caver Number of
exercise cost options Facevalue Exervise pnce Earliest
Executive Director Grant date £C00 granied £000 p exermise date Expiry date
Lucinda Bell 22/06/2015 g 1291 9 697  01/09/2018  28/02/2019

Dhirectors’ pension entitlements vnder the defined benefit pension scheme (audited information)

The below table details the defined benefit pension accrued by participating Directors at 31 March 2016

Defined benetit pension Narmal

accrued a1 31 March 2016 retirement

Executve Director £0C0 age
Lucinda Bell M 40
Tim Roberis 81 40

' The accrued pension 1s based an service o the year end and final pensionable salary al that date
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Ihreetors” shareholdings and share interests (andited information)

Directors shareholdings at 31 March 2014
The following table shows the Directors interestsn fully paid ordinary British Land shares including shares hetd by connected persons and
{for Executive Directors including Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held in the Share Incentive Plan Allinterests are beneficiat

Holding at Hold ng al
Director 31 March 2016 31 March 20i5
Chris Grigg 1118 0%0 255 204
tucinda Bell 162 894 164 201
Charles Maudsley 158 887 159 801
Tim Roberts 173 042 274189
John Gildersleeve 5220 5220
Aubrey Adams 20000 20660
Simon Borrows 300 000 300 000
Lynn Gladden 1,665 0
William Jackson 120 304 42983
Tirm Score 12 693 &946
Lord Turnbull 2041 18 790
Laura Wade-Gery' 1,670 nfa

' Laurs Wade-Gerywas appointed as a Director on 13 May 2015

Purchases after the year end up to ene month before publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting

On & Aprit 2016 Lynn Gladden was atlotied 1 063 shares William Jackson was attotted 486 shares Tim Score was allotted 1 416 shares Lerd Turnbull
was <llotted 359 shares and Laur a3 Wade-Gery was allotted 718 shares all ata price of 696 3945 pence per share as part of their standing
instructions to receive shares in full or part satrsfaction of thesr Non-Executive Duectors fees

On 14 April 2016 Chris Grigg purchased 20 shares Lucinda Bell purchased 20 shares Charles Maudsley purchased 17 shares and Tim Rober ts
purchased 21 shaies all ata price of 730 5208 pence per share under the partnership element of the Share Incentive Ptan [SIP] Accordingly

Chris Grigg was awar ded 40 shares Lucinda Bell was awarded 40 shares Charles Maudsley was awarded 34 shares and Tim Roberts was

awarded 42 shares under the matching etement of the SIP {n 6 May 2014 Chris Grigy acguired 68 shares Lucinda Bell acquired 153 shares Charles
Maudsley acquired HU shares and Tim Roberts acquired 144 shares all at a price of 722 pence per share under the dvidend etement of the 5I1P

Executive Directors mimimum shareholding guideline
The minimum shareholding guideline requires the Executive Ditector s to hold fully vested shares of a certain percentage of salary The number
and value of shares required as a target 1s fixed once a year

There 1s no set tunescale reguired Lo reach the target but it should be achieved through the regular additions anlicipated by vestings of tong term
mcentive awards No purchases are required enther to reach the level or 1o respond to share price falls but Executive Direcior s are expected to increase
thewr holding of shares each year until the taiget 1s attained Shares included are those unfettered and beneficially owned by the Directer and by his or
her connected persons [not sncluding deferred Annual Incentive Shanes Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares or locked-in Share incentive Plan shares]

the guideline shar eholdings for the year to 31 March 2017 are shown betow

Percentage of

Percentage Uniettered  basic salary

of basic salary holding at held at

to bz held Gudeline 31 March 34 March

Executive Director in shares holding 2016 2Mé
Chris Grigg 225% 269807 1031183 860%
Lucinda Bell 130% 105 567 122 478 174%
Char les Maudsiey 150% 95 557 116 707 183%
Tim Robet 1s 150% 95 557 129 031 203%

Although there 15 no guideline holding for Non-Executve Directors they are encouraged 10 hold shares in Briush Land The Company facilitates this
by offering Non-Executive Directors the ability to purchase shares using their post-tax fees Lynn Gladden Wilbiam tacksen Tim Score Lord
TJurnbull and Laura Wade-Gery recewved shares in full or part satisfaction of thewr Non-Executive Directers lees during the year
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Unvested share awards

Number Subject to End ot
outstanding at  performance  performance
Executve Director Type Date of grent 31 March 2016 measures penod Vesting date
Chris Grigy LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 266 227 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
ITIP performance shares 23/06/14 233804 Yes 3037 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 154 949 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 0?/08/13 127 09% Yes 31/03/18 02/08/16
MSP Matchuing Shares 30/06/14 101764 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 94 348 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Lucinda Bell LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 116 096 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 135 898 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 121 254 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MS#P Matching Shares 02/08/13 54720 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/G6/14 43816 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 40930 Yes 31/03/18 29/06118
Charles Maudsley LTIP perfor mance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shai es 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/83/17 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 109 756 Yes 31/63/18 22106118
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/14 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47 584 Yes 31/0317 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 44 276 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Tim Roberis LTiP performance shares 05/08/13 141430 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
I_TIP performance shares 23106114 124 208 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LTIP per for mance shares 22/06/15 169 754 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shases 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/16 G2/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47 584 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 46 682 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18

v Awards with a performance peried ended 31/03/2016 are included within the 2014 Lang lerm incentives calumnn of the single total figure of rernuneration 1abie on
page 101 The notes o the single total higure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree towhich performance measures have been orare expectedio be achieved

and the resuftant propertions of the awards that are expected (o vest

Unvested option awards [not available to be exercised)

Number Supject © End of

outstanding at Option pnce  performance  performance Date becomes Exercisable

Executve Director Type Date of grant 31 March 2014 p measures penod® exercisahte unil
Chnis Grigg LTIP options 22/06/15 2056 599 8245 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18 22/06/25
Lucinda Bell LTIP aptions 05/08/13 154 742 501 Yes 31/03/15 05/08/16 05/08/23
Sharesave opiions 23/06/14 1567 574 No nfa m/0917 28/02/18

Shar esave options 22106115 1291 697 No nfa 01/09/18 28/02119

Tim Roberts Sharesave options 19/06/13 2348 511 No nfa /6918 28/02/19
Sharesave oplions 23/06/%4 3135 574 No n/a 01/09/19 29/02/20

' awards with a performance penod ended 31/03/2016 are included within the 2016 Long term incentives column of the single total figure of remuneration table on
page 101 The notes ta the single total figure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree to which performance measures have been or are expected to be achieved

and the resultant propertions of the awards that are expected to vest
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Vested oplton awards (available to be exercised]

Number

outstanding at Splian price Exercisable

Executrve Drector Type Date of grent 31 March 2016 p until
Chris Grigg LTtP options 29/06/09 7751 387 29/06/19
LTIP options 1/05/10 10673825 447 11/06/20

LTIP options 28/06/11 695 652 575 78/04/21

LTIP options 14/09/12 T43 494 538 14/0%/22

Lucinda Bell LTIP opttons 1706719 &7952 447 11/06/20
LTIP opt:ons 14/12/10 11764 510 16/12/20

LTIP options 14/09£12 138 289 538 14/09/22

Options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2016

Number  Option price

Date became

Market price an
date of exercise

Executive Director Type Date of grant axercised p exercisable  Date exereised p
Lueinda Bell Sharesave options 26/06/12 2795 392 01/09115 01/09/15 8035
Tim Roberts LTIP options 05/12/05 17 483 8236 05/12/08 0112/15 BLb
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Further disclosures

Relatve importance of spend on pay

The gr aph below shows the amount spent on remuneraticn of att
employees [including Fxecutive Directors) relative ta the amount spent
on distributions to sharehotders for the years to 31 March 2016 and

31 Maich 2015 Remuneration of employees increased by 7% relative to
the prior year and distoibutions to shareholders increased by 3%
Distribunhons to shareholders include ordinary and scrip divrdends and
the sphit between property income distributions [P10] and non-property
income distributions Inon-PiD] 15 shown

Relative importance of spend on pay

1y
IS PR, : 2:7

o101 IO 76
—

2015/16

Seven-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive s remuneration
{he graph to the right shows Brinsh Land s totat shareho!der return for
the seven years from 1 Aprii 2009 te 31 March 201é& against that of the
FTSE Real Estate Investrnent Trusts [REIT) Total Return Index for the
same period The graph shows how the total return on a £100 investment
in the Company made on 1 April 2009 would have changed over the
seven-year period measured comparedwith the total return on ¢ £100
investment m the FTSE REIT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Total
Return Index has been selected as a surtable comparator because it1s
the index in which British Land s shares are classified

The 2009 base point required hy the regulations governing this
remuneration repor t disclosure was close to the bottom of the property
cycte British Land s share price had not faller as much at that ime as
the average shai e price of the FTSLC REITs Sector thereby setting 2
higher base point for subsequent growth The table hetow detasts the Lotal

Remuneration of employees including Directors
B Wages & salanes

Annual Incentives

[} Social security costs

B Pension costs

B Cquity-settled share-based payments

Mhstributions to shareholders

BB PiD cash dividends paid to shareholders

M FID tax withholding

B et cash equivalent of new shares issued under
Non-PID Scrip dividends

8 Net cash eguivalent of new shal es 1ssued under
PID Scrip dvidends

Total Sha eholder Return
Rebased to 100, April 200%

350

>?

/]

200

,&hﬁy

150 //
100

remuneration of the person undertaking the role of Chief Executive ovet Apnl Aprl Apnl April Apnl Apnl Apnil March
the same period calculated on the same basis as the single totat figure a9 W 2R a2 03 W W5 016
of remuneration table 2nd the Annual Incentive payouts and long term M The British Land Campany PLC
incentive vesting rates as a percentage of the maximum oppor turity @l FTSE REITs Sector
Source Aon Hewnit

200 2011 mz 2013 2014 2015 016
Chief Executive Chris Grigg Chris Grigg Chnis Gngg Chris Grigg Chns Grigg Chris Grigg ChnsGrigg
Chiet Executive s single total iigure
of remuneration €000} 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 6 551 3709
Annual Incentive payout against maximum
opportunity [%} &7 83 75 75 90 9% 67
Long term incentives vesting rate against
maximum opporturity (%} n/a n/a 92 63 98 %3 54
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Chief Executive s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees

The below table shows the percenlage changes i differ ent etements of the Chief Executive s remuneration relative to the previous financial year
and the average percentage changes in those elements of remuneration for employees hased at British Land s head office over the same period
Head office employees have been chosen as an appropriate comparator group for this purpose as employees based at Briish Land s head office
carry out work of the most smular nature 1o the Chief Executive

Average change

Va'ug of Chref Value af Cheef Change 1 n remuneration

Executve Executive Chief Executive element of

remuneration remuneration remunerzbion British Land

element 2016 elament 2015 element employees

Remuneration element £000 £030 % %
Salary B40 800 50 54
Taxable benefits 7 21 0o 27
Annual Incentive 8B40 1152 =271 -68

Executive Directors external appointments I
Executive Duecior s may take up one non-executive directorship at ancther FTSE company sutiject to British Land Boaid approvat Chris Grigg was
appointed a non-executive director of BAE Systemns pleon 1 July 2013 During the year to 31 March 2016 Chris Grigg recewved a fee of £86 495
[ncluding £2 495 of expenses deemed to be laxahle] from BAE Systems ple which he retained in Jull Lucinda Bell was appointed a non-execulive
director of Rotork plc an 10 July 2074 During the year to 31 March 2016 Lucinda Bell receved o fee of £43 625 from Rotork ple which she retained
nfull D32} @

Statement of voting at the Annual General Meeting
The table below delails the results of the sharehoider vote to approve the Directors Remuneration Repor t at the 2015 AGM and the shareholder vote
to approve the current Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM The Commttee was pleased to note the high tevets of shareholder support

Votes % Vetes % Total votes Vates
Resolution AGM for for against against cast withheld
Approval of Ditectors Remuneration Report 2015 680 540 864 9753 17257841 247 697798705 54 059 347
Approval of Directers Remuneration Policy 2014 584 058 854 9730 18953424 270 703011 480 1198374

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors remuneration

Throughout the year the Remuner ation Comnuttee was chaired by Lord Turnbull Lynn Gladden and Weliam Jackson were members of the |
Commuittee throughout the year Laura Wade-Gery was appointed as a Director of the Company and member of the Commutiee on 13 May 2015
The following persons assisted the Commutiee dur ing the year Chris Grigyg [Chief Executive] Joff Sharpe {Head of Operations} Elaine Witliams ‘
Charles Mrddieton and Victora Penrice {each of whom acted as secretary to the Remuneration Comimittee during the year] and Alan Judes .

of Strategic Remuneration

The Comnuttee appointed Atan Judes of Strategic Remuneration as 1ts independent advisor for the year He also gave advice to the Company on
human resources and share plan matters The Cemmittee 1s satisfted there is no conflict in him providing such services to the Company Strategic
Remuneration 1s a member of the Remuner ation Consuitants Group and adheres te the Remuneration Consuttants Group s Code of Conduct
Strategic Remuner ation was selected by the Chairman of the Remuneration Cammittee following o competitive tender process

The Comrmittee assesses the advice given by Alan Judes of Strategic Remuneration to satisfy itsell that the advice 1 ecewved 15 ohjective and
independent Alan Judes has e private meeting with the Chairman of the Rernunerqtion Carmimittee once a year in accordance with the Code
of Conduct of the Remuneration Consullants Group Fees charged by Strategic Remuneration for the year amounted to £48 400 excluding VAT
(€73 400 excluding VAT for the year endect 31 March 2015] and are charged on a tme basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2014

TP VY

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors report and additional disclosures

The Directors present their report on the affairs of the Group together
with the audited financial statements and the report of the auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2016 information required to he disclosed

in the Directors Report may be found below and in the following
sections of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Section in
information Annual Repaort Page

Dividend recornmended during
the year Strategic Report 52

Sustainability governance Strateqic Report 191017

Governance and¢

Each ordinary share carnes the right to participate equalty in distributions
and dvidends Ther e are netther restnictions on the transfer of shares nor
on the size of a holding

At the AGM 1n 2015 the Directors were qiven the power to allot shares
up to a nomunal amount of £85 056 B3 as well as additional authority
o allot a further £85 056 863 on 2 rightsissue Thys authority expires
at this year s AGM at which a sunilar resotution will be proposed

The 1ssued share capital has been increased during the year by fully paid
1ssues as follows

Number of ordinary

Political donations and expenditure remuneration 78
Greenhouse gas emissions Suategic Repert 48
Financial instrurments - risk managernent

objectives and policies Strategic Report 54

Future developments of the husiness of

the Company Strategic Report 6019

Governance and
remuneration 77 and 85

Employment policies and employee
involvement

Risk factors and princ:pal risks Strategic Report 57to 63

Anticles of Association
The Company s Articles of Association may only be amended by special
resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Subject to appticable law and the Company s Articles of Association
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Comnpany

Matters reserved for Board approval see page 73

Board of Directors

The Directors listed on the Board of Director s pages constituted the
Board during the year In accordance with best practice the Dieclors
wilt retire at the AGM and will of fer themselves for election and annuat
re-election as required

Board of Directors see pages 66 10 69

Directors’ hiability insurance and indemnity

The Company has indemnified its current Directors  The indemnity
arrangemenis are qualifying indemnity provisions undes the Companies
Act 2006 and are currently in force at the date of this Report (A 1 3] @

Purchase of own shares

The Company was granted authority at the AGM v 2015 to purchase its
own shares up to a total aggregate value of 10% of the 1ssued nominal
capital subject to market-standard maximum and mingmum price
constraints That authority expires at this year s AGM and a resolubion
witl be proposed for its renewal Durmg the year the Company made no
purchases of iIts own shares

Shiare capital

The Company has ane class of ordinary share and all shares are fully
pad {25 pence eachl On a poll at a general meeting every holder or proxy
has one vote for every share that they hold On a show of hands at a
general meeting each hotder and proxy has one vote

shares af 25p

15 Apnl 2015to Shares in lieu of
14 January 2016 Directers fees 12 304
1April 2015 to On exercise of options
30 March 2016 under the Lang-Term

fncentive Plan [LTIP) 403 817
15 May 2015 10 On vesting of shares
21 December 2015 undet the LTIP 894 763
7 Aprit 2015 to On vesting of shares
16 September 2015 under the Fund Managers

Performance Plan 3460986
15 April 2015 to On exer cige of options under
4 March 2016 the Sharesave Scheme 134 107
5 August 201510
12 February 2016 Scrip allotment 6 407945
2% August 2015 Share Incentive Plan Free

Share Award aligtment 177046

On vesting of Matching
B7 September 2015 Sharesundes the Matching

Share Plan [MSP] 182 831

Substantial interests
As at 31 March 2016 the Company had been notified of ihe following
major interests in its ordinary shares

Percentage of

Interests mihe  ordinary shares

Compary s n1ssue

ordinary shares %

Blackrock Inc’ 856222 399 829
MNorges Bank 61 739 045 593
APG Algemene Pensioen Groep NV 91212198 492
GIC Private Limited 41042 589 394

' Of the 86,222 399 share interests notified to the Company by Blackrock 327 645
share interests are held pursuant to qualifying financial nstruments for frmancial
nstruments with ssmilar economic effect] The remainder of Blackrock s
holding and all other substantial interasts bisted 1n the above table anise from
direct or indirect interests in ardinary shares

Sa far as the Company 1s aware no other person holds a notfiable
interest in the Company s ordinary shares

Since the yearend but prior to the date of this Report, the Company has

been noufied by GIC Private Limited that its interests in the Company s
ordinary shares has increased to 41 226 746
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Governance and remuneration

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Waiver of dunvidends

Under the trust deed establishing the British Land Employee Share
Trust the trustee has waived any dividends payable in respect of any
shares hetd by them unless otherwise duected by the Company {other
than in respect of shares held as a nominee]

Significant agreements
There ate no signtficant agreements to which the Company is party that
take effect alter or terminate upon a change of conirol of the Company

Pavments poliey

We recogmse the importance of good supplier relationships to the
averall success of our business We manage dealings with supptiers
in a fair consistent and transparent mariner and have signed up ta the
UK Government s Prompt Payment Code Al the year end there were
34 (2015 3é) suppliers days outstanding

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable events aftes the balance sheet date

Auditor

The Audit Committee has recommended resclutions at the 20146 AGM to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s auditor and
to authorise the Audit Cornmuttee to agree the auditor s remuneration

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who 1s a Dwrector at the date of approval of this

Repart confit ms that

- so far as the Director1s aware there 1s no relevant audit infarmation
of which the Company s auditor 1s unaware and

- the Dmector has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken
as a Director in order 1o make himself/herself aware of any retevant
audit information and to establish that the Cornpany s audttor 1s aware
of that information

Thus confir mation s given and should be mierpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

IDisclosures under Listing Rule 9 8. 4R
Infor mation requir ed to be disctosed in compliance with LR %8 4R may
be found in the fallowing sections

Section in
Information Annual Report Page
Amount of Interest Financial statements 132
capitabised by the Group
Additional unaudited Other informaiion 184 1o 204
hnanctal nformation unaudied
Wanver of dividends Addinonal disclosures 12

Governance artangements

Information regar ding the Company s governance arrangentents s set
out on pages 6610 85 These pages are incerporated by reference into
the Directors Report
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Directors’ mtercsts i contracts and conflicts

of mterest

Mo contract existed during the year in relation te the Company s business
inwhich any Director was materally interested

The Company s policy 1s that Directors notify the Chairman and the
Company Secretary of all new outs:de interests and conflicts of interest
as and when theyarnise The nobfication is then annually referred to the
Board for approval Furthermere the Board reviews the policy onan
annual basis and following the most recent review :n November 2015 1t
concluded that the policy oper ated effectively

Annual General Mceeting (AGM)

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held ai The Montcalm
London Marble Arck 34-40 Great Cumbertand Place London WIH 7TTW
on Tuesday 3% July 2016 at 11 00 am Further information will be
availabie on the Notice of AGM [€ 2 4)@ The AGM 15 the principal
occasion when shaieholder s are able to ask questions of thewr Board
and the chairmen of the main comnuttees We look forward to seeing
you there [E 2 3]@

Management Report

The Strategic Repor t and the Directers Report together are the
management report for the purposes of the FCAs Disclosure &
Transparency Rules [DTR 4 15R)

The Directors Report was approved on behalf of the Board on 16 May 2016

F e

Elaine Wilhams
Company Secretary and General Counsel
16 May 2014




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annuat Repart
the Director s Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable taw and regulations

Company taw requires the Direcior s to prepar e financial staternents
for each hnancial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group hinancial statements in accordance wath iniernational Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and
the parent Company financial statements i accordance with United
Kingdom Gener ally Accepted Accounting Pracuice [Unsted Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable lawl

Under Company law the Directar s must not approve e hnancial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period In preparing these fancial statements the
Directors ai e required to
- select sutable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently
- make Judgements and accouniing estimates that are reasonable
and prudent
- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject! to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent Company
financiat staterments respectively and
- prepare the financial staternents on the going concern basis
unless it 1s mappropriate to presume that the Comparny wall
continue In business

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and
tisctose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the inancial position of

the Cempany and the Group and enable them (o ensure that the financial
staternents and the Directors Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also rrspansible for safeguarding
the assets of the Campany and the Group and hence for taking reasanable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the rnamntenance and integrity of the
Company s wehsite Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissermination of finanaal statements may differ from
tegistation n other jrsdictions

The Director s consider that the Annual Report and Accounts taken
as awhole 1s fair balanced and under standable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s
position and performance business model and sirategy

Fach of the Directors whose names and functions are listed in the

governance and remuneralion section confirm that to the best of

their knowledge

- the Group Einancial staterments, wiich have been prepaied in accordance
wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fawr view of the assets
habilives financral position and prohit of the Group and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors Report include a farr review
of the development and performance of the business and the pesiton
of the Group together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that it faces

By arder of the Board

UMl

Lucinda Bell

Chvef Financial Ofticer
16 May 2016
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Financiul statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE

BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

I our opinion

- the British Land Company PLC s Group finanaial statements and
Company financsal statements lthe financial statements| give a true
and fan view of the state of the Group s and of the Company s affoirs as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended

- the Group financial statements have been praperly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Repor ting Standards [ IFRSs]
as adopted by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with Unried ¥angdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and

- the financial statements have been prepared in sccerdance with
the requirernents of the Cornpanies Act 2006 and as regards the Group
financial statements Aiticle 4 of the IAS Regutahion

What we have audited

The fmancal statements sncluded within the Annual Report comprise

- the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- the Censolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for tise year then ended
and

- the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of
stgnificant acceunting pelicies and other explanatory information

Certain requit ed disclosures have been presented elsewhere inthe
Annual Report rather than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced irom the financiat statements and are
wdentified as audited

The financial repoarting framewor k that has been applied in the

prepat ation of the Group iinancial statements is applicable law and
1FRSs as adopied by the European Union The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Company
financial staternents 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards [United Kingdom Generatly Accepted Accounting Practice)
ncluding FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
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Our audit approach

Overview

Our 2016 audit was planned and execuled having regard to the fact
that the Group s operations were largely unchanged in nature from

the previous year addiionally there have been no significant changes
to the valuation methodology and accounting standa: ds relevant to the
Group Inlght of this our approach to the auditin terms of scoping and
areas of focus was largely unchanged

A full scope auditwas performed by the Group team tor alt substdiaries
of the Group and the following joint ventures Biocadgate Meadowhall
and Leadenhatl

Matenatity

- Overalt Group matenaltty £338 mellion [2014/15 €130 mullion] which
regresents 1% of Tolal nssets

- Specihc Group matenality applied to pre-tax profit £18 million [2014/15
£15 million] which represents 5% of underlying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuation of investment and development properties

- Revenue recogniticn specihically focustng on non standard revenue
transactions

- Accounting for transactions mncluding acquisihans and disposals of
mvesiment properiies review of the accounting reatment of the deferred
consideraton recewved from one of the Group s joint venture partners the
£110 rutbon debenture bonds tender offer and purchase and the issuance
of 350 mutlicn convertible bonds in the year

-~ Taxation - REIT status and tax provisions

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accor dance with International S1andar ds on
Auditing {[UX and Irelandj [ 1ISAs [UK & freland] |

We destgned our audit by determining materiality and assessing the
risks of material misstatement in the financial statements In particutar
we looked al where the Director s made subjective judgernents for
example m significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering fulure events that are inherently uncertain
As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal contrels including evaluating whether there was
ewidence of bias by the Directors that 1 epresented a risk of materiat
misstatement due to fraud

The risks of materiat rrusstatement that had the greatest effect on our
audit includmg the allocaton of our resources and effert are dentiied
as areas of focus in the table below We have also set out howwe
tarlored our audit te address these specific areas i order to provide an
opiauon on the financial statements as a whale and any comments we
make on the results of our procedur es should be read in this context
This 1s not a complete bist of all risks Wdentibied by our audit




Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Vatuation of investment and development properties
Refer to pages 80 to 83 {Repot t of the Audit Committee) pagyes 127
to 129 {Accounting policres) and pages 136 to 13% {Note)

The Group s investment proper ty portfolio 1s split between office
and residential proper tiesin London retail and leisure properties
across the UK and the assets at the Canada Waler site witha
valuatian in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of £9 843 million

Fhe valuation of the Group s Investment proper ty portfolinisinherentty
subjective due to among other factors the individual natur e of each
proper ty 135 location end the expected fulur e rentals for that particular
property For developments factors include projected costs to complete
and urung of practicat comptetion

The valuatons were carried out by third party valuers CB Richard Ellis
and Knught Trank [the Valuers] The Valuers were engeged by the
Directors and performed their work in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors| RICS ] Vatuation - Professional
Standards The Valuers used by the Group have considerable
expersence of the markets in which the Group operates

In determining o property svaluation the Valuer s take mlo

account property-specific infermatian such as the current tenancy
agreernents and rendal income They apply assumptions for yietds and
estrmated market rent which are influenced by prevatling rmarket yields
and cornparable market transactions to arrive at the final valuation

For developments the residual appraisal method 1s used by estimating
the fair value of the completed project using a capitalisation method less
estimaled costs 1o completion and a nsk premium

The signiicance of the estimates and jJudgements involved coupled with
the fact that only a small percentage difference in indvidual property
valuations when aggregated could resull in a materal misstatement
warrants spectfic audit focus in this area

There were also a number of specific factors affecting the valuations

in the year

- a number of developments that were completed in the year are now
vailied as standing investment properties so we have paid particular
focus to the valuation methedology applied to those assets

- the nature of the Canada Water site which compnses three contiguous
s)tes that Bntish Land are currenily masier-planning as a combimned
large scale mixed use development site resulted in our audd paying
parncular focus to the retevant valuations and

- the UK supermarket sector continues to be an area of focus given
performance n the sector

We read the valuation reports for all the properties and confirmed
that the valuaton approach for each was in accordance with RICS
standards and sutable for use in determining the carrymg value
for the purpose of the financial statements

We assessed the Valuers gquatifications and expertise and read their
terms of engagement with the Group to determine whether there
were any matters that might have affected their objectmty or may
have imposed scope brmtations upon thewr work We atso considered
fee arrangements between the Valuers and the Group and ether
engagements which might exist between the Group and the Valuers
We found no evidence 1o suggest that the abjectivity of the Vatuers

in then performance of the vatuations was compromised

We performed tesiing on the standing data in the Group s information
systemns concermng the vatuation process We carreed out procedures
on a sampte basis 1o satisfy our selves of the accuracy of the property
information suppbied to the Valuers by management For developments
we confirmed that the supporting infermation for construction coniracts
and budgets which was supplied iothe Yaluers was also consistent
with the Group s records

The audit team includimg our valuaton specialists attended

meetings with each of the Valuers at which the vatuations and the key
assumgptians theremn were discussed Our work focused on the largest
properties in the portfolo and these where the assumptians used and/or
year-on-year capital value immovement suggested a posstble outbier

ver sus markel data for the relevant sector We also focused on

supet stores Canada Water and completed developments for the
teasons referred to opposite We compared the investment yields used
by the Valuers with an estimaied range of expected yields determined
via reference 1o published benchmarks We also considered the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily comparable
with published benchmarks such as Estimated Rental Value | LRV ] void
vates and rent-free periods Finally we evaluated year-on-year
movements In capital value with reference to published benchmarks
Where assumptions were outside the expected range or otherwise
unusual and/or valuations showed unexpected movements we
discussed these with the Vaiuers in our meetings held wath them and
obtained additional audit evidence to support the explanations receved

e g copies of lease agreements to support new lettings that have
increased vatuation during the penod Ia this way professional
sceplicism was exercised in our evaluation of whether assumptions were
appropnate m hght of the evidence prowided by significant transacitons
which had taken place in the market during the year

It was evident from our interaction with management and the Valuers
and {rom our review of the valuation reparts that close attentien had
heen pawd 1o each property s individual characteristics at a granular
tenant by tenant tevel as well as cansidering the averali quality
geographic location and desirability of the asset as a whole The
evaluation of what were the appropriate assumptions to apply to any
given property included determining the tevel of impact that recent
and significant market ransactions should have on each mdviduat
propei ty s valuation givenits untque characteristics thd not reveal
any I1ssues We saw evidence thai atternative assumpttons had been
cansidered and evaluated by management and the Valuers before
determinmng the final vatuation We concluded that the assumptions used
in the valuations were supportable i light of avadlable and cormparable
mar ket evidence
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Financial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audst addressed the area of focus

Revenue recogmbion
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Comrttee) pages 127
lo 129 {Accounting policies) and page 131 [Note)

Revenue for the Group consists primarily of rental income Rental
income 15 based on lenancy agreements where there 1s a standard
process in place for recording revenue which is system generated
There are however certain transactions within revenue that war rant
additional audit focus because of an increased inherent risk of error
due to thenr non-standard nature

These nclude spreading of occupier incentives and guaranteed rent
Increases - these batances requu e adjustments made to rental ncome
o ensure revenue 1s recorded on a straight-line basis over the course
of a lease

We carried out tests of controls over the cash and accounts recevable
processes and the related IT systemns to obtain evidence that postings to
these accounts were reliable For rental income balances we then used
data-enabted autit techniques 1o identify all standard revenue journals
posted using these syslems and processes

The remaining journals related Lo non-standard transactions These
included reclassHications within revenue acerued income and bad debt
prowvisions For each category of non-standard revenue summarised
above we have understood the nature and assessed the reasonableness
of journals being generated and performed substantive tesling over

a sample of these items There have been no exceptions arising from

our testing over non-standard revenue transactions

For balances not included within renial Income such as service charge
income we performed substantive testing on a samyple basis No 1ssues
were notet

Acccunting for transactions
Refer to pages 8010 83 [Report of the Audit Commmitiee] pages 127
to 129 {Accounting polictes] and pages 130 to 144 [Notes to Accounts)

There have been a number of transactions during the year
These warranted additional audit focus due to the magnitude
of transaciions and the patential for complex contractual terms
that introduce judgement into how they were accounted for
Key transaclions subject 1o additional audit focus were
- purchase of addiional urits in HUT for £59 mullion
- acquisition of One Sheldon Square for £210 millien
- 1ssuance of £350 rmilbon convertible bonds
- recognition of deferred consideration received from
one of the Group s joint venture partners
- profit on disposal of investment properties and trading
properties of £45 milbion and
- £110 million debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

For each transaction we understoad the natur e of the transaction and
assessed the proposed accounting treatment in relation to the Gioup s
accounting pelicies and retevant IFRSs

For the purchase of additional units in HUT we agreed the net asset
value used in the share price calculation to supporiing tnformation
including external Net Asset Value certficates

For all acquisttions and disposals we obtamed and reviewed the key
suppor ting documentation such as Sales and Pur chase Agreements
and rompletion statements Consideration receved or paid was agreed
to bank statements and deferred consider ation postings No material
1ssueswere found as a result of these procedures

For the conves tible bond we have inspected the bond agreement
and obtamed evidence of all the key inputs into the bond 1ssue price
We have alse considered the accounting treatment and concurred
with management s trealment

For the deferred consideration recewed from one of the Group s jomnt
venture partners we have inspected the shareholder agreement that
governs the fee payment obtained evidence that the milestanes that
tiigger the payment have been met and have inspected the calculatien
of the payment amount and agreed the cash receipt We have assessed
the accounting treatment and concur with the ti eatment

For the debenture bonds tender offer and purchase we have agreed
the repayment of the debentures and recalcutated the finance charge
incurred through agreeing the various tender documents resolutions
contaned n the Committee of the Board and cash payments The
finance charges have been expensed through the Income Statement
We have reviewed this treatment and concur with this
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Taxation
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Comemitteel
pages 127 to 129 {Accounung policies] and pages 133 and 146 [Notes}

The Group s status as a REIT underpimns its business modet and

shat eholder returns For this reason 1t warrants special audii focus
The obligations of the REIT regime include requirements to comply with
balance of business dividend and incomne cover tesis The Broadgate
roint venture 1s also structured as a REIT and as such REIT complance
ts also of relevance for this joint venture 1 addition to the overall Group

Tax provisions ar e i place to account for the nisk of challenge
of certain of the Group s tax provisions Given the subjective
nature of these provisions additional audit focus was placed
on {ax provisions

We re-performed the Group s annual REIT compliance tests aswell as
those tests for the Broadgate REIT Based on our work performed we
agreed with management s assessment thai all REIT compliance tests
had been met to ensure that the Group and Broadgate mamntainsits
REIT status

We used our tax experhise to evaluate tax provisions and potential
exposures as at 31 March 2016 challenging the Group s assumptions and
judgements through our knowledge of tax aircumstances and by reading
¢ ebevant correspondence between the Gioup and Her Majesty s Revenue
& Customs and the Group s external tax advisors We concluded that the
tax provisions wer e within an appropriate range based on the supporting
infor mation provided by the Group s tax department

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope af our audit to ensur e that we performed enough
work 1o be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole
taking into account the siiucture of the Group the accounting processes
and controts and the mdustry in which the Group operates

The Group and Company financial statements are produced using a
single consolidation system that has a direci tierface with the general
iedger We performed our audit procedures over the general ledger
system and tested the intet face with the conselidation system

A full scope audit was performed by the Group audit team for all
subsidiaries of the Group and the folfowing joint ventures Broadyate
Meadowhall and Leadenhall This gives coverage over substantially
allof the Group

In establishing the overall approach to our audit we assessed the nisk
of matenal misstatement lakinginto account the nature Lkelihood and
potential magnitude of any misstatement Following this assessment
we applied professional judgement to determine the extent of testing
required over each balance in 1he hinancial statements

Matenality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality

We sel certain quantitative thresholds for materiabity These together
with gualitatwe considerations helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
mdmidual inanciat staternent line erns and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of musstaternents both individually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based an our professional jJudgement we determined materiality
for the hinancial statements as a whote as follows

Overall Group materiality £138 rllton

How we deterrmined it i% of lotal assets

Rationale for benchmark applied A key determinani of the

Group s value 1s direct property
invesiments Due tothis the key
area of focus in the audit 1s the
valuation of invesiment properites
On this basis we set an overall
Group materiality level based

on tolal assets

Inaddition we sel a specific materiality tevel of £18 mullion {2614/15

£15 mullion] for items within underiying pre-tax profit This equatesto 5%
of profit hefore tax adjusted for capital and other items In arnving at this
judgement we had regard to the fact that the underlying pre-tax profit

15 @ secondary financial indicator of the Group {refer to note 2 of the
financial statements page 130 where the term s defined in full)

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
misstatements identified durning our audit of underlying pre-tax items
above £1 million {2014/15 £1 mithon] as well as misstatements below
that amount that v our view waitanted reporting for qualitative reasons
This yea: we agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to
them any misstatements identified during our audit of capital and other
items above £6 9 rullion (2014/15 nfal as well as misstatements below
that amaount that 1n our view warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Director s
statement set out on page 77 n relation to going concern

We have nothing 1o report having performed our review

Under iSAs UK & Ireland) we are required 10 report to you if we have
anything material io add or to draw attention to in relation to the
Dhrectors statement about whether they cansidered 1} appropriate 1o
adopt the going concern bass m preparning the financral staternents We
have nothing material to add orto draw altention to

As noted In the Directors statement the Birectors have concluded that it
1s appropriate to adopt the gomng cencern basis in preparing the inancial
statements The going concern basis presumes that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to remain in opesation and that the
Durectors intend thern to do se for at teast one year irom the date the
tinancial statements were signed As part of our audit we have concluded
that the Directors use of the going concern basis 1S appropriate
However because not all future events or condittons can be predicted
these staternents are not a guarantee as to the Group s and Company s
abihity to continue as a going concern
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Finaneial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporting The Directors assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
Consistency of other information the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or Liquidity
of the Group
Compantes Act 2004 opinion
In our opivon the information given in the Strategic Repoi t and Under ISAs [UK & Ireland] we at e required to report to you If we have
the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financral anything materiat to add or to draw atiention to in relation to
slatements are prepared 1s consistent with the financiat statements - the Directors canfirmation on page 76 We have nothung material
of the Annual Report 10 accardance with to add or to draw
ISAs {UK & Iretand) reporting provision C 2 1 of the Code that they have attention to
Under iSAs (UK & Iretand| we are required to report to you if carmed out a robust assessment of the
I Our opirian principat nsks faang the Group, ncluding
- information in the Annual Report 1s We have no exceptions those that would threaten its business model
- rmatenally tnconsistent with the mnformation  to report future performance solvency or guidity
 the sudited hnancial statements. o - the disclasures in the Annual Report We have nothing materiat
- apparently materiatly incorrect based on or that describe those risks and explain how to add or to draw
matenally inconsistent with our knowledge they are heing managed or miilgated attention to
of the Group and Company acquired in the
- the Directors explanation on page 58 We have nothing matenal
course of performing our audit or
- otherwise misleading of the Annual Report in accordance with 10 add or to draw
provision C 2 2 of the Code as to how altention 1o
- The statement given by the Directors on We have no exceptions they have assessed the prospacts of the
page 76 n accordance wath provision C 11 to report Group over what period they have done
of the UK Cor porate Governance Code lihe 50 and why they consider that period 1o
Code | that they consider the Annual Report be appropriate and their statesent as
taken as a whole to be fan balanced and to whether they have a reasonable
understandable and prowides the information expectation that the Group will be able
necessary for members to assess the Group s to continue n operation and meet its
and Cempany s performance business model liatilities as they fall due over the petiod
and strategy 1s materially nconsistent wath af theu assessment including any related
our knowledge of the Group and Company disclosures drawing attention to any
acquired i the course of perferrming our avdit necessary qualifications or assumptions
- The section of the Annual Report on page 82 We have no exceptrons
asrequired by provision € 3 8 of the Code to report Under the Listing Rutes we are required to review the Directors
describing the work of the Audit Lomimitiee statement that they have carnied cut a robust assessment of the
does not approprately address malters puncipal risks facing the Group and the Director s statement in 1 elation
communicalted by us to the Audit Carmimnittee to the longer term viability of the Group Cur review was substantially

less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and
considering the Direclors process suppor ting thew statements
checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant
provisions of the Code and considering whether the statements are
consistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of per forming
our audit We have nathing to report having per formed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations recerved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requined ta report ic you if

In our opinion

-we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for
our audit or

- adequate accouniing records have not been kept by the Campany
or returns adeguate for our audit have not been receved from branches
not vistted by us or

- the Comnpany financial statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ans:ng from this responsibiksty

120 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014




Directors remuneration

Directors remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 epinion
In our cpinien the part of the Dtrectors Remuneration Report

1o be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if
inour opston cer fain disclosures of Duectors remuneration specified
by law are not rnade We have no exceplions to report arising from

this responsiislity

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Cor porate Governance Statement relating to ten further provisions
of the Code We have nothing to repor t having perfor med our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibiiities Statement
setout on page 113 the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the inancial statements and for being sauishied that they give a true
and fan view

Our responsibility +s to audit and express an opinton on the financiat
statements in accordance with applicable law and 1SAs [UK & Ireland}
Those standar ds require us to camply with the Auditing Piactices
Board s Ethicai Standards for Auditors

This report including the opimions has been prepared for and only for
the Company s memnbers as a body n accor dance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Comparies Act 2006 and for ne other purpose We dao not in
giving these opmions accept or assume responsibility for any cther
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent In writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit iInvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient 1o give reasonable assurance that
the finrancial statements are free from rnaterial misstaternent whethet
caused by fraud or error This inctudes an assessment of
- whether the accouniing policies are appropnate to the Group s and the
Company s arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed
- the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Directors and
- the overail presentation of the finanoial statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directars
Judgemnents against available evidence forming our awn judgements
and evaluating the disclosures in the finanaal statements

Woe test and examune information using sampling and other auditing
techniques to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through
testing the effectveness of controls substantive procedures ora
combination of both

Inaddiion we read all the financial and non-financtal information in
the Annual Repart to identify material mconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to :dentify any information that s apparently
materislly incorrect based on or materiatly mconsistent with the
knowtedge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit

If we become aware of any appatent material russtatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Jo

John Waters (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

16 May 20146

1 The maintenance and integrity of the The British Land Campany PLC website
18 the responsiitity of the Directors the work carried out by the auditors does
not invalve consideration of these matters and accordingly the auditors accept
na responsibility for any changes that may have ocecurred to the financial
statements since they were initially presented on the website

¢ Leqislation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparationt and dissemination
of hinancial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 20057
Capital Capital
Undertnng'  and other Total Underlying and other Total
Note £m £m £m £mn Ern £m
Revenue 3 569 21 590 505 51 956
Costs 3 (28] M1 (13%1 {1151 1454 [160)
3 LAl 10 451 390 6 396
Joint ventures and funds {see also betow) n 135 262 397 129 597 726
Administrative expenses {93} - 93] (85) - (851
Valuation movement 4 - 816 516 - 884 884
Profit on disposal of Investment properties and investments - 35 35 - 20 20
MNet financing costs
- financing income & 5 45 70 7 - 7
- finanecing charges 6 {11} {34) (145) 12} 147) {159)
[104) n (75) [109) [47] (152)
Profit on ordinary activibies before taxation 377 954 1,331 329 1460 1789
Taxation 7 33 33 {24) f24]
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 1765
Attributable to non-controlling interests 14 5 19 i 39 55
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 363 982 1,345 313 1397 1710
Earnings per share
- basic 2 131 2p 168 3p
- diluted 2 124 1p 167 p
All results derve from conbinuing operations
2018 20152
Capital Capital
Underlying®  and other Total Underfying'  and other Toral
Note £Em tm £€m m £m im
Results of joint ventures and funds accounted for using the
equity method
Under lying Proht 135 - 135 129 - 129
Valuation movernent 4 - 245 245 - 589 589
Profet on disposal of investment properties trading properties
and investmenis - 18 18 h 6 6
Taxation - ) i - 2 2
1 135 2562 397 129 597 726

" See definition n glossary

2The prior year comparatives have been restated See note 1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

206 2015
€m Em
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 1765
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net actuariat loss on pension scheme il (5
Valuation movements on owner-accupied property 19 10
18 5
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
[Losses] gains an cash flow hedges
- Group 124) 1714
- Jont ventui es and funds 3} 3
- Reclassification ef stems {rom the statement of comprehensive income - 30
2n {38
Transferred to the income stalement [cash flow hadges)
- Fareign currency dei ivaiives 2 (1
- Interest rate derivatives 10 8
12 3]
Exchange difierences on translation of foretgn oper ations
-~ Hedging and translation {3 b
~ Qther 3 [6]
Deferred tax on rtiems of other comprehensive incorme {15) 10
Other comprehensive loss for the year (2] {26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,352 1739
Attributable to nen-controting interests 19 53
Attributable to sharcholders of the Company 1,333 1686
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wial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note €m E£m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 10 9,643 120
Owner-occupied property 10 95 40
9.738 9180
Other non-current assets
Investments in joint ventures and funds il 3,353 2901
Other investments 12 142 379
Deferred tax assets 16 3 -
Interest rate and currency derwalive assets 17 167 139
13,403 12 599
Currentassets
Trading properties 10 325 274
Debtors 13 a3 20
Cash and short term deposiis 17 14 108
472 407
Total assets 13,875 13 001
LIABILITIES '
Current Llabilities
Shert term borrowings and overdr afts 17 (74) (102]
Creditors th (218) [261]
Corporatien tax 118} {5
(310} 372
Non-current biabilities
Debentures and loans 17 {3,687] (3 847]
Other non-current liabdites 15 122] 1791
Deferred tax labiities 14 - 1121
Interest rate and currency derivative biabilities 17 (137) 1126
(3,948) 14 064)
Total Lamlities (4,258) {4 434)
Netassets 9,619 8560
EQUITY
Share capital 260 258
Share premium 1,295 1280
Merger reserve 213 213
Other reserves {93) 182)
Retamned earnings 7,667 b 563
Equity attributabie to shareholders of the Company 9,342 8232
Non-controlling inter ests 277 333
Total equity 9,419 8565
EPRA NAV per share* 2 11%p 829

~ As defined inglossary

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financial Ofticer

The financial statements on pages 122 to 164 wer e approved by the Board of Director s and signed on 1ts behatf on 16 May 2010
Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

2018 2015
Note tm £m

Rental income received from lenants 435 397
Fees and other income received 58 49
Operating expenses pard to suppliers and employees (152) (128}
Cash generated from operations 341 318
Interest paid 1124} {124}
Interest received 1" 18
Corporatton taxation repayments receved 8 -
Distnbutions and other recevables from joint ventures and funds " 58 73
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 294 285
Cash flows from investing activities
Development and other capital expenditure [258) 157
Purchase of investmeant properties (243} (73
Sale of mvestment and trading properties 564 415
Payments recewved in respect of future trading preperty sales 40 32
Purchase of Investments - 7
Acqusition of Speke Unit Trust - (%0
Tesco property swap - (931
tnvestment m and loans to joint ventures and funds (241 1173
Capntal distributions and loan 1epayments from joint ventures and funds 366 134
Net cash inflow {outflow) from investing activities 230 (111}
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 5 12
Dividends paid 19 {235) (228}
Divtdends paid to non-controtling interests nél 19
Acquisition of units in Hercules Unit Trust (61 {231
Closeoul of interest rate dervatives 15 na2
Cash collateral transacisans 24) 10
Decrease in bank and ether borrowings [919] b8
Drawdowns on bank and ather borrowings 373 703
Issue of zero coupon 2015 convervibte bond 344 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (518} [208]
Netincrease [decrease} in cash and cash equivalents & (34)
Cash and cash equivalents al 1 April ’ 108 142
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 14 108
Cash and cash equivalents consists of
Cash and short term deposis 17 114 108
' The prior year comparatives have been restated See note 1
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Hedging
and Re Nen
Share Share translation  valualon Merger  Retained controlling Total
captal  premum  reserve’ resefve reserve  earn ngs Total  nterests equity
£m fm £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1,280 (76} 16) 213 4,563 8,232 333 8,565
Profit for the year alter taxation - - - - - 1,345 1,345 19 1,364
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (24) - - - (24} - {24)
Revaluation of owner-occupied progerty - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
£xchange and hedging movements in joint ventures and
tunds - - - (31 - - 13) - 13)
Reclassification of gains on cash flow hedges
- Fareign currency derivatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate derivalives - - 10 - - - 10 - 10
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - 13) k] - - - - -
Net actuaral loss on pensian schemes - - - - - (1} y1} - Il
Deferred tax on items of
ather comprehensive income - - 18) 1 - - 15) - 15}
Other comprehensive lloss] income - - 31} 20 - M} na) - (12)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - [31) 20 - 1,344 1,333 1% 1,352
Share 1ssues 2 15 - - - (121 ] - 5
Fairvalue of share and shar e option awards - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of units from non-controtling interests - - - - - - - (591 59}
Loss on purchase of units from nen-controlling mter ests - - - - - (1] (1 - Q1
Dwvidends payable inyear (28 Op per share) - - - - - (287) {287} - (287)
Dividends payabte by subsidranes - - - - - - - (18) 18]
Adjustment for scrip devidend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2014 2560 1,295 1on 14 213 7,647 9,342 2717 2,619
Balance at 1 Aprit 2014 255 1257 132] (381 213 5091 6 /b 373 717
Profit for the year after taxaticn - - - - - 1710 1710 55 1765
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (6 - - - 169) 12] )
Revaluation of owner-occupied proper ty - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Exchange and hedging movements in joint ventures and
funds - -~ - 3 - - 3 - 3
Reclassification of items from the statement
of comprehensive income - - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Reclassification of (losses] gains on rash flow hedges
- Foreign currency dervatives - - {11) - - - 41 - )
- Interest rate derivatives - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign oper gtions - - 4 (8l - - - - -
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - - (5] [5) - (5]
Deferred tax on items of other comprehensive Income - - 22 (5] - {7 10 - 10
Other comprehensive [lossl income - - {44) 3z - 12 {24) 2] {26)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - |44} 32 - 1,698 1486 53 1739
Shaze issues 3 23 - - - (10 16 - té
Non-cantrolling interest on acguisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - kY| 3
Fairvalue of share and share option awards - - - - - 10 10 - 0
Purchase af unts f omnon-controliing interests - - - - - 2 2 [103] [101]
Grvidends payable m year [27 3p per share) - - - - - 2rn 1277 - {2771
Dividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - 19] 191
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 49 49 - 49
Balance at 31 March 2015 258 1280 {76 {6) 213 6563  B232 333 BA9éS

' Fhe balance at the beginning of the year includes £10m in retation to transtation and [E86m) 1n relation to hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Basis of preparation. significant accounting
policies and accounting judgements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 Mai ¢h 2014 have been
prepared on the historicat cost basis except for the revaluation of
properties invesiments held for trading and dervatives The financial
statements have also been prepared in accerdance with Internationat
Financial Repor ing Standards [IFRSs) as adopied by the European
Urnion and therefare comply with article 4 of the EU IAS regutation
and n accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In the current financial year the Group has adepted Annual Improvemenis
10 IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle and Defined Benefit Plans
Employee Contributions - Amendments to 1AS 19

The adoption of these standurds has not had a maternial impact an the
Group and otherwise the accounting policies used are censistent with
those cantained i the Group s previous Annual Report and Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2015

A number of new standar ds and amendments to standards and
interpretations have beenissued but are not yet effective for the current
accounting period None of these are expected to have a material impact
an the conselidated financiat statements of the Group except the
following sel out below
- [FRS 9 - Finanaal Instruments watl impact hoth the measurement and
disctosures of inancial instruments and 15 effective for the Group s year
ending 31 March 2019 The Group has not yet completed 1ts evaluation
of the effect of the adoption
- IFRS 19 - Revenue from contracks with customers does not apply
to gross rental income but does apply to serwice charge income
management and performance fees and rading property disposals
and 1s effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2019 The Group
does not expect adoption of IFRS 15 10 have a material impact bn the
measurement of revenue recognition but additonal disclesures will
be required with regards to the above sources of income
- IFRS 16 - Leases wilt impact both the measurement and disclosures
of the Group s head leases and 1s effeclive for the Group s year ending
31 March 2020 The Group has not yet completed its evaluation of the
effect of the adoption

Restatement

During the year the accounting for Broadgate Estates awholly-owned
subs:diary of the Group which acts as a property manager has been
rewiewed resulting mn a rectassification of items presented in the
Consolidated Inceme Staternent and the Consclidated Statement

of Cash Flows

Thas reclassification had no impact on esther IFRS profit befor e tax

or Underlying Profit It resulted n a £29m increase in other fees and
commissions recewed offset by a £26m increase in other fees and
comimsssions expenses and a £.3mincrease in administrative expenses

This reclassification had no impact on the net cash inflow from eperating
activities presented in the Consolidated Statermnent of Cash Flows

li resulted m £39m increase in fees and other income receved and a
£35m increase in operating expenses paid to suppliers and erployees

Inaddition the format of the Consolidated Income Statement has been
changed to aid the clarity and usability of the {inancial statements and the
prior-year comparatives have been re-presented to reflect this change

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on a geing concern basis as
explamed the corparate governance section on page 77

Subsidharies, joint ventures and associates {including funds)

The consolidated accounis include the accounts of the Briush Land
Company PLC and all subsadsaries [entiies controlled by Brinish Landi
Control 1s assumed where Brtish L and has the power and the ability
to afect the fmancal and operating policies of an Investee enlily 50as
to gan benehts from its activities

The results of subsicianes joint venlures or associates acquired or

dispased of during the year are included from the effective date of I
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal Accounuing policies
of subsidiaries joint ventures or associates which differ from Group
accounting poticies are adjusted on consolidation

Business combinations at e accounted for under the acquisition method
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the fair
value of the assets liabilies and contingent biabtlities acquired and
resufting deferred tax thereon 15 recogrused as goodwill Any dtscount
receved s credited to the income statement m the period of acquisition

All intra-Group transactions batances income and expenses are
elimmated on consclidation Jontventures and associates ncluding
funds are accounted for under the equity method whereby the
consolidated halance sheet incorporates the Group s share [investor s
share] of the net assets of s joint ventures and associates The
consolidated tncome staterment incorporates the Group s share

of joint venture and assaciate profits after tax

Ther profits include revaluation rmovements on Investment properties

Dhstributions and other receivables from joints ventures and assocates
Iincluding funds) ar e classed as cash flows fram cperating activilies !
except where they relate (o a cash flow arising from a capital transaction

such as a property or nvestment disposal In this case they are classed

as cash flows from mvesting actities

Properties

Propet ties are extes nally valued on Lhe hasis of far value at the balance
sheet date Investment and owner-occupied properties aie recorded at
valuation whereas tr ading properiies are sated at the lower of cost and
netrealisable value

Any surplus or deficit anising on revaluing investment propertesIs
recogmised in the caprtal and other column of the 1ncome statement

Any surplus ansing on revalumng owner -occupled propes lies above

cost 1s fecogmised in other comprehensive income and any defici arrsing
tn revaluation helow cost for owner-occupied and trading propertiess
recognised in the capital and other column of the income statement

The cost of properties in the course of development includes attributabte
interest and other assocated outgoings including attnbutable
development personnel costs Inierest is calcutated on ihe development
expenditure by reference to speafic boi rowings where relevant and
oitherwise on ihe weighted average rate interest rate of British Land PLC
borrowings Interestis not capitalised where no development activity 1s
taking place Aproperly ceases lobe treated as a development property
on praclical completion

Investment property disposals are recogrused on completion Profits
and losses arising are recogrused through the capital and other column
of the income statement The prefit on disposalis determined as the

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 127



Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

difference between the net sates proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset at the commencement of the accounting penod plus capetal
expendilui e 1n the pericd

Trading propei ty disposals are recogmsed in line with the revenue
polictes outbined below

Where investinent psoper bes are approps 12ied lo trading stock
they are transferred at market value If properties held for trading
are appropriaied to investment they are transferied at book value
In determining whether leases and related properties represent
operaling or linance leases consideration i1s given to whether the
tenant or landiord bears the risks and rewan ds of ownership

Financial assets and liabitities
Trade debtors and creditors are initially recogmised at fai value and
subseguently measured atamorused cost and discounted as appropriate

Other mvestments include loans and 1ecervables held atemortsed

cost and investments held fer trading classitied as tair value through
profitorloss Amortised cost of loans and receivables 1s measured using
the effective interest method less any impairrment Inter est is recognised
by applying the etfective interest rate Investments held for trading are
imitrally recorded at fair value and are subsequently exter natly valued on
the saine basts at the balance sheet date Any surplus or deficit ansing
an revaluing investaents held for trading 1s recognised in the capital

and other column of the incorne statement

Where an investrment property I1s held under a head lease the head
tease 1sinitially recognrsed as an asset being the sum of the prermium
pard on acquisition plus the present value of rminimum ground rent
pavments The corresponding rent Liability to the head leaseholder

15 included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Debt instruments are stated at their net proceeds on 1ssue Finance
char ges including premia payable on settlement or redemption

and direct 1ssue costs are spread over the period to redemption using
the effective interest method Exceptional finance charges incurred due
to ear by redempuon lincluding prermiums are recognised in the iIncome
statement when they occur

Convertible bonds are designated as tair value thi ough profit or loss
and so are presented on Lthe balance sheet at fair vatue with all gains
andlosses Inctuding the write-off of 1ssue costs recogrised in the
capital and ether column of the income statemnent as a campenent of
nel fsnancing costs Theinterest charge inrespect of the coupon 1ate on
the bonds has been recogmised within the under blying cornponent of net
fimancing costs on an accruals basis

As delined by 1AS 39 cash flow and fair value hedges are carried at far
value on the batance sheet Changes in the fair vatue of dervatives that
are designated and qualify as effective cash flow hedges are recognised
directly through other comprehensive Income as a movement in the
hedging and translation reserve Changes In the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and quabify as eflective fair value hedges are
recorded in the capnal and other column of the Income statement atong
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that is attributable
to the hadged risk Any ineffective portion of all derivatives 1s recogmsed
in the capital ang other column ef the incorme statement Changes in the
fair value of derwvalives that are notin a designated hedging relationship
under 1AS 39 are recorded directly in the capital and other column of the
incorne statement These derivatives are cartred at fair value on the
halance sheet
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Cash equivalenis are imited to instruments with a maturity of kess than
three months

Revenue

Revene comprises rental incomne and suirender premia service charge
income manggement and performance fees and proceeds from the sale
of trading properties

Remal income inciuding fixed rentat uplifts from mvestrment property
leased out under an operating lease 1s recognised as revenue on a

str aight-line basis over the lease term Lease incentives such as rent-free
periods and cash contributions to tenant fit-out are recegnised on the
same str aight-line basis being arintegral part of the net consideration for
the use of the investment property Any rent adjustments based on open
market estimated rental values are recognised based on management
estimates from the rent review date in relation to unsettled rent reviews
Contingent rents being those lease payments that are not frxed at the
mception of the lease including for example turnover rents are
recogmsed i the period in which they are earned

Surrender prerma for the early deterrmination of a lease are recognised
as revenue ummediately upon receipt net of dtapidatons and non
recoverable outgoings relatng to the lease concerned

Service charge income 1s recogiised as revenue In the period to which
it relates

Management and performance fees receivable are recogrised as revenue
in the period to which they relate Per formance fees are recognised at the
end of the performance peiniod when the fee amount can be estimated
reliably and it1s virually certam thet the fee will be received

Proceeds from the sale of trading properties are recogmsed when the
risks and r ewar ds of ewnership have been transierred to the purchaser
This generally occurs on conipletion Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties ai e recogmised as revenue in the capital and other column of
the income statement Alt other revenue described above 1s recognised
in the underlying column of the income statement

Taxation

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calcutated using
tax rates that have been enacied or substantively enacted at the batance
sheet date Taxable profit differs fram net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that
are not taxable {or 1ax deductible)

Deferred tax 1s provided on itermns that ray becomne taxable in the future
orwhich may be used 1o oifsel against taxable profils in the future on the
ternporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounied basis On business combinations
the deferred tax effect of far value adjustments is incorporated in the
consolidated balance sheet

Employee costs

The fair value of equity-settied share-based payments to employees s
deternuned at the date of grant and 1s expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group s estimate of shares or
ophions that will eventually vest In the case of options granted fair value
1s measur ed by a Black-Scholes pricing model

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using fair values
Pension scheme labibities are measured using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at the rate of return of a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent terrn to the scheme liabiliies The net surplus




[where recoverable by the Group) or deficit 15 recogmsed in full i the
consolidated balance sheet Any asset resuttung from the calculation s
lerited to the present vatue of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlement and
curtailments are char ged to operating prefit Actuarial gains and losses
are recogrised in full in the pertod in which they occur and are presented
in the consctidated statement of comprehensive income

Contributions to the Group s defined contribution schemes are expensed
on the basis of the cantracted annuai contributron

Accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group s accounting policies the Directot s are required
to make judgements and estimates that affect the financial statements

Significant areas of estirnation are

Valuation of properties and investments held for trading The Group
uses external professional valuers to detet mine the relevant amounts
The primary source of evidence for property valuations shoutd be recent
comparable market transactions on an arms-length basis However

the valuation of the Group s property portfolio and investments held for
trading are mherently subjective as they are made on the basis of
assumphions made by the valuers which may not prove to be accurate

Other less significant areas of estimation inctude the valuatien of fixed
rale debt and mterest rate dervatives the determination cof share-based
payment expense and the actuarial assumptions used in calcutating the
Group s retirement benefit obligatiens

The key areas of accounting judgement are

REIT status Briush Land 1s a Real Estate Investment Trust [REIT]

and does not pay tax on 1ls property incomne or gamns on property sales
provided that at least 90% of the Group s property income 1s distributed
as a dividend to shareholder s which becomes taxablte in their hands

In additien the Group has te meet certa:n canditions such as ensuring
the propertyrental business represents mere than 75% of total profits
and assets Any potential o1 praposed changes to the REIT legislation are
monitored and discussed with HMRC it 1s Management s intention that
the Group will continue as & REYT for the foreseeable future

Accounting for joint ventures and funds [n accordance with fFRS 10
Consolidated financial statemeants IFRS 12 Joint arrangemenis and
IFRS 12 [hsclosures af isterestsn other entities an assessment s
required to determine the degree of control or influence the Group
exercises and the form of any control 1o ensure that the financial
staternent treatment 1s appropriate

Interest m the Group s jont ventures is commeonly driven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure that control 1s shai ed
hetween the partners These are accounted for unde! the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s share
of the net assets of Its joint ventures and associates The consolidated
income statement incorperates the Group s share of jJoint venture and
assauate profits after tax

Accounting for transactions Property transactions are complex n
nature and can be material to the financial statements Assessment s
required 1o determine the most appropriate accounting treatment of
assets acquired and of potential contractual arrangements :n the legal
documents for both acquisitions and disposals Management consider
each transaction separately and when considered appropriate seek
independent accounting advice
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NOTES 70 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Earnings per share

The Group measures financial performance with reference to underlying earings per share the European Public Real Eslate Associztion (EPRA]
earnings per share and IFRS earnings per share The relevant earnings and weighted average number of shares (including dilution adjustrnents)

for each performance measure are shawn below and a reconcilianion between these 1s shown within the supplermentary disclosures [Table B on page 179}

EPRA earnings per share s calculated using FPRA ear ungs which s the IFRS proht after taxauon attributable to shareholders of the Company
excluding invesiment and development property revatuations gains/losses on investing and trading proper ty disposals changes in the fair value
of financisl Instruments and associated close-out costs and thair related taxation EPRA earnings (dituted] also takes into account dilution due

to the 2012 conver tible bond

Undet lying earnings per shai e 1s calcuiated using Underlying Profit adjusted for underlying taxation {see note 7] Underlying Profit s the pre-tax
EPRA earnings measure with addiienal Company adjustments No Company adjustments were made in either the current or prior year For the year
ended 31 March 2015 the 2012 convertible bond was not ditutive for underlying earmings as the contingent conditions associated 1o the bond had not
been met The convertible conditions period ended on 25 September 2015 and therefore the bond was treated as dilutive in the current year

2016 2015
Relevant Relevant

Relevant number Earmngs Relevant number Earmings

earnings of shares per share 2amings of shares per shane
Earnings per share Em rmullion pence £m millicn pence
Underlying
Undertying basic 365 1,025 356 N3 10146 308
Underlying diluted an 1,089 341 313 1022 306
EPRA
EPRA basic k1.1 1,025 356 313 10156 308
EPRA diluted 371 1,089 341 319 1080 295
{FRS
Basic 1,345 1,025 1312 1710 1016 1683
Diluted 1,351 1,089 1241 1710 j 022 1673

Net asset value

The Group measures financiat position with reference to EPRA net asset value [NAV] per share and EPRA triple net asset value [NNNAV) per share
The net asset value and nurnber of shares for each performance measure 1s shown below A reconciliation between IFRS net assets and EPRA net
assets and the relevant number of shares for each performance measure (s shown within the supplementary disclosures (Table B on page 180
EPRA net assets s a proportionally consolidated measure that s based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-rnarket on effective cash How
hedges and related debt adjustments the mark-to-market on the convertible bonds as well 25 deferred taxation on property and dervative
valuations Thay include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusied for the dilutive impact of share options and the £400 mutlion
convertible bond maturing in 2017

2016 M5

Relevant Net asset Relevant Net asset

Relevant number vatue per Relevant number value per

net assets of shares share net assets of shares share

Net asset vatue per share £m million pence £m millign pence
EPRA

EPRA NAY 10,074 1,096 Me 9035 1090 829

EPRA NNMNAYV 9,640 1,096 880 8 359 1090 767

IFRS
Basic 9.619 1,029 935 8 565 1020 B4
Dituted 10,019 1,096 #14 8 565 1032 830

Total accounting return
The Group also measures financial performance with reference to total accounting return Thisis calculated as the increase in EPRA net asset value

per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the LPRA net asset value per share at the start of the year

2016 M5
Increasen  [indend per Total Increase nNAV  Dividend per Totat
NAV per share share paid accounting per share share paid accounting
pence pence return pence pence return
Tatal accounting return S0 28 02 14 2% 141 2730 24 5%
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J Revenue and costs

né 2015

Capital Capital

Underlying  and other Undertying and other

£m £m £m Em

Rent recevable 437 - 349 -
Spreading of tenantincentives and guaranteed rentincreases 12 - 25 -
Surrender premia 2 - 4 -
Gross rental income 451 - 399 -
Trading propes ty sales proceeds - 21 - a1
Service charge income 72 - 45 -
Management and performance fees [from joint ventures and funds) 8 - 7 -
Other fees and commissions 38 - 34 -
Revenue 569 21 303 51
Trading property cost of sales - nl - [45)
Service charge expenses (72) - [65) -
Property operating expenses ) t28) - (24) -
Other fees and comMMISSIONS eXpenses (30) - 126] -
Costs 28] (11} (115] [45]
441 10 390 b

The cash element of net rental income recognised duning the year ended 31 March 2016 from properties which were not subject Lo a secunty
interest was £229m [2014/15 £182ml Property operating expenses relating to investment prope: testhat did not generate any rental income wese
£1mi2014/15 £2m] Contngent rents of £3m [2014/15 £3m) were recognised in the year ‘

<4 Valuation movements on property

2014 aM015
£m fm
Consolidated ncome statement
Revaiuation of properties &16 884
Revaluation of proper ies held by joint ventures and funds accounted for using the equity method 245 589
861 1473
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluation of owner-occupied properties 19 10
880 1483
5 Auditors’ remuner aton — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
2016 2015
£m Em
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 02 02
Fees payable to the Company 5 auditor s for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant o legistation 04 04
Total audit fees 0é D4
Audit-related assurance services 01 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 07 07
Other fees
Tax advisary services - -
Other services 01 01
Total 08 08

In addition to the above PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audit fees in PREF an equity accounted property fund [see note 11}
The Group s share of fees totalled £0 2m {2014/15 £0 2m] PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are not the external auditors to PREF
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6 Net financing costs

201& 2015
€m £m
Underlying
Financing charges
Bank loans overdrafts and denwvatwes (30 [34]
QOther loans (8a) {88)
Obligations under head leases 2) 12
(120) 1126}
Development interest capitalised 9 14
1) (112)
Financing income
Deposits securities and ligud investrments 3 2
Loans o joint ventures 2 5
5 7
Net financing charges — underlying [108) (105)
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuation movernents on iranstation of foreign currency debt 2 (11}
Hedging reserve recycling (2} 1
Valuation movements on fair vatue derivatives 54 1068
Valuation movernents on fair value debt (53] {104]
Recycling of fair value movement on close-out of derivatives (8 2]
Capital financing costs! 129 12i
Fair value movement on convertible bonds - (351
Valuation movernent on translation of foreign currency net assets - it]]
Fair value movemnent en non-hedge accounted derivatives - 1
(34} {47
Financing thcome
Fair value movement on cenvertible bonds b4 -
Fair value movement on non-hedge accounted des vatives 1 -
45 -
Net financing income fcharges) - capital N 147)
Net financing costs
Total financing Income 70 7
Total financing charges [145) {159)
Net financing costs [75] {152]

Primarily debenture bonds tendar olfer 2nd purchase

Inter est payable on unsecur ed bank loans and related nterest rate dervatives was £19m (2014/15 €24m] Interest on develepment expenditure
1s capiialised at the Group s weighted average interest rate of 2 6% (2014/15 3 3%] The weighled average interest rate on a proportionately
consolidated basis at 31 March 2016 was 3 3% (2014/15 3 8%)
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7 Taxation

2014 2019
£m £m
Taxation inceme [expense]
Current taxation
UK corporatien taxation 20% [2014/15 21%) {15] i
Adjustments inrespect of prior year s 17 -
Total current taxatien income lexpensel 2 (Ol
Deferred taxation gn revaluations and derivatives N 123
Group total taxation 33 [24)
Attribuiable 10 joint ventures and funds ) 2
Total taxation income (expense) 32 (22}
Taxation reconciliation
Profit on ordinary achvities before taxation 1,331 1789
Less profit attributable to joint ventures and funds' {397 {726
Group profit on ordinary achivities before taxation 934 1063
Taxation on profit on o dinary activiies at UK cor poration taxation rate of 20% {2014/15 21%l (187] {223}
Effects of
REIT exemptl income and gains 161 232
Taxation losses 1" (110
Deferred taxation on revaluations and denvatives 31 [23)
Adjustments in respect of prigr years 17 -
Group total taxation income [expense} 33 (24}

T A current taxation expense of £1m [2014/15 £2m expensel and a deterred taxation expense of Enil {2014/15 E4m credit] arose on prohts attributable to joint ventures

and funds

Taxaton attributable to Underlying Profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a credit of £2m (2014/15 £nil] Corporation taxation payable at 3t

March 2016 was £18m [2014/15 £9m) as shown on the balance sheet

8 Staff costs

2015 2015

Staff costs (including Directors) £m £m

Wages and salanies 57 50
Social securily costs 7
Pension costs 7

Equsty-settled share-based payments 10 14

8% 76

The average monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 26012014/15 249) The average monthly number of Group

employees including those empioyed directly at the Group s properties and thesr costs recharged to tenants was 692 {2014/15 598)

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key management personnel Their emeluments are summarised below and further

detail 13 disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 86 ta 110

2016 2015

Directors emoluments £m £m
Shart term employee benefits 54 28
Service costin relation to defined benefit pension schemes 02 0?2
Equity-settied shai e-based payments 59 64
15 124
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8 Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group s equity-settled share-based payments cempnise the Long-Term Incentive Plan{LTIP] the Matching Share Plan IMSP] the Fund
Managers Performance Pian [FMPPland vanious savings related share option schemes

The Comnpany expenses an estimate of how many shares are likely 1o vest based on the market price at the date of grant taking account of expected
performance agamst the relevani performance targets and service perwds which are discussed in further detail in the Remuneration Report

For all schemes except the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan share options the fair value of awards are equal 1o the market value at grant date
The key inputs used to value share options using a Black-Scholes model granted under the Company s Long-Term Incentive lan are shown below

22 June
Long-Term Incentrve Plan Awards in the year ended 31 March 2015 2015
Share price and exercise price at grant date 825p
Expected option tife in years 7
Risk free rate 19%
Expected volaulity 34%
Expected dividend yield %
Value per option 201p

Movements in shares and oplions are given in note 20

9 Pensions

The Briish Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme [ the scheme }1s the principat defined benet pension scheme in the Group The assets of the
scheme are held in a trustee-adrministered fund and kept separate from these of the Cospany Itis not contr acted out of SERPS [State Earmings-
Related Pension Scheme) and it 1s not planned to adrmit new employees to the scheme The Gioup has three other small defined beneifit pension
schemes There 1s atso a Defied Contribution Pension Scheme Contributions to this scheme are at a flat rate of 15% of salary for non-Directors
and paid by the Company

The total net pension cost charged for the year was [7m [2014/15 £6m), of which £4m (2014/15 £3m] relates to defined conts bution ptans and L3m
[2014/15 £3ml relates 1o the current service cost of the defined benefit schemes

A full actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 hy consulting actuaries AON Hewitt Associates Lid The employer s
contibutions will be paid 1n 1he futur e at the rate recommended by the actuary of 54 4% per annum of basic salaries The best estimate of employer
contributions expected to be paid during the year to 31 March 201715 £3m The major assumptions used for the actuarial vatuation were

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
Discount rate 32 31 44 41 4Lb
Salary inflation 48 48 52 47 47
Pensions increase 32 32 35 3 31
Price inflation 33 33 37 3727 32

The mortality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables which atlow for future mortality improvements The assumptions are that a
member currently aged 60 will live on average for a further 297 year s f they are rmate and for a fur ther 31 S yearsif they are fernate For a member
who retires in 2036 at age 60 the assumptions are that they witl live on average for a further 31 dyears after retirementf they are mate and for a
further 33 1 years after retirement if they are female

Composition of scheme assets

2014 2015

£m Em

Equities 52 55
Dwversified growth funds 77 81
Other assets ] 3
Total scheme assets 137 139

The vast majority of the scheme assets are quoted in an active market
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9 Pensions conunued

The amount included in the balance sheet arssing from the Group s obligatons i respect of its defined benefit schermne 15 as follows

2016 2015 2014 2013 0z
£m fm £m £m m
Present value of defined scheme obligations {143 {145] (125] 119) no7i
Fairvalue of scheme assets 137 139 131 120 109
Irrecoverabla surplus - - (6] 1] (2}
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (&t t6} - -
History of experience gains and losses
2016 2015 2014 2013 2m2
fm £m £m Em £m
Total actuar ial loss recagnised in the consolidated staternent of compt ehensive income’
Armnount? [t} 5] 2] (4} {3]
Percentage of present value oh scheme Labilities 0 7% 3 6% 16% 31% 27%
" Movernents stated after adjusting for rrecoveratmbity of any surplis
< Cumulative ioss recognised in Lhe statement of comprehensive income is £37m [2014/15 £36m]
Movernents in the present value of defined benefit obbigations were as follows
2014 205
£m £m
ALT April [145] [125)
Current service cost {3 {3l
Interest cost {5] {3l
Actuarial gan {toss)
Gan fram change 1 dernographic assumptions - 14
Ban {loss| from change in fmancial assurnptions 4 (321
Gain on scheme babilies arising from expenience 3 4
Benefits paid 3 2
At 31 March [143) [145)
Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
206 2015
£€m fm
At 1 Aprid 139 131
Interest Income on scheme assets 4
Contributions by employer &4 2
Actuariat lloss] gan {7} ?
Benefits paid (3) [2}
At 31 March 137 139

Through 1ts defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to a numberof risks the moest significant of which are detaited below

Asset volatility

The Liabiliies are catculated using & discount raie set with a reference to corporale bond yields f assets underperform thus yreld thiswill create
a deficit The scheme holds a significant por tian of growth assets lequities and diversified growth funds] which although expected to outperform

corporate bonds in the tong term c1eate volatility and risk in the short ferm The allocation to growih assetsis momtored to ensure it remains

appropriate gsven the scheme s tong term objectives

Changes in bond yields

Adecrease in corpor ate bend yietds will increase the value placed on the scheme s liabtlittes for accountng purposes aithough this will be partalty

offset by an increase n the vatue of the scheme s bond holdings
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9 Pensions conunued

Inflationrisk

The majoiity of the scheme s benefit obligatiens are linked to inflaven and higher inflation will lead 1o hsgher liabilities {although in most cases caps
on the level of inflationary increases are i place to protect against extreme inflation] The majerity of the assets are either unaffected by or only
loosely correlated with inflat:on meaning that an increase in inflation witt also increase the delicit

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme s obligations are to provide benefits for the Ufe of the member soincreases in Life expectancy witl result in an increase

m the liabibities

10 Property

Preperty reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2014

Canada Waler was added as a property sector in the year, reflecting the key role the campus has in the strategy of the Group Consequently the prior

year comparatives in this note have been restated to reflect this additionat property sector

Investrent
Investment
and
Retail & Othces & Canada development Owner-
teisure  resdental Waier Developments  properties Trading occuped
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 levet3  properties Level 3 Totat
£m Em £m £m Em £m m £m
Carrying value at 1 April 2015 5,584 2,902 249 385 9120 274 60 9,454
Additians
- property purchases 4 234 - - 238 - - 238
- development expenditure 4 [ 1 43 54 59 - 113
- capitalised interest and staff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - 9
- capital expenditure on asset management
mbatives N 24 1 - 16 - ~ 116
99 264 3 (1) 412 &4 - 476
Depreciation - - - - - - m in
Disposals [372) {130) - (7} {509) 1) - {520)
Reclassifications 135 22 - {172} [15) i2) 17 -
Revaluations included in income staternent 161 69 4 82 616 - - 416
Revaluatien included in OCI - - - - - - 19 17
Movemnent in tenant incenfives and contracied
rent uplift balances ¢ 9 - - 19 - - 19
Carrymgvatue at31 March 2014 5,617 3,436 256 334 9.6L3 325 95 10,063
Head lease tiabilives {note 15] (37)
Valuation surpius on trading proper bies 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 10,111
Nen-controlling interests {324}
Group property portfolio valuatian at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787
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10 Property contnued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2015

Investment
lnvestment
and
Retail & Offices & Canada development
teisure  residential Water Developments  properties Trading Owner-
Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 Leveld Levetd  properties occupied Total
[} fm £m fm £m fm £m £m
Carrying value at 1 Aprit 2014 4 356 2550 105 261 7,272 271 47 7,590
Additions
—property purchases & - 141 - 147 - - 147
- acquisition of subsidiaries 1coe - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
- ¢evelopment expenditure 1 1 4 52 68 46 - 114
- capttalised interest - - - - - 8 - 8
- capttal expenditure on asset management
initiatives 35 1 b - 42 - - 42
1042 12 151 52 1,257 54 — 1,311
Depreciation - - - - - - (1] m
Disposals [219] (102 - 12l (3331 (45] - 378)
Reclassifications - {4] - & 2 (4] 4 -
Revaluations included inincome statement 397 423 (7} 7 884 - - 884
Revaluation included in OCt - - - - - - 10 0
Movement in tenant incentives and contracted
rentuplift balances 8 23 - 7 38 - - 38
Carrying vatue at 31 March 2035 5 584 2902 249 385 9,120 274 60 9,454
Head lease liabitities Inote 15} 141}
Valuailon surplus on trading properties EL)
Group property portfolio vatluation at 31 March 2015 9,509
Non-controlling interests [441]
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 attributable to shareholders 9,068

Property valuation
The different valuatton method levels are defined below

Levet 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or habilites

Level 2 inpuis other than guoted prices mcluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labibiy erther directly e as prices| or indirectly
(e derwed from prices]

Level 3 inpuis for he assel o Liability that are not based on observable market data [unobservable inputst

These levels are specified in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement  Property valuations are inherently subjective as they are made on
the basis of assumplions made by the valuer which may not prove to be accurate Forthese reasons «nd consistent with EPRA s guidance we have
classified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by [FRS 13 The unobservable inputs to the valuations are analysed in the table
on the following page

The Group s total proper ty portfolio was valued by independent exter nal valuet s on the basts of fair value in accordance with the RICS Valuation
- Prafessionat Standards 2014 ninth edition published by The Rayal Institutien of Chartered Surveyors

The information provided to the valuers and the assumptions and valuations modeis used by the valuers are reviewed by the property portfolio leam
the Head of Offices the Head of Retail and the Chief Financial Gfiicer The valuers meet with the external audilor s and also present directiy to the
Audit Cornmittee at the intenm and year end review of results Further details of the Audit Commuttee s responsibilities in retation to valuations can
be found 1n the Reper t of the Audst Committee fon pages B0 to 83}
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10 Property continued

Investment propertes excluding properiies held for development are valued by adopting the investment method of valuatien This approach
involves applying capitabisation yields to current and future rental streams net of iIncome voids arising from vacancies or rent-free periods and
assoclated running costs These capitalisation yields and future rental values are besed on comparabte property and leasing transactions in the
rarket using the valuers professional judgement and market ohservation Otherfactors taken into account in the valuations iclude the tenure
of the property tenancy details and ground and structura! conditions

In the case of engomg developments the approach applied s the residual method of vatuation which s the investment method of valuation as
described above with a deduction for alt costs necessary to complete the developrnent including a notionat finance cost together with a further
altowance for remaining risk Properties held lor developmeni are generally valued by adopting the tugher of the residual methaod of valuation
allowing for all associated risks or the investiment method of vatuatien for the existing asset

Copres of the valuation certificates of Knight Frank LLP and CBRE can be found at www britishland com/reports
Within their valuahion report CBRE have highlighted that they expect considerable uncertainty to arise if there 15 a deciston for the UK to exit the
EU following the referendum on 23 June 2016 and that this has the potential to reduce investment volumes and Ligquidity Thisis a forward-looking

statement which has no impact on the valuations as at 31 March 2014

A breakdown of vatuations split between the Group and 1ts share of joint ventures and funds 15 shown below

2016 015

Joint Joint

ventures and ventures and
Group funds Total Group funds Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Krught Frank LLP 7,529 3,576 11,305 6795 3313 10108
CBRE 2,582 1,381 3,943 2714 1401 4115
Total property portfolio valuation 16,111 4,937 15,048 9309 4714 14223
Non-controlling interests [324) 74 [400) {441) {105] 1546}

Total property portfolio valuation

attributable to shareholders 9,787 4,861 14,648 9068 4 609 13 677

information about farr value measurements using unobservable inputs [Level 3]

ERVpersqht Egurvatent Yield Costs to complete per sq ft
Fair value at
31 March 2016 Valuation Min Max Average Min Max Average Min Max  Average
tnvestment £m technique £ £ £ % % k] £ € £
Investment
Retail & leisure 5,608 methodology 2 75 22 3 n 5 - 45 8
Investment
Offices & resrdential'? 3,492 methodology 4 136 53 1 8 4 - 150 15
Investment
Canada Water 250 methodology 15 25 22 1 5 3 - 5 4
Ressdual
Developments? 343 methadotogy 40 197 73 4 5 4 - bb4 447
Total 9,693
Trading properties
at farr value 418
Group property
portfolio vatuation 16,111

Includes owner-occupied
<Includes Residental with an average capital vatue per sq ft of £1 028 inctuding developments at end value and mixed use
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10 Property conunued

All other factors being equat

- a hugher equivalent yreld or discount rate would lead to & decrease im the valuation of an asset

- an increase In the current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value and
- an ncrease n the costs to complete would lead to a decrease i the valuation of an asset

However there areintet relationships between the unohservable inputs which are partially determined by market conditions which would inspact
on these changes There were no transfers between valuation levels i the period

Addittonal property disclosures - including covenant information

At 31 March 2016 the Group property portfolio vatuation of £10 111m [2G14/15 £9 509} comprises freeholds of £6 184m [2014/15 £6 098m] virtual
freeholds of £906m (2014715 £811m] and long leaseholds of £3 021m [2014/15 £2 400m] The histor ical cost of properties was £6 544m (2014/15 £6 582m]
The property valuauon does not include any investment properties held under oper ating leases [2014/15 £nil}

Cumuiative interest capitabised against investment devetopment and tradig properties amounts to £88m {2014/15 £81m)

Properties valued ot £2 559m [2014/15 £2 479mi were subject to a security interest and other properties of non-recourse companies amounted
to £1 244m (2014715 £1 365m] totalling £3 803m [2014/15 £3 844m]

Included within the property vatuation s £310m (2014/15 £102m] in respect of accrued conu acted rental upliftincome

11 Joint ventures and funds

Summary movement for the year of the investrnents in joint ventures and funds

venilcrg Funds Total Equay Loans Total
£m Em £m £m £m €m
At1 Apnil 2015 2586 315 2,501 2598 303 2,90
Additons 246 - 244 14 232 244
[hsposals {2} 13l (15} - {15) {18)
Share of profit on ordinary actvities after taxation 345 32 397 397 - 397
Cistribubons and dividends
- Capital - (76} 076} (76} - 76
- Revenue (90} 13! [103) (103} - 103
Hedging and exchange movements 4 (1t 3 3 - 3
At31 March 2014 3109 244 3,353 2833 520 3,353

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information
At 31 March 2016 the investments tn joint ventures included within the total invesiments in jomnt veniures and funds was £3 348m [2014/15 £2 869m]
betng the £3 353m total investment shawn ahove less the net investment of £5m [2014/15 €£32mj1in PREF a property fund in Cantinental Eurepe
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11 Joimnt ventures and funds continued

The summarised income statements and balance sheets below and on the following page show 0% of the results assets and liabilities of joint
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to the Group s accounting policies

Jomtventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Broadgate MSC Praperty BL Sansbury

REIT Interrnediate Superstores Tasco Joint
Ltd Haldings Lid Ltd Ventures'

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebetl LLP Investment
Partners [GIC) Management J Sansbury ple Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhall Superstor es Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarised income statements £m £m £m £m
Revenue?® 244 102 36 19
Costs {48] {23) {1 -
196 79 55 19
Adrinistrative expenses - - - -
Net interest payable 186) (36} 124) %]
Underlying Profit 110 43 3 10
Net valuation movement 334 50 (3¢ {9
Prcfit on disposal of nvestment properties and investments - - 2 -
Profit on ordinar y activities befare taxation 444 93 {3 1
Taxation - - - 1
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation Lbb 93 (31 2
Other comprehensive income [expendsture) 5 - - 3
Total comprehensive iIncome 43 93 (3 5
British Land share of total comprehensive income 225 46 (2] 3
British Land share of distributions payable 44 17 1 4
Summarised balance sheets £m Em Em £m
Investment and trading propertes 4622 1786 4b 354
Current assets 4 5 Z -
Cash and deposiis 293 32 80 b
Gross assets 4,919 1,823 1,028 3460
Cur:ent babibities 177) {31 (30] {3l
Bank and securitrsed dabl (1842 $694) [462) 1184]
Other non-current liabilities [65] {24) - {15)
Gross labilites (1,984) (7491 (492) {202]
Net external assets 2,935 1,074 5836 158
British Land share of net assets 1,457 537 269 7%

PR

w

Tesce joini ventures include BLT Holdings (2010 Limited as at 31 March 2016
USS joint ventures include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Property Partnership
Hercules Unit Trust joint ventures and sub-funds mcludes 50% of the 1 esults of Deepdaie Ca Ownership Trust Gibraltar Limited Pai tner ship and Valentine Ca-Ownership

Trust and 41 25% of Birstall Co-Ownership Trust The balance sheet shows 50% of the assets of these joint ventures and sub-funds

.

Included inthe column headed Qther jaint ventures and funds are contributians from the fellowing BL Goodman Limited Partnership The Aldgate Place Limited

Partnership Bluebutton Property Manzgement UK Limited City of London Office Ui Trust and Pillar Retait Europark Fund [PREF) The Group s ownership share
of PREF i5 65% however as the Group 1s not able to exercise control over significant decisions of the fund the Group equity accounts for its interest in PREF

=
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Lss Leadenhall Hercules Unit Trust Gther TOTAL
The SouthGate Limited Joint Helding Co JoIMt ventures oint ventures TOTAL Group share
Partngrshp Venlures Derseyl Ltd and sub-funds? and funds* 2016 2016
Unwversities
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxtord
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Offices Retail
Centres Centres l.eadenhall Parks
50% 50% 0% Various
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
19 12 35 8 L3 531 286
(4] (3 (1’ [7) (1 (79 23
13 g 25 3 5 432 222
11 - f] (6) 12) {10) (5}
1] - - [8) (164) 182}
n g 24 17 3 258 135
4 12 124 4 7 430 245
- - - - 30 32 18
15 21 148 Al 49 780 398
- - - - 13} 12) [i]]
15 21 148 21 37 778 397
- - - {2) - ¢ 3
15 21 148 19 37 784 400
8 1" T4 10 25 400
4 & 3 59 31 179
£m £m £m tm £m £m £m
257 252 942 612 108 9,889 4,944
2 1 - 4 14 32 18
5 7 5 9 33 470 239
274 2460 47 425 155 10,391 5,201
14} &) 14) 7 {51] 215} 11
- - - [139) - 13,321] (1,560)
128 - - {4] {18 1154) [77)
(32) (&) [&) [150) (5% 13,690} 11,848]
242 254 941 475 86 6,701 3,353
121 128 L7 237 L4 3,353

The borrowings of joint ventures and funds and their subsidiaries are non-recourse (o the Group All jpint ventures are mcorporated in the United Kingdom with
Lhe exception of Broadgate REFT Limited the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and Leadenhall Holding Co [Jersey) Limited which are incorporated in Jersey

Of the funds the Hercules Umit Trust {HUT] joint ventures and sub funds are incorporated in Jersey and PREF 1n Luxembourg

These hinancial statements incluge the results and hinanoial pesition of the Group s mterest in the Fareham Praperty Partnership the Aidgate Place Limited Partnership
the BL Goodman Limited Partnership the Auchintea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Partnership Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exemptions
provided by Regulatien 7 of the Partnership |Accountsi Reguiations 2008 not lo attach the partnership accounts to these financial statements
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Jount ventures and funds continued

The summartsed income statements and balance sheets below and on the following page show 100% of the results assets and liabiities of joint
ventures and funds Wheie necessary these have been1estated to the Group s accounting policies

The prior year comparatives below have been represenied to reflect the presentation adopted in the current periad

Joint ventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Broadgate MSC Property BL Sainsbary

REIT Intermediate Superstores Tesco Joint
Lid Holdings Ltd Lid Ventures

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebel LLP Investment
Partnars [GIC] Management J Sainshury ple Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Proper ty sector Broadgate Meadowhalt Superstores Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 0%
Summarised mcome statements £m £m £m £m
Revenue 214 94 40 97
Costs [50] 19] - (5)
164 75 40 $2
Admintstrative expenses 1) - - 1l
Met interest payable [88) [38) {28] [56)
Underlying Profit 79 37 32 4
Net vezluation movement 464 161 14 17
Prafit on disposal of investment properties and investments - ~ (31 14}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 739 198 43 94
Taxation - - - 9
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 73% 198 43 43
Gther comprehensive [expenditure] mncorme (213 (7} 4 6
Total comprehensive iInceme 718 191 47 69
Britrsh Land share of total comprehensive income 359 96 24 35
British Land share of distributions payable 15 7 47 37
Summarised balance sheets £m £m £m £m
Investment and trading properties 4 209 179 1039 363
Current assets 3 5 3 -
Cash and deposits 272 32 25 )
Gross assets 4,486 1,756 1,067 359
Current lizbiliues (82] 31 f26] (5}
Bank and securitised debt [2142) (/21 [478) t184]
Other non-current liabilives [64]) (24 - [20}
Gross tiabilities {2,288) {776) [504) 2091
Net external assets 2,198 80 563 1560
British Land share of net assets 1,09% 450 282 80
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uss Leadenhall Hercules Unit Trust Other TOTAL TOTAL
The SouthGate Limited Joint Holding Co Jaint ventures jount ventures Group share
Partnership Ventures erseyl Lid and sub-funds and funds 2015 2015
Universities
Superapnuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxtord
Inveslors PLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Offices Retal
Cenlies Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Varous
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
14 H 15 53 15 573 289
] (3] 191 (6 (3 (96} 491
13 8 4 47 12 477 240
1] - - - £3] (6) 14)
{1) - - 5] [2) (212} {1071
n ] 6 47 7 259 129
26 25 201 43 - 117 589
- - - {1] 16 8 [
37 33 207 104 23 1,438 724
- - - - {2) 7 2
37 33 207 104 21 1,445 726
- - - (1 {10) (291 (13)
37 33 207 103 L 1,416 713
19 17 104 52 7 713
4 4 - 37 - 141
£m £m £m £m Em €m £m
262 235 770 706 140 9,643 4,719
2 - 2 2 23 42 25
2 9 4 11 21 382 192
2566 244 776 719 184 9,847 4,936
14 14 (4) (7 {65} (228] (119
- - - 127} - 13,652) 1,827)
(28] - - {1l 144 {181) 189)
(32) (4] 14) (135) [109) (4,081) 12,035]
234 240 772 584 75 5,806 2,901
117 120 386 283 4 2,901
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Financixal statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

Operating cash flows of joint ventures and funds [Group share)

015 25
&m £m
Rental income receved from tenants 208 234
Fees and other income received 1 1
Operating expenses paid ta suppliers and employees (18 {241
Cash generated from operations 191 209
Interest paid (86) mal
Interest received 1 2
UK corporation tax paid (3) 7]
Foremgn 1ax paid &1 17)
Cash inflow from operating actvities 102 88
Cash inflow from operating activities deptoyed as
Surplus cash retamned within joint ventur es and funds 44 15
Revenue distributians per consolidated statement of cash flows 58 73
Revenue distributions split between controlling and non-controlling interests
Attributable to non-contrelling interests 4 7
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 54 b6
12 Other imvestments
2018 M5
Investrent Loans, Investmant loans
hetdfor recenables heldfor  recewables
trading and other Total trading and other Totat
€m Em €m £m Em fm
At 1 Aprit 99 280 379 97 170 262
Additions - 35 35 - 13 13
Disposals - (272) f272) - 12} 12)
Revaluation 2 - 2 7 - 7
Depreciation - 12] {21 - | L]
At 31 March 101 41 142 99 280 379

The investment held for trading comprises interests as a i ust beneflicary The 1 ust s assets comprise freehold rever sions in a pool of commer ciat
properites comprising Samnsbury s superstores The inter est was categonised as Level 3in the fair value hierarchy 1s subject to the same inputs as
throse disclosed in note 10 and us far value was determined by independent external valuers

Included wathin the loans recewables and other batance 1s £rul [2014/2015 £243ml in retation to a loan to the Broddgate joint venture wiich 1s

carned at amortised cost, and was fully repaid in the year
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13 Debton s

2016 2005

£m fm

Trade and other debtors 24 16
Prepayments and accrued income 9 4
33 20

Trade and other debtors are shown after deducting & provision for oad and doubtfut debts of £16m {2014/15 £16m} The charge to the income

statement i relation te bad and doubtfut debts was £1m (2014/15 £1m3

The Directors consider that the carrymg amount of trade and other deblors 1s approximate to ther fair value There 1s no concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade deblors as the Group has alarge number of customers who are paying thetr renat in advance

As at 31 March trade and other debtors outside their payment terms yet not provided for are as fotlows

Qutside cradit terms but not impared

Within credit More than

Totak terms 0O-1month 1-2months 2 months

£m Em £m £m £m

2016 24 12 11 1 -

2015 16 9 7 - -
14 Cieditors

2016 015

£m £m

Trade creditors 39 41

Other taxalion and social security 34 31

Accruals 72 28

Delerred income 73 71

218 261

Trade creditors ai e interest-free and have settlement dates within one year The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other

creditor 515 approximate to thew fair value

15 Other non-cui rent habilities

2016 2015
£m £m
Cther creditors 70 32
Head leases' 44 4
Net pension liabilities 6 &
122 79

" Includes £9m ia retation to head lease Uabilties ontrading properties hald at cost
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax
The movernent on defer red tax 1s as shown below

Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2016

1 Apnil Credited to Crodited [debited]  Transferred to 31 March
2015 heome to equity joint ventures 2016
£m £m £m £m €m
Interest raie and currency derivative revaluations - - 5 - 5
Other timing differ ences - [} - - [
- é 5 - 11
Deferred tax Liabilities year ended 31 March 2016
£€m £m £€m m €m
Property and investment revaluations (sl - (2} - 7
Interest rate and currency der vative revaluations (1] 25 (21 - -
Other timing differences ] - - 2 il
12) 25 {23} 2 (8
Netdeferred tax [Lability) asset {121 3 (18) 2 3
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2015
1 April Expensed Credited to Transterred 10 31 March
2014 to income equity Jjoint ventures 25
£m £m £m £n tm
Deferred tax Liabsities year ended 31 March 2015 .
£m £m Em £m £m
Pt opei ty and investrnent revaluations - (51 - - 5]
Interest rate and currency dervative revaluations - 19 15 - {4}
Other timing differences 4] 1 - - 13l
{4) 1231 15 - (12)
Net deferred tax [Labiity) asset {4) {23} 15 - 12

The following corporation tax rates have been substantively enacted 20% effective from 1 Aprd 2015 reducing to 19% eftective from 1 April 2017
and 18% effective from 1 April 2020 The deferred 1ax assets and Liabilities have been calculated at the tax rate effective in the pertod that the tax s
expected Lo crystallise

The Group has recogrised 4 deferred tax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%) of £6m {2014/2015 Enil) in respect of capital losses from previous
years avaitable for offset agamst future capitat profit. Further unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of capital tosses of £68m [2014/2015
£87m| exist at 31 March 2016

The Group has 1 ecogrised deferi ed tax assets on dervative revaluations 1o the extent that future matching taxable prohits or e expected to arse

At 31 March 2016 the Group bad an unrecognised deferred tax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%] of £51m {2014/2015 £38m]in respect of UK
revenue tax {osses flom previous years

Under the REIT regime development properties which are sold within three year s of completion do not benefit from tax exemption At 3t March 2014

the value of such properties s £967m [2014/2015 £1 008mi] and if these properties were to be sold and no tax exemption was available the tax arising
would be £56m [2014/15 £46m]
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17 Net debt

2016 2015
Footnote £m £m
Secured on the assets of the Group
2125% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 i 34 35
5 264% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 n 355
5 0055% First Mor tgage Amortising Cebentures 2035 10¢ 9¢
5 357% Firsl Morigage Debenture Bonds 2078 349 344
6 75% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 62 176
Bank loans 1213 733 963
Loan notes 2 Z
1,651 1974
Unsecured
5 50% Semor Notes 2027 101 28
6 30% Semor US Dellar Notes 2815 - 104
3 895% Sentor US Dotlar Notes 2018 2 28 28
4 635% Senior US Dollar Notes 2021 2 165 158
4 764% Senor S Dollar Notes 2023 2 105 99
5 003% Senior US Doltar Notes 2026 2 69 b4
3 81% Senior Notes 2026 13 mn
3 97% Senior Notes 2024 116 114
1 5% Convertible Bond 2017 445 493
0% Convertible Bond 2820 334 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 634 706
2,110 1975
Gross debt 3 3,761 3949
interest rate and currency derwative liabillibes 137 124
interest rate and currency derivative assets [167] {139]
Cash and short term deposits 45 114) {108]
Total net debt 3,617 3828
Net debt atlributable 1o non-controlling interests 64) (190)
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,513 3638
' These are non-recourse horrowings with no recourse for repayment to other companias or assets In the Group
20156 2015
£m £m
11 BLD Property Holdings Lid 34 35
1 2 Hercules Unit Trust 443 645
1 3TBL Properties Limited and subsidiaries 290 318
767 998

? Principal and interest on this borrawing was fully hedged inte Sterling at a flogting rate at the tine of 1s3ue

* The principal amount of gross debt at 31 March 2016 was £3 552m [2014/15 £3 717m] Included in thiss the principal amount of secured barrowings and other

borrowings of nen recourse companies of £1 563m of which the borrowings of the partly-owned subsidiary Hercules Unit Trust not beneticiatly owned by the Group

15 £109m

Inrluded within cash and short term deposits 1s the cash and short term deposits of Hercules Unit Trust of which £8m is the proportion net beneficially ewned

by the Group

% Cash and deposits not subject to a secunity interest amount to £93m [2014/15 £84m]
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysis of net debt

2016 2015

£m £m

Repayable wathin ene year and on demand T4 102
Between one and iwoyears 504 T
two and five years 1,491 1707

five and ten years 807 43

ten and fifteen years 500 747

fifteen and twenty years 385 6

twenty and twenty five years - 373

3,687 3847

Gross debt 3,761 3949

Inter est rate and currency derivatives f3o) 113

Cash and short term deposits {114) [108)
Net debt 3,617 3828

1 6% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017}
On 10 September 2012 British Land Jerseyl Limited lthe 2012 Issuer), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group 1ssued £400 mitlion 1 5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 fthe 2012 bonds] at par The 2012 Issuer s fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 7012 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2012 bonds are converuble inta preference shares of the 2012 Issuerwhich are automatically tr ansferred to the Company in
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash Bondholders may exet cise
their conversion right at any time up to [but excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2617 {the maturity date)

The ivtial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange piice 1s adjusted based on certain events

From 25 Septembet 2015 the Company has the option to redeem the 2012 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a specified period or at any tme once 85% by narminal value of the 2012 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bongs will be redeemed at par on 10 September 2017 [the maturity date] f they have not already been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled No redemption of the bonds accurred in the year

0% Cenvertible hond 2015 [maturity 2020)
0n 9 June 2015 British Land (Whitel 2015 Limited (the 2815 Issuer) a whaotly owned subsidiary of the Group rssued E350 millicn zero coupon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 [the 2015 bonds) at par The 2013 Issuer ss fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Suhject to their terms the 2015 bonds are convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are automnaticatly transferred 1o the Company m
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company ar 21 the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash From 20 July 2015 up to
and inciuding 29 June 2018 a bondhoider may exercise its conversion right if the share price has traded al & level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a speciiied period Thereafter and up to but excluding the 7th deating day before 9 June 2020{the maturity datel 2 bondholder may convert
atany time

The imtial exchange price was 1103 32 peace per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain events [such as the Company
paying divsdends in any year above 14 18 pence per or dinary share]

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the option to 1 edeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 130% of the
exchange price for a specified period ot at any ime once 85% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 [the matunity date} if they have not already been corverted redeemed or
purchased and cancelled
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¥7 Net debt contimned

Fair value and book value of net debt

2014 25

Fairvalue Bookvalue  Difference Farva'ue Bookvalue  Difference

- £m £m £m £m

Debentures and unsecured bunds 1,637 1,613 24 1925 1785 140
Convertible bonds 77% 779 - 493 493 -
Bank debt and other floating raie debt 1,384 1,369 15 1691 1674 20
Gross debt 3,800 3,781 39 4109 3949 160
Interest rate and currency derivative liabilities 137 137 - 126 124 -
Interest rate and currency der wauve assets (167) 167 - (1391 139) -
Cash and short term deposits (114) 114) - nog| [108) -
Net debt 3,656 3,617 39 3988 3828 160
Net debt attributable to nan-conlr olling interests 1os) 1104) (2 192t (190) {2)
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,550 3,513 37 37%6 3538 158

The fair values of debt debentures and the conver tshie bonds have been established by ebtaining quated market prices fram brokers The bank debt
and loan notes have been valued assurming they could be renegotiated at contracted margins The dersvatives have been valued by calculating the
present value of expected future cash flows using appropriate markel discount rates hy an independent treasury advisor

Shor t term debtors and creditors and other investments have been exctuded from the disclaosures on the basis that the fair value 1s equivalent

io the book value

Group loan to value (LTV]
2016 2015
£m £mn
Group loan to value [LTV] 25% 28%
Pimncrpal amount of gross debt 3,552 anzg
Less debt atiributable to non-controtling mterests (109) (200
Less cash and shart term deposits {balance sheet} {114) 1108)
Plus cash attributable ta non-centrolling interests 8 i0
Total net debt for LTV calculation 3,337 3419
Group property portfolio valuation [note 10) 10,911 9509
Investiments in joint ventures and funds [note 11} 3,353 2901
Other mvestments {note 12} 142 379
Less property and investments attributable Lo non-controlling interests (384) [528)
Total assets for LTV calculation 13,222 12 261
Proportionally consolidated loan to value [LTV}
2016 2015
€m £m
Proportionally cansolidated loan ta value (LTV] 32% 35%
Principal amount of gross debt 5,217 5 404
Less debt attributable ta nan-controlling snteresis (128) 1200)
Less cash and short term deposits (353) (300]
Ptus cash attributable to non-controlling interests 9 10
Totat net debt for proportional LTV calculation 4,745 4914
Group pt operty portfolio valuation [note 10) 10,111 9509
Share of property of jont ventures and funds [note 10} 4,937 4714
Other investments {note 12} 2 379
Less other investments attributable to joint ventur es and funds {4] [123]
Less property attributable to non-controlling interests (400} {5446]
Total assets for proportignal LTV calculation 14,786 13933
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17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
The two financiat covenants applicable to the Group unsecured debt including convertible bonds are shown below

2016 205

€m £m

Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves 3L% 38%
Prncipal amount of gross debt 3,552 37T
Less the retevant proportion of borrowings of the parily owned subsidiary/non- controtling interests {109 {zo0)
Less cash and deposits [balance sheet] (114) [108)
Ptus the relevant proportion of cash and deposits of the partly-owned subsidiary/non-controtling interests 8 10
Net Borrowings 3,337 3419
Share capital and 1 eser ves [balance sheet] 9.619 8365
E£PRA deferred tax adjusiment [EPRA Table A) 5 13
Trading proper ty surpluses [EPRA Tabte Al 93 96
Exceptional refinancing charges [see below] 287 300
Farr value adjustments of financial instruments {EPRA Table A) 198 257
Less reserves atlributable to non-controling imterests [batance sheet) 12771 1333
Adjusted Capital and Reserves 9.925 B B98

in calcutating Adjusted Capital and Reserves for the purpose of the unsecured debt financial covenants there 1san adjustment of £287m [2014/15
£300m] to reflect the cummulative net amortised exceptronal #ems relating to the refinancings in the years ended 31 March 2005 2006 and 2007

2016 M5
£m £m

Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets 29% 28%

Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 anz

Less cash and deposits not subject 1o a secunity interest {being £93m less the relevant proportion of cash and deposits of the

par ily owned subsidiary/non-controlling interests of £5m} [88) 7N
Less principal ameunt of secured and non-recourse hot1owings 11,5631 11 908]
Net Unsecured Borrowings 1,901 1734
Group property portiolio vatuation [note 10] 10111 9509
Investiments i joint ventures and funds [note 1) 3,353 2901

Qther mvestments Inote 12] 142 379
Less investments in joint ventures [note 11} {3,348) {2 859)
Less encumbered assets [note 10} (3,803} {3 844)
Unencumbered Assets 5,455 6 076
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17 Net debt conunued

Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2014

Arrangement
Business Foreign cosls
2015  Cashflows combinations  Transfers® exchange Fair value amortisation 2016
Short term borrowings 102 (104) - 74 2 - - 74
Long teri bortowings 3,847 (98} - (74 14 s 7 3,687
Derwatives' 13) 22 - - {13 128) - (30}
Total babibities from financing acuvities 3936 (180} - - 3 (351 7 371
Cash and cash equivalenis (108) (&} - - - - - (114)
Net debt 3,828 (184} - - 3 (35] 7 3,617
Reconcibiation of mevementn Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2015
Arrangerment
Business Foregn costs
2014 Cashllows  combinations Transfers? exchange Fairvalue  amortrsaton 2015
Short term borrawings 495 (499} - 102 - - - 167
Laong term borrowmngs 2803 616 379 021 40 104 7 3 847
Der vatives® 25 ] - ~ 147} 13 - (3]
Total Liatbsttes from financing actvities 3323 17 379 - {7 117 ki 1936
Cash and cash equivalents 421 34 - - - - - 108!
Net debt 3181 151 37 - i71 137 7 3828
1 Cash tlows on derwvatives Inciude £7m of net receipts on derwalive interest
« Cash flows on dervatives include £8m of net receipts on derwative interest
* Transfers comprises debt maturing from long term to shert term borrowings
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17 Net debt continued
Fair value hierarchy

The table below provides an analysis of financial nstruments Carsied at fair value by the valuation method The fair value hier archy levels at e defined
in note 10

2016 2015
Lovel t Levet 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 lLevel 2 Level 3 Total
£m m im £m fm £m £m Em
Interest rate and currency der vatve assels - [157] - (167 - [139) - (1391
Other investmenis - held for trading - - 1101) i101) - - {99] 1991
Assets - 1567) 101) {248) - 139) (%9 (238]
Inte: est r ate and currency derivative Labilities - 137 - 137 - 126 - 126
Convertible bonds 77% - - 779 493 - - 493
Liabibities 779 137 - §14 493 126 - £19
Total 779 (30) 1101) 648 493 [13] 991 381
Categories of financal instruments
2016 2015
£m £m
Financial assets
Fair vatue through income statement
Other investments - hetd for trading 1 99
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 164 139
Derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships 3 -
Amortised cost
Trade and other debtors 24 16
Cash and short term deposits 114 108
Utherinvestments - loans and recevables Al 280
447 4642
Financial Labilities
Fair vatue through income statement
Converlibte bends (779 (439
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 37 {126)
Amortised cost
Gt oss debt {2,982) {3 454
Head leases payable (48] {41
Creditors (133] (178)
14,0771 (4 294)
Totat {3,630) (3 652)

Gains and losses on hinancial instruments, as classed above, are disclosed in note 6 {net financing costs)] note 13 (debtors} note 4 [vatuation
movemenls an propet ty) the consolidated income statement and the consolidated staterment of campr ehensive income The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of other investments and head teases payable are approximate to therr fairvalue and that the carrying amounis are recoverable
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17 Net debt contmued

Capitat sk management

The capital struciure of the Group consists of net debt and equity attributable to the equity holders of The Brinsh Land Company PLC comprising
issued capial reserves and retained earmings Risks relating to capral structure are addressed within managing risk in delivering our strategy on
pages 57 to 63 The Group s objectives policies and processes for managing debt are set out in the kinancial polictes and principles on pages 54 to 56

Interest rate risk management
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure to the variabiity in cash flows on floatting rate debt such as revolving bank tacilities and

floating rate bonds caused by mavements in market rates of interest

At 31 March 2014 the fair vatue of these derivatives 1s a net liabibity of £136m Interest s ate swapswith a fair value of £137m have been designated
as cash flow hedges under [AS 39

The ineffectiveness recagnised in the Income statement on cash flow hedges in the year ended 31 March 2016 was £mi [2014/15 £nil}

The cash flows occur and are charged to profit and loss untit the maturnity of the hedged debt The table below summarises variable rate debt and
fareign currency deneminated debt hedged at 31 Maich 2014

Cash flow hedgad debt
2018 2015
£m £m
Qutstanding  at one year 413 1138
atiwo years 663 538
at five years 250 450
attenyears 250 250

Fair vatue hedged debt
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure on fixed rate financial lrabilities caused by movements in market rates of interest

At 31 March 2014 the fair value of these derivatives i1s a net asset of £id6m Intesrest 1 ate swaps with a fair value of £164m have been designated as
fair vatue hedges under IAS 39 [2014/1% asset of £133m)|]

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure at an aver age floating rate
af 146 basis points above LIBOR These have been designated as fair value hedges of the US Private Placements

Interest rate prefile — including effect of dervatives

2018 2015

€m £m

Fixed or capped 1ate 2,372 2989
Vanable rate [net of cash) 1,245 1,239
3,617 3828

All the debt 1 effectively Sterling denominated except for £10m [2014/15 £39rm} of Eurc debt of which Enit 1s at a fixed rate 2014/15 £36m]

At 31 March 2016 the weaghted average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debtis 3 5% (2014/15 4 8%)] The wewghted average period for which the
rate s fixed 1s 1 years (2014/15 71 years] The floating rate debt 1s set far per tods of the Company s choosing at the retevant LIBOR [or similar] rate

The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped 1 ates of interest was 66% at 31 March 2016 on a spotbasis The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped
rates of tnterest as an average over the next bve-year forecast pericd on a propertionalty consotidated basis was 60% at 31 March 20146 Based on
the Group snierestrate profile at the balance sheet date a 576 bps increase in interest rates would decrease annual profits by £72m [2014/15
£53m decreasel Simitarty a 59 bps reduction would increase profits by E7m (2014/15 £5m increase] The change in interest rates used for this
sensitivity analysis s based on the largest annuat change i three month Sterling LIBOR aver the last ten years The impact assumes LIBOR

does not fall betow 0%
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17 Net debe continued

Interest rate profile - including effect of dervatives continued

Upwar d movements in medium and tong term interest rates associated with tugher interest rate expectations increase the value of the Group s
interest rate swaps that piovide protection against such moves The converse s true for downward movements in the yield curve The majority of the
Group s interest rate swaps which provide such protection qualify as effective cash flow hedges unde: IAS 39 therefore movements in the fair vatue
are recogrused directly in equity 1 ather than the income statement A 204 bps shift represents the largest annual change in the seven-year Sterling
swap rate over the last ten years Al 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallet upward shift in swap rates would inci ease the value of these interest rate
swaps by £151m [2014/5 £15tm] A 204 bps downward shifl in swap rates would reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by £197m {2014/15
£155m] Because the interesl rate swaps are matched by floatng rate debt the overalt effect on Group cash flows of such movemnents is mimimal

The 1 5% 2012 Conves hible Bond and 0% 2015 Converuble Bond are both designated as fair value through profit or loss Principal compenents of the
market value of both bonds include Brinsh Land s share price and its volatlity and market interest rates

The tairvalue of the 1 5% 2012 Converoble Bond at 31 March 20156 was a £445m liability At 3t March 2016 a 204 bps paraltet upward shift ininterest
rates would reduce the fawr value Lability by £13m and a 204 bps downward shift i interest rates would increase the fair value babitity by £34m

The fair value of the 0% 2015 Convertble Bond at 31 March 2015 was a £334m Liabiliy At 31 March 7016 a 204 bps par allet upward shift in interest
rates would reduce the fair value bability by £27m and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rates would increase the far value bability by £30m

Foreign currency risk management

The Group s policy 1s to have no mateniat unhedged net assets or liabibities denominated in foreign currencies The currency risk on overseas
vestments)s hedged via loreign curiency denominated borrowings and derivatives The Group has adopted net investment hedging in accordance
with [AS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain er loss on the hadging instrument that 1s determened o be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly
in equity The ineffecuive portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instiument 1s recognised immedsately in the income statement

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Group s fol eign curtency denominated assets and tiabilinies Contingerl tax on overseas
investments nol expecied to occur 1s igror ed for hedging purposes ass the requirement to {air value interest rate swaps Based on the 31 March
2016 position 2 33% appr eciation [largest annual ¢hange over the last ten years] in the Curo relative to Sterling woutd resutt in a £nil change [2014/15
£nitl in repor ted prolits

Assets Liabibives
2016 2015 20146 2015
£tm Em £m fm
Euro denominated 10 39 10 39

Credit risk management

The Group s approach to credit risk management of counterparties s referred to in the iinancial policies and principles on pages 54 to 56 and the
risks addressed within managing nisk in delivering our strategy on pages 57 10 63 The carrying amaount of hinancial assets recorded i the inancial
statements represents the Group s maximum expasure to credit risk witheut taking account of the value of any collateral obtained

Cash and short term deposits at 31 Mai ch 2016 amounted to £114m {2014/15 £108m) Deposits and interest rate deposits were placed with financial
institutiens with 8BB+ or better credit ratings

AL31 March 2016 the fairvalue of all interest rate dertvative asseis was £167m (2014/15 £139m}

At 31 March 2016, priar Lo lakmyg into account any olfset arrangements the largest combined credit exposure o a single counterparty arising from
money mar kel deposits Liguid investments and derivatives was £85m (2014/15 £59m] Thistepiesents 0 6% {2014/15 0 5%) of gross assels

The deposit exposw e5 are with UK banks and UK branches of international banks

The Greup s exposure to credit 11sk in respect of 1is trade recervables is analysed in note 13 Provismions are made taking account hustoric credit losses
and the creditworthiness of debtors

Ligwidity risk management
The Group s approach to Liqurdity nsk management 1s discussed in the financial policies and princaples on pages 54 to 56 and the nsks addressed
within managing risk in delivering our stralegy on pages 57 to 63

The following table presents a matunity profsle of the contracted undiscounted cash flows of [inancial labiliies based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required 10 pay The table includes both inlerest and principal flows Where the interest payable 1s not fixed the amouni disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates implied by yield curves at the reporting date For derwvative financial instruments
that settle on a net basts le g interest r ate swaps] the undiscounted net cash flows are shown and for derivatives that require gross settlement

le g cross currency swapst the undiscounted gross cash flows are presented Where payment abligatsons are in foreign currencies the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheei date 1s used Trade creditors and amounts owed (o joint ventures which are repayable within one year
have been excluded from the analysis
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17 Net debt contunued

Liquidsty risk management continued
The Group expects to meet its financial liabilities through the various available biguidity sources including a secure rental income profile asset sales
undrawn committed borrowrng facitities and in the lengerterm debt refinancings

The Group leases out all its investment properties under operatng leases with a weighted average lease length of nine years This secure income
profite 1s generated from upward only rent reviews teng leases and mgh accupancy tates The future aggregate ruinimum rentals recevable under
non-cancellable operating leases 1s also shown in the table below Income from joint ventures and funds is not inctuded below Additional Liguidity
wilt arise from tetting space in proper ties under construction as welt as from distnbutions receved from joint ventures and funds

2016
Three

Within  Fellowing to five Bver five
one year year years years Total
£m tm £m £m £m
Debt’ 76 481 1,471 1,577 3,585
Interest on debt 103 100 268 538 1,009
Derwative payments 13 14 77 395 499
Head lease payments 2 2 [ 239 249
Total payments 194 577 1,822 2.74% 5,342
Dervative receipts (23) {25) (104) 383) [535)
Net payment 171 552 1,718 2,366 4,807
Operating leases with tenants 437 419 1,933 2,389 4,378
Liquidity surplus [deficit] 266 (1331 {585] 23 [429]

Cumulative hquidity surplus (deficit) 244 133 (452) (429)

2015
Three

Within Following to five Over five
ane year yaar years years Tatal
fm fin £m £m (23]
Deit! 105 7% 1615 1956 3746
Interest on debt 126 125 328 619 1198
Dernvative payments 1 16 74 407 618
Head lease payments ? 2 b 223 233
Totat payments 354 279 2023 3199 5795
Dervative receipts 132) (24) [50) {385) 631}
Net payment 227 195 1933 2814 5164
Operating leases with tenants 443 431 1180 2782 4 B36
Liguidity susplus [defieith 221 236 {753 (321 [328]

Cumulative Liguidity surplus [deficit) 221 457 [296] {328)

Gross debt of £3 761 {2014/19 £3949m] represents the total shown less unamortised issue costs of £19m [2014/15 £23m plus fair value adjustments to debt
of £195m {2014/15 £226m],

Any shor tierm hguidily gap between the net payments required and the rentals recewable can be mel through other liquidity sources availahte to the
Group The Group currently hoids cash and short term: deposits of £4i4m of which £93m 15 not subject to a security snierest {see foatnoie 5 to net debt
table on page 147) Further bguidity can be achieved through sales of proper ty assets or nvestments and debtrefinancings

The Greup s property portfolio is valued externally at £10 111m and the share of joint ventutes and funds propetty ts valued at £4,937m The undrawn

committed borrowing facilities avarlable to the Group are a further source of iquidity The maturity profile of commutied undrawn borrowing facilities
15 shown averleaf
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity of commitied undrawn borrowing facilities

2016 2015

£m £m

Maturity date over live years - -
between four and five years 1,13 930

between thiee and four years 95 -

Totat facibities available for more thsn three years 1,208 930
Between two and three years 85 61
Between one and two years - 235
Within one year &0 0
Total 1,353 1236

The above faciities are comprised of British Land undrawn faciities of £1150m plus undrawn facilities of Hercules Uit Trust totalling £203m

18 Leasing

Operating leases with tenants
The Group teases aut all of 11s mvestment proper ies under operating leases with a weighted average lease length of mine years [2014/15 1en years)

The future aggregate mmumum rentats recewvable under non-cancellable operating leases are as fellows

2016 2015

£m £m

Less than one year 437 443
Between one and two years 419 431
Betwsen three and five years 1133 1180
Between six and ten years 1,241 1353
Between eleven and [ifteen years 626 783
Between sixteen and twenty years 357 443
After twenty years 165 203
Total 4,378 4 836

The Group s leasehold investment properties are typically under non-renewable teases without significant restiictions Finance lease Lisbiliies are
payable as follows no contingent t ents were payable in either period

2016 2015
Mmimum Minimuem
lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
£m fm £m £m £m £m
British Land Group
Less than one year 2 2 - 2 ? -
Between one and two years 2 - 2 2 -
Between two and five years [ L} - & b -
More than five years 239 193 46 223 182 41
Total 249 203 46 233 192 41
Less futur e finance charges (203) N192]
Present value of tease obligations 46 41
Mor e than Tive years 46 41
Present value of lease obligations 4é 41
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19 Dinvidend

The fourth quarter interim dividend of 7 99 pence per share totalling £73m {2014/15 692 pence per share totalling £7Im) was approved by the Board

on i6 May 2016 and 1s payable on 5 August 2014 to shareholders on the regisier at the close of business an 1 July 2016

The Board will announce the availability of the Scrip Diedend Alternative 1f available via the Reguiatory News Service and on its website [www

britishtand com/dividends! ne later than four bustness days belore the ex-dividend date of 30 June 2016 The Board expects io announce the split
between Property tncome Distributions [PID] and ron-PIG income 4t that trme Any Scrip Bradend Alternative will not be enhanced P10 dividends
are pad as required by REIT legislation after deduction of withholding tax at the basic Fate fcurrently 20%} where appropriate Certain classes of
shareholders may be able to elect to recewe dwvidends gross Please refer to out wehsite www britishland com/dividends for details

Pence per 2016 215
Payment date Dwidend shara £m £m
Current year dividends
0508 2016 2016 dth ntenim 709
05605 2016 2016 3rd interim 709
12 02 2016 2016 2nd interim 709 73
04112015 2014 1st interim 709 72
28 36
Prior year devidends
0708 2015 2015 4thinterim 492 71
04 052015 2015 3rd snterim 692 il
13 02 2015 2015 Znd interim 692 Al
0711 2014 2015 1stsnterum 692 iy
27 68
08 08 214 2014 41hinterim 679 48
02 05 2014 2014 3rd tntenim 679 48
Dmidends in consolidated statement
of changes in equity 287 277
Dividends settled in shares 152} 149
Dividends settled in cash 235 228
Tureng difference relating to payment
of wathholding lax - -
Dividends in cash flow statement 235 228
' Scrp alternative treated as non-PID for this dwidend
20 Share capital and resernes
2016 2015
Number of ordinary shares inissue at 1 April 1,031,788,286 1019766 481
Shate 1ssues 8,774,027 12 021 805
At 31 March 1,040,542,323 1031788 284

Of the issued 25p ordinary shates 627 shares were held in the ESOP trust {2014/15 98 453] 11 266 245 shares were held as treasury shares
[2014/15 11266 245k and 1 029 295 451 shareswere in free issue (2014715 1020 423 588] No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trust

during the year Allissued shares are fully paid

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumutative net change in the fair value of cash flow and forergn currency
hedging instruments as well as all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign aperations
The foretgn exchange differences also mclude the translation of the hablities that hedge the Company s net investment in a for eign subsidiary

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to owner-occupied proper ties and investments tn joini ventures and funds

Merger reserve

Thus comprises the premium on the share placing in March 2013 No share premium is recorded in the Company s financial statemnents through

the operation of the met ger retief provistens of the Companies Act 2006
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

At 31 March 2016 options aver 7 341 620 ordinary shares were outstanding under employee share aption plans The options had a weighted average
tife of 6 4 years Details of outstanding share options and shares awarded to employees including Executive Director s are set out helow and on the

following pages

AL T Apri

Vested hut

Exervised/

At 31 March

Exercse

Exertise dates

Date of grant 2015 Granted  not exercesed Vested Lapsed 016  pnce pence From o
Share options Sharesave Scheme
280610 38159 - - {37 7001 [459] - 37000 010915 290216
01071t B 476 - - {911] (393] 7172 47300 010916 280217
260612 92 390 - - [87800) {4 590) - 39200 010915 290216
260612 52 262 - - {2 3201 17244] 42,698 39200 010917 280218
190613 4120% - - (2 005) (4 404) 34,792 51100 010916 280217
190613 16376 - - {489) (685] 15,202 511 00 010918 280219
730614 159415 - - {1081 [21100] 137254 574 00 010917 280218
230614 131 633 - - (696) (3745] 122192 574 00 010919 280220
220615 - 84 687 - - {8 520) 76,167 57700 010918 2802139
220615 - 63 599 - - (5 249] 58,350 59700 010920 280221
939917 148 286 - [132582] (56 389] 498,827
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Options Vested, Not Exercised
310505 144 840 - - {73551 (91289) - 726 64 310508 3005135
051205 141 254 - - (105 483) {35771 - B23 40 051208 041215
2206 0% 21913 - - {7441 - 14,472 38700 790612 290619
231069 6043 - - {6 063} - - 47500 25112 25119
2112 09 77443 - - t4 9891 - 72,454 44600 211212 1219
110610 1420932 - - {208549] i4 026) 1,208,357 LE7 00 110613 140620
141210 90 568 - - 191121 (1789} 69,667 51000 141213 1412 20
806N 1108 890 - - {19 412} {5 245] 1,084,233 57300 28061 280621
19121 174 824 - - {75 6491 (3 600} 95,575 45100 191214 191221
14 0912 - 1178819 - 158 0301 {4 079) 111,710 53800 149915 1460922
201212 - 151 658 - (28 853) [2488] 120,317 56300 201215 6227
050813 - 18172 - - 111 456) 5,716 60100 050816 050823
051213 - 27530 - - 116 764) 5,766 60000 051216 051223
230614 - 87845 - - {79955 7,890 684 00 230617 23D674
3206727 1459024 - 16071321 (256 467) 3,802,157
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options
14 0912 292739 - (1178819l - (113920) - 53800 148915 140922
205212 198 211 - [151 658 - {46 5531 - 36300 201215 201222
050813 199 292 - 18172 - M7442] 663,678 60100 050816 050823
051213 508 874 - (22 530] - {83 744) 402,600 40000 051216 051223
230614 1131278 - {87 845] - {213675) 829,708 684 00 230617 730624
1212134 26127 - - - - 26,127 75783 121217 1212 24
220615 - 1199784 - - (81 261] 1,118,523 824 50 220618 2206725
3956471 1199784 11459 024) - 1656 595) 3,040,638
Total 7703110 2807094 (14590241 [7407114) (969 446] 7,341,620
Weighted average exercise price
of options [pencel 963 676 551 535 651 580
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20 Share capital and reserves conunued

Share price
At1Aprl Exercised/ At31March  atgrontdate
Date of grant 25 Granted Vested Lapsed 2016 pence Vesting date
Performance Shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
140912 860 412 - 815950) (44 482 - 538 00 140915
201212 103 130 - [86 B4S) (16 285) - 56300 201215
050813 1124 612 - - (88 159] 1,036,453 60100 050816
051213 270334 - - (40108] 230,226 600 00 051216
230614 1539336 - - (180 113] 1,359,223 684 00 2305617
121214 4354 - - - 4,354 75783 121217
220615 - 1289976 - (88 057] 1,201,869 8§24 50 2206 18
3902178 1289926 (902795  [457184) 3,832,125
Fund Managers Performance Plan
120912 170466 - 1669360 {3 530] - 53/00 120913
020813 199543 - (150 251 19292 - 59900 020815
020813 199 476 - (3 3801 (14 4321 179.664 59900 020816
569 485 - 362567) 127 254] 179,664
Matching Share Plan
450912 386 994 - 1182831 204 183 - 20000 050915
g20813 375338 - - {26 448 348,890 409 66 020816
300614 317166 - - [27606] 289,560 702 40 300677
290615 - 296 638 - h4 4681 282,170 806 00 290618
1079498 296638 182831 (272685 920,620
Total 5551161 1586564 (14481930 (757123 4,932,409
Waeighted average price of shares {pence] &1 821 540 599 697
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

21 Segment information

The Group allocates resaurces to Investment and asset management according to the sectors it expects to perferm over the medium term its lhree

prancpat sectors are Offices Retarl and Canada Water The Dffice sector includes residenual as this is often incorpor aled into Office schemes and

Retait inctudes lersure lor a similar rationale Canada Water was added as a principal sectoi inthe year refiecting the key role the campus has in the |
strateqgy of the Group Consequently the prior year comgaratives in this note have heen restated to reflect this addiional principal sector ‘

The relevant gross rental income net 1ental mcome operating result and proper Ly assets being the measures of segment revenue segment resull and
sagment assets used by the management of the busingss are set out below Management reviews the performance af the business principally on a
propor tonally consobidated basis which mcludes the Group s share of joint ventures and funds on 2 ine-by line basis and excludes non-controlling
mterests in the Group s subsidianes The cheef operating decision maker for the purpose of segment information 15 the Executive Commitiee

Gross rental ncome 1s derived from the rental of buildings Operating result s the net of netrental Income fee income and administrative expenses
No customer exceeded 10% of the Group s revenues in enther year

Segment result

Dfiices and residential Retail and leisure Canada Water Cther/unatlocated TJotal
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 205 2018 2015 2016 2015
£m im £m £m £€m £m £m Em £m fm
Gross rental income
Briush Land Group 133 121 n 248 8 ) - - 432 375
Share of joint ventures and funds 14 89 104 b - - 4 8 222 243
Total 247 210 395 3%4 a 6 4 8 454 618 '
Net rental income !
British Land Group 124 12 277 233 7 6 - - 408 351 !
Share of joint ventures and funds 110 85 9 141 - - 3 8 212 234
Total 234 197 376 374 7 & 3 8 620 585 |
Operating result
British Land Group 112 101 240 718 7 b (48] (41 333 284
Share of joint venturt es and funds 109 82 102 138 - - 1 18 210 230
Total 221 183 352 356 7 6 47 311 543 514
2016 015
Reconciliation to Underlying Profit £m tm
Operating result 543 514
Net financing costs (180) {201
Underlying Profit 363 313
Reconciliation te profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Underlying Profit 363 13
Caputal and othes 954 1460
Underlying Prohit attrsbutable
te non-controlling interests 14 16
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,331 1789

Of the total revenues abave £4m [2014/15 £8m]was derved from outside the UK
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21 Segment mformanon contimued

Segment assets

Cffices and residential Retail and leisure Canada Water Dther/unatlocated Totat
2015 2016 015 2016 215 2016 2015 20é& 2m5
£m £m £m &m Em £m £m £m &m
Property assets

Briush L and Group 3520 5,323 5275 283 273 - - 9,787 3068
Share of joint venlures and funds 2 530 2,018 203% - - - 40 4,861 4 609
Total 5050 7,341 7314 283 273 - 40 14,648 13 677

Reconciliation to net assets
2016 2015
Britsh Land Group £m fm
Property assets 14,648 13 677
Other non-current assets 138 256
Non-current assets 14,786 13932
Other net curtent liabiliies (257) 1307)
Adjusted net debt 4,765)  [4918]
Other non-cusrent irabilities {70) (73]
EPRA net assets (undiluted) 9,674 B 635
Convertible ditution 400 400
EPRA net assets (diluted] 10,074 9035
Nan-controiling interests 277 333
EPRA adustments 1732] 1803)
Netassets 9.419 8565

22 Capatal commitments

The aggregate capital commuments to pwt chase construct or develop investment property for repairs mawtenance or enhancements or for the

purchase ol investmentis which are contracted for but not provided are set out below

2016 2015

£m tm

Briush Land and subsidianies (includes share of development toan faclityl 174 198
Share of joint ventures 40 42
Share of funds 2 2
214 242

23 Related party transactions

The Group had provided a development loan of up to £320m to the Broadgate joint ventur e secured agamnst the 5 Broadgate development The loan
was futly repard during the year Interest and commutment fees earned on the loan duning the year were £4m [20§4/15 £8m]

Detais of transactions with joint veatures and funds are given in notes 3 4 and 11 Duning the year the Group recogmised joint venture managerment
fees of €8ra [2014/15 €7m)

Detaids of Directors remuner ation are given in the Remuner ation Report on pages Bé to 110 Details of 1ansactions with key management personnel
are provided in note 8

Detals of transactions with The British Land Group of Compamies Pension Scherne and other smaller pension schemes are given in note 9

The purchases by related parties oi Simon Berrows of two {lats in London for a total of E4m from a British Land Group company as approved at last
year s Annual General Meeting completed du: ing the year
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24 Contingent linbihties

Group, joint ventures and funds

The Group joint ventu es and funds have contingent lrabiliies in respect of legal claims guar antees and warranties arising in the ordsnary course
of business I 1s not anticipated that any material liabiities witl arise from contingent tiabilities

23 Subsidiaries with matenal non-controlling interests

Set out below i1s summarised financial infor mation for each subsidiary that has non-controtling interests that are mater at to the Group
The miormation below 1s the amouni before inter company eiminations and represents the consolidated results of the Hercules Unit Trust group

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 March
Hereules Uni Trust

2014 2ms

£m fm

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 59 142
Attributable to nan-controlling Interests 19 55
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company 40 87

Summarised balance sheet for the year ended 31 March
Hercutes Uit Trust

2018 2015

£m fm

Total assets 1,490 1687
Total babilires (469) [674)
Netassets 1,021 1013
Non-controfling interests 277 333
Equity attributabie to shareholders of the Company 744 680

Summarised cash flows
Hercules Umit Trust

20158 2015

£€m fm

Net [decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents [5) 2
Cast and cash equivalents at 1 April 35 33
Cash and cash equsvalents at 31 March 30 35

The Hercules Unit Trustis a publicly listed Unit Trust The Unit price at 31 March 201615 £719 [2014/15 £711)
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26 Aundit exemptions taken for subsidutries

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the Compantes Act 2004 relating to the audit of individua! accounts by virtue of

Section 479A of that Act

Companies House
Mame reg number
British Land Aqua Pai tnership Limited 6024919
Brtish Land Aqua Pas tnership [2) Limited 4074921
Apartpower Limied 2832059
Piltarcarsse Management Limrted 2941307
BL Guaranteeco Lirnited 5403335
WHK Holdings Linted 2487591
Wates City Paint Limited 2973114
BL HC Property Holdings Lirmted 06894045
BL Health Clubs Ph No 1 Linuted 05643248
BL Health Clubs Ph No 2 Lirmited 05643261
5t James Retail Park Northarnpton Limited 5396394
Pitlar Nugent Linwted 2567031
Piilar Developments Limuted 2850421
United Kingdorn Property Company Limited 266486
B1itsh Land Hercutes Mo 1 Limited 3527580
Prilar Estates Limited 3044028
Pilar [Dartford] Limited 2783384
BL.Goodman (LP) Limited 5056902
Piller Broadway Limited 3589116
Parwtck Investments Lirnited 00454239
Hilden Properttes Limited NID62887
BL [Maidenhead] Cornpany Limited 7667834
Wardrobe Holdings Limited 04049158
BL Cwmbran Limited 778029
BL GP Chess Na 1 Liruted 8572585
Ludgate West Limited 4882129
Bayeas! Property Company Limited 435800
Batdswitch Limited 2307096
Exchange House Holdings Limied 2037407
Paddington Central | {GP) Lirnited 389137
Regts Praperty Holdmgs Limnted 891470
Dinwvelt Limited 5035303
TPP Investments Limited 4843814
BL Osnaburgh St Residential Ltd 06874523
Moarage {Property Developmentsi Limited 1185513
39 Victoria Street Limited T037133
Teesside Lewsure Park Lismted 2672136
Cavendish Geared Linnted 2779045
Piltar Auchsnlea Limited 2661047
Pillar Europe Management Limited 2891824
Pillar Retad Parks Limited 21251563
Wates City Of London Properties Lirnized 1788526
BLOS) Investments Limited A4BATH0
Adamant Investrent Corporation Limited 225149

Companies House

Name

reg number

The l werpool Exchange Company Limited
Osnaburgh Street Limtted

Adshilta Lirmited

Rohawk Proper ties Limited
Blaxemill [Twenty-Nine] Lirnited
Pillar (Beckton) Limited

British Land Properly Advisers Limited
British Land Hercutes Limited
British Land Hercules No 4 Limited
Sprint 1118 Limited

Longford Stseet Residential Lunited
Meadowbhank Retail Park Edinburgh Lirnited
BF Propee INo 19) Limited

Ivorydett Limited

Broadgate [PHC 8] Limited

BYP Developments Linuted

FRP Group Ltd

BLU Property Management Limited
Pillar Her cules No 2 Limited

Drake Circus Leisure Limited

Blu Estates Limited

Diomedes Property No 1 Limited
Chrisalu Naminees Linited
voryhill Lirmited

Pardev [Br oadway) Limited

Pillat [Karkcaldyl Limited

Pillar Fors Limited

Pillar Fulham Mo 2 Lirnited

Pillar Glasgow 3 Limited

Bexle Limuied

TIPartnership Lsrmnited
TBLIFerndown) Limited

TBL [Brent Park) Limited
Paddington Block A (GP] Lid
Paddington Block B [GP] Ltd
Paddington Kiosk [GP) Ltd

PC Lease Normunee Ltd

PC Partnership Nominee | td

Bi_ Broadgate Fragment 1 Lymited
BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Lsmited
BL Broadgate Fragment 6 Limited
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490255
5886735
1052683

789485
5279010
2783376
2773828
2783381
3108851
5860847
8700138
5489809
5270113
3264791
3707220
3534584
28444685
1620347
2835069
190208
F325057
52789%6

732510
2307407
2891851
3074412
2806956

266246
5070568
5738899

03436754
3854372
3852947
9320570
9320577
9320562
9320541
9320333
9400407
9400541
940041
9400409
9400413
9400414
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The following partnerships are exempt from the requirements to prepare publish and have audited indivtdual accounts by virtue of regulation 7
of The Par tnerships [Accounts) Regulalions 2008 The results of these parinerships are consolidated within these Group accounts

Name Name

Bl Shoreditch Liumited Pat tnership Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
BlChess No 1 Limited Partnership Bl Lancaster Lirnited Partnership

Paddington Central{ L9 Paddington 8lock ALP

Paddington Central il LP Paddington Block B1P

Meadowhall Opportunities Limited Partnership Paddington Kiosk LP
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

2016 2015
Note £m [21]
Fixed assets
Investments and loans Lo subsidtaries D 27,518 27370
Investmentsin joint ventures D 395 392
QOther investments D 17 264
Interest rate dervative assets E 167 139
Deferred tax assets 1 -
28,098 28 165
Current assets
Debtors G 14 4
Cash and short term depasits E 3é 18
50 22
Current rabilities
Short term borrowings and overdrafis E (74) (1021
Creditors H 177 (103
Arnounts due to subsidiaries 1%,225) [18 881}
{19.374] 119 0841
Netcurrent liabilities 19,326] {19064}
Total assets less current habilities 8,772 2101
Non-current habilities
DNebentures and loans E [2,216) [2 462)
Interest rate derivative Liabilives E ms) (11l
Deferred 1ax and ether non-current babiliies - (13)
(2,335) (2586]
Net assets 6,437 6515
Equity
Called up share capitat ! 260 258
Share premium 1.295 1280
Other reser ves (120) {94)
Merger reserve 213 213
Retained earnings 4,789 4 858
Equity shareholders funds 6,437 6 513
John Gildersleese Luc¢inda Bell
Chawrman Chief Finanaial Officer
Approved by the Board on 156 May 2016
Company number 621920
' The prior year comparatives have been restated oniransition 1o £RS 101 See note Aon page 167
British Land | Annwal Report and Accaunts 2016 165




Financial statements

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Profit and
Share loss

Share captal premium account Total

Em £m £m £m

Balance at 1 Aprit 2015 (restated] 258 1280 4 858 6,515
Share 155ues 2 13 12) 5
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - 52 52
Dividend paid - - 1287 (2871
Fan value of share and share aption awards - - 8 8
Nel actuarial loss on pension schemes - - ] m
Profit for the year after taxation - - 17 m
Derwative valuation movement - - - 125
Balance at 31 March 2016 260 1295 4789 6,437
Balance at 1 April 2014 {restated) 5 1257 3632 5333
Adjustment for change in capitalised mierest accounting policy - - 37 37
Share tssues 3 23 - 26
Adjusiment for scrip didend element - - 49 49
Dividend paid - - 12771 (277}
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - (51 (5]
Profit for the year aftes taxation - - 1422 1422
Berwative valuation movement - - - (70)
Balance at 31 March 2015 [restated| 258 1280 4 858 & 515

The value of distr ibutable reserves within the profit and loss account 1s £3 336m {2014/15 £3 514m)
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(Y} Accountng policies

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
derwatives These binancial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with Financial Repor ting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framewark [ FRS 101] The amendments to FRS 101 (2013/14 Cycle)
1ssued in July 2014 and eifective immediately have been applted

In prepaning these financial stalements the Company applies the
recogniion measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU [ Adopted IFRSs |
but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Comparies Act 2004 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS
107 disclosure exemptions has been taken n these financiat statements
the Company has adapted FRS 101 for the first time

The Cornpany meets the defimtion of a gualifying entity under FRS 100
[Financiat Reporting Standard 100)1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Counal Accordingly in the year ended 31 March 2016 the Company

has changed its accounting framework from UK GAAP to FRS 191 as
1ssued hy the Financial Reperting Council and has indaing so applied
the requirements of IFRS 1 6 33 and related appendices The prior year
financial statements wer e restated for material adjustments on adoption
of FRS 101 i the current year as set out below

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exemptions under FRS 101

latthe requirements of !AS 1 to provide a Balance Sheet at the beginning
of the period in the event of a prior period adjustment

Iblthe requirements of IAS 1 1o provrde a Statement of cash flows for
the period

Reconciliation of Profit and Loss

[c the requirements of IAS 1 to provide a statement of cormnpliance
with IFRS

[d] the reguirements of IAS 1 to disclose information on the
management of capital

[e] the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting
Policies Changes inAccountag Estimates and Errors to disclose
new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effeciive

[} the requirements InIAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to
disclose related party transactions entered into between iwo
or more members of a group provided that any subsidiary which
15 a parly to the fransaction 1s wholly owned by such a member

(g the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disctosures
to disclose key management personnel compensation

[hlthe requirements of IFRS 7 to disclose fimancial instruments and

fi \he requirements of paragr aphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement to disclose information of fair value valuation
techmigues and inputs

Explanation of transition to FRS 101

This 1s the {w st year that the Company has presented its financiat
statements under FRS 101 {Financial Reparting Standard 101] ssued

by the Financial Reporting Counal The following disclosures are
restatements of balances disclosed under previous UK GAAP in the prior
yedr The last financial statements under previous UK GAAP were for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and the date of transition to FRS 101 was
therefore 1 April 2014

The following 1s a reconciliation ilustrating the adjustments posted lo
the Profit and L oss and Balance Sheel (o restale the prior year
cempar atives as a resutl of the transstion to FRS 101 {rom UK GAAP

2015 UK Transition 245

GAAP  adjustments FRS 101

£m frm m
Administrative expenses (771 - (771
Finance cosls (85} - [85]
Other Profitand Loss 1584 - 1584
Totalimpact to Profit and Loss 1,422 - 1,422

Reconctiation of Balance Sheet

Transiion MMEUK  Transition 2014 FRS

Transition 2015UK  adjustrmenis 2i5FRS GAAP  adjustrnents 101

reference Em tm fm £m £m £m
Creditars Ul [i01] {2) (103) {89] {2) 91
Share premium [ul 1283 131 1280 1260 {3 1257
Retained earnings [} [n} 4 857 1 4 858 360 1 3432
Other Balance Sheet 478 P 480 333 2 535
Total impact to Balance Sheet 6,517 i2 6,515 5,335 12} 5,333
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Finaneial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Explanation of transition to FRS 101 continued

Transition adjustment )

Share schemes are subject to National Insurance on the gain employees
make Under UK GAAP the exercise price was estimated to be the share
price prevailing at the balance sheet date whereas under FRS 101 this
was measured as the estimated share price at the exercrse date Upon
conversion this resulted in an additienal £2m creditos and a £2m debit

to retained earnmngs

Transition adjustment kn}

Under UK GAAP upon redemption of a converuble bond in 2004
unamortised capitalised loan issue costs were debited to the profit
and loss Under FR5101 these issue costs of £3m are debited to share
premium and ¢t edited to retained earnings

Notice of continued adoptien of financial reporting standard (FRS) 101 -
reduced disclosure framework

The Boar d continues to consider that it :s in the best interests of the
Group for The British £ and Company PLC to continue to apply FRS 101
Reduced Misclosure Framework for 11s next financial year commenaing
VApril 2016 A shareholder or shareholders holding i aggregate 5% or
more of the total allotted shares in The Brish Land Company PLC may
serve objections te the continued use of the disclosure exemptions on
The British Land Company PLC inwrting toits registered office [York
House 45 Seymour Street London W1H 7LX] not later than 31 July 2014

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis as
explained in the corporate governance secticn on page 77

Investments and loans

Investments and loans in subsidiaires and |oint ventures at e stated
al ¢ost less provision for impairment

(D} Investments and loans to subsidiaries

Sigmificant judgements and sources of estimalion uncertatnty

The key source of estimation uncer {ainty 1 elates to the Company s
invesiments in subsidiaries and joini ventures in esumating the
requirement for imgawrment of these investments management make
assumptions and judgements on the value of these nvestments using
inherently subjective underlytng asset valuations supparted by
independent valuers

(B) Dnidends

Detalls of dwidends pasd and propesed are mcluded in note 1% of
the consolidated ftnancial statements

(C) Companv profit for the finaneial year after tax

The Cempany has not presented 11s ewn profit and loss account as
permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The profit after
1ax for the year was £171m [2014/15 profit £1 422m]

The average monthty number of employees of the Company during
the year was 260 |2014/15 249]

Employee costs include wages and salaries of £35m [2014/15 £33m}
social security costs of £5m [2014/15 £5m) and pension cests of £6m
(2014715 £5ml Detaris of the Executive Direclors remuneration are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report

Audit fees in relalion to the patent Company only were £0 2m
(2014/15 €0 2m)

Investmants
Shares in Loans lo ot Other

subswlianes  subsidianes veptures  Investments Total

£m fm £m fm £m

On 1 Apiil 2015 [restated} 20197 7173 392 264 28,026

Addions - 509 18 4 531
Disposals - 1432 114 {251 14971
Write back of [provision for| 71 - i1) - 70
As at 31 March 2016 20 268 7 250 395 17 27,930

The histonical cosl of shares in subsidianies is £20 529m [2014/15 £20 558m) Investments in joint ventures of £ 3%5m [2014/15 £392m) includes
£214m [2014/15 £205m)] of loans o joint ventures by the Company Resulls of the joint ventures are set out in note 11 of the consolidated financial
statements The historical cost of other investments 1s £87m [2014/15 £252mi
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(E) Net debt

2016 2015
£m £m
Secured on the assets of the Company
5 264% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 371 355
5 0055% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 100 98
5 357% First Mo1 igage Debenture Bonds 2028 349 344
& 73% First Mortgage Debentur e Bonds 2020 &2 182
Loan notes 2 2
884 981
Unsecured
5 50% Senior Notes 2027 0 98
& 30% Senior US Doltar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Senior US Dotiar Nates 2018 28 28
4 635% Semor US Dollar Notes 2027 1465 158
4 166% Seniar US Dollar Notes 2023 105 99
5 003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2026 &9 b4
3 81% Senior Notes 2026 113 m
3 97% Senior Notes 2026 116 114
Fan value of options 1o 1ssue under 1 5% conver tible bond 2017 48 100
Fair value of oplions to 1ssue under 0% convertible bond 2020 27 -
Bank loans & averdrafts 634 707
1,406 1583
2,290 2564
Gross debt
Interest rate and currency denivative habiliies 19 m
Interest rate and currency derivative assets &7l [139]
Cash and short term deposits (EL)] ngt
Net debt 2,206 2518

Principal and interest en these barrowings were fully hedged into Sterling at a floauing rate at the time of 1Issue

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 [maturity 2017)
On 10 Septernber 2012 British Land Uersey] Limited {the 2012 Issuer] a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 1ssued E400 mullion 15%
guaranteed converttble bonds due 2017 [the 2612 bonds) at par The 2012 Issuer 1s fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to thew terms the 2012 bonds are convertible mto preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Company
in exchange for or dinary shar es m the Company or at the Company s etection any combination of ordinary shares and cash Bondholders may
exercise their conversion right at any time up to [but excluding) the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 {the matunty datel

The initial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain evenis

From 25 September 2015 the Company has the option to redeern the 2012 bonds at par :f the Company s share price has traded above 130% oi

the exchange price for a specified period or at any tume ance 85% by nominal value of the 2012 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be 1 edeemned at par on 10September 2017 {the maturity date] if they have not already been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled No redemption of the bonds occurred in the year

The intercompany loan between the lssuer and the Company arising from the transfer of the loan proceeds was inittally recognised at fairvatue

net of capitabsedissue costs and 1s accounted for using the amortised cosi methed In additton to the intercompany toan, the Company has entered
Into a derwalive conkract relating to its guarantee of the abligatrons of the Issuerin respect of the Bands and the commatment to provide shares or
a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds This derivative contract 1s included within the balance sheet as a kalility carried at
far vatue through profit and loss
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Financial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

{E) Net debt contnued

0% Convertible bond 2015 [maturity 2020)
0On ¢ June 2015 Briush Land (Whitel 2015 Limited [the 2015 Issuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 1ssued £350 mithen zero coupon
guaranteed conves tihle bonds due 2020 {the 2015 bonds) at par The 2015 Issuer s {ully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject 10 their terms ihe 2013 bands are convertihle into preference shares of the Issuer which are automatcally transferred to the Company in
exchange for otdinary shares in the Company or at ihe Company s election any combination of ordinary shai es and cash From 20 July 2015 up to
and including 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise its conversion right if the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period Therealter and up io but excluding the Tth dealing day before ¢ June 2020 [the maturity date] a bondhotder may convert
al any time

The wnitial exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ardinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certam events [such as the Company
paying dividends in any year above 14 18 pence per ardinary share)

From 34 June 2018 the Company has the option to redeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period or at any ime gnce 853% by nominal vatue of the 2615 bonds have been convertied redeemed or purchased and cancelled
The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 {the maturity datel of they have not already been converted redeemed or purchased and
cancelled

In addition to the intercompany toan the Company has entered into a derivalive contract relating to 1ts guarantee of the abligations of the Issuer in

respect of the bonds and the comritment 1o provide shares or a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds This derivative contract
15 inctuded within the balance sheet as a bability carried at fawr value through profit and loss

Matunity analysis of net debt

2016 2015

Em £m

Repayable within one year and on demand T4 102
between oneandtwoyears 109 75
two and five years L4 697

five and lenyears 807 961

ten and fifteen years 500 747

hiteen and twenty years 386 6

twenty and twenty five years - 376

2,216 2462

Gross debt 2,290 7 564
Interestrate derivatives (48] (28]
Cash and short term deposils [38) [18)
2,206 2518

(F) Pension

The British Land Gioup of Compamies Pension Scheme and the Defined Contribuiton Pension Scheme are the principal pension schemes of the
Company and details are set out in note 9 of the consolidated financial staternents
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(G) Debtors

2016 2015
£m 24}
Trade and other debtors 9 ?
Prepayments and acerued income 5 2
14 4
(H) Creditors
Restated
2014 2015
£m Em
Trade creditors 3 23
Corporation lax 18 19
OCiher taxation and soaial secunity 29 24
Accruals and deferred income 27 37
77 103
(1) Share capital
Ordinary shares
fm of 25p each
Issued, called and fully paid
ALY Aprit 2015 258 1031788 286
Issued 2 8774037
At 31 March 2016 260 1,040,562,323
Ordinary shares
£m of 25p each
Issued, called and fully paid
At 1 Apnit 2014 255 1019766 481
1ssued 3 12 021 805
At 31 March 2015 258 1031788 286

(J) Contingent habilities, capital comnutments and 1elated party transactions

The Company has contingent liabilities i respect of legal claims guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business

It 15 not anticpated that any mailenal trabilties will anse from the contingent hiabilitres

A131 March 2016 the Company has £13m of capital commitments [(2014/15 £27m]

Related party transactions are the same for the Company as for the Group For details refer to note 23 of the consobidated financial statements
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

(K} Related undertakings

Disclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings

The Company s subsidianies and other related undertakings at 31 March
2016 ar e listed below Al Group entiies are included m the consolidated

financial results

Indirect holdings

Company Name UK/COverseas Tax Resufent Status
1 &4 & 7 Tnton Limited UK Tax Resydent
10 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident

10 Por tman Square Unit Trust {lerseyt
(Urits}

Dverseas Tax Resident

Unless otherwise stated the Company hotds 100% of the voing nghts 10 Initon Streed Limited UK Tax Resident
and beneficialinterestsin the shares of the following subsithartes 17-19 Bedford Street Lirmited UK Tax Restdent
partnerships associated jointventures and joint arrangements 18-20 Craven Hill Gar dens Linnted UK Tax Resident
The subsidiaries and related under takings ar e registered in the United 20 Rrock Street Limited UK Tax Restdent
Kingdom unless noted otherwise and the share capital of each of the 20 Triton Street Limited UK Tax Restdent
Companies where applicable comprises of erdinary shares unless 338 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
otherwise stated

35 Basinghall Streel First Limited UK Tax Resident
The Company holds the magor ity of its assets ty UK companies although 39 Basinghall Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
some are held in overseas companies nrecent years we have reduced 350 Fuston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
the number of overseas companies in the Group 39 Victoria Street Lirmted UK Tax Resident

8-10 Throgmorton Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Direct hotdings Adamanti Investment Cot poration Limited UK fax Resident
Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status  Adshilta Limited UK Tax Resident
B LCT Hotdngs Limuted [Jerseyl UK Tax Residend  Aldgate Place [GP}Limited [50% interest] UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebuttort 2014 Linuted UK Tax Resident  Apactpower Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Davidson Limited UK Tax Resident  Ashband Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Exempt Insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident  Austral House Unit Trust UJerseyl{Umits] Overseas Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resdent  [35 94% mnterest]
BLSSP {Funding) Limited UK Tax Resrdent  Basinghall Street Unit Trust [Jersey) (Units) Overseas Tax Resident
Bluehutton Property Management UK UK Tax Resident (35 94% interestl
Lurnted (50% inter est) B LCT [12697) Limited {Jersey} UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch {No 1) Limited UK Tax Resident B L CT [21500] Linuted [Jersey] UK Tax Resident
Batdswitch Limited UK Tax Resigent B L CT (29900} Limuted [Jerseyt UK Tax Resident
British Land {Jersey] Limited [Jersey) UK Tax Resident B LU [11193] Limited {Jer sey] UK Tax Resident
[Founder Shares] Balsenia Lirmited UK Tax Resident
British Land Cuy UK Tax Resident  Barnclass Limiled UK Tax Resident
Briish Land City 2005 Limited UK lTax Resident  Barndriil Lirmited UK Tax Resident
British Land City Gffices Limtted UK Tax Resident  Bayeasl Property Co Lirmnited UK Tax Resident
British Land Financing Limited UK Tax Resident  Bexite Limited UK Tax Resident
Britush Land Investments Nethei lands Overseas Tax Resident  BF Propce[No 1) Limited UK Tax Resident

Holding BV [Netherlands!

British Land Properties Limited

UK fax Resident

British Land Real Estate Limited

UK iax Resident

Brittsh Land Securities Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Securitisation 1999 UK Tax Resident
Broadgate [Funding} PLC UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates nsurance Mediation UK Tax Resident
Services Limited

Hyfleet Limited (K Tax Resident
Kingsmere Productions Limited UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident

Meadowhall Pensions Scheme Trustee
Lirmited

UK lax Resident

MSC Proper iy Intermethate Hotdings
Limited [50% inter est)

UK Tax Resident

Plantation House Limited UK Tax Resident
P1iory Park Merton Lirmted UK Tax Resident
Regis Proper ty Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
The Briish Land Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
Vitalcreate UK Tax Resrdent

Real Asset insurance Limited [Guernsey|

Overseas Jax Resident
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BF Propco [No 10} Limited

UK Tax Resiient

BF Propeo(No 12 ) Limited

UK Tax Resitient

BF Propco [No 13] Limited UK Tax Resident
BF Propto [No 19 Limited UK Tax Resrdent
BF Propco [Ne 3] Lunited UK Tax Resident
BF Propeo [No 4 | Lirnited UK Tax Resident
BF Propeo (No 5 ] Limited UK Tax Resident
BF Properties [No4 | Limited LK Tax Resident

BF Proper bies (No 5 ] Limited

UK Tax Resident

Bit stali Co-Ownership Trust iMember
Interest {41 25% interest]

UK lax Resident

BL & N Acguisiion Limited UK Tax Resident
BL [Mardenhead) Company Limiied UK Tax Resident
BL [SP) Cannon Stieet Limited UK Fax Resident
BL ISP} Investrnent {1] Limited UK Tax Resident
BL {SP} Investment 2] Limited UK Tax Resident
BL [SP} Investment {3] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
BL [S#} Investrment §4) Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Baker Co 2012 Limited [Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

BL Bradford Forster L imited UK Tax Restdent
BL Broadgate Fragment t Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited UK Tax Resident




Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status ~ Company Name UK/Qverseas Tax Resident Status

BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Meadowhall No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limuted UK Tax Resident  BL Office {Non-City] Hotding Company UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited UK Tax Resident  Lmited

B Broadgate Fragment 6 Limitad UK Tax Resident  BL Offrce Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Chess Limuted UK Tax Resident Bk Dsnaburgh St Residential Lid UK Tax Resident
BL Chess No 1 Limned Partnership UK Tax Resident  BL Piccadilly Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
{Parinership Interest] BL Piccaditly Residential Management Co UK Tax Resident
BL City Ofiices Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resideny  Limited

BL Clifton Moor Lirnited UK Tax Resident  BL Piccadilly Residenual Retail Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cwmbran Limited UK Tax Residert  BL Residenuat Gener al Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Department Steres Holding Company UK Tax Resident 50% mterest)

Limited BL Resigential No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Doncaster Wheatley Limited UK Tax Residen:  BL Residentizt No 2 Limted UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Walk J2012 Limited [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident  BL Residual Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL £50P Limuted (Iste of Man) Overseas Tax Resident  BL Retail Holding Company Limuted UK Tax Resident
BL Eurepean Fund Management LLP UK Tax Resident  BL Retall Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident
[Member Inter est) Limited

BL European Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident E]'[—e?;;::fbm y Superstores Limited (50% UK Tax Resident
Elléjsi;]d Uplift Fund Limted Partnership Overseas Tax Resident BL Shoreditch General Partner Limyed UK Tax Resident
Bi. Fixed Uplift Fund Norminee No 1 Limited Overseas Tax Residen:  BL Shorediteh Lumited Partnership UK Tax Resident
[Jersey] {Partnership Interest)

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No 2 Limited Overseas Tax Resident  BLShorediteh No 1 Linuted UK Tax Residert
[Jersey) Bl Shoreditch No 2 Limited UK Tax Residen:
BL Fund Limited Lersey] Overseas Tax Resident  BL Superstores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Goodrman [General Par tner] Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Triton Building Resrdential Limited UK Tax Resident

[50% interest]

BL Goodman [LP) Limuted

UK Tax Resident

BL Uit Trust lJersey]

Overweas Tax Resident

BL Unutholder No 1 [J] Limited Uersey)

Overseas Tax Resident

BL GP ChessNo 1 Limited UKTax Resident B rutholder No 2 [J) Liited [lersey) Over seas Tax Resident
gtﬂ(:;gitrsglteeco Lirited {Limited by UK Tax Resident g1 Unsversal Limgead UK Tax Resident
BL HC (DSCH) Lirmited UK Tax Reaammt BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC (DSCLI Limited UW Tt Resrdent BL West [Watling House| Lirmited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Dollview Limited UK Tax Resident g::zt?:::: h'lm"ed 3: I:z g:z:g:::
BL HC Hampshire PH LLP {Member UK Tax Resident

Interest) Blaxmilt {Thirty | Lirmuted UK Tax Resident
BL HC Health And Fitness Holdings Limited UK Tox Resident  Blaxmill {Twenty-ning) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC invic Lessure Lirmuted UKTaxResident  DLD (Al Linuted UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH CRG LLP {Member Interest] UK TaxResident  BL-D {Ebury Gate] Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH LLP [Member fnter est) UKTaxResident BLD S Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC #H No 1 LLP {Member Interesi) UK Tax Resigent  BLD{SJ1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 2 LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident  BLD Land Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 3 LLP [Member Interest) UK Tax Ressdent  BLD Properties Linited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Residert  BLD Property Holdings Lirnited UK Tax Restdent
BL Health Ciubs PH No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  BLT Holdings 2210 Ltd {50% interast) UK Tax Resident
BL Health Ciubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  BLY Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
BL High Street and Shopping Centres UK Tax Resident  BEY Property Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Holding Company Limited BLU Secunttes Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Lancaster Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident  British Land [Jotnt Ventures] Limited UK Tax Resident
[Partnership Interest) Briush Land {Whitel 2015 Lirruted [Jersey) UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall Llerseyl Ltd {Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident  [Founder Shares)

BL Leadenhall CL €o Limited Jersey} Overseas Tax Resident  British Land Acquisiians Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall Holding Co [Jerseyl Ltd Overseas Tax Resident  Brstish Land Aqua Pai tnership (2] Limited UK Tax Resident
Lerseyl British Land Aqua Partnership Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Leisure and Industriat Holding Company UK TaxResident Bpish Land Company Secretarial Limited UK Tax Resident
Eimied British Land Construction Limited UK Tax Resident
gt m:?da;:v?‘::lc:it;:ﬂ:i’mned 3?:; 22:3::: Bnitish Land Department Stores Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Meadowhall Lifﬂlleg UK Tax Readent British |and Developments Lirmited UK Tax Resident

British Land Ealing BV [Netherlands}

Dverseas [ax Resident
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Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Company Name

UK/Qverseas Tax Resdent Status

Briash Land European Holding BV
[Netherlands]

Overseas Tax Resident

City of London Office Unit Trust [Jersey)
(Units] [35 94% nteresi]

Overseas Tax Resident

Brisish Land Fund Managernent Linuted UK Tax Resident  Comgenic Limiied UK Tax Resident
Britsh Land Hercules Limited UK Tax Resident  Cormish Residential Properties Trading UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules Mo 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  Lirnited
Britrsh Land Hercules No 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  Carmish Residential Peoper ty Investments UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercutes No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident E'”‘“Ed Ty — TR
British Land HIF Limited UK Tax Resident ool 'WES TTOPEFLES ax reslgen
Brsh Land t Town Retanl Limied UK Tax Reudent Deepdate Co-Ownerstup Trust iMember UK Tax Resident
elar’ Limiie ESI08NL  jnterest) {37 66% interest)
British Land Industrial Limited UK Tax Resident  Brpy investment Holdings Limiied UK Tax Resident
Elrr:}':;s:(’Land Investment Management UK Tax Resident [ i rited UK Tax Resident
British Land nvestments N V [Netherlands| UK Tax Resident Diomedes Property NoT Limited UK Tax Resident
Diomedes Proper ty No 2 Limsted UK Tax Resident
Briuish Land Investiments Netherlands B V Overseas lax Resident
{Netherlands] Diornedes Property No 3 Limtted UK Tax Res:dent
British Land Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident  Dwormedes Properly No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Offices [Non-City] Limsted UK Tax Resident  Dromedes Property Ne 5 Limited UK Tax Resident
Briuish | and Offices [Nen-€ity] No 2 Lirmuted UK TaxResdent  Diomedes Praperty No 6 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices Limited UK Tax Resident  Dromedes Praperly No 7 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Dfftces No 1 Limied UK Tax Resident  [tamedes Properly No 8 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Property Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident  Crake Circus GP L L C [United States] Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Property Manageraent Limited UK TaxResident  Drake Circus Lesure Lirited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Regeneration Limstad UK Tax Resident  Drake Circus Limited Partnership [United Overseas Tax Resident
Briush Land Retall Warehouses Limiied UK Tax Resident States} [Partner ship Interest]
Drake Circus Unit Trust {Jersey! [Units) Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Superstores [Non Secuntised] UK Tax Resident
Number 2 Lirmited Di ake Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate {PHC 8} Limited UK Tax Resident  Drake Pioperty Nominee [No 1) Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgale Adjoming Proper ties Limited UK Tax Resident  Drake Property Nominee [No 2] Limuted UK Tax Resident
Broadgale Business Centre Limited UK Tax Resident  Eden Walk Shopping Centre Generat UK Tax Resident
Partner Limited {50% interest
Broadgate City Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Broad " el g UK Tax Roard Eden Walk Shapping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
roadgate Court Investments Limite ax Resident {Jersey) {Units] [50% ivarest]
Broadgate Estates Limited UK Tax Resident Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust [Jersey} Unstsl Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates People Management UK Tax Reswdent (75 31% nterest]
Lunited Elementvi tue Limited UK Tax Resident
Elrrzii%ale Estates Retaill Management UK Tax Resident & o o e med UK Tax Resident
3 T;
Broadgate Exchange Square UK Tax Resdent Exchange House Holdings Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Finsbury Avenue Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Four Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited [Jerseyl [50% UK Tax Resident
nterest) FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Resident  Garainead Properties Limited UK Tax Reswdent
Broughton Unit Trust {Jersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Resident  Gardenray bimited UK Tax Resident
{75 31% interest) Gibraltar General Partner Limited (37 66% UK Tax Resident

Broughton Retall Park Limited [LJersey) UK Tax Resident
{75 31% inlerest) '

Brunswick Park Linuted UK Tax Resident
BVP Developments Limsted UK Tax Resident
Casegood Enterprises UK Tax Resident
Caseplane Lymited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Il Luruted UK Tax Resident,
Cavendish Geared Limited UK Tax Resident
Caymall Limsited UK Tax Resident
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Proper ies Limied UK Tax Resident
Chnisitu Nominees Limited UK Tax Resident
Clarges Estate Property Management Co UK Tax Resident

Lamited

Cliftan Moor Lirmited

UK Tax Resident
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interesth

Gihraltar Nominees limisted [37 6%
interesil

UK Tax Resident

Gitthr ook Retail Park Nottingham Limited LK Tax Resident
Glenway Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Hotets Limited UK Tax Resident
Hercules Property Limited Partnershsp UK Tax Resident
{Partnership InterestH40 68% interest}

Hercules Property UK Holdings Lunited UK Tax Resident
Her cules Proper ty UK Limited UK Tax Resident

Hercules Unit Trust [Jersey] [Units] (75 31%

Overseas Tax Resident

inter est]
Herefard Shopping Centre GP Lumnited UK Tax Resident
Hereford Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident

Partnership {Partnership Interest}




Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Hereford Shopping Centre Unit Trust
[Jerseyl [Units]

Overseas Tax Resident

Hilden Properties Limited

LK Tax Resident

Horndrift Linited

UK Tax Resident

HUT Investments 2 Lirnited [Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

HUT Invesiments Limited [Jerseyl I75 31%
interest}

Qverseas Tax Resident

Industrial Real Estate Limited

UK Tax Resident

Insistmetal 2 Lsmited

UK Tax Resident

Ivorydelt Limited

UK Tax Resident

Ivorydell Subsidary Limited

UK Tax Resident

One Sheldon Square Limited [Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

Or bital Shopping Park Swindon Limiled

UK Tax Resrdent

Osnaburgh Street Limtted

LK Fax Restdent

Paddington Block A IGP] Ltd

UK Tax Restdent

Paddingion Block A LP [Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block B (GPI Lid UK Tax Restdent
Paddington Block B LP [Parinership Interest] UK Tax Resident

Paddington Centrat | (GP) Limited

UK Tax Resident

Ivoryhilt Limited

U¥ Tax Resident

lethloom Lirmited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Centrai | LPiParinership
Interest]

UK Tax Resadent

Paddingion Ceniral | Nominee Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central i Unit Trust [Jersey)
[Units

(verseas Tax Resident

L & H Developments Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central [} (GP] Lirnited

UK Tax Resident

Lancaster General Partner Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central H LP

UK Tax Resident

Lancaster Unit Trust {Jerseyl {Units}

Overseas Tax Resident

Leadenhalt Holding Co (Jersey) Ltd [Jersey}
(30% nterest)

UK Tax Residem

Liverpool One Management Company

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central tl Unut Trust |Jerseyl
[Unus)

Overseas Tax Resident

Paddington Central IV Unit Trust {Jerseyl
[Unns)

Overseas Tax Resident

Limited (50% interest] Paddington Kiosk {GF] Ltd UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Services Limited UK Tax Resident  Paddington Kiosk LP UK Tax Resident
Londan and Henley (UK} Limited UK Tax Resident  Paddingten Centrat Management Campany UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Limited UK Tax Resident  Limited 187 50% mterest)

Pardev [Broadway] Limited UK Tax Resideni

Lonebridge UK Limited

UK Tax Resident

Pardev [LLuton) Limited

UK fax Resudent

Longford Street Residential Limited UK Tax Resident

Ludgate Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  Parinv Nocthern Lunited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate West Limited UK Tax Reamdent  Parwick Holdings Lirmted UK Tax Resident
Manbrig Properties UK Tax Resident  Parwick Invesiments Limied UK Tax Resident
Marble Arch House Unit Trust [Jerseyl Querseas Tax Resident  Parwick Propertses Lunited Eersey) UK Tax Resident
[Umis) PC Baltic Wharf Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayfair Properties UK Tax Resident  PC Canal Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayflower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resudent  PC Lease Nominee Lid UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Retait Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Resident  PC Partnership Nominee Ltd UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Cemtre {1999] Limited UK Tax Resident  PCourt Uit Trust EJersey] [Unitst Overseas Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Limited UK Tax Resident  Pillar [Beckion) Lirmited LK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Pension Scheme UK Tax Resident  Pillar [Bisstall] Limited UK Tax Resident
Jrustees Limited Pillar [C1icklewood) Limiled UK Tax Resident,
Meadowhall Estates [LJK] Limsted UK TaxResident  py\iar |Dartford) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Group [MLP] Lanited UK TaxResdent  pjliar [Futharm) Limuted UK Tax Restdent
Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Rewident  piiar [Kirkcaldy) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities GP Limited UK Tax Resident  piar Avchintea Lirmited UK Tax Resident
!;:le;sd?\’r]vhall Opportunities Limited UK Tax Resident Pilar Broadway Limited UK Tax Resident
Partnership IJEEsey] [Partnership Interest) Pitlar Cheetham Hilt Limied UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opporiunities Nominee 1 UK Tax Resident  Pitlar City Ple UK Tax Resident
Limited Pitlar Dariford No 1 Limiled UK Tax Restdent
Meadowhall Opportunities Normmee 2 UK Tax Resident  Pitlar Demon Linvted UK Tax Resident
Limited Pitlar Developments Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Tratning Limited UK Tax Resident  PiHar Estates Limited UK Tax Restdent
Mercar) UK Tax Resident  Piljar Estates No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  Pyllar Europe Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Minhill investments Linuled UK Tax Resident  Piliar Farnborough Limited UK Tax Reswdent
Moorage {Property Developments} Lirvted UK Tax Resident  p(lar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  pdlar Fulham No 7 Limtted UK Tax Resident
Moarhelds Nominee 2 Liriied UK Tax Resident  piitar Gallions Reach Limited UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shopping Park Limited UK Tax Resident  Piliar Glasgow 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Number 80 Cheapside Limited UK Tax Resident  Pyliar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
One Hundred Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resident
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Financial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Company Name UK/Owrseas Tax Resident Status  Comipany Name UK/Cverseas Tax Reswdent Status
Pillar Glasgow 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL {Lisnagelivin] Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Hercutes No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL {Maidstone] Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Kinnaird Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Milten Keynes] Limnited UK Tax Resident
illar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Peterbo: cugh) Linnted UK Tax Resident
Pillar Projects Limited UK Tax Resident  THL Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Property Group Lirmited UK Tax Resident  TBL Propertes Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Retait Europark Fund [Pref] Overseas Tax Resident  Teesside Leisure Park Limited [51% nterest) UK Tax Resident
fLuxembourgl Member interest} {65 30% The Aldgate Place Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
interest] [Partnershup Interest] [50% mterest)
Pillar Retail Parks Limited UKTax Resident  The Brinsh Land Residential Limited USK Tax Resident
Pillar Speke Lirmsted UK Tax Resident  Partnership [Par tner ship Interest] {50%
PillarCaisse Managemert Limited {50% UK Tax Resident  'terest]
interest} The Dartford Par tner ship {Member Interest] UK Tax Resident
Piltarman Linuted UK Tax Resident  (38% interest]
PillarStore Limited UK Tax Resident  Fhe Glh;ahar Limuted Partnership [37 66% UK Tax Resident
PiltarStore iNo 3 Limsted UK Tax Resident ::erfsl Exch G — UK Tax Rowdont
Power Court GP Limited UK Tax Resident © LIVEr[io0” Lxchangs LOmpany oime ax REalden

The Mary Str eet Estate Limited LiK Tax Resident
Power Court Luton Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
(Par tner ship Interest) The Meadowhalt Educateon Centre {Limited UK Tax Resident

by Guarantee} (50% interest]
Power Court Nominee Limited UK Tax Resident

The Retail and Warehouse Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Nominees No 2 Lumited UK Tax Resident IeTELP v Par t wp |Part h UK Tax Reaidant
PREF Management Company SA {Spamn) Qverseas Tax Resident Inl:restl roperty Far inership fFarinership axresien
Project Sunrise Investments Limited UK Tax Resident 0 Whiteley Co Ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Project Sunrise Limited UK Tax Resident  Intes est] 150% miterest]
Project Sunrise Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  TPP Invesiments Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Linited UK Tax Resident  Tweed Prermier 1 Limwted UK Tax Resident
Regent s Place Holding Cormpany Linited UK Tax Resident  Tweed Prermuer? Limited LK Tax Resident
Regents Place Management Cempany UK Tox Resident  Tweed Prermer 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Union Property Corpor ation Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Renash UK Tax Resident  |jni0q Properiy Hotdings [London] Limited UK Tax Resident

Tax R L 4
Rigphone Limited UK Tax Resdent | 104 Kingdom Property Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Rutesol UK fax Resident ;05 Estates Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Rohawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  yorenune Co-ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Salmax Properties UK Tax Resident  interest) [37 66% mterest)
Seymour Street Homes Limited UK Tax Resident  valentine Unit Trust Uersey! (Units] (75 31% Over seas Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Limited UK Tax Resident  Interest)
Six Broadgate Liruted UK Tax Resident  Yictnitee Lirmted UK Tax Restdent
Southgate General Par tner Lirmited (50% UK Tax Resident  ¥intners Place Limited UK Tax Resident
mterest] Ward cbe Court Limuted UK Tax Ressdent
Seuthgate Property Uit Trust [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident  Wardrobe Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
{Untts) 150% interest) Wardrobe Place Limied UK Tax Resident
Speke Ul”*t Tiust (Jersey) (Units] (65 9% Overseas Tax Resident  watos Cyty of London Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
mnterest
P Tax Resident

Sprint 1118 Limied UK Tax Resident Wates Lty Point Limited UK Tox Residen

Wates City Properiy Management Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Si James Parade [43] Limited UK Tax Restdent

Westbourne Terrace Pas tnership UK Tax Resident
St James Retail Park Northampton Limited tK Tax Resident {Partnet ship interast]
St Stephens Shopping Cenire Lunited UK Tax Resident Wesigate Retall Park Wakedield Limited UK Tax Resident
Stockton Retan Park Lirmited UK Tax Resident Whiteley Shopping Centre Unit Truss Overseas Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Limited UK Tax Resident  [Jersey}{Units]
Sydale UK Tax Resident WK [Austral House| First | imited UK Tax Resident
T [Partnership] Limited UK Tax Resident WK {Austi al House} Second Limited UK Tax Reswdent
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resident WK Holdings Limuited UK Tax Resident
TBL (Brent Park] Limited UK Tax Resident  Yor k House W1 Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL (Bromley] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bursledonk Lumited UK Tax Resident
TOL IBury} Linnuted UK Tax Resident
TBL {Ferndown] Lumited UK Tax Resident
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

UNAUDITED

Table A Summary meome statement and balance sheet

Summary income statement based on proportional consolidation for the year ended 31 March 2016
The following pro forma information 1s unaudited and does not form par of the consolrdated primary statements or the noles thereto |t presents the
results of the Group with its share of the results of joint ventures and funds included on a bine-by-line basis and excluding non-controtling interests

Year ended 31 March 2014 Year ended 31 March 2015
Less Less

Joint ventures non-controtling Proportionally Joint ventures non-controlbng  Propertionatly

Group and funds interests  consclidated Group and funds nterests  consoldated

£m £m £m £m £m Em £Em £m

Gross rental income 451 23 (28] 654 399 250 [31] 618
Property aperating expenses [26) & 1 [34) [24) [10]) 1 {33
Netrentalmncome 425 222 (27) 620 375 240 (301 385
Administ ative expenses %3 (53 4 [94) [85) 14 1 (88
Net fees and other sicome 16 - 1 17 15 - 2 17
Ungeared tncome Return 348 217 (22] 543 305 236 (27} St4
Net financing costs 110é) 82) 8 (180) {105) (107) 1 [201]
Underlying Profit 242 135 [14) 363 200 129 (16) 313
Underlying taxation 2 - - 2 - - - -
Underlying Profit after taxation 244 135 (14} J65 200 129 [i6) 313
Valuation mavernent 861 1473
Other capital and taxation {net)! 48 50
Capital and other 909 1523
Total return 1,274 1836

* Includes other comprehensive (ncome movement in dilution of share opiions and the movement 1 items excluded for EPRA NAY
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Financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED

Table A (continued)

Summary balance sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2014

The followwng pr o forma information 1s unaudited and does not farm part of the consolidated primary statements or the notes thereto 1t presents
the composition of the EPRA net assets of the Group with its share of the net assets of the joint venture and fund assets and liabilities included
on aline-by-line basis and excluding non-centrolting interests and assuming full dilution

Mark-to-
markst gn
effective cash
Share of Less flow hedges valuaton  EPRANet EPRANeat
ot non- and relared Convertible  surpluson assets assels
ventures  controlling Snare  Deferred debt Head bond trading  31March 31 March
Group & funds interests  options tax  adjustments leases adjustment  properties 2016 015
£m Em fm £m £m £m £m £m m £m Em
Retail properties 5642 2109 (4601 - - - {30| - - 7,341 7314
Qifice properties 4,118 7 835 - - - - (18] - 87 7,024 4050
Canada Water
properties 283 - - - - - (4] - b 283 273
Other properties - - - - - - - - -~ - 40
Total properties 10 0463 4944 {400] - - - 152] - 93 14,648 13 677
Investments in joint
venlures and funds 3353 {7 353} - - - - - - - - -
Other investments 142 {4} - - - - - - - 138 256
Oiher net luabibites)
assels (322] 1121) 3 36 5 - 52 - - 347 {3801
Net debt 13 4617 {1 466} 120 - - 198 - - - (4,745} 14 918)
Didution due to
convertible bond - - - - - - - 400 - 400 400
Net assets 9619 - {277) 36 5 198 - 400 93 10,074 9035
EPRA NAV per share
(note 2} 919p 829
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 3 March 2018
Pente per Penca per
£m share fm share
Opening EPRA NAV 9,035 829 7027 688
income return 365 kI 313 31
Capnal return 0% 77 1523 145
Owidend paid (235) (21] {228] 27)
Ditution due to 2012 converible bond - - 400 (8]
Closing EPRA NAY 10,074 919 9035 829
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Table B EPRA Performance measures

EPRA Performance measures summary table

2016 2049
Pence per Pence per
£&m share tm share
EPRAEaImngs - basic 345 354 313 308
- diluted N 341 319 295
EPRA Net Imbial Yield L1% 4 3%
EPRA topped-up Net Initial Yield & 5% 4 8%
EPRA Vacancy Rate 20% 29%
2016 015
Net asset Net assel
value per value per
Net assets  share pence Net assets share pence
EPRA NAV 10,074 919 2035 829
EPRANNNAV 9.640 880 8 359 767
Calculation and reconciliation of EPRA/IFRS earnings and EPRA/IFRS earnings per share
2015 2015
£m £m
Profit attrisutable to the shareholders of the Company 1,345 1710
Exclude
Group - current taxation (2) 1
Group - deferred taxation 31 23
Jointventures and funds - current taxatian 1 2
Jont ventures and funds - deferr ed taxstion - 14)
Group - valuation movement 1816} (8B4}
Group - profit on disposat of investment properties and investments {351 (200
Group - profit on disposal of trading proper ties (10} 6]
Jomnt ventures and funds - net valuation movement lincluding result on disposals] (263} (593
Changes in fair value of financial instruments and associated close-out costs 31 47
Non-controlling interests in respect of the ahove 5 39
Underlying Proht 363 313
Group - underlying current taxation 2 -
EPRA earmings - basic 345 313
Ditutsve effect of 2012 convertible bond & 6
EPRA earnings - diluted n 319
Profit attributable to the sharehotders of the Company 1,345 1710
Ditutive effect af 2012 convertible bond [ -
{FRS earnings - diluted 1,351 1710
2016 2015
Number Number
rmillion miltion
Weighted average number of shares 1,036 1027
Adjustment for Treasury shares 11 {1t
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares [basic} 1,025 1016
Ditutive etfect of share aptions 2 2
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares 4 4
Dilutive effect of 2012 converiible bond 58 _
IFRS Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 1,089 1022
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond - 58
EPRA Weighted average number of shares [diluted) 1,089 1080
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B continued

Net assets per share

2016 2015
Pence Pence
€m  per share tm  pershare
Balance sheet net assets 9.419 8 563
Deferred tax artsing on revaluation movemnents 5 13
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments 198 257
Dilution effect of share options 3 37
Surplus on trading properties 93 96
Convertible bend adjustment 400 400
Less non-controlling interests 1277) 1333
EPRA NAV 10,074 219 735 829
Deferred tax anising on revaluation movements (24) 13
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments (153) {257
Mark-to-market on debt 1257) [406)
EPRA NNNAV 9,640 880 8 359 767
EPRA NNNAV s the EPRA NAV adjusted to 1 eflect the fair vatue of the debt and derwvatives and lo include the deferred taxation on revatugbions
and dervatives
06 2015
Number Nurnber
million millicn
Number of shares at year end 1.040 100
Adjusiment for treasury shares n [11]
IFRS/EPRA number of shares (basic) 1,029 1020
Dilutive eftect of share optians 2 4
Dilutive effect of ESOP sha:es 7 8
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bend 58 -
IFRS number of shares diluted) 1,096 1032
Dilutive effect of 2012 converuible bend - 58
EPRA number of shares [dituted) 1,096 1090
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Table B contnued

EPRA Net Initral Yield and topped-up Net Imtial Yield

2014 2035
£m Em
Investment proper ty - wholly-owned 9,787 2068
Investment property - share of joint ventures and funds 4,881 4 569
Less developments resideniial and land (894) [1148]
Completed property partfolto 13,754 12 489
Allowance for estimated purchasers costs 985 784
Gross up completed property portfolio valuation 14,739 137273
Annualised cash passing rental Income 407 575
Proper ty oulgoings 18 18
Annualised net rents 599 567
Rent expit ation of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts' 43 &4
Topped-up netannualised rent 662 431
EPRA Net Inital Yietd 4 1% 4£3%
EPRA topped-up Netinitial Yield 4 5% 4 8%
Inctuding fixed/minimum uplifts received in lieu of rental growth 24 26
Total topped-up’ netrents 686 657
Overall topped-up Netimitial Yield & 7% 4 9%
Topped-up net annualised rent 662 631
ERVvacant space 14 20
Reversions 42 18
Total ERV 718 669
Net Reversionary Yield 4 9% 5 0%

The weighted average period over which rent-free periods expire 1s 3 year{2014/15 1 year]

lhe above 15 stated for the UK por tfolio only

EPRA Net Initial Yreld [NFY) basis of calculation

EPRA NIY is calculated as the annualised net rent [on a cash flow basis] divided by the gross value of the compleied property portfolio The vatuanen
of cur camplated property portfolio 1s determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2016 plus an allowance for estimaled purchaser s costs
Estimated purchaser s costs are determined by the relevant starmp duty liability plus an estimate by our valuers of agent and legal fees on notional
acquisition The net rent deduction allowed for proper ty outgomngs s based on our valuers assumptions on future recurring non-recover abte revenue

expenditure

In catculating the EPRA topped-up NiY the annualised net rent 1s increased by the totat contracted rent from expiry of rent-free periads and future
cortracted rental uplifts where defined as nat inlieu of growth Overatl topped-up NIY s calculated by adeing any cther contracted future uplifi to

the {opped-up netannuatised rent

The net reversicnar y yield 1s calculated by divaiding the iotal estimated rental value [ERV] for the completed pi operty partiolio as determined by our

external valuers by the gross completed preperty portfolio valuation

The EPRAvacancy rate 1s calculated as the ERV of the unrented lettable space as a proportion of the lotal rental value of the completed property

portfolio
EPRA Vacancy Rate
2016 015
£m Em
Annualised potential rental value of vacamt premises 14 20
Annualised potential rental value for the completed property portfolio 728 892
EPRA Vacancy Rate 2 0% 2 %%
The above I1s stated for the UK portfotio only
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Finaneial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDBITED

Table B continued

EPRA Cost Ratios

2016 2035

£m tm

Proper ty operating expenses 25 23
Administrative expenses 90 B4
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 13 14
Less Performance and management fees {from joint ventures and funds] {9} ]
Net other tees and commissions (al {8l
Ground rent costs i3 [3)

EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) [A) 108 101
Direct vacancy cosls 11 i
EPRA Costs lexcluding direct vacancy costs) (B) 97 g0
Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs 429 374
Share of joint ventur es and funds [GRI{ess ground reat costsl 222 241
Total Gross Rental Income tess ground rent costs (C] 451 615
EPRA Cost Ratio [including direct vacancy costs) [A/C) 14 &% 14 4%
EPRA Cost Ratio lexcluding direct vacancy costs] [B/C) 14 9% 14 6%
Overhead and operating expenses capitalised [inctuding share of joint ventures and funds} 4 -

In the current year employee costs in felation 1o staff tie on development pr ojects have been capitalised into the base cost of relevant development

assets

Table C. Gross rental income

2016 2015

€m £m

Rent receivable 615 581
Spreating of tenant iIncentives and guaranteed rent increases 36 33
Surrender premia 3 4
Gross rental income 654 618

The current and prior period information 15 presented on a praportionaly consolidated basis excluding non-controtiing inter ests
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Table ) Propertv related capital expenditure

2016 2015

Joit Joint

ventures venlures
Group and lunds Total Group and funds Total
Acquisitions 238 - 238 147 - 147
Development 104 58 162 b4 83 147
|tke-for-like portfalio 9% ] 105 67 23 0
Other 25 15 40 25 8 33
Total property related capex 466 79 545 303 114 417

The above 1s presented on a proportionally consolidated basis excluding non-controtling tnterests and business cornbinations The Other category
contains anounts owing to tenant incentives of £27m [2014/15 £18m) capitalised stalf costs of £4m (2014/15 Enill and capitalised interest of £9m

2014/15 £15m)
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Acquisitions and disposals 186 . PR ST G A
Gross rental income 187

Major holdings 187

Occupiers representing over 0 5% of total contracted rent 188
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Ocher Inforasution

UNAUDITED

Acqusitions and disposals

Acquisitions

Price Price Annual

|Gross]  {Bt Share] Passing Rent
From 1 Apnl 2015 Area Em fm £m
Completed
1 Sheldon Square Offices London 210 210 10
Hercules Unit Trust umit purchase’ Retal Various 95 95 5
19-33 Liverpool Street Offices Londan 22 22 1
Broughton Chester development {and Retan North West 5 3 -
Teesside Letsure Park Retail North East 2 2 -
Total 334 332 16
Y Units purchased over the course of the period £%3m represents purchased GAV
? BLshare of net rent topped up forrent frees
Disposals

Price Price Annual

[Gross]  |BL Share] Passing Rent
From 1 April 2015 Area £Em fm £m?
Completed
Parkgate Rotherham Retail Yorkshire 170 120 )
39 Victoria Street Offices London 139 139 5
Birstall Leeds Retail Yorkshire 107 Kl 2
PREF - France and Por tugal Retail Europe &7 43 4
Hatters Way Luton & Hytton Riverside Sunderland Retail Various 45 34 2
360 London Road Cambertey Retail South 38 38 2
Debenhams Oxtord Retail South 23 23 1
The Hempel Cotlection Residential London 20 20 -
Superstore disposals Retail Various 154 122 )
B&M Daventry Retail Midtands 9 9 1
Bedford Street Residenbial London 4 4 -
Aldgate Place Resdential Londan 1 1 -
Exchanged
Aldgate Place Reswdential Londen 32 16 -
The Hempet Collectson Ressdential L.onden 18 18 -
Tatal 827 518 29

' Bt share of annualised rent topped up for rent frees
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Gross rental income? 2

12 months to 31 March 2016

Annualised as at 31 March 2018

Ns & Jvs &
Accounting basis £m Group Funcis? Total Group Funds? Total
Regional 5h 89 144 52 83 135
Local 10 26 126 97 26 123
Mutti-lets 155 115 270 149 109 258
Department Stores & Leisure 57 - 57 56 - 54
Superstores N 36 47 g 35 44
Solus/Gther 21 - 21 i8 - 18
Retall & Lessure 244 191 395 232 144 376
West End 125 - 125 125 - 125
City 5 14 118 119 124
Offices 130 114 244 130 119 249
Residentialé 3 - 3 3 - 3
Offices & Restdentiat 133 14 247 133 1% 252
CanadaWater 8 - 8 8 - 8
Total 386 265 &50 373 263 536
Table shows UK total with previous classification pravided on Company website www britishtand com/fresults
' Excluding developments under construction and assets held for development
2 Gross rentalincome will differ from annualised 1 ents due to accounting adjustments for fixed and minimum contracted rental uplifts and lease incentives
® Group s share of properties 1n joint ventures and funds including HUT at share
+ Stand-alone residentisl
Major holdings
At 31 March 2016 BLShare Sqft Rent  Ceccupancy Lease
{excluding developments under constructron) % 000 £mpa’ rate %’ lengihyrs?
Broadgate 50 4724 226 93 78
Regent s Place 100 1590 79 87 74
Paddington Centrat 108 806 33 998 78
Meadaowhall 5 1309 80 983 69
Sainshury s Superstores® 50 2526 56 1608 %0
The Leadenhall Building 5 403 37 978 6
Debenhams Oxford Street 100 363 11 100 0 230
Teeside 108 569 15 291 a7
Glasgow Fort 102 50 14 94 2 65
Drake s Circus 100 570 16 98 4 52
Annualised EPRA centracted rent including 100% of joint ventures and funds

? Includes accommadahion under offer or subject to asset rranagement at 31 March 2015
? Weighted average to {irst break
* Comprises stand-alone assets/properties
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Other Informution

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Occupicrs representing over 0.5% of total contracted rent

% of total % of total
At 31 March 2016 ient’ rent’
HBS AG ) 57 New Look 12
Tescoplc 56 Vedafone 09
Debenhams 23 Spor tslirect 09
JSansbury Pl 46 Aon Plc a8
Kinghsher (B&Q] 26 Asda Group 08
HM Government 22 Home Retail Group 08
Next ple 21 JPMorgan 07
Virgin Active 18 Reed Smith 07
Facebook 17 Hennes 07
Spirit Group 16 Deutsche Bank AG 07
Atliance Boots 15 JD Sports a7
Wesfarmers 14 Mayer Brown 07
Visa inc 14 Mathercare 07
Dixons Carphone 14 {CAP Ple 04
Marks & Spencer Ple 14 Lend Lease 06
Arcadia Group 13 Carlson [TGI Friday sl 06
Dentsu Aegis 13 Petsat Home 05
Herbert Smith 12 Credit Agricole 0S
RBS 11 Lews Trust 0s
TJX Cos inc [TK Maxx} 18 Steinhoff 05
Gazprom 10

' Rent contracted on both 5 Broadgate and 1-3 Finsbury Avenue/100 Liverpool Street lease whilst UBS move 3 8% pro-forma for run off of UBS rent a1 1 3 Finsbury

Avenue/100 Liverpool Street
? Includes the impact of rent-free incentives
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Portfolio valuation

Change %?
N &
Group Funas’ Total'
At 31 March 2016 €m £m £m Hi H2 Fr
Regronal 1052 1792 2 844 28 02 30
Local 1893 485 2378 15 11 26
Mult-lets 2,945 2,277 5,222 22 046 28
Department Stores & Leisure ¥ 004 1 1005 34 25 60
Superstor es 153 628 781 [17] (a5l {21
Solus/Other 333 - 331 {01 oAl (05
Retail & Leisure? 4,435 2,906 7,341 18 07 24
West End 3904 - 3904 81 4Lb 128
City 104 2782 2884 85 24 11
Dffices 4,008 2,782 6,790 83 37 121
Residential® 173 61 234 67 03 57
Offices & Residential’ 4,181 2,843 7,024 82 35 18
Canada Water 283 - 283 26 [09) 17
Total 8,899 5,749 14,648 47 20 &7
Standing Investments 8,204 5,673 13,877 45 19 64
Developments 495 76 pal 69 31 94

Table with previous classification provided on Company website at www britishland com/results

1

Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds incleding HUT at ewnership share

? Valuation movement during the period [after taking account of capital expenditui el of properties held at the balance sheetdatle including developments [classified by

end use] purchases and sales

¥ Including committed developments

* Stand-alone residentral

Retail portfolio saluation - previous classification basis

Valuation' Change %* ERV Growth %? NEY Yietd Compression bps
At 31 March 2016 £m H1 H2 FY H1 Hz FY H1 H2 FY
Shopping Parks* 3344 11 03 13 09 19 Z28 5 2 7
Shapping Centres 2205 38 09 47 20 19 39 14 5 18
Superstores 781 18} (05} {21 09 3 13 (5] 1 (&)
Department Stores 606 29 30 60 - 03 03 12 13 25
Leisure 403 42 18 61 (3 03 Q4 22 23 54
Retail & Leisure® 7,341 18 07 24 09 15 24 8 5 13

' Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds including HUT at share
* Valuation movement during the period [after taking account of capital expenditure] of properties held at the balance sheet date Including developrnents fclassitied ny

end use] purchases and sales
¥ Ascalculated by IPD

* Solus/Other assets under current Retatl segmentation previously included in Shopping Parks

° Including committed developments
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Other Informuation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portfolio weighting
2016 2016 2016
2015 {current) {current]  lpro forma’]
At 31 March % % £m %
Regional 202 194 2844 190
Local 16 8 16 3 2378 159
Multi-lets 37o 357 5,222 349
Department Stores & Leisure 71 69 1005 67
Superétores &7 53 781 52
Solus/Other 28 23 333 22
Retail & Leisure B35 50 2 7,341 490
West End 239 266 3904 280
City 188 97 2,886 193
Offices &217 463 5,790 £73
Residential? 19 14 234 18
Offices & Residential [ 74 £79 7,024 491
Canada Water 18 19 283 19
Total 1000 100 0 14,648 1000
London Weighting 55% 58% 8,490 59%

Table with previous classihicaticn provided on Company website www britishland com/resulis
Pro forma for developments under construction at estimated end value [as determined by the Group s externat valuers] and post pertod end transacticns
? Stand-zlone residential

.

Portfohio vield and ERV moycments?

NEYS ERY Grawth % NEY Yield Compression bps-
At 31 March 2014 % H1 H2 Y H1 HZ ry
Regionat 48 17 18 35 by 4 15
Local 52 10 22 33 7 2 9
Mulf:-lets 50 14 20 34 $ 3 12
Depaitment Stores & Leisure 51 02 02 D4 19 17 37
Superstores 52 (09l 03] 13 3] ( 6]
Solus/Other 51 01 00 G1 1 1 2
Retail & Leisure 50 0% 156 24 8 5 13
West End 44 41 36 @9 24 3 28
Crty* 44 48 43 93 16 (4] 12
Offices X X3 50 g6 20 ] 21
Canada Water 32 02 02 05 n 1 13
Total 47 23 30 53 13 3 17

Table with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results

' Excluding developments under construction assets held for development and residential assets
* As calculated by IPD

* Including nobional purchaser s costs

« City ERV growth ot 7 3% and West End ERV growth of 7 1% on a like-for-bke basis
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Total property return (as calculated by IPD)

FY to 31 March 2016 Retail Offices Totat
% British Lang IPD  Brush Land IPD  Bntsh Land IPB
Capital Return 25 23 123 i 68 63
- ERY Growti 24 14 94 78 53 490
- Yield Compression' 13bps 18 bps 21 bps 720 bps 17 bps 23 bps
Income Return 52 51 32 39 42 47
Total Property Return 18 7.5 158 154 113 113
" Net eguivatent yielt movemnent
Portfolio net yields? ?
EPRA topped Qverall Net Net
EPRA pet  up net inmial topped up net equnalent  reversionary
nitial yield yeld  inmial yreld yeld yeld
At 31 March 2016 % %! %t % %
Regional 43 44 435 48 48
Local 48 51 52 52 52
Muiti-lets 45 47 48 50 50
Department Stores & Leisure 47 48 64 51 40
Superstores 53 53 53 52 52
Solus/Other 56 54 56 51 47
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
West End 35 39 40 44 46
City 32 44 45 44 53
Offices 34 42 42 44 3]
Canada Water 28 28 28 32 34
Total 41 45 47 47 L9
! including notional purchaser s costs
* Excluding developments under construction assets held for develapment and residential assets
! tncluding rent contracted from expiry of rent-free perrads and hixed uplifts not 1n lieu of rental growth
¢ Including fixed/minimum uplifts lexcluded from EPRA definition}
Portfolio net vields! 2— previous classification bass
EPRA topped Overail MNet MNet
EPRAnet up netinitia! topped upnet  equivalenl reversienary
intial yeld yeld inal yeld yield yield
At 31 March 2016 % %? %ot % %
Shopping Parks 47 49 49 3t 50
Shaopping Centres 45 4b 47 49 49
Superstores * 53 53 53 52 52
Department Steres 39 39 56 47 35
Leisure 61 61 76 b4 48
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
" Including notional purchaser s costs
¢ £xcluding developments under construction assets held for development and residential assets
* {ncluding rent contracted from expiry of rent free periods 2nd fixed uplrfts not in leu of rentat growth
¢ tnctuding fixed/mimmurm uplifts lexcluded frem EPRA definition}
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UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Lease length and occupaney?

Average lease length years Occupancy rate %

Occupancy
At 31 March 2016 To expiry To break Occupancy  [underlyingl
Regronal 79 49 758 978
Local 87 75 987 994
Mutti-lets 83 72 973 984
Department Stores & Lersure 197 196 00 g 1000
Superstores 142 138 1000 1000
Solus/Other 105 105 oo 1000
Retal & Leisure 1046 98 980 990
West End 95 75 978 981
City 102 83 984 991
Offices 98 79 981 986
Canada Water 75 74 98 & 991
Total 10 2 30 980 988
Table with previous or IPD classiication provided on Campany website www briishland com/results

Excluding developments under canstruction and assets held {or development
2 Including accommodation under offer or sub,ect to assel management
Annuahsed rent and estimated rental value (ERV)?
Annualised rent
Ivaluation basis} £m? ERVEmM Average rent £psf
Js &

At 31 March 2015 Group Funds Total Total Contracted? ERV
Regianal 54 84 138 135 328 359
Local g7 27 124 134 2472 247
Multi-lets 151 m 262 289 280 297
Department Stores & Letsure 51 - 51 44 153 131
Superstores 9 35 L4 43 214 208
Solus/Other 18 - 18 16 188 160
Retail & Leisure 229 144 375 392 240 243
West End 125 - 125 165 515 604
City 5 k2 29 162 560 603
Offices 130 94 224 327 510 &0 4
Residential= 3 - 3 4
Offices & Residental 133 94 227 33t
Canada Water 8 - 8 9 187 216
Tatal 370 240 510 732 301 326

Table with previous classificat:on provided on Company website at www britishland com/results
Excluding developrnents under construction and assets held lor development

? Gross rents plus, where rent reviews are outstanding any increases 10 ERV [as determined by the Groupss external valuers] tess any ground rents payable under head
leases excludes contracted rend supject o rent free and future uphift

# Annualised rent, plus rent subject to rent free

- Stand-alone residential
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Rent subject to open market rent review!

At 31 March 2015 m7 M8 2019 220 2071 2017-19 2017-21
For period io 31 March Em Em £m Em £m £m £m
Regional 15 12 V7 10 18 44 72
Local 1 24 21 12 1t 56 79
Muiti-tets 26 36 38 22 29 100 151
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - -~ -
Superslores 5 4 8 12 14 17 43
Solus/Other - 1 ~ - - 1 1
Retail & Leisure 3 41 &b 34 43 118 195
West End b 20 20 15 z 46 43
City 1 4 13 14 16 18 48
Offices 7 24 33 29 18 64 Ll
Canada Water - - - - - - -
Total 38 65 79 63 1 182 306
Potential uplift at current ERV 1 2 4 2 1 7 10
Tatle with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results
' Exctuding developments under construction residental assets and assets held for development
Rent subject to lease break or expiny!
At 3t March 2014 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 19 2017-21
For period to 31 March Em £m £m £m Em Cm £m
Regional 13 12 9 i3 b 34 56
Local 9 b 8 " g 23 43
Multi-lets 22 18 17 24 18 87 99
Department Stores & Leisure - 1 - - - 1 1
Superstores - - - - - - -
Solus/Other 1 - - - b 1 7
Retail & Leisure 23 19 17 24 24 59 107
West End 10 8 10 4 19 28 Lh
City 17 3 17 14 8 37 59
Offices’ 27 Lk 27 18 27 65 1140
Canada Water 1 - 1 - 1 2 3
Total 51 30 45 42 52 126 220
% of contracted rent 73% 4 &% 6 5% 6 1% 78% 18 2% 319%
Potential uplift at current ERV? 4 3 1 4 1 18 23
Table with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under construction and assets held for development
? Based on office space anly
As determined by the Group s valuers excluding near term developments
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UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Superstores
Stand atone Superstores' tn Mutti-let assets Total Exposure’??
Valuatien Capual Valuation Cap tal Va'uation Capsial
Storu Size Nagf [BL share] Value waLL Noof [BL share Value WALL Noof (Bt sharel Value WALL
000 sq ft Stores £€m psi to FB Stores fm psi woFB Sigres tm psi toFB
>100 8 177 351 124 5 357 538 130 13 534 457 128
75-100 13 270 467 179 2 35 413 128 15 325 457 170
50-75 16 256 404 124 1 12 194 1M1 17 268 185 123
23-50 8 52 226 83 3 3z 457 146 3! 84 281 104
0-25 2 8 177 91 17 80 436 11 19 88 387 07
March 2014 47 7463 383 139 28 536 482 127 75 1,299 41% 136
March 2015 57 924 395 145 29 529 491 139 86 1,453 426 144
Geographical Spread Gross Rent |BL Share) Lease Structure
London & South 57% Tesco £37m RPl and Fixed 8%
Restof UK 43% Sainshurys £30m OMRR 92%
Other £5m
' Excludes £8m non-foodstore occupiers insuperstore led assets and £10m Samnsburys Newquay sold post period end
? Excludes non food format steres e g AsdaLiving
* Excludes £101m of nvestments held for irading cornprising freehold rever sions ina pool of Sainsbury s Superstores
Recently completed and comnntted developments
Let & Resi Sales
PC Curreni Costia Under  ResiEnd Exchanged &
8L Share Sqft Calendar Value complete ERV Qffer Value Completed
At31 March 2016 Sector % 0o Year £m £m' £m? fm £m t&m
3 Broadgate Dffices 50 710 Completed 469 8 192 192 -
Yatding House Offices 100 29 Completed 37 1 19 - -
Whiteley Leisure Fareham Retait 30 537 Compleied 12 1 a6 06 -
Glasgow Fort M&S & Retall Terrace Retail 75 112 Completed 3 3 20 17 -
Total Completed in Period 708 553 13 237 215
4 Kingdom Street Offices 100 147 022017 81 b4 5 - -
Claryes Mayfan Mixed Use 100 192 Q4 2017 404 107 62 - 456 259
Glasgow Fort [MSCP and additional
retail/lersure uruts] Retail 15 12 Q32018 2 5 04 02 -
The Hempe! Phase 1 Residentiat 100 25 Q22016 26 2 - - 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 180 32 Q32016 48 12 - - 72 8
Aldgate Place Phase Residential 50 2N a2 2016 44 14 - - 79 55
Total Under Construction 629 405 204 161 02 657 358
Retail Capital Expenditure? 107

Data includes Group s share of properties in [oint ventures and funds [except area which s shown at 100%)
Frem 1 April 2016

2 Fstirmated headline rentat value net of rent payable under head (eases [excluding tenant incentives]

* Capex commuited and under way within our investrent portfolio relating ta leasing and a55et management
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Near term pipeline

BL Sqit Start On Totat Cost’
AL 31 March 2016 Sector Share 4] Sue £m Status
100 Liverpool Street Offices 30 520 2007 279 Consented
1 Triton Square? Offices 100 217 2017 370 Pre-submission
1 Finsbury Avenue Offices 50 303 2017 150 Consented
5 Kingdom Street? Offices 108 240 m7 228 Consented
Blossom Street Shoreditch Mixed Use 100 340 mz7 256 Consented
Plymouth Leisure Retail 100 102 2016 a1 Consented
MNew Mersey Speke - Leisure Retad 66 b4 2016 20 Consented
Crawley Homewares Park Retad 100 52 2016 26 Consented
Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residenual 50 145 2014 59 Consented
54 The Broadway Ealing Residential 100 34 2016 21 Consented
Total Near term 2,019 1,450
Retail Capital Expenditure® 90
' Total cost ancluding site value Excludes not:onal interest as interest 1s capitatised individually on each developroent ai our capitalisation rate
? Ewsting net areas scheme in early design stages
3 210 000 sq ft of which is consented
£ Forecast capital commitments within our investment portfolio over the next two years relating to teasing and asset enhancement
Medium term pipeline
AL 31 March 2016 Sector BL Share Sgﬂf[; Status
2~ 3 Finsbury Avenue Offices 50 550 Submitted
Eden Walk Kingston Mixed Use 50 562 Submitted
Canada Waler Masterplan' Mixed Use 100 5 500 Pre-subrmussion
Forster Square Bradford Phase 3 Retail 100 63 Consented
Meadowhall Leisure Retast 50 330 Pre-submission
Glasgow Fort - Retail Extension Retail 15 60 Consented
Puiney High Street Resideniiat 100 110 Consented
Total Prospective 2175
! Assumad net area based on gross area of upto 7m sq ft
Resudential development programnme
Current Cost to Exchangg-:zac:e;
Sqft  No Markel PC Date/ Bl Share Valug' come?  EndValue: Complated
At 31 March 2016 000 Unnts Status % £m Em £m fm
Clarges Mayfar 103 34 Q4 2007 100 285 88 456 259
Mixed use 103 34 284 88 456 259
The Hempel Phase i 25 5 Q22006 180 26 2 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 32 18 (32016 100 48 12 72 8
Aldgate Place Phase 1 221 154 Q22015 50 44 14 7% 55
Resi-led 278 187 118 28 201 99
Aldgate Place Phase 2 145 Consented 50
54 The Broadway Ealing 34 Consented 100
Near Term prospective 179
Total Commuitted Residential 381 221 404 116 657 358
Data includes Group s share of properties in jont ventures and funds [except area which is shown at 100%%)
' Excluding completed sales
? From 1 Apnil 2016 Cost to complete exctudes notianalinterest as interest s capialised individually on each development at aur capilalisation rate
1 Includes completec units [£22 8m)
* Includes % 500 sq {t of affordable housing (11 units|
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Ocher laformution

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustamability performance measures

The data below covers $8% of our multi-let managed portfolio by value {66% of assets under management] and 100% of developrnent projects

Scope
{assets or
2015/16 2014115 2013/14 unitst

EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainability reporting'
Total electricity consumption IMWh] 172 238 171 619 164 038 97/109
Total district heating and cooling consumption [MWh} 0 0 289 0/0
Total fuel consumption [MWh] 38 234 35399 36 085 45/4é
Building energy mtensity (kWh per m?] Diflices 263 41 27099 260 76 34/37
Shopping centres 51 82 6000 60 71 13/13
Retail parks 1023 916 937 35/42
Building energy intensity [(kWh per workstation or 10 000 visitors] Offices 5169 5978 5 657 31/37
Shopping centi es 1276 1488 1740 12/13
Retail parks 238 224 297 33442
Total direct [Scope 1} greenhouse gas ermissions {lonnes CO.el 7927 7519 7335 45/46
Total indirect [Scope 2§ greenhouse gas emissions [tonnes CO.el 38710 42 503 38 419 97/109
Greenhouse gas intensity from butding energy consumption Offices [gross iter nat areal 014 0135 014 34/37
[tonnes COe per m?) Shopping centres 003 803 003 13/13
Retail parks 0004 0004 0005 35/42
Tatal water consumption [m3) 453 490 557 041 654 991 68/81
Buslding water intensity [m3 per m?} Dffices 074 g 64 065 32/37
Shopping centres 036 034 034 1/12
Retail parks 004 007 208 15/22
Burding water intensily {m? per workstation or 10 000wisitorsi  Offices 1376 14 29 13 67 30/37
Shopping centres 889 878 271 11/42
Retail parks 132 194 227 15/22
Total waste by disposal route [tonnes and %} Recycled 14 533 (68 6%| 12 541 [67 4%3 13 059 |64%!) 60760
Inciner ated 652230 8%] 543729 2%} 5306 (27%] 60/60
Landiilled 13410 6%)  615{3 3%} 1465(7%} 60/60
Sustamably certified assets - Energy Performance AtoB 30% 22% - 2369/2856
Certificates [% by valuel CtoE 7% 75% - 2369/2 855
FtoG 3% 3% - 2369/2 854
2015/16 Scope

Additional sustasnability data in year one of our five-year strategy
Wellbeing Employee score iar our offices supporting thewr wellbesng 87% -
Wetlbeing Visitar score for the shopping experience 4205 29/53
Community Biitish Land employee volunteering 84% 91/107
Commumty Commumity programme as a percentage of pre-tax profis 063% 914107
Commumity Commuruty programme benehiciaries 29 482 /107
Future proofing Developments on track 1o achieve BREEAM Excellent for offices and Excellent ar Very Good for retail 82% 17117
Future preofing Landlord energy reduction versus 200% hindex scor e} 38% (62/100) 75/78
Future proofing Carbon {scope 1and 2} reduction versus 2009 index scorel 40% |60/100} 75/78
Future proofing Portfolio at high nsk of flood 5% 267/273
Future proofing Ener gy generation (MWh] 1126 8/9
Skills and opportunty Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage 100% -
Skilis and oppor tumty Supplier wor kforce pard Living Wage Foundation wage at our propertes 7% 89/101
Skills and opportunity Supply chain spend within 253 miles of our proper ties £9% 59/108
Skitls and opportunitty Supplier workforce living within 25 miles of our places 67% 108/120

! As per EPRA best practice recommendations total energy and water data covers energy and water procured by Britssh Land Energy water and carbon intensity data
covers whole bulding usage for Ofhces and common parts usage for shoppeng centres and retadl parks

For more detailed data on alt these indicators and additronal indrcators please see our Sustainability Accounis 2016 www britishland com/data
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TEN YEAR RECORD

The table betow summarises the last ten years results cash flows and balance sheets

2046 a5 2014 2013 202 201 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m tm £m £m £ms £m
Income!
Gross rental ncome 654 618 597 567 572 544 561 450 709 706
Netrental income 620 585 567 541 946 518 543 598 667 661
Met fees and other income 17 17 15 15 17 18 15 20 40 50
Interest expense {net] (1801 {203 [202) (206} (218) {2121 1246) [292) £3501 13701
Administrative expense (v/A] [88] (78 {74} [76] (68l [65] (58] |73} {84}
Underlying Profit 363 313 297 274 269 256 249 268 284 257
Exceptional costs
{not included 10 Unde: tying Profit)* - - - - - - - (1191 - 1305
Dividends declar ed 287 277 266 234 231 231 725 198 179 107
Summanised balance sheets
Total properties at valuation'? 14,648 13677 12040 10499 10337 9572 B339 8625 13471 16903
Net debt (4,765}  [4918] (48901 14,266] (446900 (4173} (4081 (4941  [6413) [7741)
Other assets and Liahilies 191 274 123 [264) 266 [298) i51] (2971 122} 1300)
EPRA NAV/Fully d:luted adjusted net assets 10,074 9035 7027 5967 5381 5101 4 407 3387 6936 8862
Cash flow movement - Group only
Cash generated fi om cperations 341 318 243 197 21 187 248 404 477 494
Cash outflow from oper ations 147} {33} {24] 2l (5] 28 i12] 1201} {295) [275)
Net cashinflow from operating activities 294 285 219 190 204 210 136 205 182 Ay
Cash inflow [outflow] from capital expenditure
rvestments acquisitions and disposals 230 (111 (669) [202] [547] (240} (35 418 857 [54)
Equity dividends paid 1235) [228 159) (203) [212] {139} (154} [188] [161) i21)
Cash loutflow] inflow from
management of iquid resources and financing 283) 20 607 213 630 157 [485] {58} {830) 111
Increase fdecrease] in casht [ [34) 7 ¥4} 77 {12} (542} 377 48 63
Capital returns
Growth in net assets? 115% 2B4&% 17 8% 10 9% 55% 157%  3019%  {511%F (21 6%) 13 46%
Total return® 142% 245% 200% 4 5% % 5% 177% 335% [al6%) (81%) 143%
Total return - pre-exceptional 142% 245% 200% 4 5% 9 5% 177% 335% (603%) [(181%] 213%
Per share information’
EPRA net asset value per share 919p 82%p 688p 596p 595p 567p SG4p 398p 1¥l4p  13%p
Memorandum
Dividends declared in the year 28 4p 277p 270p 26 4p 261p 25 0p 26Gp 298p 29 0p 16 9p
Dividends paid in the year 28 0p 273p 267p 26 3p 250p 26 0p 273p 300p 26 Tp 14 4p
Diluted earmings
Undertying EPRA earmings per share I p 30 ép 294p 303p 297 28 Bp 28 4p 41 Gp 44 3p 35%p
IFRS ear nings floss) per share* 1241p %73p 102p 315p S38p  952p 132ép  (A141p]l {2510p]  38F4p
' Including share of joint ventures and funds
? Represents movement in diluted EPRA NAY
? Including surplus over book value of trading and developement propertes
* Including exceptional inance costs in 2007 £305 millan and 2009 €112 mithan
2008 restated foriFRS The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental income of £620 riltion and Ynderlying Prafil of £:75 million
Represents movement 1in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in cash under UK GAAP
T Adjusted for the nights 1ssue of 341 rmithon shares in March 2009
British Land | Annusl Report and Accounts 2016 197




Other information

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Fmancial calendar

2016
Faurth quar ter ex-diviaend date 30 June 2014
Fourth quarter dividend payment date 5 August 2014
2017
First quarter Trading Statement 18 July 2016

First quarter ex-dividend date
First quarter dvidend payment date

6 Octobes 2016
11 Novernber 2016

Half year results 16 Novemnber 2016
Second guarter ex-dividend date January 2017
Second guarter dividend payment date February 2017
Third quarter Trading Statement January 2017
Third quarter ex-dividend date March/april 2017
Third quarter dividend payrment date May 2017
Fuil year results May 2017
Fourth quarter ex-dividend date June/iuly 2017
Fourth quarter dividend payment date August 2017

The Board will announce the availlability of a Sciip Alternative for each dividend if offered via the Regulatary News Service and onthe Group s
website www britishland com no later than four business days before each ex-dividend date For the fourth quarter dividend of 2016 the Board
expects to announce the split between PID and non-PI0 inceme at the same trme Any Scrip Alternative will not be enhanced

Analvsis of sharcholders ~ 31 March 2016

Number Balanre as
Range of holdings % at 31 March 2016 %
1-1 000 B 367 5418 4 024 681 039
1001-560¢ 57257 34 04 11211 850 109
5 001-28 000 920 59 8659554 084
20 D0-50 DoG ' 270 175 8 654 309 084
50 00%-Highest 628 407 996 745 682 96 84
Totat 15 447 10000 1029296 078 100 00

Number Balance as
Holder type of holders % at 31 March 2016 %
Individuals 6 693 43 34 1942 035 114
Neminee and institutionat investors B 749 b6 66 10177354 043 98 84
Totat 154472 0G0 1029296078 100 00

' Excluding 11 264 245 shares held in treasury
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Registrars

Briish Land s Share Registrar Equiniti Limited
(Equiniti) can be contacted at Aspect House
Spencer Road Lancing West Sussex

BN99 4DA

The Shareholder Helpline 1s 0371384 2143
Lines are open irom § 30am 1o 5 30pm Monday
to Friday The general enguirres number for
overseas callers s «44 101121 415 7047

Equimiti s websile 1s www shareview co uk
Registering on this site will enabte you to

-view your British Land shareholding enbine

- update your details and

- opt to recewve shareholder mailings
electronucally

Equiniti s also the Registrar for the BLD
Property Holdings Limtted Stock

Bank of New York [eperating through Capita)
British Land s Debentures Regist: ar can be
centacted at The Registry 34 Beckenham
Road Beckenharn Kent BR34TU

The Bendholder Enguiry Line 1s 0871 664 0390
Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus netwark
extras Linesare openfrom 9 00am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

Share dealing service

Equinity offers Shareview a service which
allows UK residents to buy or sell

8riish Land shares

UK residents can deal in British Land shares
onthe internet or by phone Logonto

www shareview co uk/dealing or call

0843 603 7037 hetween 8 30am and 4 30pm
Monday to Friday for more information about
Shareview and for details of the rates If you
are an existing shareholder you witl need your
shareholder reference number which appears
onyour share cet tificate

Drndends

Asa REIT British Land pays Property
income Distribution [PID) and non-Property
Income Distiibutton Inon-PI0) dividends
More information on REITs and PIDs can

be feund in the glossary on page 202 or

In the Investors section of our website at
www britishland com/dwidends

British Land dividends can be paid dizectly
into your bank or building society account
mstead of heing despatched ta you by cheque
Mor e informatipn ahout the benefits of having
dividends paid directly into your bank or
building seciety account and the mandate
forr to set thisup can be found in the
Investors section of our website at

www britishland com/dividends

Scrip Dwvidend Scheme

British Land offers the opportunity to

par ticipate in the Scrip Dividend Scheme
from time Lo time which enables participating
sharehglders to receive shat es instead of
cash when a Scrip Alternative is offered for
a particular dvidend For more information
and for details of how to sign up to the Scrip
Dividend Scheme please visit the Investors
section of our website at

www britishland com/dividends/
scrip-dividend-scheme

Honorary President

Sir John Ritblat became Managing Director of
British Land in 1970 and Chairman in 1971 He
retired from the Boar d in Decernber 2006 and
was apponted Honorary Prestdent m
recognition of bus wark building British Land
into the tndustry leading company it s today

Website and shareholder communscations

The British Land corporate webstle conlams a
wealth of material for shareholders including
the current share price press reteases and
information on among other things REITsend
dvidends Thewebsite can be accessed at
www britishland com

ifyou currently s eceive paper copies ol
shareholder communications you may prefer
to recerve electranic copies via the British Land
websile instead When a document 1s produced
far shareholders you will recewve an email
contasning a Link directly to the new document

If you would Like further information or
would tike to elect for website delivery of
shareholder commumications please vistt
www shareview co uk or ielephone the
Shareholder Helpline

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of The

Briish Land Company PLC will be

held at The Montcalm London Marble Arch
34-40Great Cumberland Place London
WIH 7TW on 19 July 2014 at 11 00am

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares
the value of which makes It uneconomic to setl
them may wish to consider donaling them to
the charity ShareGift [registered chaniy
1052684] which specialises in using such
heldings for charitable benehit

A ShareGift transfes form can be obtained
from Equiniti

For further information contact

ShareGift

17 Carlton House Terrace
London SW1Y SAH

Telephone +44 [0)20 79303737
Website www sharegift org

Unsolicited mail

Onvequest Briish Land 1s legally required to
rake its share register availabte to other
organisations The Maiting Preference Service
1s an independent organisation offering free
services to help reduce the amount of
unsotictied mail you receive

for more information or to register visit
www mpsonline org uk

Registered office
The British Land Company PLC s registered
officets

York House

45 Seymour Street
LondonW1H 71X

Telephone +44 (31207486 4466
Fax +44[0)20 7935 5552
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Other information

GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt 1s the Group net debt and

the G1oup s share of joint venture and funds net
debt excluding the mark-to market on effective
cash Alow hedges and 1 elated debt adjustments
and non-contrelting interests Areconciliation
between Group net debt and adjusted net debt
15 mcluded in Table Awithin the supplementary
disclosures

Annualised rent 1S the gross property rent
receivable on a cash basis as at the reporting
date Addiionally it inctudes the external
valuers estimate of addiianal rent in respect of
unsettied rent review tuinover rent and sundry
income such as that from car parks and
commerclalisation less any ground rents
payahle under head leases

Assels under management s the Full value

of all assets owned and managed by British
Land and includes 150% of the value of all joint
ventures and funds

BREEAM [Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Method] assesses
the sustatnability of buildings against a range
of social and environmental critena

Capital return s calculated as the change

1n capital value of the UK portfolic tess any
capital expenditure incurred expressed as

a percentage of capital employed [slart value
plus capital expendituref over the pertod

as calculated by [PD Capstal returns are
calculated monthly and indexed to provide

a efurn over the relevant period

Capped rents are rents subject tc a maximum
tevet of uplift at the speafied rent reviews as
agreed at the ime of letling

Collar rents are rents subject to 2 minimum
tevel of uplift at the specified rent reviews as
agreed at the time of letting

Contracted rent is the annualised rent
adjusting for the inclusion of rent subject
to rent-free periods

Customer satisfaction includes consumers
aswell as occupiers Thisincludes exit survey
data for consurner satisfaction in the retail
Business aswell as office and retail occupier
satisfaction scores and in future we atm to

be able to further expand to inctude consumer
satistaction for other sectors

Developer s profitis the proftt on cost
eshimated by the valuers that a developer
would expect The developer s profitis typically
calculated by the valuers to be a percentage

of the estimated total devetopment costs
including land and notional finance costs

Development uplift 1s the total increase

in the value [after taking account of capital
expenditure and capitaised interest] of
properties held for development during the
period It also includes any develaper s profit
recogrised by valuersn the period

Development cost 1s the totat cost of
canstruction of @ project to campletion
excluding site values and finance costs [finance
costs are assumed by the valuers at a notional
rate of 5% per annurn)

EPRA Is the European Public Reat Estate
Association the industry body for
Furopean REITs

EPRA Cosl Ratie [including direct vacancy
costs) is the ratio of net over heads and
operaling expenses agansi gross rentai
incame [with both amounts excluding ground
rents payablel Net overheads and oparating
expenses retate to ati admmstrative and
aperating expenses including the share of joint
ventures overheads and operating expenses
net of any set vice fees recharges or other
income spectficatly intended to cover overhead
and proper ly expenses

EPRA Cost Ratio {excluding direct vacancy
costs}is the ratio calculated above butwith
du ect vacancy costs 1emoved from net

over heads and operating expenses balance

EPRA earnings i1s the IFRS profif after taxation
attributable to shareholders of the Company
excluding tnvestment and development
properiy revaluations gains/losses on
investing and rading property disposals
changes in the fair value of financial
instruments and associated close-out costs
and their related taxation Thesellemsare
presented i the copital and other column of the
incorne siatement A reconciliation between
prohit atirtbutable to shareholder s of the
Company and EPRA earnings 1s included in
Tabte B within the Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA NAV per share 1s EPRA NAV dvided by
the diluted number of shares at the period end
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EPRA net assel value [EPRA NAV] isa

pi opos tsonally consolidated measure
representing the IFRS net assets excluding the
mar k-to-market on effective cash flow hedges
and t elated debt adjustments the mark-to-
market on the converlible bonds as well as
deferred taxation on property and derivative
valuattons itincludes the valuation surptus

on trading properties and 15 adjusted for the
dilutive impact of share options and the

£400 mithion convertible bond maturing in 2017
A reconciiation between [FRS net assets and
EPRA NAV s inctuded in Table B wiihun the
Supptementary Disclosures

EPRA net initsal yield 1s the annualised

rents generated by the portfolio after the
deduction of an estinate of annuat recurring
rrecoverable property outgoings expressed
as a percentage of the portfolio valuation
[adding notional purchaser s costs) exciuding
development and residential properties

EPRA NNNAY 1s the EPRA NAV adjusted to
reftect the fair value of debt and derivatives and
to include deferred taxation on revaluations

EPRA Topped-Up Net Initial Yield 1s the current
annualised rent net of costs topped-up for
contracted uplfts where these are not in lieu
of rental growth expressed as a percentage of
capital value after adding notional purchasers
costs excluding development and residential
properiies

EPRA vacancy rate s the estimated market
rental value (ERV] of vacant space divided by
ERV of the whole portfolio excluding
developments and residential property

Estimated Rentat Value [ERV] 15 the external
valuers opinion as to the open market rent
which on the date of valuation coutd reasonably
be expected 1o be obtained on & new {etling or
rent review of a property

ERV growth is the change in ERV over a

period on the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERY at the
start of the period ERV growih s calculated
monthly and compounded far the period subject
1o measurement as calculated by IPD

Fair value movement 1s an accounting
adjustment to change the book value of
an asset or lability toits mar ket value

Footfall is the annualised number of
wisiters enterning our assels

Foottall growth movement in footfall against
the same period In the prior year on praperties
owned throughout both comparable periods
aggregated ot 100% share




Gross investment activity as measured by
aur share of acquisitions sates and investment
in commutted devetopment

Gross rental income 1s the gross accounting
rent recewable [quoted either for the period or
on an annualised basis] prepared under IFRS
which requires that rental income from fixed/
mintmum guaranteed rent reviews and tenant
incentives is spread on a strawght-line basis
over the entire lease to firstbreak Thes can
result in incarme being recogmised ahead of
cash flow

Group 15 The Brish Land Company PLC and
its subsidiaries and excludes its share of joint
ventures and funds [where not treated asa
subsidiary! on a line-by-tine basis 1 e not
proportignally consolidated)

Headline rent 15 the contracted gross rent
recewable which becomes payable after alt the
tenant incentivesn the letting have expired

IFRS are the Internauonal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

Income return s calculated as netincome
expressed as a percentage of capial employed
over the penod as calculated by IPD) Income
returns ar e calculated monthly and indexed

ta provide a return over the relevant period

Interest cover is the number of imes net
interest payable 1s covered by Underlying Profit
before net interest payeble and taxation

IPD1s Investment Proper ty Databank Led
which produces independent benchmarks
of praperty returns and Briush Land UK
portfolio returns

Lettings and lease renewals are compared
both to the previous passing rent as at the start
of the financiat year and the ERV immediately
prior to letiing Both companisons are made

on a nel effective basis

Letting performance against ERV coinparison
of achieved tetting terms on tong term lettings
and renewals aganst valualion assumptions on
like-for-like space calculated on a net effective
basis «gyregated at 100% share

Leverage see toan tovatue {LTV]

Like-for-like rental income growth 1s the
growth in net rental ncome on properiies
owned throughout the current and previous
penods under review This growth rate includes
revenue recogniion and lease accounting
adjustments but excludes proper ties held for
devetopment in either period and properties
with guaranteed rent reviews

Loan to value (LTV] s the ratio of principal
value of gross debt less cash short term
deposits and Lguid investments to the
aggregate value of properties and mvestments

Managed portfolio cansists of mutti-lat
properties where we have control of facillites
and vtilittes management

Mark-te-market is the difference between
the book value of an asset or liab:ity and its
market value

Multi-channel retailing is the use of o

vat ety of channels in & customer s shopping
experence including research, before a
purchase Such channels include retail

stores online stores mobtle siores mobile app
slores telephone sales and any other method
of transacting with a customer Transacting
includes browsing buying returming as well

as pre- and post-sale service

Net Development Value 1s the estimated end
value of a development project as determined
by the extes nat valuers for when the building
15 completed and fully let{taking into account
tenant incentives and notienal purchaser s
costs] 1Lis based on the valuers view on ERVs
yelds letting voids and tenant inceniives

Net effective rent s the contracled gross rent
receivable taking mto account any rent-free
period or other tenant incentives The
incentives are treated as a cost-1o-rent

and spread over the lease to the earliest

ter minatign date

Net equivalent yield 1s the weighted average
income relurn [after adding notional
purchaser s costs) a property will produce
based upon the tuming of the income received
In accordance with usual practice the
equivalent yields (as determined by the
externat valuers} assume rent.s recewved
annually in asrears

Net Initial Yield 15 the current annualised
rent net of costs expressed as a percentage
aof capual value after adding notional
purchaser s costs

Net rental income is the rental mcome
recewable in the period after payment of direct
property outgoings which typically comprise
ground rents payable under head leases void
cosis net service charge expenses and other
directrrecoverable property expenses Net
rental Income 15 quoted on an accounting bas(s
Net rental income will differ from annualised
net cash rents and passing rent due to the
effects of income from rent reviews net
propetiy outgoings and accounting adjusiments
for fixed and mainimum contracted rent reviews
and lease Incentives

Net reversionary yield is the anticipated yield
to which the initial yield will nise lor fall) once
the rent reaches the estimated rental value

Occupancy rate 1s the estimated rental

value of let units as a percentage of the totat
estimated rental value of the portfolio excluding
development and residential properues ft
ncludes accommodation underoffer subject to
asset management lwhere they have been taken
back for refurbishment and ar e not available 1o
tet as at the balance sheet datel or occupred by
the Group

Omni-channel retaiting 1s the evolution of
multi-channel retailing but1s concentrated
more on a seamless approach to the consumer
expertence through all avarlabte shopping
channelsi e mobide internet devices
computers bricks and mortar television

radie direct mail catalogue etc

Over rented 1s the term used to descr tbe when
the conlracted rent s above the estimated
rental value (ERV]

Overall topped-up net imitial yield is the
EPRA topped-up Met lnital Yield adding atl
contracted uplifis te the annualised rents
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Other information

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Passing rent s the gross rent less any ground
1ent payable under head {eases

Property income Distributions [PIDs) are
profits distnibuted to sharehotders which are
subject to tex in the hands of the shareholders
as property income PiDs are normally paid
net of withholding tax currently at 20% which
the RE!T pays to the tax authorites an behall
of the sharehotder Certain types of shareholder
(1 e penston funds) are tax exempt and receve
PIDs without wathholding tax REITs also pay
out nos mal dwvidends, czlled nen-PlDs

which are taxed in the saine way as dividends
recewed from non-REIT companies these
are not subject to withhotding tax and for UK
individual shareholders qualify for the tax

free dividend attowance

Portfolio valuation 1s reported by the
Group s externat valuers Inaccordance
with usual practice they report valuations
net atter the deduction of the notional
purchaser s costs including stamp duty
land tax agent and tegal fees

Proportionally consolidated measures inciude
the Group s share of joint venlures and funds
and exclude non-contiolling interests :n the
Group s subsichanes

Rack rented 15 the term used to describe when
the contracted rent s in line with the estimated
rental value (ERV] implying a mil reversion

Rent-free period see Tenant for leasel
Incentives

REITs a1 e propet ty companes that allow
people and organisations to invest in
commercial property and receive benefits

as f they directly owned the properties
themselves 1he rentat income after costs

15 passed directly to shareholders in the ferm
of diwidends tn the UKREITs are required to
distribute at least 90% of their tax exermnpt
property income to shareholders as dividends
As aresult over time a significant proportian
of the total return for shareholder s 1= bikely to
come {rom dividends The elfectis that taxation
1s moved from the corporate level to the
investor level as invesiors are Liable for

tax as if they owned the proper ty directly
Briish Land became a REIH i January 2007

Rent reviews take place at intervals agreed in
the lease itypically every five years) and their
purpose 15 usually to adjust the rent to the
current market level at the review date For
upwards-only rent reviews the rent will either
1emain at the same level orincrease [if market
rents have increasedj at the 1 eview date

Rents with fixed and minimum uplifts are
either where rents are subject to contracted
uplifts at a level agreed at the ime of letitng
orwhere the rent is subject to an agreed
rmernurn level of uplift at the specified

rent review

Retailer sales growth movement in 1 etaiter
sales against the same perniod i the prior
year on occupiers providing sales data
throughout both casparable periods
aggregated at 100% share

Retail planning consents are separated
between A1 A2 and A3 - as sel out in The Town
and Count:y Plenning {Use Classes] Order
Within the Al category Open Al permission
allows for the majority of types of retait
tncluding fashson to be accommodated while
Restricted Al permussion places Umits on the
ypes of retait that can operate (for example

a restniction that only bulky goods operatoi s
are allowed to trade at that site]

Class Description Use for allfany of the following

purposes

Shops retart warehouses
hardressers undertakers
travel and ticket agencies
post offices pet shops
sandwich bars showrpoms
domestic bure shops diy
cleaners funeral directors
and internet cafes

AZ Financial and Financiat services such
professional as banks and bullding
Services societies prefessional

services [other than health
and medical senaces]
inciuding estate and
employment agencies

it dees not include betting
offices or pay day loan shops
- these are now classedas
Sut geners uses

Al Shops

A3 Restaurants for the sale of food and
and cafes  drink fot consumption on
the premises - restauiants
snack bars and cafes

Cmemas music and concert
halls bingo and dance halls
[but not mmght clubs}
swunming baths skatng
rinks gymnasiums ar areas
forindoor or outdoor sports
and reci eations

D2  Assembly
and leisure

Reversion s the increase in rent estimated by
the external valuers where the passing rentis
below the estimated rental value The increases
Inrenl arise an rent reviews and tetting of
vacant space or re-letting of expirnes
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Scrip dividend British Land may offer its
shat eholders the oppor tunity to receive
dividends i the form of shares instead
of cash This s known as a Scrip dividend

Standing investments are assets which are
directly hetd and not in the course of or held
for development

Tenant [or lease] incentives are incentives
oifered 10 occupiers to enter into a lease
Typically this wall be an wibial rent-free period
or a cash contnbution to hit-ocut Under
accounting rules the value of lease incentives
1s amortised through the income statement
on a straighi-tine basis to the earliest lease
termination date

TM™T stands for technology media and
telecommunications

The residual site value of a development 1s
calculated as the estirnated [net] development
value less develcpment profit all development
consiruct:ion costs finance costs fassumed at
anotional ratel of a project to completron and
notional site acquisition costs The tesiduat

15 determined to be the current site vatue

Topping out 15 a traditional construchion
cerermnony to mark the occasion when
the structure of the huilding reaches
the highest point

Total property return is caiculated as the
change in capital value lessany capital
expenditure incurred plus net income
expressed as a percentage of capital emptoyed
over the perind as calcitated by IPD Total
property returns are catculated monthly

and indexed to prowide a return over the
relevant period

Total return [total accounting return) ss the
growth s EPRA NAV per shar e plus dividends
paid and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAV per share at the beginning of

the period

Total sharehotder returnis the growth in value
of a shareholding over a speciited period
assuming dividends are reinvested 1o purchase
additional units of stock

Totat Tax Contribution 1s a more
comprehensive view of tax contributions than
the accountancy-defined {ax figure quoted in
most iinancial siatements 1t comprises taxes
and levies paid directly as wetl as taxes
collected from others which we adminisiered

Turnover rents is where ait or a partion
of the rent1s inked Lo the sates or lurnover
of the occupier




Under rentedis the term used 1o describe
when the conty acted 1entis below the
estimated rental value (ERV} implying a
positive reverston

Underlying earnings per share [EPS)] consists
of Undertying Prafit afier tax dwided by the
diluted weighted average number of shares

i issute during the pertod

Underlying Profit s the pre-tax EPRA earnings
measure with additional Cormpany adjusirnents
No Company adjustments were made n either

the current or prior year

Valuation upliftis the increase in the por tfolie
valuauion and sales receipls of prepertes sold
during the period net of capital expenditure
capitalised interest and development team
costs and transaction costs incurted
expressed as a percentage of the portfolio
valuation at the start of the peried plus net
capital expenditure capiialised interest and
development team costs and transaction costs

Virtual freehold represents a long leasehotd
tenure fora period of up to 999 years A
peppercorn or nomunat rent s paid annualty

Weighted average debt maturity - each
tranche of Group debt s muliiplied by the
remaining period to 1ts maturity and the sum
of the results is divided by total Group debtin
iIssue at the pernod end

Weighted average interest rate 1s the Group
loan interest and net derivative coSis per
dnnum at the periad end, divided by total
Group debt inissue at the periad end

Weighted average unexpired lease term s

the average lease term remarrung 1o first break
or expiry across the portfolio weighted by
contracted rent excluding devetopment and
residential properties

Yield compression occurs when the net
equivalent yteld of a property decreases
measured In basts points

Yield on cost is the estunated annual rent of
the completed development dwided by the total
cost of development including sie value and
notional finance casts to the point of assumed
rent comimencement expressed asa
percentage return

Yield shift 1s a movemnent lusually expressed
i bpsl in the net equivalent yield of a property
asset ot like-for Dke portfolio overa given
period weighted by net capital value Yeeld
compressien 1s a commonly-used term for

a reduction In yields
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Forward-looking statements

This Press Release contains cerlan forward-looking statements Such
statements reflect current views on arong other things our markets
activities projections objectives and prospects Such forward-looking
statements ¢can sometimes but not always bedentified by their relerence
1o a date ar point 1 the future or the use of ferward-locking terminology
including terms such as belteves estimates, anticipates, expects
forecasts miends due plans piojects goal outlook schedule,
target aim mmay lkelyto will would could should or similar
expressions or I each case thew negative or other vanaltons or comparable
terminelogy By theirnature forward-looking statements involve mherent
risks assumptions and uncertainbies hecause they refate to future events
and depend on circumstances which may or may not eccur and may be
heyond our ability to control or predict Forwar d-leaking statements should
be regarded with caution as actual results may differ materially irom those
expressed in or implied by such statements

Important factors that could cause actual results performance or
achievemenis of British Land to differ matenally from any gutcomes or
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include
among other things [a) general business and political sociat and economic
conditions globally [b] the autcome and consequences of the 1eferendimon
Britain leaving the EU {c] industry and market trends bncluding demand i
the property investment mai ket and property price volatility) (d) competition
[e] the behawiour of other market participanis (f] changes in government and
ather requlation including in relation to the environment health and safety
and taxation [in particular in 1espect of British Land s status as a Real Estate
Investment Trust] {g] milation and consurner conhdence (h) labour retations
and work stoppages [I] natural disasters and adverse weather conditions
[))terrorism and acts of war {k} British Land s overall business strategy,

risk appetite and investment choices in s partfolio management (U legal
or pther proceedings aganst or affecting Briish Land [m] reliable and
secure IT nfrastructure {nl changes in occupier demand and tenant default
lo) changes in financial and equity markets including interest and exchange
rate fluctuations Ip] changes m accounting practices and the interpretation
of accounting standards and lg) the availabibity and cost of finance The
Company s principal risks are described in greater detail in the section

of this Press Release headed Managing risk in delivering our stralegy
Forward-looking statements in this Press Release orthe British Land
website or made subsequently which are attributable to British Land or
persons acting on its behall should therefore be construed in ight of

all such factors

Information contained in this Press Release relating to Briish Land orits
share price or the yield an s shares are not guarantees of and shoutd nat

be relied upon as anindicates of future performance and nothing in this
Press Retease should be construed as a profit forecast Any forward-looking
staiements made by or on behall of Briush Land speak only as of the date thay
are made Such forward-looking statements are expressly gualified in their
entirely by the factors referred to above and no representation assurance
guarantee or warranty 1s given in relatian to them [whether by British Land
orany of iIts associates Directors officers employees oradvisers) micluding
as to their completeness accuracy or the basis on which they were prepared

Other than in accordance with our legal and regulatory obligations (iIncluding
under the UK Financiat Conduct Authority s Listing Rutes and Bisclosure
Rules and fransparency Rules) Bribish Land does not intend or underiake lo
update or revise forward-tooking statetnents o reftect any changes in British
Land s expectations with regaid thereto or any changes in mfermation
events conditions or circumsiances on which any such statement 1s based
This decument shall not under any circumstances create any implcation
that there has been no change In the business or affairs of Briush Land since
the date of this document or that the infermation contained heren 1s correct
as at any time subsequent to this date
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Board photography
Barry Wilhs

#SayCheesegrater

During the year we hetd our
#5ayCheesegrater Instagram
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two photagraghs in this report
which were taken by
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Sonn: Mods @stealth_hquk
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management standarg

Printed by CPJ) Colour an iS50 14001 FSC
and EarbonNeuiral® printing company
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